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EXPANDING 2« VISION

Pinnacle’s footprint grew from four to 11 primarily
urban markets in three new states in 2017.

To ma k the milestone of doubling our a set size a d a sociate ba e, Pinna le
also expanded our vision to be the best financial services firm and the best
pla e to work in the Southeast. We accomplish our ambitious goals by exciting
a sociates, who then engage clients a d enrich sha eholders.




PINNACLE’S FOOTPRINT GREW
TO MORE SOUTHEAST MARKETS IN 2017

?

INVESTOR RELATIONS:

Shareholders and others seeking
a copy of the Firm’s public filings
should visit the Investor Relations

section of our website at www.pnfp.
com or contact:

Chief Financial Officer

Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.
150 Third Ave. South, Suite 900
Nashville, TN 37201

(615) 744-3700

MEMPHIS, TN

Pinnacle grew deposits
67 percent year over year,
propelling us to No. 7 in
deposit market share from
No. 11 in 2016, according
to FDIC data.

GENERAL COUNSEL:

Bass, Berry & Sims PLC
Nashville, Tennessee

STOCK LISTING:

The common stock of Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. is traded on
the Nasdaq Global Select market
under the trading symbol “PNFP.”

CHATTANOOGA, TN

Local loan volume passed
S$1 billion, representing
more than 50 percent
growth since Pinnacle
entered the market in 2015.

.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES:

Shareholders desiring to change
address or ownership of stock, report
lost certificates or to consolidate
accounts should contact:

Computershare

Shareholder Services

P.O. Box 30170

College Station, TX 77842-3170
(800) 368-5948

ANNUAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS:

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders
will convene at 11 a.m. CT on
Tuesday, April 17, 2018. The meeting
will be held at Pinnacle Financial
Partners, Pinnacle at Symphony
Place, 150 Third Ave. South,
Nashville, TN. Further information
regarding this meeting can be found
in the firm’s proxy statement for the
2018 Annual Meeting.

CHARLOTTE, NC

\_

Financial advisors grew loans by more
than 13 percent in 2017, ending the year
with a balance of roughly $1.65 billion.

RALEIGH, NC

Pinnacle’s year-end loan volume
of $900 million and deposits of
$450 million in the Triangle region
represent double-digit growth
even during a time of transition.

Expanding
Our Vision

Visit our online annual report
at annualreport.pnfp.com for
more information about each
of our markets and how we
expanded our vision in 2017.



DEAR FELLOW
SHAREHOLDERS,

October 2000, the month we opened for business
in Nashville, doesn’t seem very long ago.

At that time we formed a company
specifically for the purpose of
capitalizing on the flawed service
delivery and uninspired workforces
at the large national and regional
banks. Since that time, our
longstanding formula has been to
locate in large urban markets that are
dominated by these big regional and
national franchises and aggressively

compete against them based on two
differentiators: distinctive service
and effective advisors who are well
established and have loyal client
followings in the local market.

After quickly becoming a dominant
bank for businesses in Nashville, in 2007
we expanded into Knoxville, 180 miles
east of Nashville, on a de novo basis and

replicated our competitive distinction
there. Following our success in Nashville
and Knoxville, we made acquisitions in
Chattanooga, 135 miles southeast of
Nashville, and Memphis, 210 miles west
of Nashville, overlaying our targeted
recruitment and hiring philosophy
along with our associate engagement
methodologies to substantially
accelerate growth in those markets.



It’s a strategy that now has proven
extremely effective in all of Tennessee’s
urban markets. Mempbhis and
Chattanooga, our most recent Tennessee
market extensions, are particularly
illustrative of the power of the model. The
hiring momentum in both cities continues
to be strong. As we added a meaningful

number of revenue producers to the team,
we grew core deposits and loans rapidly.

Having completed our march to all four
urban markets in Tennessee, we continued
that model in 2017 with our acquisition

of BNC Bancorp, a commercial bank with
offices in a number of large, high-growth

urban markets in North Carolina, South
Carolina and Virginia. The combination
of our firms created a $22 billion bank
operating across four extremely
attractive Southeastern states and,
more importantly, most of the largest
and fastest growing urban markets in
those states.

RECENT GROWTH SHOWS PATH FORWARD

Establish baseline

for market entry

Overlay PNFP’s
culture and associate
engagement

Recruit and hire
the best bankers
in the market

CHATTANOOGA, TN

Revenue Producers

Loan & Deposit Growth*

* in millions

$800

12/31/15 12/31/16

Compound Annual Growth Rate

23% 19%

Create competitive

o differentiation based o

on service and advice

MEMPHIS, TN

Revenue Producers

* in millions

12/31/17 12/31/15

30%

Loan & Deposit Growth*

55%

47 68

$1,101

12/31/16 12/31/17

Compound Annual Growth Rate

46% 30%



PNFP & BNC
MERGER TIMELINE

e

April 6, 2017

Regulators approve the proposed merger with BNC

Jan. 22, 2017

PNFP announces merger with BNC Bancorp

2017 ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In addition to announcing, closing and
integrating our largest acquisition to
date, our teams accomplished many
significant milestones in 2017. Everything
we achieved is tied to our core belief
that excited associates lead to engaged
clients and enriched shareholders.

Excited Associates

For the first year, due to our growth,
Pinnacle was eligible for FORTUNE
magazine and Great Place to Work®
Institute’s list of the 100 Best Companies
to Work For in the country. We debuted
at No. 34 and also earned several
associated awards for being a Best
Workplace for Women (No. 6), a Best
Workplace in Financial Services and
Insurance (No. 7) and one of People
magazine’s 50 Companies that Care (No.
20). We again earned a No. 6 spot on
American Banker’s Best Banks to Work For
list and won local awards in Memphis and
Knoxville for being a “best place to work.”

Engaged Clients

We more than tripled our previous
record for Greenwich Excellence Awards,

bringing home 30 national and regional
honors, making us the second-most
honored bank in the country among the
roughly 600 banks that were eligible.
The awards in small business and middle
market banking are based entirely on
what clients report to independent
researchers from Greenwich Associates.
The foremost provider of market
research to commercial banks also
honored Pinnacle as one of only 19 banks
in the country to have established a
distinctive brand among its clients.
Pinnacle won “Best Brand” awards for

trustworthiness and ease of doing business.

Enriched Shareholders

The M&A Advisor named our merger
with BNC the “Corporate/Strategic Deal
of the Year” over $1 billion. The merger
also led to FORTUNE naming us one of
the Top 100 Fastest Growing Companies
for the second time in our history.
Earlier in the year, based on a basket of
performance metrics, Forbes ranked us in
the top quartile of America’s 100 largest
banks (No. 24). These honors all relate
to our growth, which has been a key to
outsized returns for shareholders.

Nov. 30, 2017

PNFP completes systems conversion

Sept. 25, 2017

BNC converts brand to Pinnacle

June 16, 2017
PNFP completes merger with BNC

Financial Services
&Insurance

CERTIFIED

SEP 2016 - SEP 2017

2017

Best Workplaces™

GREENWICH

B ASSOCIATES
Greenwich

Excellence

GREENWICH

ASSOCIATES

Greenwich



SHAREHOLDER
FOCUS

Even during this period of merger
integration, organic growth was
extremely strong in both the legacy
Pinnacle and BNC footprints. And the
merger actually put us in a position

to increase our long-term profitability
targets, which is key to creating
sustainable shareholder value. As a result
of the transaction, we took our previously
published return on average tangible
assets target from a range of 1.20 to 1.40
percent to a range of 1.30 to 1.50 percent.

We've experienced a great deal of change
at Pinnacle since our inception in 2000
with more on the horizon. Throughout it
all, our associates have maintained a key
focus on disciplined execution of our very
simple strategy, which consistently has
produced outstanding results for

our shareholders.

LONG-TERM
PROFITABILITY TARGETS

Return on Average Tangible Assets*
1.30% to 1.50%

Net Interest Ma gin 3.60% to 3.80%

Noninterest Income

0, 0,
to Avg. Assets 0.90% to 1.10%

Noninterest Expense

0, 0,
to Avg. Assets 3.60% to 3.80%

Net Charge-off Ratio 0.90% to 1.10%

* At Dec. 31, 2017

OUTLOOK FOR 2018 AND BEYOND

As we have been since 2000, we're focused on long-term shareholder value.
We achieve that by taking advantage of the large, high-growth markets that

we operate in and capitalizing on the vulnerabilities of the large regional and
national franchises that dominate these markets. It’s really that simple—just
continuing what we have done so effectively over the last 17 years.

BNC had a high-growth CRE lending practice that we expect to continue at its
previous pace. However, the key to realizing our potential in the Carolinas and
Virginia is to build out a large C&I platform—the thing we do best. We intend
to keep hiring the best C&I and private banking relationship managers in the
Carolinas and Virginia. The hiring during and since the merger is on a rapid
pace, and our recruiting pipelines remain robust. Now that the integration is
substantially complete, we can turn our full focus to hiring revenue producers
and growing the balance sheet.

We are pleased with our earnings momentum in the Carolinas and Virginia

and are excited about the incredible organic growth opportunity that the
merger affords us. We will likely have other high-value opportunities for market
extensions in those Southeastern markets we have targeted or fill-in M&A in our
existing footprint, but we’re in the enviable position of not having to make any
additional acquisitions in order to achieve our growth and profitability targets.
With no pressure to make deals, the only acquisitions we will consider are those
that accelerate our long-term strategic and financial targets.

We are now located in 11 of the most attractive markets in the Southeast with

a proven ability to take share from large regionals who have dominated these
markets for some time. You can expect us to build out those markets in a format
similar to what we’ve accomplished recently in Chattanooga and Memphis.

In every market we have entered, we found ways to hire great bankers who
brought their clients with them. Our strategy is simple. Our associate-engaging
culture is unparalleled by our peers and competitors. And nothing could be
more important in terms of our ongoing success.

Onward!

Sincerely,

M. Terry Turner Robert A. McCabe, Jr.
President and CEO Chairman
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 000-31225

innacle

FINANCIAL PARTNERS
, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in charter)

Tennessee 62-1812853
(State or other jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer
of incorporation) Identification No.)
150 Third Avenue South, Suite 900, Nashville, Tennessee 37201
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including areacode:  (615) 744-3700

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Exchange on which Registered
Common Stock, par value $1.00 Nasdag Global Select Market

Securities registered to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the SecuritiesAct. Yes X1 No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes OO No [X]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) hasfiled all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of this chapter) during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes XI1 No OO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (Section 229.405 of this chapter) is
not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part I11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is alarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accel erated filer, or asmaller
reporting company. See the definitions of "accelerated filer," "large accel erated filer" and "smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2
of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer O

Non-accelerated Filer O Smaller reporting company [
(do not check if you are a smaller reporting company)

Emerging growth company O



If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has el ected not to use the extended transition period for
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). YesOO No
State the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the
price at which the common equity was last sold, or the average bid and asked price of such common equity as of the last business day
of the registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter: $4,684,907,318 as of June 30, 2017.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE REGISTRANTS

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable
date: 77,887,015 shares of common stock as of February 26, 2018.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, scheduled to be held April 17, 2018, are
incorporated by reference into Part 111 of this Form 10-K.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements, other than statements of historical fact, included in this Annua Report on Form 10-K, are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the
Exchange Act. The words "expect,” "anticipate,” "intend," "plan,” "believe," "seek," "estimate" and similar expressions are intended to
identify such forward-looking statements, but other statements not based on historical information may also be considered forward-
|ooking statements. These forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factorsthat could
cause the actual resultsto differ materially from the statements, including, but not limited to: (i) deterioration in the financial condition
of borrowersresulting in significant increasesin loan losses and provisionsfor those losses; (i) continuation of the historically low short-
term interest rate environment; (iii) the inability of Pinnacle Financial, or entitiesin which it has significant investments, like Bankers
Healthcare Group, LLC ("BHG"), to maintain the historical growth rate of its, or such entities, loan portfolio; (iv) changes in loan
underwriting, credit review or loss reserve policies associated with economic conditions, examination conclusions, or regulatory
developments; (v) effectiveness of Pinnacle Financial's asset management activitiesin improving, resolving or liquidating lower-quality
assets; (vi) theimpact of competition with other financial institutions, including pricing pressures (including those resulting from the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act) and the resulting impact on Pinnacle Financial’s results, including as a result of compression to net interest margin;
(vii) greater than anticipated adverse conditions in the national or local economies including in Pinnacle Financial's markets throughout
Tennessee, North Carolina, South Carolinaand Virginia, particularly incommercial and residential real estate markets; (viii) fluctuations
or unanticipated changes in interest rates on loans or deposits or that affect the yield curve; (ix) the results of regulatory examinations,
(x) theability toretain large, uninsured deposits; (xi) amerger or acquisition, like Pinnacle Financial'smerger with BNC Bancorp ("BNC");
(xii) risks of expansion into new geographic or product markets; (xiii) any matter that would cause Pinnacle Financial to conclude that
there was impairment of any asset, including intangible assets; (xiv) reduced ability to attract additional financial advisors (or failure of
such advisors to cause their clients to switch to Pinnacle Bank), to retain financial advisors (including as a result of the competitive
environment resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act) or otherwise to attract customers from other financia institutions; (xv) further
deterioration in the valuation of other real estate owned and increased expenses associated therewith; (xvi) inability to comply with
regulatory capital requirements, including those resulting from changes to capital calculation methodologies and required capital
maintenance levels; (xvii) risks associated with litigation, including the applicability of insurance coverage; (xviii) the risk of successful
integration of the businesses Pinnacle Financia has recently acquired with its business; (xix) approval of the declaration of any dividend
by Pinnacle Financial's board of directors; (xx) the vulnerability of Pinnacle Bank's network and online banking portals, and the systems
of parties with whom Pinnacle Financial contracts, to unauthorized access, computer viruses, phishing schemes, spam attacks, human
error, natural disasters, power loss and other security breaches; (xxi) the possibility of increased compliance costs as aresult of increased
regulatory oversight, including oversight of companiesin which Pinnacle Financia or Pinnacle Bank have significant investments, like
BHG, and the devel opment of additional banking productsfor Pinnacle Bank's corporate and consumer clients; (xxii) therisksassociated
with Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank being a minority investor in BHG, including the risk that the owners of a majority of the
equity interestsin BHG decideto sell the company if not prohibited from doing so by theterms of our agreement with them; (xxii) changes
in state and federal legislation, regulations or policies applicable to banks and other financial service providers, like BHG, including
regulatory or legislative developments; (xxiv) the risk that the cost savings and any revenue synergies from Pinnacle Financial's merger
with BNC may not berealized or take longer than anticipated to be realized; (xxv) disruption from Pinnacle Financial's merger with BNC
with customers, suppliers, employeeor other businesspartnersrel ationships; (xxvi) therisk of successful integration of Pinnacle Financial's
and BNC's businesses; (xxvii) the amount of the costs, fees, expenses and charges related to Pinnacle Financial's merger with BNC;
(xxviii) reputational risk and the reaction of the parties' customers, suppliers, employees or other business partnersto Pinnacle Financial's
merger with BNC; (xxix) therisk that the integration of Pinnacle Financial's and BNC's operations will be materially delayed or will be
more costly or difficult than expected; (xxx) theavailability and accessto capital; (xxxi) adverseresults (including costs, fines, reputational
harm and/or other negative effects) from current or future litigation, regulatory examinations or other legal and/or regulatory actions,
and (xxxii) general competitive, economic, political and market conditions. A moredetailed description of theseand other risksiscontained
in "ltem 1A. Risk Factors' below. Many of such factors are beyond Pinnacle Financial's ability to control or predict, and readers are
cautioned not to put undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. Pinnacle Financial disclaims any obligation to update or revise
any forward-looking statements contained in this release, whether as aresult of new information, future events or otherwise.



PART I

Unless this Form 10-K indicates otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the terms "we,” "our," "us," "the firm," "Pinnacle
Financial Partners," "Pinnacle" or "Pinnacle Financial" as used herein refer to Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., and its
subsidiaries, including Pinnacle Bank, which we sometimes refer to as "our bank subsidiary” or "our bank" and its other subsidiaries.
References herein to the fiscal years 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2017 mean our fiscal years ended December 31, 2013, 2014, 2015,
2016, and 2017, respectively.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Pinnacle Financial Partners is a bank holding company headquartered in Tennessee, with $22.2 billion in assets as of December 31,
2017. The holding company is the parent company of Pinnacle Bank and owns 100% of the capital stock of Pinnacle Bank. The firm
started operations on October 27, 2000, in Nashville, Tennessee, and has since grown through a combination of acquisitions and organic
growth to 114 offices, including 46 in Tennessee, 39 in North Carolina, 21 in South Carolina and eight in Virginia.

Thefirm operates asacommunity bank in 11 primarily urban markets and their surrounding communities. As an urban community bank,
Pinnacle providesthe personalized service most often associ ated with small er bankswhile offering the sophisticated productsand services,
such as investments and treasury management, more typically found at much larger banks. This approach has enabled Pinnacle Bank to
atract clients from the regional and national banks in all its markets. As a result, Pinnacle Bank has grown steadily in market share
rankingsin many of its markets, according to the 2017 FDIC Summary of Depositsdata. In itslegacy marketsin Tennessee, for example,
Pinnacle hasthethird largest market sharein the Nashville-Davidson-Murfreesboro-Franklin Metropolitan Statistical Area("MSA"), the
sixth largest market share in the Knoxville MSA, the fourth largest market share in the Chattanooga, Tennessee-Georgia MSA
("Chattanooga M SA") and the seventh largest market share in the Memphis, Tennessee-Mississippi-Arkansas MSA ("MemphisMSA"),
based on such data.

ACQUISITIONS

In July 2015, Pinnacle Financial completed the acquisition of CapitalMark Bank & Trust ("CapitalMark") for approximately $19.7
million in cash (including payments related to fractional shares) and 3,306,184 shares of Pinnacle Financial's common stock valued at
approximately $175.5 million. All of CapitalMark's outstanding stock options vested upon consummation of the CapitalMark
acquisition and were converted into options to purchase shares of Pinnacle Financial's common stock at the common stock exchange
rate for the merger. The fair market value of stock options assumed was approximately $30.4 million. The CapitalMark merger
increased our presence in the Knoxville MSA and expanded our operations into the Chattanooga M SA and surrounding counties.

In September 2015, Pinnacle Financial completed the acquisition of Magna Bank ("Magna Bank") for an aggregate of $19.5 millionin
cash (including payments related to fractional shares) and 1,371,717 shares of Pinnacle Financial's common stock valued at
approximately $63.5 million. Additionally, at the time of the merger there were 139,417 unexercised stock options that were
exchanged for cash equal to $14.32 |ess the option's exercise price. This consideration totaled approximately $847,000, including all
applicable payroll taxes. The Magna merger expanded our operations into the Memphis MSA.

In July 2016, Pinnacle Financial completed the acquisition of Avenue Financial Holdings, Inc. ("Avenue") for an aggregate of $20.9
million in cash (including payments related to fractional shares) and 3,760,326 shares of Pinnacle Financial's common stock valued at
approximately $182.5 million. Additionally, at the time of merger there were 257,639 unexercised stock options that were exchanged for
cash equal to $20.00 per share lessthe option'sexercise price. This consideration total ed approximately $987,000, including al applicable
payroll taxes. The Avenue merger increased our presence in the Nashville MSA.

In June 2017, Pinnacle Financial completed the acquisition of BNC Bancorp ("BNC") for an aggregate of 27,687,100 shares of Pinnacle
Financial's common stock valued at $1.9 billion and approximately $129,000 in cash (related to fractional shares). Included inthe shares
of common stock issued were 136,890 shares of unvested restricted stock that Pinnacle Financial assumed and which continued to vest
over their original contractual terms. The fair value of these awards was $9.2 million, with $5.4 million attributable to services provided
by the recipients prior to the merger, that accordingly was included as merger consideration. This acquisition expanded our operations
into the Carolinas and Virginia.

In February 2015, Pinnacle Bank acquired a 30% membership interest in Bankers Healthcare Group, LLC ("BHG"), a company which
makes term loans to healthcare practices, for $75 million in cash. On March 1, 2016, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank entered into
an agreement to acquire 8.55% and 10.45%, respectively, of the outstanding membership interests in BHG for $114.0 million, payable
in amix of cash and stock consideration. The cash consideration was $74.1 million and the stock consideration was 860,470 shares of
Pinnacle Financial's common stock, with afair value of $39.9 million on the date of acquisition.
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On March 1, 2016, Pinnacle Financial, Pinnacle Bank and the other members of BHG entered into an Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement of BHG that provides for, among other things, the following terms: (i) the inability of any member of
BHG totransfer itsownership interest in BHG without the consent of the other members of BHG until March 1, 2021, other than transfers
to family members, trusts or affiliates of the transferring member, in connection with the acquisition of Pinnacle Financial or Pinnacle
Bank or as aresult of achange in applicable law that forces Pinnacle Financial and/or Pinnacle Bank to divest their ownership interests
inBHG; (ii) theinability of the board of managers of BHG (of which Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank havetwo of the five members
(the "Pinnacle Managers")) to approve asale of BHG until March 1, 2020 without the consent of one of the Pinnacle Managers; (iii) co-
salerightsfor Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank inthe event the other membersof BHG decideto sell all or aportion of their ownership
interests after March 1, 2021; and (iv) aright of first refusal for BHG and the other members of BHG in the event that Pinnacle Financial
and/or Pinnacle Bank decide to sell all or a portion of their ownership interests after March 1, 2021, except in connection with atransfer
of their ownership interests to an affiliate or in connection with the acquisition of Pinnacle Financia or Pinnacle Bank.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Lending Services

We offer afull range of lending products, including commercial, real estate and consumer loans to individuals and small-to medium-
sized businesses and professional entities. We compete for these |oans with competitors who are also well established in our geographic
markets.

Pinnacle Bank's |oan approval policies provide for various levels of officer lending authority. When the total amount of loansto asingle
borrower exceeds an individual officer's lending authority, officerswith higher lending authority determine whether to approve any new
loan requests or renewals of existing loans. Loansto insiders require approval of the board, and, certain extensions of credit, including
loans above certain amounts and certain adversely classified loans, require approval of a committee of the board.

Pinnacle Bank's lending activities are subject to a variety of lending limitsimposed by federal and state law. Differing limits apply based
onthetype of loan or the nature of the borrower, including the borrower'srel ationship to Pinnacle Bank. In general, however, at December
31, 2017, we were able to loan any one borrower a maximum amount equal to approximately $290.5 million plus an additional $193.6
million, or a total of approximately $484.1 million, for loans that meet certain additional collateral guidelines. These legal limits will
increase or decrease as Pinnacle Bank's capital increases or decreasesasaresult of itsearningsor losses, theinjection of additional capital,
payments of dividends, acquisitions, or for other reasons. Pinnacle Bank hasinternal loan limits ranging from $15 million to $60 million,
dependent upon the internal risk rating of aloan, al of which limits are well below the legal lending limit of the bank. All relationships
in excess of their limit were each approved by the executive committee of the board of directors or the full board of directors. Pinnacle
Bank currently has 19 relationshipsin excess of the $60 million internal loan limit.

The principal economic risk associated with each category of loans that Pinnacle Bank has made or may in the future make is the
creditworthiness of the borrower. General economic factors affecting a commercial or consumer borrower's ability to repay include
interest, inflation and unemployment rates, as well as other factors affecting a borrower's assets, clients, suppliers and employees. Many
of PinnacleBank'scommercial loansare madeto small- to medium-sized businessesthat are sometimes| essabl eto withstand competitive,
economic and financia pressuresthan larger borrowers. During periods of economic weakness these businesses may be more adversely
affected than other enterprises and may causeincreased level s of nonaccrual or other problem loans, oan charge-offsand higher provision
for loan losses.

Pinnacle Bank's commercial clients borrow for a variety of purposes. The terms of these loans (which include equipment loans and
working capital 1oans) will vary by purpose and by type of any underlying collateral. Commercia loans may be unsecured or secured by
accounts receivable or by other business assets. Pinnacle Bank also makes avariety of commercial real estate |oans, including both loans
secured by investment properties and business loans secured by real estate.

Pinnacle Bank also makes a variety of loans to individuals for personal, family, investment and household purposes, including secured
and unsecured installment and term loans and lines of credit, residential first mortgage loans, home equity loans and home equity lines
of credit.

Deposit Services

Pinnacle Bank seeks to establish a broad base of core deposits, including savings, checking, interest-bearing checking, money market
and certificate of deposit accounts. To attract deposits, Pinnacle Bank has typically employed a marketing plan in its current geographic
markets primarily based on relationship banking and features abroad product line and competitive ratesand services. The primary sources
of deposits are individuals and businesses located in those geographic markets. Pinnacle Bank traditionally has obtained these deposits
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primarily through personal solicitation by its officers and directors, although its use of media advertising has increased in recent years,
primarily dueto its advertising and banking sponsorships with the Tennessee Titans NFL football team and the Memphis GrizzliesNBA
basketball team.

Pinnacle Bank aso offers its targeted commercia clients a comprehensive array of treasury management services as well as remote
deposit services, which allow el ectronic depositsto be made from the client's place of business. Our treasury management servicesinclude
online wire origination, enhanced ACH origination services, positive pay, zero balance and sweep accounts, automated bill pay services,
electronic receivables processing, lockbox processing, merchant card acceptance services, small business and commercial credit cards,
and corporate purchasing cards.

Investment, Trust and Insurance Services

Pinnacle Bank contracts with Raymond James Financial Services, Inc. ("RJFS"), aregistered broker-dealer and investment adviser, to
offer and sell various securitiesand other financial productsto the public from Pinnacle Bank'slocationsthrough Pinnacle Bank employees
that are also RJFS employees. RIFSisasubsidiary of Raymond James Financial, Inc.

Pinnacle Bank offers, through RJFS, non-FDIC insured investment products in order to assist Pinnacle Bank's clientsin achieving their
financial objectives consistent with their risk tolerances. We believe that the brokerage and investment advisory program offered by
RJFS complements Pinnacle Bank's general banking business, and further supports its business philosophy and strategy of delivering to
our clients a comprehensive array of products and services that meet their financial needs. Pursuant to its contract with us, RIFS is
primarily responsible for the compliance monitoring of dual employees of RJFS and Pinnacle Bank. Additionally, Pinnacle Bank has
developed its own compliance-monitoring program in an effort to further ensure that Pinnacle Bank personnel deliver these productsin
amanner consistent with the various regulations governing such activities. Pinnacle Bank receives a percentage of commission credits
and fees generated by the program. Pinnacle Bank remains responsible for various expenses associated with the program, including
promotional expenses, furnishings and equipment expenses and general personnel costsincluding commissions paid to licensed brokers.

Pinnacle Bank also maintains a trust department which provides fiduciary and investment management services for individua and
commercial clients. Accounttypesincludepersonal trust, endowments, foundations, individual retirement accounts, pensionsand custody.
Pinnacle Advisory Services, Inc., a registered investment advisor, provides investment advisory services to its clients. Additionaly,
Miller Loughry Beach Insurance Services, Inc. and HPB Insurance Group, each insurance agency subsidiaries of Pinnacle Bank, provide
insurance products, particularly in the property and casualty area, to their respective clients.

M&A Advisory and Securities Offering Services

During 2015, we formed PNFP Capital Markets, a registered broker dealer that partners with our financial advisors to offer corporate
clients merger and acquisition advisory services, private debt, equity and mezzanine placement services, interest rate derivatives and
other selected middle-market advisory services.

Other Banking Services

Given client demand for being able to access banking and investment services easily, Pinnacle Bank also offers a broad array of
convenience-centered products and services, including 24-hour telephone and online banking, mobile banking, debit and credit cards,
direct deposit and remote deposit capture. We also offer cash management services for small- to medium-sized businesses. Additionally,
Pinnacle Bank is associated with a nationwide network of automated teller machines of other financial institutions that our clients are
ableto use throughout Tennessee and other regions. In many cases, Pinnacle Bank reimbursesits clientsfor any feesthat may be charged
to the client for using the nationwide ATM network, providing greater convenience as compared to regional competitors.

Competitive Conditions

We face substantial competition in al areas of our operations from avariety of different competitors, many of which are larger and have
morefinancial resourcesthan we do. Such competitors primarily include national, regional, and internet banks within the various markets
in which we operate though we a so compete with smaller community banks that seek to offer service levels similar to ours. We a so face
competition from many otherstypes of financial institutions, including, without limitation, savings and |oans associations, credit unions,
finance companies, brokerage firms, insurance companies, and other financial intermediaries.

Thefinancial servicesindustry could become even more competitive as aresult of legislative, regulatory and technological changes and
continued consolidation. Banks, securities firms, and insurance companies can operate as affiliates under the umbrella of a financial
holding company, which can offer virtually any type of financial service, including banking, securities underwriting, insurance (both
agency and underwriting), and merchant banking. Also, technology has lowered barriers to entry and made it possible for nonbanks to
offer products and servicestraditionally provided by banks, such as automatic transfer and automatic payment systems. Many of our non-
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bank competitors have fewer regulatory constraints and may have lower cost structures. Additionally, dueto their size, many competitors
may be able to achieve economies of scale and, as aresult, may offer a broader range of products and services as well as better pricing
for those products and services than we can. Finally, as aresult of the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which was signed into law
in late 2017, our competitors may choose to offer lower interest rates and pay higher deposit rates than we do.

We believe that the most important criteriato our bank's targeted clients when selecting abank istheir desire to receive exceptional and
personal customer servicewhilebeing ableto enjoy convenient accessto abroad array of financial products. Additionally, when presented
with achoice, we believe that many of our bank'stargeted clientswould prefer to deal with an ingtitution that favorslocal decision making
as opposed to where many important decisions regarding a client's financial affairs are made outside of the local community.

Employees

Asof December 31, 2017, weemployed 2,132.0full-time equivalent associates. We believe these associates are Pinnacle's most important
asset and have created a culture where associates are engaged and excited to come to work. All associates joining Pinnacle, including
thosejoining as aresult of an acquisition, participate in athree-day orientation that focuses on our culture. Our employee focused culture
issupported by thefact that consulting firm Great Placeto Work and FORTUNE magazine recognized usas one of the 100 Best Companies
toWork Forin2017, thefirst year wewereeligiblefor thislist. Prior to thiseligibility, these organi zations named usamong best workpl aces
in the United States on their Best Small & Medium Workplaceslist in 2012, 2013 and 2014. American Banker also recognized Pinnacle
Bank as one of the top six "Best Banksto Work For" in the country in 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017. Additionally, we were inducted
into the Nashville Business Journal's "Best Placesto Work" Hall of Fame in 2013 after winning the award for 10 consecutive years. We
were aso awarded the “Best Place to Work” among companies of up to 149 employees by the Memphis Business Journal in 2015 and
2017. And we were named a Top Workplace in among mid-size companies by the Knoxville News Sentinel in 2017. All of these awards
place heavy emphasis on anonymous surveys of associates in the judging criteria. These awardsillustrate that our culture is strong, and
our financia returnsillustrate that our focus on culture is awinning business strategy.

OTHER INFORMATION
Investment Securities

In addition to loans, Pinnacle Bank has investments primarily in United States agency securities, mortgage-backed securities, and state
and municipal securities. No investment in any of those instruments exceeds any applicable limitation imposed by law or regulation. The
risk committee of the board of directors reviews the investment portfolio on an ongoing basis in order to ensure that the investments
conform to Pinnacle Bank's asset liability management policy as set by the board of directors.

Asset and Liability Management

Our Asset Liability Management Committee ("ALCQO"), composed of senior managers of Pinnacle Bank, manages Pinnacle Bank's assets
and liabilitiesand strivesto provide a stable, optimized net interest income and margin, adequate liquidity and ultimately a suitable after-
tax return on assets and return on equity. ALCO conducts these management functions within the framework of written policies that
Pinnacle Bank's board of directors has adopted. ALCO works to maintain an acceptable position between rate sensitive assets and rate
sensitive liabilities. The risk committee of the board of directors oversees the ALCO function on an ongoing basis.

Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), including annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K. The public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public
ReferenceRoom at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtaininformation ontheoperation of the Public Reference
Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. We are an electronic filer, and the SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov that
contains the reports, proxy and information statements, and other information we have filed electronically.

Our website address is www.pnfp.com. Please note that our website address is provided as an inactive textual reference only. We
make available free of charge through our website, the annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or
furnished to the SEC. Theinformation provided on our website is not part of this report, and is therefore not incorporated by reference
unless such information is otherwise specifically referenced elsewherein this report.

We have also posted our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Corporate Code of Conduct for directors, officers and employees, and the
charters of our Audit Committee, Human Resources and Compensation Committee, Executive Committee, Risk Committee and
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of our board of directors on the Corporate Governance section of our website at
www.pnfp.com. We will make any legally required disclosures regarding amendments to, or waivers of, provisions of our Corporate
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Code of Conduct, Corporate Governance Guidelines or current committee charters on our website. Our corporate governance materials
are available free of charge upon request to our Corporate Secretary, Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., 150 Third Avenue South, Suite
900, Nashville, Tennessee 37201.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Both Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank are subject to extensive state and federal banking laws and regulationsthat imposerestrictions
on and provide for general regulatory oversight of Pinnacle Financial's and Pinnacle Bank's operations. These laws and regulations are
generally intended to protect depositors and borrowers, not shareholders.

Pinnacle Financial

PinnacleFinancial isabank holding company under thefederal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 that has el ected to becomea'financial
holding company"” thereunder. As aresult, it is subject to the supervision, examination, and reporting requirements of the Bank Holding
Company Act and the regulations of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System ("Federal Reserve").

Acquisition of Banks. The Bank Holding Company Act requires every bank holding company to obtain the Federal Reserve's prior
approval before:

e Acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank if, after the acquisition, the bank holding
company will directly or indirectly own or control more than 5% of the bank's voting shares,

e Acquiring al or substantially all of the assets of any bank; or

e Subject to certain exemptions, merging or consolidating with any other bank holding company.

Additionally, the Bank Holding Company Act provides that the Federal Reserve may not approve any of these transactionsiif it would
substantially lessen competition or otherwise function as a restraint of trade, or result in or tend to create a monopoly, unless the
anticompetitive effects of the proposed transaction are clearly outweighed by the public interest in meeting the convenience and needs
of the communities to be served. The Federal Reserve is aso required to consider the financial and managerial resources and future
prospects of the bank holding companies and banks concerned; the effectiveness of the applicant in combating money laundering; the
convenience and needs of the communitiesto be served; and the extent to which the proposal would result in greater or more concentrated
risk to the United States banking or financia system.

Under the Bank Holding Company Act, asamended by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act ("Dodd-Frank
Act"), if well-capitalized and well managed, a bank holding company located in Tennessee may purchase a bank located outside of
Tennessee. Conversely, awell-capitalized and well managed bank holding company located outside of Tennessee may purchase a bank
located inside Tennessee. In each case, however, state law restrictions may be placed on the acquisition of a bank that has only been in
existencefor alimited amount of timeor will result in specified concentrations of deposits. For example, Tennesseelaw currently prohibits
abank holding company from acquiring control of a Tennessee-based financial institution until the target financial institution has been
in operation for three years.

Change in Bank Control. Subject to various exceptions, the Bank Holding Company Act and the Federal Change in Bank Control Act,
together with related regulations, require Federal Reserve approval prior to any person or company acquiring “control” of abank holding
company. Control is conclusively presumed to exist if an individual or company acquires 25% or more of any class of voting securities
of the bank holding company. Control is rebutably presumed to exist if a person or company acquires 10% or more, but less than 25%,
of any class of voting securities and either:

e Thebank holding company has registered securities under Section 12 of the Exchange Act; or
* No other person owns a greater percentage of that class of voting securitiesimmediately after the transaction.

Pinnacle Financial's common stock is registered under Section 12 of the ExchangeAct. The regulations provide aprocedure for challenge
of the rebuttable control presumption.

Permitted Activities. Bank holding companies generally are prohibited, except in certain statutorily prescribed instances including
exceptions for financial holding companies, from acquiring direct or indirect ownership or control of 5% or more of any class of the
outstanding voting shares of any company that isnot abank or bank holding company and from engaging directly or indirectly inactivities
other than those of banking, managing or controlling banks, or furnishing servicesto its subsidiaries. However, subject to prior notice or
Federal Reserve approval, bank holding companies may engage in, or acquire shares of companies engaged in, activities determined by
the Federal Reserve to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. The Gramm-
Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 amended the Bank Holding Company Act and expanded the activities in which bank holding companies and
affiliates of banks are permitted to engage. The Gramm-L each-Bliley Act eliminated many federal and state law barriers to affiliations
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among banks and securitiesfirms, insurance companies, and other financial service providers, and provided that holding companieswhich
elected to become financia holding companies, as Pinnacle Financial has done, could engage in activities that are:

e Financia in nature;

« Incidenta to afinancial activity (as determined by the Federal Reserve in consultation with the Secretary of the U.S. Treasury);
or

« Complementary to afinancial activity and do not pose a substantial risk to the safety or soundness of depository institutions or
the financial system generally (as determined by the Federal Reserve).

The Gramm-L each-Bliley Act identifies the following activities as financial in nature:

» Lending, trust and other banking activities;

e Insuring, guaranteeing, or indemnifying against loss or harm, or providing and issuing annuities, and acting as principal, agent,
or broker for these purposes, in any state;

e Providing financial, investment, or advisory services,

» Issuing or selling instruments representing interests in pools of assets permissible for abank to hold directly;

e Underwriting, dealing in or making a market in securities;

« Activitiesthat the Federal Reserve has determined to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks asto be
aproper incident to banking or managing or controlling banks;

« Activities permitted outside of the United States that the Federal Reserve has determined to be usual in connection with banking
or other financial operations abroad,;

»  Merchant banking through securities or insurance affiliates; and

»  Insurance company portfolio investments.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act also authorizes the Federal Reserve, in consultation with the Secretary of the U.S. Treasury, to determine
activities in addition to those listed above that are financial in nature or incidental or complementary to such financia activity. In
determining whether a particular activity isfinancial in nature or incidental or complementary to afinancia activity, the Federal Reserve
must consider (1) the purpose of the Bank Holding Company Act and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, (2) changes or reasonably expected
changes in the marketplace in which financial holding companies compete and in the technology for delivering financial services, and
(3) whether the activity is necessary or appropriate to allow financial holding companies to effectively compete with other financial
service providers and to efficiently deliver information and services. Pinnacle Financial became afinancia holding company effective
as of February 17, 2016.

Tomaintain financial holding company status, afinancial holding company and all of itsdepository institution subsidiaries must be "well
capitalized" and "well managed" and, except in limited circumstances, in satisfactory compliance with the Community Reinvestment
Act. A depository institution subsidiary is considered to be "well capitalized” if it satisfies the requirements for this status discussed in
the section captioned "Capital Adequacy” below. A depository institution subsidiary is considered "well managed" if it received a
composite rating and management rating of at least "satisfactory™ in its most recent examination. A financial holding company's status
will also depend upon it maintaining its status as "well capitalized" and "well managed" under applicable Federal Reserve regulations.
If afinancial holding company ceases to meet these capital and management requirements, the Federal Reserve's regul ations provide that
thefinancial holding company must enter into an agreement with the Federal Reserveto comply with all applicablecapital and management
requirements. Until the financial holding company returns to compliance, the Federal Reserve may impose limitations or conditions on
the conduct of its activities, and the company may not commence any of the broader financial activities permissiblefor financial holding
companies or acquire acompany engaged in such financial activitieswithout prior approval of the Federal Reserve. If the company does
not return to compliance within 180 days, the Federal Reserve may require divestiture of the holding company's depository institutions
or aternatively the holding company may be required to cease to engagein the activitiesthat it is engaged in that abank holding company
is not permitted to engage in without being a financial holding company.

In order for afinancia holding company to commence any new activity permitted by the Bank Holding Company Act or to acquire a
company engaged in any new activity permitted by the Bank Holding Company Act, each insured depository institution subsidiary of
the financial holding company must have received arating of at least "satisfactory" in its most recent examination under the Community
Reinvestment Act.

Despite prior approval, the Federal Reserve may order afinancial holding company or its subsidiaries to terminate any of these activities
or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary when it has reasonable cause to believe that the financial holding company's
continued ownership, activity or control constitutesaseriousrisk tothefinancial safety, soundness, or stability of any of itsbank subsidiaries
or if thereis afailure to maintain certain capital or management standards.



Support of Subsidiary Institutions. Pinnacle Financial is required to act as a source of financial and manageria strength for its bank
subsidiary, Pinnacle Bank, and to commit resources to support Pinnacle Bank. This support can be required at times when it would not
bein the best interest of Pinnacle Financial's shareholders or creditors to provideit. In the event of Pinnacle Financial's bankruptcy, any
commitment by it to afederal bank regulatory agency to maintain the capital of Pinnacle Bank would be assumed by the bankruptcy
trustee and entitled to a priority of payment.

Pinnacle Bank

Pinnacle Financial owns one bank - Pinnacle Bank. Pinnacle Bank isastate bank chartered under the laws of the State of Tennessee that
is not a member of the Federal Reserve. As aresult, it is subject to the supervision, examination and reporting requirements and the
regulations of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") and Tennessee Department of Financial Institutions (“TDFI"). The
TDFI hasthe authority to approve or disapprove mergers, the issuance of preferred stock and capital notes, the establishment of branches
and similar corporate actions. The TDFI regularly examines state banks like Pinnacle Bank and in connection with its examinations may
identify matters necessary to improve a bank's operation in accordance with principles of safety and soundness. The FDIC aso has
examination powerswith respect to state, non-member bankslike Pinnacle Bank. Any mattersidentified in such examinationsarerequired
to be appropriately addressed by the bank. Pinnacle Bank is aso subject to numerous state and federal statutes and regulations that will
affect its business, activities and operations.

Branching. While the TDFI has authority to approve branch applications, state banks are required by the State of Tennessee to adhere
to branching laws applicable to state chartered banks in the states in which they are located. With prior regulatory approval, Tennessee
law permits banks based in the state to either establish new or acquire existing branch offices throughout Tennessee. As a result of the
Dodd-Frank Act, Pinnacle Bank and any other national or state-chartered bank generally may branch across state linesto the same extent
as banks chartered in the state where the branch is located.

FDIC Insurance. Depositsin Pinnacle Bank areinsured by the FDIC up to $250,000 subject to applicable limitations. To offset the cost
of this insurance, the FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessment system for insured depository institutions that takes into account the
risks attributable to different categories and concentrations of an insured depository institution’s assets and liabilities. An institution’s
assessment rate depends on the category to which it isassigned and certain adjustments specified by the FDIC, with lessrisky institutions
paying lower assessments. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, the FDIC has adopted regul ations that base deposit i nsurance assessments on total
assets less capital rather than deposit liabilities and include off-balance sheet liabilities of institutions and their affiliates in risk-based
assessments. After aninstitution's average assets exceed $10 billion over four quartersas ours has, the assessment rate increases compared
toingtitutions at lower average asset levels. In addition, the FDIC retains the authority to further increase Pinnacle Bank’s assessment
rates and the FDIC has established a higher reserve ratio of 2% as a long-term goal which goes beyond what is required by statute.
Continued increases in our FDIC insurance premiums could have an adverse effect on Pinnacle Bank’s and Pinnacle Financial’s results
of operations.

TheFDIC may terminateitsinsurance of aninstitution'sdepositsif it findsthat theinstitution hasengaged in unsafe and unsound practices,
isinan unsafeor unsound condition to continue operations, or hasviolated any applicablelaw, regulation, rule, order or conditionimposed
by the FDIC.

General Enforcement Authority of Regulators

Bank holding companies (including those that have el ected to be financial holding companies) and insured banks also may be subject to
potential enforcement actions of varying levels of severity by the federal regulators for unsafe or unsound practices in conducting their
business, or for violation of any law, rule, regulation, conditionimposed inwriting by any applicable agency or term of awritten agreement
with that agency. In more serious cases, enforcement actions may include the issuance of directives to increase capital; the issuance of
formal and informal agreements; the imposition of civil monetary penalties; theissuance of a cease and desist order that can bejudicially
enforced; theissuance of removal and prohibition orders against officers, directors, and other institution-affiliated parties; the termination
of the bank’s deposit insurance; the appointment of a conservator or receiver for the bank; and the enforcement of such actions through
injunctions or restraining orders based upon ajudicia determination that the agency would be harmed if such equitable relief was not
granted.
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Capital Adequacy

The Federal Reserve has established arisk-based and aleverage measure of capital adequacy for bank holding companies. Pinnacle Bank
is also subject to risk-based and leverage capital requirements adopted by the FDIC, which are substantially similar to those adopted by
the Federal Reserve for bank holding companies. The risk-based capital standards are designed to make regulatory capital requirements
more sensitive to differences in risk profiles among banks and bank holding companies, to account for off-balance-sheet exposure, and
to minimize disincentives for holding liquid assets. Assets and off-balance-sheet items, such as letters of credit and unfunded loan
commitments, are assigned to broad risk categories, each with appropriate risk weights. The resulting capital ratios represent capital as
a percentage of total risk-weighted assets and off-balance-sheet items. Tennessee state banks are required to have the capital structure
that the TDFI deems adequate, and the Commissioner of the TDFI aswell as federal regulators may require a state bank (or its holding
company in the case of federal regulators) to increase its capital structure to the point deemed adequate by the Commissioner or such
other federal regulator before granting approval of abranch application, merger application or charter amendment.

Total risk-based capital consists of two components, Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. Following the passage of the Dodd-Frank Act, Tier
1 capital generally consists of common stock (plus related surplus) and retained earnings, minority interests in the equity accounts of
consolidated subsidiaries and noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, less goodwill and other specified intangible
assets and other regulatory deductions, including a portion of Pinnacle Financial's and Pinnacle Bank's recorded investment in BHG
(whichasaminority interest in an unconsolidated entity issubject to specified deductions). Tier 2 capital generally consistsof subordinated
debt, other preferred stock, and a limited amount of |oan loss reserves. The total amount of Tier 2 capital is limited to 100% of Tier 1
capital. The Dodd-Frank Act al so excludestrust preferred securitiesissued after May 19, 2010 from beingincludedin Tier 1 capital unless
theissuing company is a bank holding company with less than $500 million in total assets. Trust preferred securitiesissued prior to that
date will continue to count as Tier 1 capital for bank holding companies with less than $15 billion in total assets on that date unless the
company's assets thereafter exceed $15.0 billion as a result of a merger or acquisition. The trust preferred securities issued by Pinnacle
Financia or entities it has acquired previoudly qualified as Tier 1 capital, but no longer qualify as Tier 1 capital under the Dodd-Frank
Act and Basel |11 asaresult of our total assets exceeding $15.0 hillion as aresult of the BNC merger. For a bank holding company to be
considered "well-capitalized," it must maintain a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 8%, atotal risk-based capital ratio of at |east
10%, and not be subject to a written agreement, order or directive to maintain a specific capital level.

The Dodd-Frank Act contains anumber of provisions dealing with capital adequacy of insured depository institutions and their holding
companies, and for the most part these provisions have resulted in insured depository institutions and their holding companies being
subject to more stringent capital requirements. Under the Dodd-Frank Act, federal regulators have established minimum Tier 1 leverage
and risk-based capital requirementsfor, among other entities, banksand bank holding companies on aconsolidated basis. These minimum
requirements require that a bank holding company maintain aratio of Tier 1 capital to average assets, less goodwill, other intangible
assets and other required deductions ("Tier 1 leverage ratio") of not less than 4% and atotal risk-based capital ratio of not less than 8%.

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC approved final rules that substantially amend the regulatory capital rules applicable to
Pinnacle Bank and Pinnacle Financial, effective January 1, 2015. The final rulesimplement the regulatory capital reforms of the Basel
Committee on Banking Supervision reflected in "Basel 111: A Globa Regulatory Framework for More Resilient Banks and Banking
Systems' (Basel 111) and changes required by the Dodd-Frank Act.

Under these rules, the leverage and risk-based capita ratios of bank holding companies may not be lower than the leverage and risk-
based capital ratios for insured depository institutions. The final Basal 111 rules include minimum risk-based capital and leverage ratios.
Moreover, these rulesrefined the definition of what constitutes " capital” for purposes of calculating those ratios, including the definitions
of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital (as described above). The minimum capital level requirements applicable to bank holding companies
and banks subject to the rules are: (i) aTier 1 common equity ratio of 4.5%; (ii) aTier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6%; (iii) atotal risk-
based capital ratio of 8%; and (iv) aTier 1 leverageratio of 4% for al institutions. Therules aso establish a" capital conservation buffer”
of 2.5% (to be phased in over three years) above the regulatory minimum risk-based capital ratios, and result in the following minimum
ratios once the capital conservation buffer isfully phased in: (i) acommon equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 7%, (ii) aTier 1 risk-
based capital ratio of 8.5%, and (iii) atotal risk-based capital ratio of 10.5%. The phase-in of the capital conservation buffer requirement
commenced in January 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and increases each year by the same amount until fully implemented in
January 2019. An ingtitution will be subject to limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases and paying discretionary
bonusesif capital levelsfall below minimumlevels plusthe buffer amounts. These limitations establish amaximum percentage of eligible
retained income that could be utilized for such actions. For the quarters ending in calendar year 2018, neither Pinnacle Financia nor
Pinnacle Bank will be required to obtain regulatory approval for dividends, stock repurchases or payment of discretionary bonuses solely
as aresult of these buffers aslong as its common equity Tier 1 capital ratio exceeds 6.375%, its Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio exceeds
7.875% and its total risk-based capital ratio exceeds 9.875%. Each of these amounts will increase by an additional 0.625% on January
1, 2019.
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Basel |11 prescribes a standardized approach for risk weightings that expand the risk-weighting categories from the four Basel I-derived
categories (0%, 20%, 50% and 100%) to a much larger and more risk-sensitive number of categories, depending on the nature of the
assets, generally ranging from 0% for U.S. government and agency securities, to 600% for certain equity exposures, and resulting in
higher risk weights for a variety of asset categories. Specific changes to the rules impacting Pinnacle Financial’s and Pinnacle Bank’s
determination of risk-weighted assets include, among other things:

« applying a 150% risk weight instead of a 100% risk weight for certain high volatility commercial rea estate acquisition,
development and construction loans;

e assigning a 150% risk weight to exposures (other than residential mortgage exposures) that are 90 days past due;

»  providing for a20% credit conversion factor for the unused portion of a commitment with an original maturity of one year or
less that is not unconditionally cancellable (previously set at 0%);

» providing for arisk weight, generally not less than 20% with certain exceptions, for securitieslending transactions based on the
risk weight category of the underlying collateral securing the transaction;

»  providing for a100% risk weight for claims on securities firms; and

e eliminating the 50% cap on the risk weight for OTC derivatives.

The final rules allow banks and their holding companies with less than $250 billion in assets a one-time opportunity to opt-out of a
requirement to include unrealized gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive income in their capital calculation. Pinnacle
Financial and Pinnacle Bank each opted out of this requirement.

The Federal Reserve has adopted regul ations applicable to bank holding companies with assets over $10 billion that require such holding
companies and banks to conduct annual stress tests and report the results to the applicable regulators and publicly disclose a summary
of certain capital information and results including pro forma changes in regulatory capital ratios. For such companies, the board of
directors and senior management is required to consider the results of the stresstest in the normal course of business, including but not
limited to capital planning and an assessment of capital adequacy in accordance with management's policies. Almost all of our assets are
held at Pinnacle Bank. Accordingly, when Pinnacle Financia crossed $10.0 billion in total assets, Pinnacle Bank did as well. Pinnacle
Financial and Pinnacle Bank will be required to filetheir first stress test results in the third quarter of 2018. Pinnacle Financial and
Pinnacle Bank's capital ratiosreflected in the stresstest cal culations will be animportant factor considered by our regulatorsin evaluating
the capital adequacy of Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank, in evaluating any proposed acquisitions for approval and in determining
whether proposed payments of dividends or stock repurchases may be an unsafe or unsound practice.

Pinnacle Financial must qualify as "well capitalized,” among other requirements, in order for it to engage in certain acquisitions or be
eligible for expedited treatment of certain regulatory applications, including those related to mergers and acquisitions. For Pinnacle
Financial to qualify as "well capitalized,” it must have a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 8% and atotal risk-based capital ratio
of at least 10% and not be subject to awritten agreement, order or directive to maintain a specific capital level.

Failure to meet statutorily mandated capital requirements or more restrictive ratios separately established for afinancial institution or its
holding company by itsregulators could subject abank or bank holding company to avariety of enforcement remedies, includingissuance
of a capital directive, the termination of deposit insurance by the FDIC, a prohibition on accepting or renewing brokered deposits,
limitations on the rates of interest that the institution may pay on its deposits and other restrictions on its business.

Additionally, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") establishes asystem of prompt corrective
actionto resolvethe problemsof undercapitalized financial institutions. Under thissystem, thefederal banking regul ators have established
five capital categories (well-capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and criticaly
undercapitalized) into one of which al ingtitutions are placed. Federal banking regulators are required to take various mandatory
supervisory actionsand areauthorizedto takeother discretionary actionswith respect toinstitutionsinthethreeundercapitalized categories.
The severity of the action depends upon the capital category in which the institution is placed. Generally, subject to a narrow exception,
the banking regulator must appoint areceiver or conservator within aspecified period for aninstitution that is critically undercapitalized.
The federal banking agencies have specified by regulation the relevant capital level for each category.

Under FDIC regulations, a state regulated bank which is not amember of the Federal Reserve (a state non-member bank) like Pinnacle
Bank is"well capitalized" if it hasaTier 1 leverage ratio of 5% or better, acommon equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 6.5% or better, a Tier
1 risk-based capital ratio of 8% or better, a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or better, and is not subject to a regulatory agreement,
order or directive to maintain a specific level for any capital measure. A state non-member bank is considered "adequately capitalized"
if it hasaTier 1 leverageratio of at least 4%, a common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5% or better, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of
at least 6.0%, atotal risk-based capital ratio of at least 8.0% and does not meet the definition of awell-capitalized bank. Lower levels of
capital result in abank being considered undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized.
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State non-member banks are required to be "well capitalized" in order to take advantage of expedited procedures on certain applications,
such as those related to the opening of branches and mergers, and to accept and renew brokered deposits without further regulatory
approval.

An ingtitution that is categorized as undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, or critically undercapitalized is required to submit
an acceptabl e capital restoration plan to its appropriate federal banking agency. In addition, abank holding company must guarantee that
asubsidiary depository institution meets its capital restoration plan, subject to various limitations. The controlling holding company's
obligation to fund a capital restoration planislimited to thelesser of 5% of an undercapitalized subsidiary's assets or the amount required
to meet regulatory capital requirements. An undercapitalized institution is also generally prohibited from increasing its average total
assets, making acquisitions, establishing any branchesor engaging in any new line of business, except under an accepted capital restoration
plan or with FDIC approval. The regulations also establish procedures for downgrading an institution into alower capital category based
on supervisory factors other than capital. Asof December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank is considered "well-capitalized".

At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank's common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was 10.3%, Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was
10.3%, total risk-based capital ratiowas11.3% and Tier 1 leverageratio was9.7%, compared to 9.3%, 9.3%, 11.2% and 9.2% at December
31, 2016, respectively. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial's common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was 9.1%, Tier 1 risk-
based capital ratio was 9.1%, total risk-based capital ratio was 12.0% and Tier 1 |everageratio was 8.6%, compared to 7.9%, 8.6%, 11.9%
and 8.6% at December 31, 2016, respectively. All of these ratios exceeded regulatory minimums and those required by Basel 111 and
FDICIA (including after application of any capital conservation buffer). More information concerning Pinnacle Financial's and Pinnacle
Bank's regulatory ratios at December 31, 2017 is included in Note 21 to the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements' included
elsewhere in thisAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

Capital Planning

Banking organizations must have appropriate capital planning processes, with proper oversight from the board of directors. Accordingly,
pursuant to aseparate, general supervisory letter fromthe Federal Reserve, bank holding companies are expected to conduct and document
comprehensive capital adequacy analyses prior to the declaration of any dividends (on common stock, preferred stock, trust preferred
securities or other Tier 1 capital instruments), capital redemptions or capital repurchases. Moreover, the federal banking agencies have
adopted ajoint agency policy statement, noting that the adequacy and effectiveness of a bank’s interest rate risk management process
and the level of its interest rate exposures are critical factors in the evaluation of the bank’s capital adequacy. A bank with material
weaknesses in its interest rate risk management process or high levels of interest rate exposure relative to its capital will be directed by
the relevant federal banking agencies to take corrective actions.

Payment of Dividends

Pinnacle Financial is alegal entity separate and distinct from Pinnacle Bank. The principal source of Pinnacle Financial's cash flow,
including cash flow to pay interest to its hol ders of subordinated debenturesand subordinated notes, and any dividends payableto common
shareholders, aredividendsthat Pinnacle Bank paysto Pinnacle Financial asits sole shareholder. Under Tennessee law, Pinnacle Financial
is not permitted to pay dividends if, after giving effect to such payment, it would not be able to pay its debts as they become due in the
usual course of business or its total assets would be less than the sum of its total liabilities plus any amounts needed to satisfy any
preferential rights if it were dissolving. In addition, in deciding whether or not to declare a dividend of any particular size, Pinnacle
Financia's board of directors must consider its and Pinnacle Bank's current and prospective capital, liquidity, and other needs.

In addition to state law limitations on Pinnacle Financial's ability to pay dividends, the Federal Reserve imposes limitations on Pinnacle
Financia's ability to pay dividends. As noted above, effective January 1, 2016, Federal Reserve regulations limit dividends, stock
repurchases and discretionary bonuses to executive officers if Pinnacle Financia's regulatory capital is below the level of regulatory
minimums plus the applicable capital conservation buffer.

Statutory and regulatory limitations al so apply to Pinnacle Bank's payment of dividendsto Pinnacle Financial. Pinnacle Bank isrequired
by Tennessee law to obtain the prior approval of the Commissioner of the TDFI for payments of dividends if the total of all dividends
declared by its board of directors in any calendar year will exceed (1) the total of Pinnacle Bank's net income for that year, plus (2)
Pinnacle Bank's retained net income for the preceding two years. As of December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank could pay dividends to us
of upto$305.1 million. Generally, federal regulatory policy encourages hol ding company debt to be serviced by subsidiary bank dividends
or additional equity rather than debt issuances. PinnacleFinancia currently hasavailable cash balanceswhich amounted to approximately
$64.9 million at December 31, 2017.

The payment of dividends by Pinnacle Bank and Pinnacle Financial may also be affected by other factors, such as the reguirement to
mai ntain adequate capital above statutory and regulatory requirementsimposed on Pinnacle Bank or Pinnacle Financial by their regulators.
The federal banking agencies have indicated that paying dividends that deplete a depository institution's capital base to an inadequate
level would be an unsafe and unsound banking practice. Under the FDICIA, adepository institution may not pay any dividend if payment
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would causeit to becomeundercapitalized or if it already isundercapitalized. Moreover, thefederal agencieshaveissued policy statements
that provide that bank holding companies and insured depository institutions should generally only pay dividends out of current operating
earnings, and the capital rules adopted implementing Basel 111 prohibit the payment of dividends when a holding company or insured
depository institution isnot in compliance with the capital conservation buffer described el sewherein thisreport. See" Capital Adequacy”
above.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, Pinnacle Financial initiated a quarterly common stock dividend in the amount of $0.08 per share. On
January 20, 2015, the board of directors of Pinnacle Financial increased the dividend to $0.12 per share, and on January 19, 2016, the
board of directors increased the dividend to $0.14 per share. During the year ended December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial paid $35.9
million in dividends to common shareholders. On January 16, 2018, our board of directors declared a $0.14 quarterly cash dividend to
common shareholders which approximated $10.9 million in aggregate dividend payments paid on February 23, 2018 to common
shareholders of record as of the close of business on February 2, 2018. The amount and timing of al future dividend payments, if any,
is subject to our board's discretion and will depend on our earnings, capital position, financial condition and other factors, including new
regulatory capital requirements, as they become known to us.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates

Both Pinnacle Financia and Pinnacle Bank are subject to the provisions of Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act. Section 23A places
limits on the amount of:

* Abank'sloans or extensions of credit, including purchases of assets subject to an agreement to repurchase, to or for the benefit
of affiliates;

e Abank'sinvestment in affiliates;

» Assetsabank may purchase from affiliates, except for real and personal property exempted by the Federal Reserve;

« Theamount of loans or extensions of credit to third parties collateralized by the securities or obligations of affiliates;

»  Transactionsinvolving the borrowing or lending of securities and any derivative transaction that resultsin credit exposure to an
affiliate; and

» A bank's guarantee, acceptance or letter of credit issued on behalf of an affiliate.

The total amount of the above transactionsis limited in amount, as to any one affiliate, to 10% of abank's capital and surplus and, asto
all affiliates combined, to 20% of a bank's capital stock and surplus. In addition to the limitation on the amount of these transactions,
each of the above transactions must also meet specified collateral requirements. Pinnacle Bank must also comply with other provisions
designed to avoid the taking of low-quality assets.

Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank are also subject to the provisions of Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act which, among other
things, prohibits an institution from engaging in the above transactions with affiliates unless the transactions are on terms substantially
the same, or at least as favorable to the institution or its subsidiaries, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with
nonaffiliated companies.

Pinnacle Bank is also subject to restrictions on extensions of credit to its executive officers, directors, principal shareholders and their
related interests. These extensions of credit must be made on substantially the sameterms, including interest rates and collateral, asthose
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with third parties, and must not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or
present other unfavorable features.

Community Reinvestment

The Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) requiresthat, in connection with examinations of financial institutions within their respective
jurisdictions, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC shall evaluate the record of each financial institution in meeting the credit needs of its
local community, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. Thesefactsareal so considered in eval uating mergers, acquisitions,
and applicationsto open abranch or facility. Failureto adequatel y meet these criteriacoul d impose additional requirementsand limitations
on Pinnacle Bank. Additionally, banks are required to publicly disclose the terms of various Community Reinvestment Act-related
agreements. Pinnacle Bank received an "outstanding” CRA rating from its primary federal regulator on its most recent regulatory
examination.

Privacy

Under the Gramm-L each-Bliley Act, financial institutions are required to disclose their policiesfor collecting and protecting confidential
information. Customers generally may prevent financial institutions from sharing personal financial information with nonaffiliated third
parties except for third parties that market the institutions' own products and services. Additionally, financial institutions generally may
not disclose consumer account numbersto any nonaffiliated third party for usein telemarketing, direct mail marketing or other marketing
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through electronic mail to consumers. Pinnacle Bank has established a privacy policy that it believes promotes compliance with
these federal requirements.

Other Consumer Laws and Regulations

Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by Pinnacle Bank are subject to state usury laws and federal laws concerning interest
rates. For example, under the Service Members Civil Relief Act, alender is generally prohibited from charging an annual interest ratein
excess of 6% on any obligations for which the borrower is a person on active duty with the United States military.

Pinnacle Bank's |oan operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such as the:

»  Federa Truth-In-Lending Act, governing disclosures of credit terms and costs to consumer borrowers, giving consumers the
right to cancel certain credit transactions, and defining requirements for servicing consumer loans secured by a dwelling;

« Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975, requiring financial institutions to provide information to enable the public and
public officials to determine whether afinancial institution is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the
community it serves,

e Equal Credit Opportunity Act, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed or other prohibited factors in extending
credit;

« Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1978, governing the use and provision of information to credit reporting agencies,

»  Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by collection agencies;

*  Service Members Civil Relief Act, governing the repayment terms of, and property rights underlying, secured obligations of
persons in active military service;

* Rulesand regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of implementing the federal laws;

»  Electronic Fund Transfers Act, which regulates fees and other terms of electronic funds transactions;

» Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003, which permanently extended the national credit reporting standards of the
Fair Credit Reporting Act, and permits consumers, including our customers, to opt out of information sharing among
affiliated companies for marketing purposes and requires financial institutions, including banks, to notify a customer if the
institution provides negative information about the customer to a national credit reporting agency or if the credit that is
granted to the customer is on less favorable terms than those generally available;

e Fair Housing Act, which prohibits discriminatory practices relative to real estate related transactions, including the financing
of housing and the rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of implementing such
federal laws; and

» Real Estate Settlement and Procedures Act of 1974, which affords consumers greater protection pertaining to federally related
mortgage loans by requiring, among other things, improved and streamlined loan estimate forms including clear summary
information and improved disclosure of yield spread premiums.

Pinnacle Bank's deposit operations are subject to the:

« Right to Financia Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer financial records and prescribes
procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records,

»  Electronic Fund Transfers Act and Regulation E issued by the Federal Reserve to implement that act, which govern automatic
deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers' rights and liabilities (including with respect to the
permissibility of overdraft charges) arising from the use of automated teller machines and other electronic banking services.

«  Truthin Savings Act, which requires depository institutions to disclose the terms of deposit accounts to consumers;

»  Expedited Funds Availability Act, which requires financial institutions to make deposited funds available according to
specified time schedules and to disclose funds availability policies to consumers; and

e Check Clearing for the 21st Century Act ("Check 21"), which is designed to foster innovation in the payments system and to
enhance its efficiency by reducing some of the legal impediments to check truncation. Check 21 created a new negotiable
instrument called a substitute check and permits, but does not require, banks to truncate original checks, process check
information electronically, and deliver substitute checks to banks that wish to continue receiving paper checks.

Pinnacle Bank's loan and deposit operations are both subject to the Bank Secrecy Act which governs how banks and other firms report
certain currency transactions and maintain appropriate safeguards against "money laundering” activities.

Examination and enforcement by the state and federal banking agencies, and other such enforcement authorities, for non-compliance
with consumer protection laws and their implementing regul ations have increased and become moreintense. The advent of the Consumer
Financia Protection Bureau (the "CFPB"), as described in more detail below, further heightens oversight and review of compliance with
consumer protection laws and regulations. Due to these heightened regulatory concerns, including increased enforcement of the CRA by
thefederal banking agencies, and new powersand authority of the CFPB, Pinnacle Bank and its affiliatesmay incur additional compliance
costs or be required to expend additional funds for investmentsin their local community.
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Anti-Terrorism Legislation

On October 26, 2001, pursuant to the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and
Obstruct Terrorism (USA PATRIOT) Act of 2001, financial institutions are subject to prohibitions against specified financial transactions
and account relationships aswell as enhanced due diligence and "know your customer™ standardsin their dealings with foreign financial
institutions and foreign customers.

Inaddition, theUSA PATRIOT Act authorizestheU.S. Treasury to adopt rulesincreasing the cooperation and informati on sharing between
financia institutions, regulators, and law enforcement authorities regarding individuals, entities and organizations engaged in, or
reasonably suspected based on credible evidence of engaging in, terrorist acts or money laundering activities. Any financial institution
complying with these rules will not be deemed to have violated the privacy provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as discussed
above. Pinnacle Bank currently has policies and procedures in place designed to comply with the USA PATRIOT Act. Federal banking
regulators are required, when reviewing bank holding company acquisition and bank merger applications, to consider the effectiveness
of the anti-money laundering activities of the applicants. Material deficienciesin anti-money laundering compliance, and non-compliance
with related requirements such as the U.S. economic and trade sanctions regimes, can result in public enforcement actions by the bank
regulatory agencies and other government agencies, including the imposition of civil money penalties and supervisory restrictions on
growth and expansion. Such enforcement actions could al so have serious reputational consequences for Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle
Bank.

The Office of Foreign Assets Control

The Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”), which is an office in the U.S. Department of the Treasury, is responsible for helping
to ensure that U.S. entities do not engage in transactions with “enemies’ of the United States, as defined by various Executive Orders
and Acts of Congress. OFAC publishes lists of names of persons and organizations suspected of aiding, harboring or engaging in
terrorist acts; owned or controlled by, or acting on behalf of target countries, and narcotics traffickers. If a bank finds a name on any
transaction, account or wire transfer that is on an OFAC list, it must freeze or block the transactions on the account. Pinnacle Bank has
appointed a compliance officer to oversee the inspection of its accounts and the filing of any notifications. Pinnacle Bank actively
checks high-risk OFAC areas such as new accounts, wire transfers and customer files. These checks are performed using software that
is updated each time a modification is made to the lists provided by OFAC and other agencies of Specially Designated Nationals and
Blocked Persons.

The Dodd-Frank Act

New regulations and statutes are regularly proposed that contain wide-ranging proposals for atering the structures, regulations and
competitive relationships of the nation's financial institutions. In 2010, the U.S. Congress passed the Dodd-Frank Act, which includes
significant consumer protection provisions related to, among other things, residential mortgage |oans that have increased, and are likely
to further increase, our regulatory compliance costs. The Dodd-Frank Act also imposes other restrictions on our operations, including
restrictions on the types of investments that bank holding companies and banks can make. Given the sweeping nature of the Dodd-Frank
Act and the fact that our total assets now exceed $10 billion, which resultsin theimposition of certain additional requirementsthereunder,
we expect that the Dodd-Frank Act will continue to have a negative impact on our earnings through fee reductions, higher costs and
restrictions on certain activities. Failure to comply with the requirements would negatively impact our results of operations and financial
condition and could limit our growth or expansion activities. While we cannot predict what effect any presently contemplated or future
changesin the laws or regulations or their interpretations would have on us, such changes could be materially adverse to our investors.

Set out below are certain of the additional provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act to which we are subject since our total assets exceed $10
billion.

Risk Committee. Publicly traded bank holding companieswith $10 billion or moreintotal assetslike Pinnacle Financial arerequired
to establish a risk committee responsible for oversight of enterprise-wide risk management practices. The committee must be
comprised only of independent directors and must include at |east one risk management expert with experience in managing risk
exposures of large, complex firms. Pinnacle Financia established arisk committee on February 7, 2017.

Stress Testing. Pursuant to the Dodd-Frank Act, any banking organi zation, including whether abank holding company or adepository
institution, with more than $10 billion in total consolidated assets and regulated by afederal financial regulatory agency isrequired
to conduct annual company-run stress tests to ensure it has sufficient capital during periods of economic downturn. Currently, the
Federal Reserve and FDIC release stress-test scenarios on February 15, and banking organi zations are required to submit the results
of their teststo the appropriate regulator by July 31. Currently, the results of each year's stresstests are publicly disclosed in October,
following each banking organization's submission. Almost all of our assets are held at Pinnacle Bank; accordingly both we and
Pinnacle Bank have total assets in excess of $10 billion and both we and Pinnacle Bank must perform the stress test. Pinnacle

16



Financia’s and Pinnacle Bank'sfirst stresstests are duein July 2018. We expect our regulatorswill consider the results of our stress
testsin evaluating the capital adequacy of Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank, including in connection with potential acquisitions,
and whether the appropriateness of any proposed payments of dividends or stock repurchases may be an unsafe or unsound practice.
In reviewing our stress test results, our regulators will consider both quantitative and qualitative factors.

Durbin Amendment. The Dodd-Frank Act included provisions (known as the "Durbin Amendment") which restrict interchange
feesto those which are "reasonable and proportionate” for certain debit card issuers and limits the ability of networks and issuersto
restrict debit card transaction routing. The Federal Reserve issued final rules implementing the Durbin Amendment on June 29,
2011. Inthefinal rules, interchange feesfor debit card transactions were capped at $0.21 plus five basis points (plus $0.01 for fraud
loss) in order to be eligible for a safe harbor such that the fee is conclusively determined to be reasonable and proportionate. The
interchange fee restrictions contained in the Durbin Amendment, and the rules promulgated thereunder, only apply to debit card
issuers with $10 hillion or more in total consolidated assets, like Pinnacle Bank. The implications of the Durbin Amendment first
became applicable to uson July 1, 2017.

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau. The Dodd-Frank Act also created the CFPB, which took over responsibility for enforcing
the principal federal consumer protection laws, such as the Truth in Lending Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act and the Truth in Saving Act, among others, on July 21, 2011. We are subject to oversight by the CFPB.

The CFPB has broad rulemaking authority for a wide range of consumer financial laws that apply to all banks including, among
other things, the authority to prohibit "unfair, deceptive, or abusive" actsand practices. Abusive acts or practices are defined asthose
that (1) materially interfere with a consumer's ability to understand aterm or condition of a consumer financial product or service,
or (2) take unreasonable advantage of aconsumer's () lack of financial savvy, (b) inability to protect himself in the selection or use
of consumer financial productsor services, or (c) reasonablereliance on acovered entity to act in the consumer'sinterests. The CFPB
has the authority to investigate possible violations of federal consumer financia law, hold hearings and commence civil litigation.
The CFPB can issue cease-and-desist orders against banks and other entities that violate consumer financial laws. The CFPB may
also ingtitute a civil action against an entity in violation of federal consumer financial law in order to impose a civil penalty or an
injunction.

The rulesissued by the CFPB will have along-term impact on our business, including our mortgage loan origination and servicing
activities. Compliance with these rules will increase our overall regulatory compliance costs. On July 1, 2017, the CFPB took over
conducting on-site consumer examinations from the FDIC for all regulations that transferred under their supervision.

Securities Registration and Listing

Pinnacle Financial’s securities are registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and listed
onthe Nasdag Global Select Market. Assuch, Pinnacle Financial issubject to theinformation, proxy solicitation, insider trading, corporate
governance, and other requirements and restrictions of the Exchange Act, as well as the Marketplace Rules and other requirements
promulgated by the Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC.

Asapubliccompany, PinnacleFinancial isal so subject totheaccounting oversight and corporate governancerequirementsof the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, including, among other things, required executive certification of financial presentations, increased requirements for
board audit committees and their members, and enhanced requirementsrel ating to disclosure controls and procedures and internal control
over financial reporting.

Insurance Agencies

Each of Miller Loughry Beach and HPB Insurance Group is subject to licensing requirements and extensive regulation under the laws
of the various states in which it conducts its insurance agency business. These laws and regulations are primarily for the protection of
policyholders. Inall jurisdictions, the applicablelaws and regul ations are subject to amendment or interpretation by regulatory authorities.
Generally, those authoritiesare vested with rel atively broad discretion to grant, renew and revoke licenses and approvalsand toimplement
regulations. Licenses may be denied or revoked for various reasons, including for regulatory violations or upon conviction for certain
crimes. Possible sanctions that may be imposed for violation of regulations include the suspension of individual employees, limitations
on engaging in a particular business for a specified period of time, revocation of licenses, censures and fines.
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Effect of Governmental Monetary Policies

Our earnings are affected by domestic economic conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United States government and its
agencies. The Federal Reserve's monetary policies have had, and are likely to continue to have, an important impact on the operating
results of commercial banks through the Federal Reserve's statutory power to implement national monetary policy in order, among other
things, to curb inflation or combat a recession. The Federal Reserve, through its monetary and fiscal policies, affects the levels of bank
loans, investments and deposits through its control over theissuance of United States government securities, its regulation of the discount
rate applicable to member banks and its influence over reserve requirements to which member banks are subject. We cannot predict the
nature or impact of future changesin monetary and fiscal policies.

Proposed Legislation and Regulatory Action

New regulations and statutes are regularly proposed that contain wide-ranging provisions for altering the structures, regulations and
competitive relationships of the nation’s financial institutions. Over the last year, the U.S. Congress has debated and proposed changes
to the financial institution regulatory landscape, including proposed amendments to the Dodd-Frank Act, including raising the asset
threshold levels at which financial institutions and their holding companies become subject to enhanced regulatory oversight and
compliance requirements. We cannot predict whether or in what form any proposed regulation or statute will be adopted or the extent to
which our businessmay be affected by any new regul ation or statute. Evenif modifications are enacted to existing or proposed regul ations,
including raising certai n assets threshol ds above those currently in place, we may continue to face enhanced scrutiny from our regulators
who may expect usto continueto comply with the current, more stringent requirementsaspart of their safety and soundnessand compliance
examinations and general oversight of our operations.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves various risks which are particular to our company, our industry and our market areas.
If any of the following risks were to occur, we may not be able to conduct our business as currently planned and our results of
operations and financial condition could be materially and negatively impacted. These matters could cause the trading price of our
common stock to decline in future periods.

Our net interest margin, and consequently our net earnings, are significantly affected by interest rate levels.

Our profitability is dependent to alarge extent on net interest income, which is the difference between interest income earned
on loans, leases and investment securities and interest expense paid on deposits, other borrowings, subordinated debentures and
subordinated notes. The absolute level of interest rates as well as changes in interest rates or that affect the yield curve may affect
our level of interest income, the primary component of our gross revenue, as well asthe level of our interest expense. Interest rate
fluctuations are caused by many factors which, for the most part, are not under our control. For example, national monetary
policy plays asignificant role in the determination of interest rates. Additionally, competitor pricing (including competition that
may develop as aresult of the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act) and the resulting negotiations that occur with our customers
a so impact the rates we collect on loans and the rates we pay on deposits. In addition, changes in the method of determining the
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or other reference rates, or uncertainty related to such potential changes, may adversely
affect the value of reference rate-linked debt securities that we hold or issue, which could further impact our interest rate spread.

Changesin the level of interest rates also may negatively affect our ability to originate loans, the value of our assets and our
ability to realize gains from the sale of our assets, all of which ultimately affect our results of operations and financial condition.
A decline in the market value of our assets may limit our ability to borrow additional funds. As aresult, we could be required to
sell some of our loans and investments under adverse market conditions, upon terms that are not favorable to us, in order to
maintain our liquidity. If those sales are made at prices lower than the amortized costs of the investments, we will incur losses.

Because of significant competitive pressuresin our markets and the negative impact of these pressures on our deposit and
loan pricing, coupled with the fact that a significant portion of our loan portfolio has variable rate pricing that moves in concert
with changes to the Federal Reserve's federal funds rate or LIBOR (both of which are at low levels as a result of recent economic
conditions), our net interest margin may be negatively impacted if these short-term rates remain at their low levels. However, if
short-term interest rates rise, our results of operations may also be negatively impacted if we are unable to increase the rates we
charge on loans or earn on our investment securitiesin excess of the increases we must pay on deposits and our other funding
sources. As interest rates change, we expect that we will periodically experience “gaps’ in the interest rate sensitivities of our
assets and liabilities, meaning that either our interest-bearing liabilities (usually deposits and borrowings) will be more sensitive
to changes in market interest rates than our interest-earning assets (usually loans and investment securities), or vice versa. In
either event, if market interest rates should move contrary to our position, this“gap” may work against us, and our results of
operations and financial condition may be negatively affected.

We have entered into certain hedging transactions including interest rate swaps, which are designed to lessen elements of our
interest rate exposure. In the event that interest rates do not change in the manner anticipated, such transactions may not be
effective and our results of operations may be adversely affected.

We have a concentration of credit exposure to borrowers in certain industries, and we also target small to medium-sized
businesses.

We have meaningful credit exposures to borrowers in certain businesses, including commercial and residential building
lessors, new home builders, and land subdividers. These industries experienced adversity during 2008 through 2010 as a result of
sluggish economic conditions, and, as aresult, an increased level of borrowers in these industries were unable to perform under
their loan agreements with us, or suffered loan downgrades which negatively impacted our results of operations. If the economic
environment in our markets weakens in 2018 or beyond, these industry or other concentrations could result in increased
deterioration in credit quality, past dues, loan charge offs and collateral value declines, which could cause our results of
operations and financial condition to be negatively impacted. Furthermore, any of our large credit exposures that deteriorate
unexpectedly could cause us to have to make significant additional loan loss provisions, negatively impacting our results of
operations and financial condition.

A substantial focus of our marketing and business strategy isto serve small to medium-sized businesses in our market aress.
Asaresult, arelatively high percentage of our loan portfolio consists of commercial |oans primarily to small to medium-sized
businesses. At December 31, 2017, our commercial and industrial loans accounted for almost 26.5% of our total |oans.
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Additionally, approximately, 36.9% of our commercial rea -estate mortgage loans at December 31, 2017 are owner-occupied
commercial real estate loans, which are loans to businesses secured by the businesses’ real estate. We expect to seek to expand the
amount of such loansin our portfolio in 2018. During periods of lower economic growth or challenging economic periods, small
to medium-sized businesses may be impacted more severely and more quickly than larger businesses. Consequently, the ability of
such businesses to repay their loans may deteriorate, and in some cases this deterioration may occur quickly, which would
adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition.

Asaresult of our acquisitions over the last three years and our strong organic growth in our legacy markets as well as our
revaluation of deferred tax assets and recognized investment securities |osses following the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
during the fourth quarter of 2017, our level of commercial real estate |oansincreased markedly from approximately 190% of total
risk-based capital as of December 31, 2014 to approximately 297% of total risk-based capital as of December 31, 2017. If our
level of commercial real estate loans were to remain at these elevated levels or exceed regulatory guidelines, our ability to grow
our loan portfolio in line with our targets may be negatively impacted if we don’t increase our capital levels and it may be more
difficult to secure any required regulatory approvals necessary to execute on our expansion strategy without increasing our capital
levels.

The percentage of real estate construction and development loans in our loan portfolio was approximately 12.2% of total
loans at December 31, 2017. These loans make up approximately 10.4% of our non-performing loans at December 31, 2017. This
type of lending is generally considered to have relatively high credit risks because the principal is concentrated in alimited
number of loans with repayment dependent on the successful completion and operation of the related real estate project.
Weakness in residentia real estate market prices as well as demand could result in price reductionsin home and land values
adversely affecting the value of collateral securing the construction and development loans that we hold. Should we experience
the return of adverse economic and real estate market conditions similar to those we experienced in 2009 and 2010 we may again
experience increases in non-performing loans and other real estate owned, increased losses and expenses from the management
and disposition of non-performing assets, increases in provision for loan losses, and increases in operating expenses as a result of
the allocation of management time and resources to the collection and work out of loans, all of which would negatively impact
our financia condition and results of operations.

Our business may suffer if there are significant declines in the value of real estate.

The market value of real estate can fluctuate significantly in a short period of time as aresult of market conditionsin the
geographic areain which the real estate islocated. If the value of the real estate serving as collateral for our loan and lease
portfolio were to decline materialy, a significant part of our loan portfolio could become under-collateralized. If the loans that are
collateralized by real estate become troubled during a time when market conditions are declining or have declined, we may not be
able to realize the value of the security anticipated when we originated the loan, which in turn could have an adverse effect on our
allowance and provision for loan and lease losses and our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

Most of our foreclosed assets are comprised of real estate properties. We carry these properties at their estimated fair values
less estimated selling costs. While we believe the carrying values for such assets are reasonable and appropriately reflect current
market conditions, there can be no assurance that the values of such assets will not further decline prior to sale or that the amount
of proceeds realized upon disposition of foreclosed assets will approximate the carrying value of such assets. If the proceeds from
any such dispositions are less than the carrying value of foreclosed assets, we will record aloss on the disposition of such assets,
which in turn could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our operations are principally geographically concentrated in certain markets in the southeastern United States, and changes
in local economic conditions impact our profitability.

Prior to our acquisitions of CapitalMark and Magna, we operated primarily in the Nashville, Tennessee and Knoxuville,
Tennessee MSAs, and most of our borrowers, depositors and other customers lived or had operations in these areas. With our
acquisitions of CapitalMark and Magna, we have increased our presence in the Knoxville MSA and expanded our operationsinto
the Chattanooga M SA and surrounding counties and the Memphis MSA. Following our acquisition of BNC, we have expanded
our operations to the Carolinas and Virginia. As aresult, a significant percentage of our borrowers are situated in these Tennessee
MSAS, and the various M SAs we have recently entered into in the Carolinas and Virginia. Our success significantly depends upon
the growth in population, income levels, deposits and housing starts in our markets (particularly the Nashville, Tennessee MSA,
Knoxville, Tennessee M SA and the Carolina and Virginia M SAs), along with the continued attraction of business venturesto
these areas, and our profitability isimpacted by the changesin general economic conditions in these markets. We cannot assure
you that economic conditions, including loan demand, in our markets will not deteriorate during 2018 or thereafter, and upon any
deterioration, we may not be able to grow our loan portfolio in line with our expectations and the ability of our customers to repay
their loans to us may be negatively impacted and our financial condition and results of operations could be negatively impacted.
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Compared to national financial institutions, we are less able to spread the risks of unfavorable local economic conditions
across alarge number of diversified economies. Moreover, we cannot give any assurance that we will benefit from any market
growth or return of more favorable economic conditionsin our primary market areasif they do occur.

Our acquisitions and future expansion may result in additional risks.

Over the last three years we have completed the acquisitions of CapitalMark, Magna, Avenue and BNC. We expect to
continue to expand in our current markets and in select high-growth markets |ocated outside of Tennessee in the southeastern
portion of the United States through additional branches and also may consider expansion within these markets through additional
acquisitions of all or part of other financial institutions. These types of expansions involve various risks, including:

Management of Growth. We may be unable to successfully:
e maintain loan quality in the context of significant loan growth;
* identify and expand into suitable markets;
e obtain regulatory and other approvals;
* identify and acquire suitable sites for new banking offices;
e attract sufficient deposits and capital to fund anticipated loan growth;
¢ maintain adequate common equity and regulatory capital;
e avoid diversion or disruption of our existing operations or management as well as those of the acquired institution;
¢ maintain adequate management personnel and systems to oversee and support such growth;
¢ maintain adequate internal audit, loan review and compliance functions; and
« implement additional policies, procedures and operating systems required to support such growth.

Results of Operations. There is no assurance that existing offices or future offices will maintain or achieve deposit levels, loan
balances or other operating results necessary to avoid losses or produce profits. Our growth strategy necessarily entails growth in
overhead expenses as we routinely add new offices and staff. Our historical results may not be indicative of future results or
results that may be achieved as we continue to increase the number and concentration of our branch officesin our newer markets.

Development of offices. There are considerable costs involved in opening branches, and new branches generally do not generate
sufficient revenues to offset their costs until they have been in operation for at least ayear or more. Accordingly, any new
branches we establish can be expected to negatively impact our earnings for some period of time until they reach certain
economies of scale. The same istrue for our efforts to expand in these markets with the hiring of additional seasoned
professionals with significant experience in that market. Our expenses could be further increased if we encounter delaysin
opening any of our new branches. We may be unable to accomplish future branch expansion plans due to alack of available
satisfactory sites, difficulties in acquiring such sites, failure to receive any required regulatory approvals, increased expenses or
loss of potential sites due to complexities associated with zoning and permitting processes, higher than anticipated merger and
acquisition costs or other factors. Finally, we have no assurance any branch will be successful even after it has been established or
acquired, as the case may be.

Regulatory and economic factors. Our growth and expansion plans may be adversely affected by a number of regulatory and
economic developments or other events. Failure to obtain required regulatory approvals, changes in laws and regulations or other
regulatory developments and changes in prevailing economic conditions or other unanticipated events may prevent or adversely
affect our continued growth and expansion. Such factors may cause us to alter our growth and expansion plans or slow or halt the
growth and expansion process, which may prevent us from entering into or expanding in our targeted markets or allow
competitorsto gain or retain market share in our existing markets.

Failure to successfully address these and other issues related to our expansion could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations, and could adversely affect our ability to successfully implement our business
strategy. Also, if our growth occurs more slowly than anticipated or declines, our results of operations and financial condition
could be materially adversely affected.

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficient to cover losses inherent in our loan portfolio, our results of operations and
financial condition will be negatively impacted.

If loan customers with significant loan balances fail to repay their loans, our results of operations, financial condition and
capital levels will suffer. We make various assumptions and judgments about the probable losses in our |oan portfolio, including
the creditworthiness of our borrowers and the value of any collateral securing the loans. Utilizing objective and subjective factors,
we maintain an allowance for loan losses, established through a provision for loan and |ease |osses charged to expense, to cover
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our estimate of the probable losses in our loan portfolio. In determining the size of this allowance, we utilize estimates based on
analyses of volume and types of loans, internal loan classifications, trendsin classifications, volume and trends in delinquencies,
nonaccruals and charge-offs, loss experience of various |oan categories, national and local economic conditions, industry and peer
bank loan quality indications, and other pertinent factors and information. Actual losses are difficult to forecast, especially if those
losses stem from factors beyond our historical experience or are otherwise inconsistent with our credit quality assessments. If our
assumptions are inaccurate, our current allowance may not be sufficient to cover potential loan losses, and additional provisions
may be necessary which would negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, federal and state regulators periodically review our loan portfolio and may require us to increase our allowance
for loan losses or recognize loan charge-offs. Their conclusions about the quality of a particular borrower or our entire loan
portfolio may be different than ours. Any increase in our alowance for loan losses or loan charge offs as required by these
regulatory agencies could have a negative effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Moreover, additions to the
allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic and real estate market conditions, new information regarding existing
loans (including those we acquired in our recently completed acquisitions), identification of additional problem loans, accounting
rule changes (like those related to the Financial Accounting Standards Board's rules regarding accounting for current expected
credit losses that are not yet effective) and other factors, both within and outside of our management’s control. These additions
may require increased provision expense which would negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition.

Liquidity risk could impair our ability to fund our operations and jeopardize our financial condition.

Liquidity represents an institution’s ability to provide funds to satisfy demands from depositors, borrowers and other
creditors by either converting assets into cash or accessing new or existing sources of incremental funds. Liquidity risk arises
from the possibility that we may be unable to satisfy current or future funding requirements and needs.

The objective of managing liquidity risk is to ensure that our cash flow requirements resulting from depositor, borrower and
other creditor demands as well as our operating cash needs, are met, and that our cost of funding such requirements and needsis
reasonable. We maintain an asset/liability and interest rate risk policy and aliquidity and funds management policy, including a
contingency funding plan that, among other things, include procedures for managing and monitoring liquidity risk. Generally we
rely on deposits, repayments of loans and leases and cash flows from our investment securities as our primary sources of funds.
Our principal deposit sources include consumer, commercial and public funds customers in our markets. We have used these
funds, together with wholesal e deposit sources such as brokered deposits, along with Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati
(“FHLB Cincinnati”) advances, federal funds purchased and other sources of short-term and long-term borrowings, to make loans
and leases, acquire investment securities and other assets and to fund continuing operations.

An inability to maintain or raise funds in amounts necessary to meet our liquidity needs could have a substantial negative
effect, individually or collectively, on Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank's liquidity. Our access to funding sources in amounts
adequate to finance our activities, or on terms attractive to us, could be impaired by factors that affect us specifically or the
financial servicesindustry in general. For example, factors that could detrimentally impact our access to liquidity sourcesinclude
adecrease in the level of our business activity due to a market downturn or adverse regulatory action against us, a reduction in our
credit rating, any damage to our reputation or any other decrease in depositor or investor confidence in our creditworthiness and
business. Our accessto liquidity could also be impaired by factors that are not specific to us, such as severe volatility or
disruption of the financial markets or negative views and expectations about the prospects for the financial servicesindustry as a
whole. Any such event or failure to manage our liquidity effectively could affect our competitive position, increase our borrowing
costs and the interest rates we pay on deposits, limit our access to the capital markets and have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations or financial condition.

Deposit levels may be affected by a number of factors, including rates paid by competitors, general interest rate levels,
returns availabl e to customers on alternative investments, general economic and market conditions and other factors. Loan and
lease repayments are arelatively stable source of funds but are subject to the borrowers’ and lessees’ ability to repay loans and
|eases, which can be adversely affected by a number of factorsincluding changesin general economic conditions, adverse trends
or events affecting business industry groups or specific businesses, declinesin real estate values or markets, business closings or
lay-offs, inclement weather, natural disasters and other factors. Furthermore, loans and leases generally are not readily convertible
to cash. Accordingly, we may be required from time to time to rely on secondary sources of liquidity to meet growth in loans and
leases, deposit withdrawal demands or otherwise fund operations. Such secondary sources include FHLB Cincinnati advances,
brokered deposits, secured and unsecured federal funds lines of credit from correspondent banks, Federal Reserve borrowings
and/or accessing the equity or debt capital markets.

We anticipate we will continue to rely primarily on deposits, loan and |lease repayments, and cash flows from our investment
securities to provide liquidity. Additionally, where necessary, the secondary sources of borrowed funds described above will be

22



used to augment our primary funding sources. If we are unable to access any of these secondary funding sources when needed, we
might be unable to meet our customers’ or creditors needs, which would adversely affect our financial condition, results of
operations, and liquidity.

We may not be able to successfully integrate BNC’s business or to realize the anticipated benefits of our acquisition of BNC.

We are till in the process of integrating BNC's business. A successful integration of BNC's business with ours will depend
substantially on our ability to consolidate operations, corporate cultures, systems and procedures and to eliminate redundancies
and costs. We may not be able to combine our business with BNC’s business without encountering difficulties, such as:

« thelossof key employees;

» disruption of operations and business;

e inability to maintain and increase competitive presence;

« loan and deposit attrition, customer loss and revenue loss, including as a result of any decision we may make to close

one or more locations,

* possibleinconsistencies in standards, control procedures and policies;

e unexpected problems with costs, operations, personnel, technology and credit; and/or

«  problems with the assimilation of new operations, sites or personnel, which could divert resources from regular banking

operations.

Additionally, general market and economic conditions or governmental actions affecting the financial industry generally may
inhibit our successful integration of BNC's business.

Further, we acquired BNC with the expectation that the acquisition will result in various benefits including, among other
things, benefits relating to enhanced revenues, a strengthened market position for the combined company, cross selling
opportunities, technological efficiencies, cost savings and operating efficiencies. Achieving the anticipated benefits of this
acquisition is subject to a number of uncertainties, including whether we integrate BNC's business, including its organizationa
culture, operations, technologies, services and products, in an efficient and effective manner, receipt of any required regulatory
approvals or no objection decisions with respect to certain integration actions, our ability to achieve the estimated noninterest
expense savings we believe we can achieve, and general competitive factors in the marketplace. Failure to achieve these
anticipated benefits on the anticipated timeframe, or at al, could result in areduction in the price of our sharesaswell asin
increased costs, decreases in the amount of expected revenues and diversion of management’s time and energy and could
materialy and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Additionally, we made fair value
estimates of certain assets and liabilities in recording our acquisition of BNC. Actual values of these assets and liabilities could
differ from our estimates, which could result in our not achieving the anticipated benefits of the acquisition. Finally, any cost
savings that are realized may be offset by lossesin revenues or other charges to earnings.

We have incurred significant transaction and merger-related costs in connection with our acquisition of BNC.

We have incurred significant costs associated with combining the operations of BNC with our operations. Additional
unanticipated costs may be incurred in the integration of our business with the business of BNC, including as aresult of the
conversion of our technology systemsto asingle, unified model across all of our geographic regions. Although we expect that the
elimination of duplicative costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses, may
offset incremental transaction and merger-related costs over time, this net benefit may not be achieved in the near term, or at al.

Our acquisition of BNC involves risks unlike those we have faced in connection with our other recent acquisitions.

Between January 1, 2015 and our acquisition of BNC, we had acquired three financial institutions with aggregate total assets
of approximately $2.92 hillion as of the respective dates we consummated those acquisitions. BNC's total assets as of March 31,
2017 were approximately $7.58 billion, reflecting assets significantly in excess of the aggregate total assets of all of the other
financial institutions we have acquired since January 1, 2015. For the merger to be successful, we will need to, among other
things, successfully export our business strategies to the new markets in which BNC operates and effectively manage a combined
company that is over 50% larger than our pre-acquisition size, measured by total assets. Moreover, al of our acquisitionsto date
other than the BNC acquisition have been of financial institutions headquartered in Tennessee with significant operationsin
markets with which we were familiar. At the closing of the merger, BNC operated 76 banking offices across three states in many
markets that are unfamiliar to us. We will rely heavily on BNC's existing personnel (aswell as employees hired following the
closing) to grow loan and deposit balances in those markets and if we are unable to retain BNC's key employees our results of
operations may be materialy and adversely affected. We have also announced a significant five-year hiring initiative targeted at
revenue producersin BNC's legacy markets. If we are unable to successfully recruit and hire qualified revenue producers at our
targeted goal, we may be unable to grow loans and deposits in those markets at the pace we have targeted, which could result in a
material and adverse impact on our results of operations.
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In addition, BNC's loan portfolio was made up of a greater percentage of commercial real estate loans than we had in our
portfolio and BNC was more dependent on noncore funding than we were prior to the merger. Our regulators will be closely
monitoring the levels of commercial real estate loansin our portfolio and, if we are unable to originate a significant amount of
loansin other segments of our portfolio or increase our capital levelsin amounts sufficient to keep our concentration of these
commercial real estate loans near or below regulatory guidelines, our ability to continue to aggressively grow our balance sheet
may be negatively affected and our results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if we are not able
to increase the amount of core funding in our markets, particularly in lower cost deposits, our net interest margin and liquidity
may be adversely affected which could result in a material and adverse impact on our results of operations.

We may face risks with respect to future acquisitions.

When we attempt to expand our business through mergers and acquisitions (as we have aggressively done over the last three
years), we seek targets that are culturally similar to us, have experienced management and possess either significant market
presence or have potential for improved profitability through economies of scale or expanded services. In addition to the general
risks associated with our growth plans which are highlighted above, in general acquiring other banks, businesses or branches,
particularly those in markets with which we are less familiar, involves various risks commonly associated with acquisitions,
including, among other things:

« thetime and costs associated with identifying and evaluating potential acquisition and merger targets;

e inaccuraciesin the estimates and judgments used to evaluate credit, operations, management and market risks with

respect to the target ingtitution,;

e thetime and costs of evaluating new markets, hiring experienced local management, including as aresult of de novo
expansion into amarket, and opening new bank locations, and the time lags between these activities and the generation
of sufficient assets and deposits to support the significant costs of the expansion that we may incur, particularly in the
first 12 to 24 months of operations;

» our ability to finance an acquisition and possible dilution to our existing shareholders;

« thediversion of our management’s attention to the negotiation of a transaction and integration of an acquired company’s
operations with ours;

« theincurrence of an impairment of goodwill associated with an acquisition and adverse effects on our results of
operations;

e entry into new markets where we have limited or no direct prior experience;

» closing delays and increased expenses related to the resolution of lawsuits filed by our shareholders or shareholders of
companies we may seek to acquire;

» theinability to receive regulatory approvalstimely or at all, including as a result of community objections, or such
approvals being restrictively conditional; and

»  risksassociated with integrating the operations, technologies and personnel of the acquired business.

We expect to continue to evaluate merger and acquisition opportunities that are presented to usin our current markets as well
as other markets throughout the southeastern portion of the United States and conduct due diligence activities related to possible
transactions with other financial institutions. As aresult, merger or acquisition discussions and, in some cases, negotiations may
take place and future mergers or acquisitions involving cash, debt or equity securities and related capital raising transactions may
occur at any time. Generally, acquisitions of financial institutions involve the payment of a premium over book and market
values, and, therefore, some dilution of our book value and fully diluted earnings per share may occur in connection with any
future transaction. Failure to realize the expected revenue increases, cost savings, increasesin product presence and/or other
projected benefits from an acquisition could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, we may face significant competition from numerous other financia services ingtitutions, many of which may
have greater financial resources than we do, when considering acquisition opportunities, particularly in our targeted high-growth
markets located outside of Tennessee. Accordingly, attractive acquisition opportunities may not be available to us. There can be
no assurance that we will be successful in identifying or completing any potential future acquisitions.

The performance of our investment securities portfolio is subject to fluctuation due to changes in interest rates and market
conditions, including credit deterioration of the issuers of individual securities.

Changes in interest rates can negatively affect the performance of most of our investment securities. Interest rate volatility
can reduce unrealized gains or increase unrealized losses in our portfolio. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors
including monetary policies, domestic and international economic and political issues, and other factors beyond our control.
Fluctuations in interest rates can materially affect both the returns on and market value of our investment securities. Additionally,
actual investment income and cash flows from investment securities that carry prepayment risk, such as mortgage-backed
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securities and callable securities, may materially differ from those anticipated at the time of investment or subsequently as aresult
of changesin interest rates and market conditions.

Our investment securities portfolio consists of several securities whose trading markets are “ not active.” Asaresult, we
utilize alternative methodologies for pricing these securities that include various estimates and assumptions. There can be no
assurance that we can sell these investment securities at the price derived by these methodologies, or that we can sell these
investment securities at all, which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

We monitor the financial position of the various issues of investment securities in our portfolio, including each of the state
and local governments and other political subdivisions where we have exposure. To the extent we have securities in our portfolio
from issuers who have experienced a deterioration of financia condition, or who may experience future deterioration of financial
condition, the value of such securities may decline and could result in an other-than-temporary impairment charge, which could
have an adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

Implementation of the various provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act may increase our operating costs or otherwise have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

On July 21, 2010, former President Obama signed the Dodd-Frank Act. This landmark |egislation includes, among other
things, (i) the creation of a Financial Services Oversight Counsel to identify emerging systemic risks and improve interagency
cooperation; (ii) the elimination of the Office of Thrift Supervision and the transfer of oversight of federally chartered thrift
institutions and their holding companies to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the Federal Reserve; (iii) the
creation of a Consumer Financial Protection Agency authorized to promul gate and enforce consumer protection regulations
relating to financial products that would affect banks and non-bank finance companies; (iv) the establishment of new capital and
prudential standards for banks and bank holding companies; (v) enhanced regulation of financial markets, including the
derivatives, securitization and mortgage origination markets; (vi) the elimination of certain proprietary trading and private equity
investment activities by banks and bank holding companies; (vii) the elimination of barriers to de novo interstate branching by
banks; (viii) apermanent increase of FDIC deposit insurance to $250,000; (ix) the authorization of interest-bearing transaction
accounts; and (x) changes in how the FDIC deposit insurance assessments are calculated and an increase in the minimum
designated reserve ratio for the Deposit Insurance Fund.

Certain provisions of the legislation were not immediately effective or are subject to required studies and implementing
regulations. Further, community banks with less than $10 billion in assets are exempt from certain provisions of the legislation.
We exceeded $10 hillion in assets upon the consummation of the Avenue merger, causing us to become subject to these additional
regulations, and, as described below, our results of operations may be materially impacted by the additional costs to comply with
these additional regulations as well as the higher costs associated with increased deposit insurance premiums.

The Dodd-Frank Act and its implementing regul ations impose various additional requirements on bank holding companies
with $10 billion or more in total assets, including compliance with portions of the Federal Reserve's enhanced prudential
oversight requirements and annual stress testing requirements. In addition, banks with $10 billion or more in total assets are
primarily examined by the CFPB with respect to various federal consumer financial protection laws and regulations. Previously,
Pinnacle Bank was subject to regul ations adopted by the CFPB, but the FDIC was primarily responsible for examining our
compliance with consumer protection laws and those CFPB regulations. As arelatively new agency with evolving regulations and
practices, there is uncertainty asto how the CFPB’s examination and regulatory authority might impact our business.

Since our total assets exceed $10 hillion, we and our bank subsidiary are required, under the Dodd-Frank Act, to submit
annually a stresstest to our federal regulators that projects our performance in various economic scenarios provided by the
regulators. We are required to submit our first stresstest in the third quarter of 2018. The Dodd-Frank Act stress tests are forward-
looking exercises conducted by our regulators to help ensure institutions have sufficient capital to absorb losses and support
operations during adverse economic conditions. In performing these stress tests, we will be required to make certain assumptions
in modeling future performance and must support these assumptions through statistical analysis and observed market behavior
where applicable. The outcome of our regulators analysis of our and our bank subsidary's projected performance (to include
capital, earnings, and balance sheet changes) will be used in supervision of us and our bank subsidiary and will assist our
regulatorsin ng our and Pinnacle Bank's risk profile and capital adequacy. The results of any stress test that we and our
bank subsidiary perform could hinder our or the bank's subsidiary's ability to pay quarterly cash dividends to shareholders as has
been our practice, and could also impact decisions made by the Federal Reserve and other bank regulators regarding future
acquisitions or investments by us or Pinnacle Bank. Compliance with the annual stress testing requirements, part of which must
be publicly disclosed, may also adversely affect our stock price or our ability to retain our customers or effectively compete for
new business opportunities.
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In addition, beginning on July 1, 2017 we became subject to the Durbin Amendment promulgated under the Dodd-Frank Act.
Under the Durbin Amendment, interchange fees for debit card transactions are capped at $0.21 plus five basis points (plus $0.01
for fraud loss). This limitation on interchange fees has adversely impacted our results of operations and will continue to do so.

Ongoing compliance with these additional requirements may result in further increased regulatory compliance costs, fee
reductions and restrictions on activities in which we may have otherwise engaged, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Moreover, our failure to comply with these or other regulations
could result in regulatory enforcement actions against us or make it more difficult to receive any required regulatory approvals
necessary to execute on our growth strategy, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations,
business or financia condition.

Although many of the regulations implementing portions of the Dodd-Frank Act have been promulgated, we are still unable
to predict how this significant legislation may be interpreted and enforced or the full extent to which implementing regulations
and supervisory policies may affect us. There can be no assurance that these or future reforms will not significantly increase our
compliance or operating costs or otherwise have a significant impact on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

President Donald Trump and the Congressional majority have indicated that the Dodd-Frank Act will be under further
scrutiny and some of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act and rules promulgated thereunder may be revised, repealed or
amended, including asis proposed in legislation which has been approved by either the House of Representatives or the Senate.
We cannot predict whether or in what form any proposed regulation or statute will be adopted, if at all, or the extent to which our
business may be affected by any new regulation or statute. Even if modifications are enacted to existing or proposed regulations,
including as proposed in such legislation, we may continue to face enhanced scrutiny from our regulators who may expect usto
continue to comply with the current, more stringent requirements as part of their safety and soundness and compliance
examinations and general oversight of our operations.

Our capital stress testing processes rely on analytical and forecasting models that may prove to be inadequate or inaccurate,
which could adversely affect the effectiveness of our strategic planning and our ability to pursue certain corporate goals.

As discussed above, we and our bank subsidiary are required to perform annual capital stress tests under the Dodd-Frank Act.
The results of our capital stress tests may require us and our bank subsidiary to increase our regulatory capital, raise additional
capital or take or decline to take certain other capital-related actions under certain circumstances. Our stress testing processes also
rely on our use of analytical and forecasting models. These models reflect assumptions that may not be accurate, particularly in
times of market stress or other unforeseen circumstances. Furthermore, even if our assumptions are accurate predictors of future
performance, the models they are based on may prove to be inadequate or inaccurate because of other flawsin their design or
implementation. Also, the assumptions we utilize for our stress tests may not be met with regulatory approval, which could result
in our stresstests receiving afailing grade. In addition to adversely affecting our reputation, failing our stress tests would likely
preclude or delay the possibility of our growth through acquisition, and would limit our ability to pay any cash dividends.

Negative developments in the U.S. and local economy may adversely impact our results in the future.

Economic conditions in the markets in which we operate deteriorated significantly between early 2008 and the middle of
2010. These challenges manifested themselves primarily in the form of increased levels of provisions for loan losses and other
real estate expense related to declining collateral valuesin our real estate loan portfolio and increased costs associated with our
portfolio of other real estate owned. Although economic conditions have strengthened in most of our markets in the more recent
periods and we have refocused our efforts on growing our earning assets, we believe that we will continue to experience an
uncertain economic environment during 2018. Accordingly, we expect that our results of operations could be negatively impacted
by economic conditions, including reduced |oan demand. There can be no assurance that the economic conditions that have
adversely affected the financial servicesindustry, and the capital, credit and real estate markets, generally, or usin particular, will
improve materialy, or at al, in the near future, or thereafter, in which case we could experience reduced earnings or again
experience significant losses and write-downs of assets, and could face capital and liquidity constraints or other business
challenges.

Our ability to grow our loan portfolio may be limited by, among other things, economic conditions, competition within our
market areas, the timing of loan repayments and seasonality.

Our ahility to continue to improve our results of operations is dependent upon, among other things, aggressively growing our
loan portfolio. While we believe that our strategy to grow our loan portfolio is sound and our growth targets are achievable over
an extended period of time, competition within our market areasis significant, particularly for borrowers whose businesses have

26



been less negatively impacted by the challenging economic conditions of the last few years. We compete with both large regional
and national financial institutions, who are sometimes able to offer more attractive interest rates and other financial terms than we
choose to offer, and smaller community-based financial institutions who seek to offer asimilar level of service to that which we
offer. This competition can make loan growth challenging, particularly if we are unwilling to price loans at levels that would
cause unacceptable levels of compression of our net interest margin or if we are unwilling to structure aloan in a manner that we
believe resultsin alevel of risk to usthat we are not willing to accept. Moreover, loan growth throughout the year can fluctuate
duein part to seasonality of the businesses of our borrowers and potential borrowers and the timing on loan repayments,
particularly those of our borrowers with significant relationships with us, resulting from, among other things, excess levels of
liquidity. In addition, the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, which contains provisions limiting the mortgage interest tax
deduction and eliminating the deduction for interest paid on home equity loans, may negatively affect our ability to originate
residential real estate loans (including home equity lines of credit).

Our investment in BHG may not produce the contribution to our results of operations that we expect.

Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank collectively hold a49% interest in BHG. While we have a significant stake in BHG,
are entitled to designate two members of BHG's five person board of managers and in some instances have protective rights to
block BHG from engaging in certain activities, including, until March 1, 2020, a sale of BHG (following March 1, 2020, the other
managers can approve a sale of BHG without our consent), the other managers and members of BHG may make most decisions
regarding BHG's operations without our consent or approval. Any sale of al or aportion of our interest in BHG would adversely
affect our recurring noninterest income. Moreover, there are certain limitations on our ability to sell our interest in BHG without
first offering BHG and the other members aright of first refusal, and we are prohibited from transferring any portion of our
interest without the consent of the other members of BHG prior to March 1, 2021, other than transfers in connection with an
acquisition of Pinnacle Financia or Pinnacle Bank or as aresult of achangein applicable law that forces us and/or Pinnacle Bank
to divest our or Pinnacle Bank’s ownership interestsin BHG.

A significant portion of BHG’s revenue (and correspondingly our interest in any of BHG's net profits) comes from the sale of
loans originated by BHG to community banks. Moreover, the aggregate purchase price we paid to acquire our interest in BHG
was based on our expectation that BHG will continue to grow its business and increase the amount of loans that it is able to
originate and sell. In the event that BHG’s loan growth slows over historical levels or its loan sales decrease (including but not
limited to as aresult of regulatory restrictions on banks that are the principal purchasers of BHG's loans), its results of operations
and our non-interest income would be adversely affected. BHG currently operatesin most states without the need for a permit or
any other license. In the event that BHG was required to register or become licensed in any state in which it operates, or
regulations are adopted that seek to limit BHG's ability to operate in any jurisdiction or that seek to limit the amounts of interest
that BHG can charge on itsloans, BHG's results of operations (and our and Pinnacle Bank’s interest in BHG's net profits) could
be materially and adversely affected.

BHG’s business may become subject to increased scrutiny by the FDIC or the Federal Reserve asit grows or as aresult of
our investment. The FDIC has published guidance related to the operation of marketplace lenders and banks’ business
relationships with such lenders and other third parties in which banks are required to exercise increased oversight and ongoing
monitoring and other responsibility for such third parties’ compliance with applicable regulatory guidance and requirements. Asa
result, we are subject to enhanced responsibility for and risk related to BHG and our relationship with it. BHG's compliance costs
may increase and its loan yields may be negatively impacted, which would negatively impact its results of operations and our and
Pinnacle Bank’s interest in BHG's net profits. If banks that are examined by the FDIC became restricted in their ability to buy
loans originated by BHG, BHG's business would be negatively impacted, which would negatively impact our interest in BHG's
profits.

Changes to capital requirements for bank holding companies and depository institutions that became effective January 1,
2015 and continue to be phased in may negatively impact Pinnacle Financial’s and Pinnacle Bank’s results of operations.

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC approved final rules that substantially amended the regulatory risk-based
capital rules applicable to Pinnacle Bank and Pinnacle Financial. The final rules, which became effective on January 1, 2015,
implement the Basel 111 regulatory capital reforms and changes required by the Dodd-Frank Act.

Under these rules, the leverage and risk-based capital ratios of bank holding companies may not be lower than the leverage
and risk-based capital ratios for insured depository institutions. The final rules include new minimum risk-based capital and
leverage ratios. Moreover, these rules refine the definition of what constitutes “capital” for purposes of calculating those ratios,
including the definitions of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. The minimum capital level requirements now applicable to bank
holding companies and banks subject to the rules are: (i) acommon equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4.5%; (ii) aTier 1
risk-based capital ratio of 6%; (iii) atotal risk-based capital ratio of 8%; and (iv) aTier 1 leverage ratio of 4% for al institutions.
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The rules also establish a“capital conservation buffer” of 2.5% (being phased in over three years beginning January 1, 2016)
above the new regulatory minimum risk-based capital ratios, and result in the following minimum ratios once the capital
conservation buffer isfully phased in: (i) acommon equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 7%, (ii) aTier 1 risk-based capital
ratio of 8.5%, and (iii) atotal risk-based capital ratio of 10.5%. The phase-in of the capital conservation buffer requirement
commenced in January 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and increases each year until fully implemented in January 2019.
We will be subject to limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases and paying discretionary bonusesif our
capital levelsfall below these minimums plus the buffer amounts. These limitations establish a maximum percentage of eligible
retained income that could be utilized for such actions.

Under these rules, Tier 1 capital generally consists of common stock (plus related surplus) and retained earnings, limited
amounts of minority interest in the form of additional Tier 1 capital instruments, and non-cumul ative preferred stock and related
surplus, subject to certain eligibility standards, less goodwill and other specified intangible assets and other regulatory deductions.
Common equity Tier 1 capital generally consists of common stock (plus related surplus) and retained earnings plus limited
amounts of minority interest in the form of common stock, less goodwill and other specified intangible assets and other regulatory
deductions. Tier 2 capital generally consists of subordinated debt, other preferred stock, and alimited amount of loan loss
reserves. Thetotal amount of Tier 2 capital islimited to 100% of Tier 1 capital. Cumulative preferred stock and trust preferred
securitiesissued after May 19, 2010, no longer qualify as Tier 1 capital, but such securities issued prior to May 19, 2010,
including in the case of bank holding companies with less than $15.0 billion in total assets at that date, trust preferred securities
issued prior to that date, continue to count as Tier 1 capital subject to certain limitations. Since our total assets exceeded $15.0
billion following our merger with BNC, the subordinated debentures we, and companies we have acquired, issued in connection
with prior trust preferred securities offerings no longer qualify as Tier 1 capital under applicable banking regulations. Though
these trust preferred securities no longer qualify as Tier 1 capital, we believe they continue to qualify as Tier 2 capital, subject to
applicable limitations. We may need to increase the level of Tier 1 capital we maintain through issuance of common stock or
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock, which could cause dilution to our existing common shareholders.

Thefina rules alow banks and their holding companies with less than $250 billion in assets a one-time opportunity to opt-
out of arequirement to include unrealized gains and losses in accumulated other comprehensive income in their capital
calculation. Both Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank opted-out of this requirement.

The application of more stringent capital requirements for Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank, like those adopted to
implement the Basel |11 reforms, could, among other things, result in lower returns on invested capital, require the raising of
additional capital, particularly in the form of common stock, make it more difficult for us to receive regulatory approvals related
to our growth initiatives and result in regulatory actions if we were to be unable to comply with such requirements. Furthermore,
the imposition of liquidity requirementsin connection with the implementation of Basel |11 either because we became subject to
those requirements directly or because our regulators seek to propose additional on-balance sheet liquidity requirements on us,
could result in our having to lengthen the term of our funding, restructure our business models and/or increase our holdings of
liquid assets, which could adversely impact our results of operations.

Implementation of changes to asset risk weightings for risk based capital calculations, items included or deducted in
calculating regulatory capital and/or additional capital conservation buffers could result in management modifying its business
strategy and could limit our ability to make distributions, including paying dividends or buying back shares.

Our ability to maintain required capital levels and adequate sources of funding and liquidity could be impacted by changes in
the capital markets and deteriorating economic and market conditions.

Federal and state bank regulators require Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank to maintain adequate levels of capital to
support operations. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial’s and Pinnacle Bank’s regul atory capital ratios were at “well-
capitalized” levels under regulatory guidelines. However, as described above, our business strategy calls for continued growth in
our existing banking markets and targeted expansion in new markets. Growth in assets at rates in excess of the rate at which our
capital isincreased through retained earnings will reduce our capital ratios unless we continue to increase capital. Failure by usto
meet applicable capital guidelines or to satisfy certain other regulatory requirements could subject usto avariety of enforcement
remedies available to the federal regulatory authorities and would negatively impact our ability to pursue acquisitions or other
expansion opportunities.

We may need to raise additional capital (including through the issuance of common stock) in the future to provide us with
sufficient capital resources and liquidity to meet our commitments and business needs or in connection with acquisitions. Our
ability to maintain capital levels, sources of funding and liquidity could be impacted by negative perceptions of our business or
prospects, changesin the capital markets and deteriorating economic and market conditions. Pinnacle Bank is required to obtain
regulatory approval in order to pay dividendsto Pinnacle Financial unless the amount of such dividends does not exceed its net
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income for that calendar year plus retained net income for the preceding two years. Any restriction on the ability of Pinnacle Bank
to pay dividends to Pinnacle Financial could impact Pinnacle Financia’s ability to continue to pay dividends on its common stock
or its ability to pay interest on itsindebtedness.

We cannot assure you that access to capital will be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. Any occurrence that may
limit our access to the capital markets may materially and adversely affect our capital costs and our ability to raise capital and/or
debt and, in turn, our liquidity. If we cannot raise additional capital when needed, our ability to expand through internal growth or
acquisitions or to continue operations could be impaired.

Certain of our deposits and other funding sources may be volatile and impact our liquidity.

In addition to the traditional core deposits, such as demand deposit accounts, interest checking, money market savings and
certificates of deposits less than $250,000, we utilize or in the past have utilized severa noncore funding sources, such as
brokered certificates of deposit, FHLB Cincinnati advances, federal funds purchased and other sources. Our reliance on noncore
funding sources has increased as aresult of the BNC merger, and it islikely to remain at elevated levels aswe integrate BNC.

We utilize these noncore funding sources to fund the ongoing operations and growth of Pinnacle Bank. The availability of
these noncore funding sources is subject to broad economic conditions, in some instances regulation, and to investor assessment
of our financia strength and, as such, the cost of funds may fluctuate significantly and/or the availability of such funds may be
restricted, thus impacting our net interest income, our immediate liquidity and/or our access to additional liquidity. We have
somewhat similar risks to the extent high balance core deposits exceed the amount of deposit insurance coverage available.

We impose certain internal limits as to the absolute level of noncore funding we will incur at any point in time. Should we
exceed those limitations, we may need to modify our growth plans, liquidate certain assets, participate |oans to correspondents or
execute other actions to allow for us to return to an acceptable level of noncore funding within a reasonable amount of time, any
one of which actions could adversely affect our results of operations.

An ineffective risk management framework could have a material adverse effect on our strategic planning and our ability to
mitigate risks and/or losses and could have adverse regulatory consequences.

We have implemented arisk management framework to identify and manage our risk exposure. This framework is comprised
of various processes, systems and strategies, and is designed to manage the types of risk to which we are subject, including,
among others, credit, market, liquidity, operational, capital, compliance, strategic and, reputational risks. Our framework also
includes financial, analytical, forecasting, or other modeling methodol ogies, which involves management assumptions and
judgment. In addition, our board of directors, in consultation with management, has adopted a risk appetite statement, which sets
forth certain thresholds and limits to govern our overall risk profile. However, there is no assurance that our risk management
framework, including the risk metrics under our risk appetite statement, will be effective under al circumstances or that it will
adequately identify, manage or mitigate any risk or lossto us. If our risk management framework is not effective, we could suffer
unexpected losses and become subject to regulatory consequences, as a result of which our business, financial condition, results
of operations or prospects could be materially adversely affected.

We are dependent on our information technology and telecommunications systems and third-party servicers, and systems
failures, interruptions or breaches of security could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Our operations rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information in our computer
systems and networks. Although we take protective measures and endeavor to modify these systems as circumstances warrant, the
security of our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to breaches, unauthorized access, misuse, computer
viruses or other malicious code and other events that could have a security impact. We provide our customers the ability to bank
remotely, including over the Internet or through their mobile device. The secure transmission of confidential informationisa
critical element of remote and mobile banking. Our network, and the systems of parties with whom we contract, could be
vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses, phishing schemes, spam attacks, human error, natural disasters, power loss
and other security breaches. We may be required to spend significant capital and other resources to protect against the threat of
security breaches and computer viruses, or to alleviate problems caused by security breaches or viruses. To the extent that our
activities or the activities of our customers involve the storage and transmission of confidentia information, security breaches
(including breaches of security of customer systems and networks) and viruses could expose us to claims, litigation and other
possible liabilities. Any inability to prevent security breaches or computer viruses could also cause existing customers to lose
confidence in our systems and could adversely affect our reputation, results of operations and ability to attract and maintain
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customers and businesses. In addition, a security breach could also subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny, expose us to civil
litigation and possible financial liability and cause reputational damage.

In addition, we outsource many of our major systems, such as data processing, |oan servicing and deposit processing systems.
The failure of these systems, or the termination of a third-party software license or service agreement on which any of these
systemsis based, could interrupt our operations. Because our information technology and telecommunications systems interface
with and depend on third-party systems, we could experience service denias if demand for such services exceeds capacity or such
third-party systemsfail or experience interruptions. If sustained or repeated, a system failure or service denial could resultin a
deterioration of our ability to process new and renewal loans, gather deposits and provide customer service, compromise our
ability to operate effectively, damage our reputation, result in aloss of customer business and/or subject us to additional
regulatory scrutiny and possible financial liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition
and results of operations.

In connection with our acquisition of BNC, we converted our core processing system in our Tennessee legacy markets to that
of BNC. Any complications from the conversion could cause us to experience increased costs as we manage through those
complications or divert management’s and our associates' attention from executing on our growth strategy. Moreover, such
complications could negatively impact the experiences or satisfaction of our customers, which could cause those customers to
terminate their relationship with us or reduce the amount of business that they do with us, either of which could adversely affect
our business, financia condition or results of operations.

Environmental liability associated with commercial lending could result in losses.

In the course of business, Pinnacle Bank may acquire, through foreclosure, or deed in lieu of foreclosure, properties securing
loansit has originated or purchased which are in default. Particularly in commercial real estate lending, thereisarisk that
hazardous substances could be discovered on these properties. In this event, we, or Pinnacle Bank, might be required to remove
these substances from the affected properties at our sole cost and expense. The cost of thisremoval could substantially exceed the
value of affected properties. We may not have adequate remedies against the prior owner or other responsible parties and could
find it difficult or impossible to sell the affected properties. These events could have amaterial adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financia condition.

National or state legislation or regulation may increase our expenses and reduce earnings.

Bank regulators are increasing regulatory scrutiny, and additional restrictions (including those originating from the Dodd-
Frank Act) on financid institutions have been proposed or adopted by regulators and by Congress. Changesin tax law, federal
legislation, regulation or policies, such as bankruptcy laws, deposit insurance, consumer protection laws, and capital
reguirements, among others, can result in significant increases in our expenses and/or charge-offs, which may adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition. Changesin state or federal tax laws or regulations can have a similar impact. State
and municipal governments, including the State of Tennessee, could seek to increase their tax revenues through increased tax
levies which could have a meaningful impact on our results of operations. Furthermore, financial institution regulatory agencies
are expected to continue to be aggressive in responding to concerns and trends identified in examinations, including the continued
issuance of additional formal or informal enforcement or supervisory actions. These actions, whether formal or informal, could
result in our agreeing to limitations or to take actions that limit our operational flexibility, restrict our growth or increase our
capital or liquidity levels. Failure to comply with any formal or informal regulatory restrictions, including informal supervisory
actions, could lead to further regulatory enforcement actions. Negative developmentsin the financial services industry and the
impact of recently enacted or new legislation in response to those devel opments could negatively impact our operations by
restricting our business operations, including our ability to originate or sell loans, and adversely impact our financial
performance. In addition, industry, legisative or regulatory developments may cause us to materially change our existing strategic
direction, capital strategies, compensation or operating plans.

Our business reputation and relationships are important and any damage to them could have a material adverse effect on our
business.

Our reputation is very important in sustaining our business and we rely on our relationships with our current, former and
potential clients and shareholders and other actorsin the industries that we serve. Any damage to our reputation, whether arising
from regulatory, supervisory or enforcement actions, matters affecting our financia reporting or compliance with SEC and
exchange listing requirements, negative publicity, the way in which we conduct our business or otherwise could strain our
existing relationships and make it difficult for us to develop new relationships. Any such damage to our reputation and
relationships could in turn lead to a material adverse effect on our business.
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A decline in our stock price or expected future cash flows, or a material adverse change in our results of operations or
prospects, could result in impairment of our goodwill.

A significant and sustained decline in our stock price and market capitalization below book value, a significant declinein our
expected future cash flows, a significant adverse change in the business climate, slower growth rates or other factors could result
in impairment of our goodwill. At December 31, 2017, our goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets total ed approximately
$1.9 billion. If we were to conclude that awrite-down of our goodwill is necessary, then the appropriate charge would likely
cause amaterial loss. Any significant loss would further adversely impact the capacity of Pinnacle Bank to pay dividendsto us
without seeking prior regulatory approval, which could adversely affect our ability to pay required interest payments on our
outstanding indebtedness.

Competition with other banking institutions could adversely affect our profitability.

A number of banking institutions in our geographic markets have higher lending limits, more banking offices, and a larger
market share of loans or deposits than we do. In addition, our asset management division competes with numerous brokerage
firms and mutual fund companies which are also much larger. In some respects, this may place these competitors in a competitive
advantage. This competition may limit or reduce our profitability (including as aresult of compression to our net interest margin),
reduce our growth and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Inability to retain senior management and key employees or to attract new experienced financial services professionals could
impair our relationship with our customers, reduce growth and adversely affect our business.

We have assembled a senior management team which has substantial background and experience in banking and financia
services in our markets. Moreover, much of our organic loan growth in 2012 through 2017 (like the growth that we are seeking
going forward) was the result of our ability to attract experienced financial services professionals who have been able to attract
customers from other financia institutions. We anticipate deploying asimilar hiring strategy in the Carolinas and Virginia.
Inability to retain these key personnel (including key personnel of the businesses we have acquired) or to continue to attract
experienced lenders (including, in either case, as aresult of competitive compensation and other hiring and retention pressures
resulting from the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act) with established books of business could negatively impact our growth
because of the loss of these individuals' skills and customer relationships and/or the potential difficulty of promptly replacing
them. Moreover, the higher costs we have to pay to hire and retain these experienced individuals could cause our noninterest
expense levels to rise and negatively impact our results of operations.

We are subject to certain litigation, and our expenses related to this litigation may adversely affect our results.

We are from time to time subject to certain litigation in the ordinary course of our business. As we have aggressively hired
new revenue producing associates over the last five years we, and the associates we have hired, have also periodically been the
subject of litigation and threatened litigation with these associates former employers. We may also be subject to claims related to
our loan servicing programs, particularly those involving servicing of commercial real estate loans. These and other claims and
legal actions, as well as supervisory and enforcement actions by our regulators, including the CFPB or other regulatory agencies
with which we deal, including those with oversight of our loan servicing programs, could involve large monetary claims, capital
directives, agreements with federal regulators, cease and desist orders and significant defense costs. The outcome of any such
cases or actionsis uncertain. Substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against us could have material adverse
financial effects or cause significant reputational harm to us, which in turn could seriously harm our business prospects.

Our business is dependent on technology, and an inability to invest in technological improvements may adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

The financia servicesindustry is undergoing rapid technological changes with frequent introductions of new technol ogy-
driven products and services. In addition to better serving customers, the effective use of technology increases efficiency and
enables financial institutions to reduce costs. We have made significant investments in data processing, management information
systems and internet banking accessibility. Our future success will depend in part upon our ability to create additional efficiencies
in our operations through the use of technology. Many of our competitors have substantially greater resourcesto invest in
technological improvements. We cannot make assurances that our technological improvements will increase our operational
efficiency or that we will be able to effectively implement new technology-driven products and services or be successful in
marketing these products and servicesto our customers.
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We are subject to various statutes and regulations that may impose additional costs or limit our ability to take certain actions.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and are subject to examination, supervision, and comprehensive regulation by
various regulatory agencies. Our compliance with these regulations is costly and restricts certain of our activities, including
payment of dividends, mergers and acquisitions, investments, loans and interest rates charged on loans, interest rates paid on
deposits and locations of offices. We are also subject to capital requirements established by our regulators, which require usto
maintain specified levels of capital. It is possible that our FDIC assessments may increase in the future. Any future assessment
increases could negatively impact our results of operations. Significant changes in laws and regulations applicable to the banking
industry have been recently adopted and others are being considered in Congress. We cannot predict the effects of these changes
on our business and profitability. Because government regulation greatly affects the business and financial results of commercial
banks and bank holding companies, our cost of compliance could adversely affect our ability to operate profitably.

Our accounting estimates and risk management processes rely on analytical and forecasting models and tools.

The processes we use to estimate probabl e credit losses and to measure the fair value of financial instruments, as well as the
processes used to estimate the effects of changing interest rates and other measures of our financial condition and results of
operations, depend upon the use of analytical and forecasting models and tools. These models and tools reflect assumptions that
may not be accurate, particularly in times of market stress or other unforeseen circumstances. Even if these assumptions are
accurate, the models and tools may prove to be inadequate or inaccurate because of other flawsin their design or their
implementation. Any such failure in our analytical or forecasting models and tools could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financia condition and results of operations.

The soundness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us.

Our ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and financial stability of other
financial ingtitutions. Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty or other
relationships. We have exposure to various counterparties, including brokers and dealers, commercial and correspondent banks,
and others. As aresult, defaults by, or rumors or questions about, one or more financial servicesinstitutions, or the financial
services industry generally, may result in market-wide liquidity problems and could lead to losses or defaults by such other
institutions. Such occurrences could expose us to credit risk in the event of default of one or more counterparties and could have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into certain transactions, we rely on information furnished by or on behalf of
customers, including financial statements, credit reports, tax returns and other financial information. We may also rely on
representations of those customers or other third parties, such asindependent auditors, as to the accuracy and completeness of that
information. Reliance on inaccurate or misleading financial statements, credit reports, tax returns or other financial information
could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may be subject to claims and litigation asserting lender liability.

From time to time, and particularly during periods of economic stress, customers, including real estate devel opers and
consumer borrowers, may make claims or otherwise take legal action pertaining to performance of our responsibilities. These
claims are often referred to as “lender liability” claims and are sometimes brought in an effort to produce or increase leverage
against us in workout negotiations or debt collection proceedings. Lender liability claims frequently assert one or more of the
following allegations: breach of fiduciary duties, fraud, economic duress, breach of contract, breach of the implied covenant of
good faith and fair dealing, and similar claims. Whether customer claims and legal action related to the performance of our
responsibilities are founded or unfounded, if such claims and legal actions are not resolved in afavorable manner, they may result
in significant financial liability and/or adversely affect our market reputation, products and services, as well as potentially
affecting customer demand for those products and services. Any financial liability or reputation damage could have a material
adverse effect on our business, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations and liquidity.

32



Natural disasters may adversely affect us.

Our operations and customer base are located in markets where natural disasters, including tornadoes, severe storms, fires,
floods, hurricanes and earthquakes often occur. Such natural disasters could significantly impact the local population and
economies and our business, and could pose physical risks to our properties. Although our banking offices are geographically
dispersed throughout portions of the southeastern United States and we maintain insurance coverages for such events, a
significant natural disaster in or near one or more of our markets could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition,
results of operations or liquidity.

The price of our common stock may be volatile or may decline.

The trading price of our common stock may fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, many of which are outside our
control. In addition, the stock market is subject to fluctuations in trading volumes that affect the market prices of the shares of
many companies. These broad market fluctuations could adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Among the
factors that could affect our stock price are:

« actua or anticipated quarterly fluctuationsin our results of operations and financial condition;

» changesin revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports and recommendations by financial analysts;

« falureto meet analysts' revenue or earnings estimates,

e speculation in the press or investment community;

e dtrategic actions by us or our competitors;

e actions by institutional shareholders;

« fluctuationsin the stock price and operating results of our competitors;

e genera market conditions and, in particular, developments related to market conditions for the financial services

industry;

e market perceptions about the innovation economy, including levels of funding or "exit" activities of companiesin the

industries we serve;

e proposed or adopted regulatory changes or developments;

e anticipated or pending investigations, proceedings or litigation that involve or affect us; and

¢ domestic and international economic factors unrelated to our performance.

The trading price of the shares of our common stock and the value of our other securities will further depend on many factors,
which may change from time to time, including, without limitation, our financial condition, performance, creditworthiness and
prospects, and future sales of our equity or equity-related securities. In some cases, the markets have produced downward
pressure on stock prices and credit availability for certain issuers without regard to those issuers' underlying financial strength. A
significant declinein our stock price could result in substantial losses for individual shareholders and could lead to costly and
disruptive securities litigation, as well asthe loss of key employees.

Our ability to declare and pay dividends is limited.

While our board of directors has approved the payment of a quarterly cash dividend on our common stock since the fourth
quarter of 2013, there can be no assurance of whether or when we may pay dividends on our common stock in the future. Future
dividends, if any, will be declared and paid at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on a number of factors. Our
principal source of funds used to pay cash dividends on our common stock will be dividends that we receive from Pinnacle Bank.
Although Pinnacle Bank’s asset quality, earnings performance, liquidity and capital requirements will be taken into account
before we declare or pay any future dividends on our common stock, our board of directors will also consider our liquidity and
capital requirements and our board of directors could determine to declare and pay dividends without relying on dividend
payments from Pinnacle Bank.

Federal and state banking laws and regul ations and state corporate laws restrict the amount of dividends we may declare and
pay and that Pinnacle Bank may declare and pay to us. For example, Federal Reserve regulations implementing the capital rules
required under Basel |11 do not permit dividends unless capital levels exceed certain higher levels applying capital conservation
buffers that began to apply on January 1, 2016 and are being phased in over three years.

In addition, the terms of (i) our subordinated debentures, (ii) the subordinated notes we assumed upon consummation of the
Avenue merger, and (iii) the subordinated debentures and subordinated notes we assumed upon the consummation of the BNC
merger, prohibit us from paying dividends on our common stock at times when we are deferring the payment of interest on such
subordinated debentures or subordinated notes. Moreover, the terms of the loan agreement for Pinnacle Financial’s line of credit
prohibits us from paying dividends when there is an event of default existing under the loan agreement, or the payment of a
dividend would cause an event of default.
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We may issue additional common stock or other equity securities in the future which could dilute the ownership interest of
existing shareholders.

In order to maintain our or Pinnacle Bank’s capital at desired or regulatory-required levels, we may issue additional shares of
common stock, or securities convertible into, exchangeable for or representing rights to acquire shares of common stock. We may
sell these shares at prices below the current market price of shares, and the sale of these shares may significantly dilute
shareholder ownership. We could also issue additional sharesin connection with acquisitions of other financial institutions (as we
did in connection with our acquisition of BNC and our other recent acquisitions) or investments in fee-related businesses such as
BHG, which could a so dilute shareholder ownership.

Holders of Pinnacle Financial’s and Pinnacle Bank’s indebtedness and junior subordinated debentures have rights that are
senior to those of Pinnacle Financial’s shareholders.

At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial had outstanding trust preferred securities and accompanying junior subordinated
debentures totaling $133.0. Payments of the principal and interest on the trust preferred securities are conditionally guaranteed by
Pinnacle Financial, and the accompanying subordinated debentures are senior to shares of Pinnacle Financial’s common stock. As
aresult, Pinnacle Financial must make payments on the subordinated debentures (and the related trust preferred securities) before
any dividends can be paid on common stock and, in the event of Pinnacle Financial’s bankruptcy, dissolution or liquidation, the
holders of the subordinated debentures must be satisfied before any distributions can be made on Pinnacle Financial’s common
stock. Pinnacle Financial has the right to defer distributions on its junior subordinated debentures (and the related trust preferred
securities) for up to five years, during which time no dividends may be paid on its common stock. If our financial condition
deteriorates or if we do not receive required regulatory approvals, we may be required to defer distributions on our junior
subordinated debentures.

From time to time, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank have issued, and in connection with the Avenue merger and BNC
merger, assumed, subordinated notes. At December 31, 2017, we and Pinnacle Bank had an aggregate of $340.5 million of
subordinated notes outstanding, not including the subordinated debentures issued in connection with our trust preferred securities.
The terms of these notes prohibit or will prohibit Pinnacle Financia or Pinnacle Bank, as applicable, from declaring or paying
any dividends or distributions on its common stock at any time when payment of interest on these notes has not been timely made
and while any such accrued and unpaid interest remains unpaid. Moreover, the notes we have issued or assumed rank senior to
shares of Pinnacle Financia’s common stock. In the event of any bankruptcy, dissolution or liquidation of Pinnacle Financial,
these notes, along with Pinnacle Financial’s other indebtedness, would have to be repaid before Pinnacle Financia’s sharehol ders
would be entitled to receive any of the assets of Pinnacle Financial.

Pinnacle Financia or Pinnacle Bank may from time to time issue additional subordinated indebtedness that would have to be
repaid before Pinnacle Financial’s shareholders would be entitled to receive any of the assets of Pinnacle Financial or Pinnacle
Bank.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal control over financial reporting, we may not be able to accurately report
our financial results. As a result, current and potential holders of our securities could lose confidence in our financial
reporting, which would harm our business and the trading price of our securities.

Maintaining and adapting our internal controls over financia reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, is expensive and requires significant management attention. Moreover, as we continue to grow, our internal controls may
become more complex and require additional resources to ensure they remain effective amid dynamic regulatory and other
guidance. Failure to implement effective controls or difficulties encountered in the process may harm our results of operations and
financial condition or cause usto fail to meet our reporting obligations. If we or our independent registered accounting firm
identify material weaknessesin our internal control over financia reporting or are otherwise required to restate our financial
statements, we could be required to implement expensive and time-consuming remedial measures and could |ose investor
confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports. We may also face regulatory enforcement or other actions,
including the potentia delisting of our securities from the Nasdag Global Select Market. This could have an adverse effect on our
business, financia condition or results of operations, as well as the trading price of our securities, and could potentially subject us
to litigation.



Our issuance of preferred stock could adversely affect holders of our common stock.

We have the ability under our current effective shelf registration statement to issue shares of preferred stock. Further, our
shareholders authorized our board of directors to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock without any further action on
the part of our shareholders. Our board also has the power, without shareholder approval, to set the terms of any series of
preferred stock that may be issued, including voting rights, dividend rights, preferences over our common stock with respect to
dividends or in the event of adissolution, liquidation or winding up, and other terms. In the event that we issue preferred stock in
the future that has preference over our common stock with respect to payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dissolution,
or winding up, or if we issue debt securities, incur other borrowings or issue preferred stock with voting rights that dilute the
voting power of our common stock, the rights of the holders of our common stock or the market price of our common stock could
be adversely affected.

We and/or the holders of certain classes of our securities could be adversely affected by unfavorable ratings from rating
agencies.

The ratings agencies regularly evaluate Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank, and their ratings of our long-term debt are
based on a number of factors, including our financial strength aswell as factors not entirely within our control, including
conditions affecting the financial servicesindustry generally. There can be no assurance that we will not receive adverse changes
in our ratings in the future, which could adversely affect the cost and other terms upon which we are able to obtain funding, and
the way in which we are perceived in the capital markets. Actua or anticipated changes, or downgrades in our credit ratings,
including any announcement that our ratings are under review for adowngrade, could affect the market value and liquidity of our
securities, increase our borrowing costs and negatively impact our profitability. Additionally, a downgrade of the credit rating of
any particular security issued by us or our subsidiaries could negatively affect the ability of the holders of that security to sell the
securities and the prices at which any such securities may be sold.

Even though our common stock is currently traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market’s Global Select Market, it has less liquidity
than many other stocks quoted on a national securities exchange.

The trading volume in our common stock on the Nasdag Global Select Market has been relatively low when compared with
larger companies listed on the Nasdag Global Select Market or other stock exchanges. Although we have experienced increased
liquidity in our stock, we cannot say with any certainty that a more active and liquid trading market for our common stock will
continue to develop. Because of this, it may be more difficult for shareholders to sell a substantial number of shares for the same
price at which shareholders could sell a smaller number of shares.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, that future sales of our common stock in the market, or the availability of shares of
common stock for sale in the market, will have on the market price of our common stock. We can give no assurance that sales of
substantial amounts of common stock in the market, or the potential for large amounts of sales in the market, would not cause the
price of our common stock to decline or impair our future ability to raise capital through sales of our common stock.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly, and may fluctuate in the future. These fluctuations may
be unrelated to our performance. General market or industry price declines or overall market volatility in the future could
adversely affect the price of our common stock, and the current market price may not be indicative of future market prices.

Our corporate organizational documents and the provisions of Tennessee law to which we are subject contain certain
provisions that could have an anti-takeover effect and may delay, make more difficult or prevent an attempted acquisition of
Pinnacle Financial that you may favor.

Our amended and restated charter, as amended, and bylaws, as amended, contain various provisions that could have an anti-
takeover effect and may delay, discourage or prevent an attempted acquisition or change of control of Pinnacle Financial. These
provisionsinclude:

e aprovision requiring our board of directorsto take into account specific factors when considering an acquisition

proposal;

e aprovision that all extraordinary corporate transactions to which we are a party must be approved by a mgjority of the
directors and amajority of the shares entitled to vote;

e aprovision that any special meeting of our shareholders may be called only by our chairman, our chief executive officer,
our president, our board of directors, or the holders of 25% of the outstanding shares of our voting stock that have held
those shares for at least one year; and

e aprovision establishing certain advance notice procedures for nomination of candidates for election as directors at an
annual or special meeting of shareholders at which directors are elected.
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Additionally, our amended and restated charter, as amended, authorizes the board of directorsto issue shares of our preferred
stock without shareholder approval and upon such terms as the board of directors may determine. The issuance of our preferred
stock, while providing desirable flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions, financings, and other corporate purposes,
could have the effect of making it more difficult for athird party to acquire, or of discouraging athird party from acquiring, a
controlling interest in us. In addition, certain provisions of Tennessee law, including a provision which restricts certain business
combinations between a Tennessee corporation and certain affiliated shareholders, may delay, discourage or prevent an attempted
acquisition or change in control of our company.

An investment in our common stock is not an insured deposit and is not guaranteed by the FDIC.
An investment in our common stock is not a bank deposit and, therefore, is not insured against loss or guaranteed by the
FDIC, any other deposit insurance fund or by any other public or private entity. An investment in our common stock is inherently

risky for the reasons described herein and our shareholders will bear the risk of lossif the value or market price of our common
stock is adversely affected.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company's executive offices are located at 150 Third Avenue South, Suite 900, Nashville, Tennessee. At December 31, 2017, we
conducted banking operationsin 114 officesin four states. These offices include both owned and leased facilities as follows:

State Owned Leased Total
Tennessee 27 19 46
North Carolina 29 10 39
South Carolina 12 9 21
Virginia 6 2 8

74 40 114

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Variouslegal proceedingsto which Pinnacle Financia or asubsidiary of Pinnacle Financial is party arise from timeto timein the normal
course of business. There are no material pending legal proceedings to which Pinnacle Financial or any of its subsidiaries is a party or
of which any of its or its subsidiaries' properties are subject.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Pinnacle Financia's common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "PNFP" and has traded on that
market since July 3, 2006. The following table shows the high and low sales price information for Pinnacle Financial's common stock

for each quarter in 2017 and 2016 as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market.

Price Per Share

High Low

2017:

First quarter $ 7155 $ 61.07

Second quarter 70.30 59.00

Third quarter 67.80 58.40

Fourth quarter 69.95 63.13
2016:

First quarter $ 5282 $ 43.32

Second quarter 52.54 44.61

Third quarter 57.39 46.82

Fourth quarter 71.85 49.40

As of February 23, 2018, Pinnacle Financial had approximately 7,169 stockholders of record.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we paid a quarterly dividend on our common stock for the first time. The amount of the initial
dividend was $0.08 per share. During the first quarters of 2015 and 2016, the board of directors increased the dividend to $0.12 per

share and $0.14 per share, respectively. During the first quarter of 2018, our board of directors declared a dividend of $0.14 per share.
See ITEM 1. "Business - Supervision and Regulation - Payment of Dividends® and ITEM 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financia Condition and Results of Operations" for additional information on dividend restrictions applicable to Pinnacle Financial

and Pinnacle Bank.

In connection with the settlement of income tax liabilities associated with the Company's equity compensation plans, Pinnacle

Financia repurchased shares of its common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2017 as follows:

Total Number of
Shares Purchased as

Maximum Number
(or Approximate
Dollar Value) of
Shares That May

Total Number of Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Shares Average Price Paid  Announced Plansor  Under the Plans or
Period Repurchased @ Per Share Programs Programs
October 1, 2017 to October 31, 2017 917 $ 66.06 — —
November 1, 2017 to November 30, 2017 719 65.50 — —
December 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 48 67.75 — —
Total 1,684 $ 65.85 — —

@ During the quarter ended December 31, 2017, 46,752 shares of restricted stock previously awarded to certain of our
associates vested. 40,317 of these shares vested subject to 83(b) elections. For the remaining restricted share awards which
vested during the quarter ended December 31, 2017, we withheld 1,684 shares to satisfy tax withholding requirements

associated with their vesting.

38



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Total assets

Loans, net of unearned income

Allowance for loan losses

Total securities

Goodwill, core deposit and other intangible assets
Deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Advances from FHLB

Subordinated debt and other borrowings
Stockholders' equity

Statement of Operations Data:

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Noninterest income

Noninterest expense

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense

Net income

Per Share Data:

Earnings per share available to common stockholders—basic  $

Welghted average common shares outstanding — basic

Earnings per common share available to common
stockholders — diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding — diluted
Common dividends per share

Book value per common share

Common shares outstanding at end of period
Performance Ratios:

Return on average assets

Return on average stockholders' equity

Net interest margin

Net interest spread

Noninterest income to average assets

Noninterest expense to average assets

Efficiency ratio

Average |loan to average deposit ratio

Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing
ligbilities

Average equity to average total assetsratio

Dividend payout ratio

Asset Quality Ratios:

Allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans
Allowance for loan losses to total loans

Nonperforming assets to total assets

Nonperforming assets to total |oans and other real estate
Net loan charge-offs to average loans

Capital Ratios (Pinnacle Financial):

Common equity Tier | risk-based capita

Leverage

Tier 1 risk-based capital

Total risk-based capital

2017 @ 2016 @® 2015 @O 2014 2013
$ 22205700 $ 11,194623 $ 8,714,544 6018248 $ 5,563,776
15,633,116 8,449,925 6,543,235 4,590,026 4,144,493
67,240 58,980 65,432 67,359 67,970
2,536,046 1,323,797 966,442 770,730 733,252
1,864,712 566,698 442,773 246,422 247,492
16,586,964 8,845,014 7,050,498 4,876,600 4,603,938
1,319,909 406,304 300,305 195,476 90,637
465,505 350,768 141,606 96,158 98,658
3,707,952 1,496,696 1,155,611 802,693 723,708
$ 636,138 $ 363609 $ 255,169 206170 $ 191,282
92,831 38,615 18,537 13,185 15,384
543,307 324,994 236,632 192,985 175,898
23,664 18,328 9,188 3,635 7,856
519,643 306,666 227,444 189,350 168,042
144,903 121,003 86,530 52,602 47,104
366,560 236,285 170,877 136,300 129,261
297,986 191,383 143,098 105,653 85,884
124,007 64,159 47,589 35,182 28,158
173,979 127,224 95,509 70,471 57,726
273 $ 29% $ 2.58 203 $ 1.69
63,760,578 43,037,083 37,015,468 34,723,335 34,200,770
$ 270 $ 201 $ 252 201 $ 1.67
64,328,189 43,731,992 37,973,788 35,126,890 34,509,261
$ 056 $ 0.56 0.48 0.32 0.08
$ 4770  $ 33228 $ 28.25 245 3 20.55
77,739,636 46,359,377 40,906,064 35,732,483 35,221,941
1.02% 1.27% 1.36% 1.27% 1.11%
6.26% 9.47% 10.06% 9.33% 8.22%
3.76% 3.70% 3.72% 3.75% 3.77%
3.53% 3.46% 3.55% 3.65% 3.65%
0.85% 1.21% 1.23% 0.90% 0.90%
2.15% 2.36% 2.42% 2.33% 2.48%
53.26% 52.98% 52.88% 55.50% 57.96%
95.14% 96.66% 96.39% 93.15% 93.46%
136.10% 139.39% 142.77% 142.64% 137.78%
16.32% 13.40% 13.47% 13.46% 13.47%
20.00% 19.31% 18.97% 16.67% 20.38%
117.00% 213.90% 222.90% 403.20% 373.80%
0.43% 0.70% 1.00% 1.47% 1.64%
0.38% 0.30% 0.42% 0.46% 0.60%
0.55% 0.40% 0.55% 0.62% 0.80%
0.13% 0.21% 0.21% 0.10% 0.24%
9.14% 7.86% 8.61% 10.10% N/A
8.65% 8.55% 9.37% 11.30% 10.90%
9.14% 8.64% 9.63% 12.10% 11.80%
12.01% 11.86% 11.24% 13.40% 13.00%

(1) Information for the 2017 fiscal year includes the operation of BNC from its acquisition date of June 16, 2017 and reflects approximately 27.7 million shares of
Pinnacle Common Stock issued in connection the BNC merger and approximately 3.2 million shares issued in connection with a public offering consummated in

January 2017.

(2) Information for the 2016 fiscal year includes the operations of Avenue from its acquisition date of July 1, 2016 and reflects approximately 3.8 million shares of
Pinnacle Common Stock issued in connection with the Avenue merger.
(3) Information for the 2016 fiscal year includes our additional 19% membership interest in BHG which we acquired in March 2016 and reflects approximately

861,000 shares of Pinnacle Common Stock issued in connection with the additional investment in BHG.

(4) Information for the 2015 fiscal year includes the operations of CapitalMark from its acquisition date of July 31, 2015 and Magna from its acquisition date of
September 1, 2015 and reflects approximately 3.3 million shares and 1.4 million shares of Pinnacle Common Stock issued in connection with the CapitalMark

merger and the Magna merger, respectively.

(5) Information for 2015 fiscal year includes our 30% membership interest in BHG which we acquired in February 2015.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following is a discussion of our financial condition at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and our results of operations for each of the
years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017. The purpose of this discussion is to focus on information about our financial
condition and results of operationswhich isnot otherwise apparent from the consolidated financial statements. Thefollowing discussion
and analysis should be read along with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere herein.

Overview

General. Our fully diluted net income per common share for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $2.70 compared to fully diluted
net income per common share of $2.91 and $2.52 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. At December 31, 2017,
loans had increased by $7.18 billion as compared to December 31, 2016. The comparability of our financial condition and performance
has been impacted by the acquisitions we have completed in the last three years and passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in December
2017, in each case as discussed below.

Acquisitions. We acquired a 30% membership interest in Bankers Healthcare Group, LLC (BHG) on February 1, 2015 for $75.0 million
in cash and acquired an additional 19% membership interest in BHG on March 1, 2016 for $74.1 million in cash and 860,470 shares of
Pinnacle Financial common stock, with afair value of $39.9 million on the date of the acquisition.

We acquired CapitalMark Bank and Trust (CapitalMark) on July 31, 2015 and Magna Bank (Magna) on September 1, 2015. We acquired
AvenueFinancia Holdings, Inc. and itswholly owned bank subsidiary, Avenue Bank (together, Avenue), on July 1, 2016. At theacquisition
date, CapitalMark's net assets were fair valued at $73.2 million, including loans of $857.5 million and deposits valued at $953.2 million.
At the acquisition date, Magna's net assets were fair valued at $49.1 million, including loans of $440.7 million and deposits valued at
$452.7 million. At the acquisition date, Avenue's net assets were fair valued at $81.7 million, including loans of $952.5 million and
deposits valued at $966.7 million. These acquisitions further expanded our franchise within our Tennessee market.

Weacquired BNC Bancorp anditswholly owned bank subsidiary, Bank of North Carolina(together, BNC), onJune16, 2017. At acquisition
date, BNC's net assets were preliminarily fair valued at $601.8 million, including loans valued at $5.60 billion and deposits valued at
$6.21 hillion. This acquisition expanded our footprint into the Carolinas and Virginia.

Each holder of BNC common stock (including restricted shares) received 0.5235 shares of Pinnacle Financial's common stock for each
share of BNC common stock held by each shareholder on the closing date. We issued 27,687,100 shares of common stock and paid cash
consideration of approximately $129,000, related to fractional shares, to the BNC shareholders. Included in the common stock issued
were 136,890 assumed shares of unvested restricted stock that will be released to the recipients consistent with their original contractual
terms. Thefair value of these awardswas $9.2 million, with $5.4 million attributabl e to precombination services provided by therecipients
prior to the merger, and is a component of merger consideration.

Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act was signed into law. Among other items, the Tax Cuts and
JobsAct reduced the corporate statutory tax rate from 35% to 21%. As aresult of such decrease, we recognized acharge of $31.5 million
in 2017 resulting from the revaluation of our deferred tax assets.

Under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the qualified performance-based compensation exception to Section 162(m) that generally provided
for the continued deductibility of performance-based compensation was repeal ed, effective for tax years commencing on or after January
1, 2018. Accordingly, commencing with our fiscal year ending December 31, 2018, compensation to our named executive officersin
excess of $1,000,000 not awarded as performance-based compensation prior to November 2, 2017 will generally not be deductible, which
will likely partially offset the expected reduction in our income tax expense resulting from the rate cut under the Tax Cuts and JobsAct.

Results of operations. Our net interest income increased to $543.3 million for 2017 compared to $325.0 million for 2016 and $236.6
million for 2015. The net interest margin (the ratio of net interest income to average earning assets) for 2017 was 3.76% compared to
3.70% and 3.72% for 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Our provision for loan losseswas $23.7 million for 2017 compared to $18.3 million in 2016 and $9.2 million in 2015. Provision expense
for the year ended December 31, 2017 when compared to the comparable periodsin 2016 and 2015 was impacted by organic loan growth
and by charge-offsrealized in our consumer portfolio, primarily related to non-prime automobile loans. Our net charge-offs were $15.4
million during 2017 compared to $24.8 million in 2016 and $11.1 million in 2015.

Our alowance for loan losses as a percentage of total |oans decreased from 0.70% at December 31, 2016 to 0.43% at December 31, 2017.
The decrease in the allowance as a percentage of total loansis primarily attributable to the acquired BNC |oan portfolio being accounted
for at itsfair value as of the merger date. For the BNC loan portfolio, a preliminary fair value discount of $181.4 million was determined
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as of the acquisition date. At December 31, 2017, the remaining fair value discount for all acquired portfolios (inclusive of BNC) was
$163.5 million. For loans acquired in connection with our acquisitions, the calculation of the allowance for loan losses subsequent to the
acquisition date is consistent with that utilized for legacy Pinnacle Financia loans. Our accounting policy isto compare the computed
allowance for loan losses on purchased |oans to the remaining fair value adjustment at the individual 1oan level. Generally the fair value
adjustments are expected to accrete to interest income over the remaining expected life of the underlying loan agreements and decrease
proportionately with the related loan balance. However, if the computed allowance is greater than the remaining fair value adjustment,
the excessisadded to the allowancefor |oan losses by a provision for loan losses. Additional provisioning for purchased portfoliosresults
from credit deterioration on the individual l1oan or from increased borrowings on loans and lines that existed as of the acquisition date.
Should aloan with aremaining fair val ue discount be paid off prior to maturity, the remaining fair value discount isrecognized asinterest
income.

Noninterest income for 2017 compared to 2016 increased by $23.9 million, or 19.8%. The increase in noninterest income from 2016 to
2017 was partially due to an increase in income from our investment in BHG, which was $38.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2017 compared to $31.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 and also the result of our acquisition of BNC. These increases
were partially offset by the $8.3 million pre-tax loss on the sale of investment securities we recognized in the fourth quarter of 2017.
Noninterest income for 2016 compared to 2015 increased by $34.5 million, or 39.8%, which was primarily attributable to our increased
equity method investment in BHG. The growth unrelated to our BHG investment in both comparable periods was attributable to our
overall increase in our geographic footprint in those periods as well as increased transaction accounts, increased production in our fee-
based products such as investments, insurance and trust and net gains on the sale of mortgage loans. The year-over-year growth in net
gains on the sale of mortgage loans in both periods was attributed to both an increase in the number of mortgage originators as well as
the positive impact of the low interest rate environment on mortgage production.

Noninterest expense for 2017 compared to 2016 increased by $130.3 million, or 55.1%, primarily due to an increase in saaries and
employeebenefitsexpense. Salariesand empl oyeebenefitsexpenseincreased $68.8 million, resulting fromannual meritincreasesawarded
in the first quarter of 2017 as well as the increase in our associate base primarily as a result of our mergers with Avenue and BNC. We
also realized increases in equipment and occupancy costs due to our merger with BNC. Additionally, merger expense accounted for
approximately $31.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $11.7 million of merger-related expense during the same
period in 2016. Merger expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 also includes the costs of technical conversionswhich
were completed in the third quarter of 2016 for Avenue and in the fourth quarter of 2017 for BNC. Associate related expenses such as
retention bonuses are also included in merger-related expenses. We expect merger-related charges to continue to be incurred inrelation
to our merger with BNC through thefirst part of 2018 aswefinalize the cultural and technical integrations. Noninterest expense for 2016
compared to 2015 increased by $65.4 million, or 38.3%, primarily due to an increase in salaries and employee benefits expense. Salaries
and employee benefits expense increased $34.9 million, resulting from annual merit increases awarded in the first quarter of 2016 and
theincreasein our associate base. We al so realized increasesin equi pment and occupancy costs due to our mergers. Additionally, merger-
related expense accounted for approximately $11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $4.8 million of merger-
related expense during the same period in 2015. Merger expense during 2016 includes legal costs incurred associated with the Avenue
merger to defend ourselves and Avenue's directors in a shareholder suit as well asinvestigation and other legal costs associated with a
former director's alleged improper trading in Avenue common stock. Merger expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
aso includes the costs of technical conversions which were completed in the fourth quarter of 2015 for Magna, in the first quarter of
2016 for CapitalMark and in the third quarter of 2016 for Avenue. Associate rel ated expenses such as retention bonuses are also included
in merger-related expenses.

The number of full-time equivalent employeesincreased from 1,058.5 at December 31, 2015t0 1,179.5 at December 31, 2016 and 2,132.0
at December 31, 2017.

During the three years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, Pinnacle Financial recorded income tax expense of $124.0 million,
$64.2 million and $47.6 million, respectively. The impact of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act are included in income tax expense for the year
ended December 31, 2017 pursuant to which our deferred tax assets were revalued at new enacted Federal tax rates resulting in acharge
of $31.5 million.

Pinnacle Financia'seffective tax ratefor the yearsended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, was 41.6%, 33.5% and 33.3%, respectively,
and differs from the combined federal and state income tax statutory rate primarily due to our investments in bank-qualified municipal
securities, tax benefits from our real estate investment trust subsidiary, participation in Tennessee's Community Investment Tax Credit
(CITC) program, tax benefits associated with bank-owned life insurance and tax savings from our captive insurance subsidiary, offsetin
part by the limitation on deductibility of meals and entertainment expense and certain merger-related expenses. Included in income tax
expense for the quarter ended December 31, 2017 was a $31.5 million charge related to the reval uation of deferred tax assets resulting
from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. We also recorded tax benefits associated with our equity-based compensation program pursuant to the
adoption of ASU 2016-09 for the year ended December 31, 2017, resulting in the recognition of $5.4 million of tax benefits. Prior to the
adoption of ASU 2016-09, these tax benefits were recorded in the statement of stockholders' equity directly to additional paid-in-capital.
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Our efficiency ratio (the ratio of noninterest expense to the sum of net interest income and noninterest income) was 53.3%, 53.0% and
52.9% for the three years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The efficiency ratio measures the amount of expense
that isincurred to generate adollar of revenue.

Net income for 2017 was $174.0 million compared to $127.2 million in net incomein 2016 and $95.5 million in 2015. Fully-diluted net
income per common share was $2.70 for 2017 compared to $2.91 for 2016 and $2.52 for 2015. Net income and fully-diluted net income
per common share in 2017 were each significantly and negatively impacted by the $31.5 million charge resulting from the revaluation
of our deferred tax assets following the passage of the Tax Cuts and JobsAct.

Financial Condition. Our loan balances increased by $7.18 billion during 2017 compared to an increase of $1.91 billion in 2016. The
increasein our outstanding loan balances during both periodsis primarily the result of our acquisitions, aswell asthe continued economic
growth in our core markets, increases in the number of relationship advisors and increased focus on attracting new customers to our
company.

Total depositsincreased from $8.76 billion at December 31, 2016 to $16.45 billion at December 31, 2017. Within our deposits, the ratio
of core funding to total deposits decreased dlightly from 81.6% at December 31, 2016 to 77.6% at December 31, 2017.

We believe we have hired experienced relationship managers that have significant client portfolios and longstanding reputations within
the communities we serve. As such, we believe they will attract more relationship managers to our firm as well as loans and deposits
from new and existing small-and middle-market clients as the economiesin our principal markets continue to expand.

Capital and Liquidity. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, our capital ratios, including our bank's capital ratios, exceeded regulatory
minimum capital requirements and those necessary to be considered well-capitalized under applicable federal regulations. From time to
time, we may be required to support the capital needs of our bank subsidiary. At December 31, 2017, we had approximately $64.9 million
of cash at the holding company which could be used to support our bank. We believe we have various capital raising techniques available
to usto provide for the capital needs of our bank, including an established line of credit with another bank that can be utilized to provide
up to $75 million of additional capital support to Pinnacle Bank, if needed. In January 2017, we completed a public offering of 3.22
million shares of our common stock in a transaction that resulted in net proceeds to us, after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and other expenses payable by us, of approximately $191.2 million. We contributed $185.0 million of these net proceeds
to our bank subsidiary.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The accounting principles we follow and our methods of applying these principles conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles and with general practices within the banking industry. In connection with the application of those principles, we have made
judgments and estimates which, in the case of the determination of our allowance for |oan losses, the valuation of other real estate owned,
the assessment of theval uation of deferred tax assetsand the assessment of impairment of intangibles, hasbeen critical tothedetermination
of our financial position and results of operations.

Allowance for Loan Losses (allowance). Our management assessesthe adequacy of the allowance prior to the end of each calendar quarter.
This assessment includes procedures to estimate the allowance and test the adequacy and appropriateness of the resulting balance. The
level of the allowance is based upon management's eval uation of theloan portfolio, loan loss experience, asset quality trends, known and
inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrowers' ahility to repay the loan (including the timing of future
payment), the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, industry and peer
bank loan quality indications and other pertinent factors, including regulatory recommendations. The level of allowance maintained is
believed by management to be adequate to absorb probable lossesinherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. The alowance
is increased by provisions charged to expense and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries of amounts previously charged-off.
Allocation of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in management's
judgment, is deemed to be uncollectible.

Our allowance for loan loss assessment methodol ogy was modified during the year ended December 31, 2017 to (i) extend the lookback
period from 24 quarters to a period beginning January 1, 2006 to better capture the risk associated with this extended economic cycle,
(i) eliminate the use of risk ratings in the calculation of the loss rate and instead focus on loss rate by loan type and (iii) expand the
economic variablesusedinthequalitativeassessment to incorporate our expanded footprint. Wea so €liminated the use of alossemergence
period in light of the minimal population of losses available to evaluate that were previously being extrapolated to the full population of
loans, and shifted the focus of our analysis to more of a quantitative model. There was no material impact on the adoption of the change
in the allowance for loan loss assessment methodol ogy.
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Our alowance for loan losses is composed of the result of two independent analyses pursuant to the provisions of ASC 450-20, Loss
Contingencies and ASC 310-10-35, Receivables. The ASC 450-20 analysisis intended to quantify the inherent risksin our performing
loan portfolio. The ASC 310-10-35 analysis includes aloan-by-loan analysis of impaired loans, including those reported as nonaccrual,
troubled-debt restructurings and purchase credit impaired.

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, we also consider the results of our ongoing independent loan review process. We undertake
this process both to ascertain those loans in the portfolio with elevated credit risk and to assist in our overall evaluation of the risk
characteristics of the entire loan portfolio. Our loan review process includes the judgment of management, independent internal loan
reviewers, and reviews that may have been conducted by third-party reviewers, primarily regulatory examiners. Weincorporate relevant
loan review resultsin the allowance.

The ASC 450-20 component of the allowance for 0an |osses begins with a historical lossrate cal culation for each loan pool with similar
risk characteristics. The losses realized over arolling four-quarter cycle are utilized to determine an annual loss rate for each loan pool
for each quarter-end in our look-back period. The look-back period in our loss rate cal culation begins with January 2006, as we believe
the period from January 1, 2006 to present ismore representative of thiseconomic cycle. Thelossratesfor each category arethen averaged
and applied to the end of period loan portfolio balances to determine estimated losses. The loss rates provide a quantitative estimate of
credit losses inherent in our end of period loan portfolio based on our actual loss experience.

Theestimated |oan lossallocation for all |oan segmentsal so considersmanagement'sestimate of probablelossesfor anumber of qualitative
factors that have not been considered in the quantitative analysis. The qualitative categories and the measurements used to quantify the
risks within each of these categories are subjectively selected by management, but measured by objective measurements period over
period. Thedatafor each measurement may be obtained frominternal or external sources. Thecurrent period measurementsare eval uated
and assigned a factor commensurate with the current level of risk relative to past measurements over time. The resulting factor is applied
to the non-impaired loan portfolio. Thisamount represents estimated probable inherent credit losses which exist, but have not yet been
identified either in our risk rating or impairment process, as of the balance sheet date, and is based upon quarterly trend assessmentsin
portfolio concentrations, policy exceptions, economic conditions, associate retention, independent loan review results, collateral
considerations, credit quality, competition and regul atory requirements, enterprisewiderisk assessments, and peer group credit quality. The
qualitative allowance allocation, as determined by the processes noted above, is increased or decreased for each loan segment based on
the assessment of these various qualitative factors.

The allowance for loan losses for purchased loans is calculated similarly to that utilized for our legacy loans. Our accounting policy is
to compare the computed allowance for loan losses for purchased loans to any remaining fair value adjustment on aloan-by-loan basis.
If the computed allowance is greater than the remaining fair value adjustment, the excess is added to the allowance for loan losses by a
provision for loan losses.

The ASC 450-20 portion of the allowance also includes a small unallocated component. We believe that the unallocated amount is
warranted for inherent factors that cannot be practically assigned to individual loan categories, such astheimprecision in the overall loss
allocation measurement process, the subjectivity risk of not considering al relevant environmental categories and rel ated measurements
and imprecision in our credit risk ratings process. The appropriateness of the unallocated component of the allowance is assessed each
quarter end based upon changesin the overall business environment not otherwise captured.

The impaired loan alowance is determined pursuant to ASC 310-10-35. Loans are impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probablethat wewill be unableto collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of theloan agreement. Collection
of al amounts due according to the contractual terms means collecting all interest and principal payments of aloan as scheduled in the
loan agreement. This evaluation isinherently subjective asit requires material estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash
flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change. Loan losses are charged off when
management believes that the full collectability of the loan is unlikely. A loan may be partially charged-off after a "confirming event”
has occurred which serves to validate that full repayment pursuant to the terms of the loan is unlikely.

An impairment allowance isrecognized if the fair value of the loan isless than the recorded investment in the loan (recorded investment
in the loan is the principal balance plus any accrued interest, net of deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or discount).
The impairment is recognized through the provision for loan losses and is a component of the allowance. Loans that are impaired are
recorded at the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, or if the loan is collateral
dependent, at the fair value of the collateral, less estimated disposal costs. If theloan is collateral dependent, the principal balance of the
loan is charged-off in an amount egqual to the impairment measurement. The fair value of collateral dependent loansis derived primarily
from collateral appraisals performed by independent third-party appraisers. Management believesit follows appropriate accounting and
regulatory guidance in determining impairment and accrual status of impaired loans. This analysisis completed for all individual loans
greater than $500,000. The resulting all owance percentage by segment adjusted for specific trendsidentified, if applicable, isthen applied
to the remaining population of impaired loans.



Pursuant to the guidance set forth in ASU 2011-02, A Creditor's Determination of Whether a Restructuring is a Troubled Debt
Restructuring, the above impairment methodology is also applied to those loans identified as troubled debt restructurings.

We then test the resulting allowance by comparing the balance in the allowance to historical trends and industry and peer information.
Our management then evaluates the result of the procedures performed, including the results of our testing, and decides on the
appropriateness of the balance of the allowance in its entirety. The audit committee of our board of directors approves the allowance for
loan loss policy annually and reviews the methodology and approves the resultant allowance prior to the filing of quarterly and annual
financial information.

While our policies and procedures used to estimate the allowance for loan losses, aswell asthe resultant provision for loan losses charged
to operations, are considered adequate by management and are reviewed from time to time by our regulators, they are necessarily
approximate and inherently imprecise. There are factors beyond our control, such as conditions in the local, national, and international
economy, alocal real estate market or particular industry conditions which may materially negatively impact our asset quality and the
adequacy of our allowance for loan losses and thus the resulting provision for loan |osses.

Other Real Estate Owned. Other real estate owned (OREQO), which consists of properties obtained through foreclosure or through deed
inlieu of foreclosure in satisfaction of loans, isreported at fair value based on appraised value less selling costs, estimated as of the date
acquired, with any lossrecognized asacharge-off through theallowancefor |oanlosses. Additional OREO lossesfor subsequent downward
valuation adjustments are determined on a specific property basis and are included as a component of other noninterest expense along
with holding costs. The fair value of other real estate owned is derived primarily from independent appraisers. Our interna policies
generaly require OREO properties to be appraised every twelve months. Any net gains or losses on disposal redlized at the time of
disposal arereflected, net, in noninterest expense. Significant judgments and complex estimates are required in estimating the fair value
of other real estate owned, and the period of time within which such estimates can be considered current is significantly shortened during
periods of market volatility. As a result, the net proceeds realized from sales transactions could differ significantly from appraisals,
comparable sales, and other estimates used to determine the fair value of other real estate owned.

Impairment of Intangible Assets. Long-lived assets, including purchased intangibl e assets subject to amortization, such asour core deposit
intangible asset, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value
of the asset. Assetsto be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount
or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. There are no such assets to be disposed of at December 31, 2017.

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually and more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be
impaired. ASC 350, Intangibles— Goodwill and Other, providesan entity the optiontofirst perform aqualitative assessment to determine
whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity does a qualitative
assessment and determines it is necessary, or if a qualitative assessment is not performed, it is required to perform a two-step goodwill
impairment test to identify potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for that
reporting unit (if any). If, based on a qualitative assessment, an entity determines that the fair value of areporting unit is more than its
carrying amount, the two-step goodwill impairment test is not required. The results of our qualitative assessment as of September 30,
2017, our annual assessment date, indicated that the fair value of our reporting unit was more than its carrying value, and accordingly,
the two-step goodwill impairment test was not performed.

Should our common stock price decline or other impairment indicators become known, additional impairment testing of goodwill may
be required. Should it be determined in afuture period that the goodwill has becomeimpaired, then a charge to earnings will be recorded
in the period such determination is made. While we believe that the assumptions utilized in our testing were appropriate, they may not
reflect actual outcomes that could occur. Specific factors that could negatively impact the assumptions used include the following: a
changein the control premium being realized in the market or ameaningful change in the number of mergers and acquisitions occurring;
the amount of expense savings that may be realized in an acquisition scenario; significant fluctuations in our asset/liability balances or
the composition of our balance sheet; a change in the overall valuation of the stock market, specifically bank stocks; performance of
Southeast U.S. Banks; and Pinnacle Financial's performancerelativeto peers. Changing these assumptions, or any other key assumptions,
could have amaterial impact on the amount of goodwill impairment, if any.



Results of Operations

The following is a summary of our results of operations for 2017, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands except per share data):

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Noninterest income

Noninterest expense

Net income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

Basic net income per common share
Diluted net income per common share

2017-2016 2016-2015
Years ended Percent Year ended Percent
December 31, Increase December 31, Increase
2017 2016 (Decrease) 2015 (Decrease)
$ 636,138 $ 363,609 7495% $ 255,169 42.50%
92,831 38,615 140.40% 18,537 108.31%
543,307 324,994 67.17% 236,632 37.34%
23,664 18,328 29.11% 9,188 99.47%
519,643 306,666 69.45% 227,444 34.83%
144,903 121,003 19.75% 86,530 39.84%
366,560 236,285 55.13% 170,877 38.28%
297,986 191,383 55.70% 143,098 33.74%
124,007 64,159 93.28% 47,589 34.82%
$ 173979 $ 127,224 36.75% $ 95,509 33.21%
$ 273 $ 2.96 (7.77%) $ 2.58 14.73%
$ 270 $ 291 (7.22%) $ 2.52 15.48%

Net Interest Income. Net interest income represents the amount by which interest earned on various earning assets exceeds interest paid
on deposits and other interest bearing liabilities and is the most significant component of our revenues. For the year ended December 31,
2017, we recorded net interest income of approximately $543.3 million, which resulted in a net interest margin of 3.76%. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, we recorded net interest income of approximately $325.0 million, which resulted in a net interest margin of
3.70%. For the year ended December 31, 2015, we recorded net interest income of approximately $236.6 million, which resulted in anet

interest margin of 3.72%.



Thefollowing table setsforth the amount of our average balances, interest income or interest expensefor each category of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the average interest rate for total interest-earning assets and total interest-bearing liabilities, net

interest spread and net interest margin for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2017 (in thousands):

Interest-earning assets:
Loans®

Securities:

Taxable

Tax-exempt @

Federal funds sold and other
Total interest-earning assets
Nonearning assets:
Intangible assets

Other nonearning assets

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits:
Interest checking

Savings and money market
Time deposits

Total interest-bearing deposits

Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Subordinated debt and other
borrowings

Total interest-bearing liabilities
Noninterest-bearing deposits

Total deposits and interest- bearing
ligbilities

Other liabilities

Stockholders' equity

Net interest income

Net interest spread ©

Net interest margin @
()
@)
©)

Average balances of nonperforming loans are included in average loan balances.
Yields based on the carrying value of those tax exempt instruments are shown on afully tax equivalent basis.
Yieldsrealized on interest-bearing assets less the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. The net interest spread calculation excludes the impact

2017 2016 2015
Average Rates/ Average Rates/ Average Rates/
Balances Interest  Yields Balances Interest  Yields Balances Interest  Yields
$12,254,790 $578,286 479% $ 7,586,346 $335,735 451% $ 5,394,775 $232,847 4.39%
1,724,612 39,060 2.26% 937,710 19,179 2.05% 721,829 15,060 2.09%
488,478 13,712 3.76% 201,842 6,014 4.00% 167,091 5,783 4.63%
335,491 5,080 1.51% 293,542 2,681 0.91% 223,732 1,479 0.66%
14,803,371 636,138 4.38% 9,019,440 363,609 4.06% 6,507,427 255,169 3.96%
1,273,577 509,899 315,366
939,269 495,554 310,628
$17,016,217 $10,024,893 $ 7,133,421
$ 2,328,350 $ 11,261 048% $ 1,464,671 $ 4,140 0.28% $ 1,149,772 $ 2,487 0.22%
5,455,607 32,844 0.60% 3,426,842 14,289 0.42% 2,298,746 7,701 0.34%
1,765,089 15,479 0.88% 777,343 5,489 0.71% 541,766 3,021 0.56%
9,549,046 59,584 0.62% 5,668,856 23,918 0.42% 3,990,284 13,209 0.33%
119,055 406 0.34% 75,981 185 0.24% 68,037 138 0.20%
788,237 12,399 1.57% 481,711 4,136 0.86% 362,668 1,175 0.32%
420,790 20,442 4.86% 243905 10,376 4.25% 136,888 4,015 2.93%
10,877,128 92,831 0.85% 6,470,453 38,615 0.60% 4557,877 18,537 0.41%
3,331,741 — 0.00% 2,179,398 — 0.00% 1,606,432 — 0.00%
14,208,869 92,831 0.65% 8,649,851 38,615 0.45% 6,164,309 18,537 0.30%
30,218 31,349 19,905
2,777,130 1,343,693 949,207
$17,016,217 $10,024,893 $ 7,133,421
$543,307 $324,994 $236,632
3.53% 3.46% 3.55%
3.76% 3.70% 3.72%

of demand deposits. Had the impact of demand deposits been included, the net interest spread for the year ended December 31, 2017 would have
been 3.73% compared to a net interest spread for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 of 3.61% and 3.66%, respectively.
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period.

Net interest margin is the result of net interest income cal culated on a tax-equivalent basis divided by average interest earning assets for the

For the year ended December 31, 2017, our net interest spread was 3.53%, while the net interest margin was 3.76% compared to a net
interest spread of 3.46% for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 3.55% for the year ended December 31, 2015, and a net interest
margin of 3.70% and 3.72%, respectively. Although our net interest margin was positively impacted by increasesin earning assets, these
increases were partially offset by increasesin our total funding costs. During the year ended December 31, 2017, total funding rates were
morethanthoseratesfor theyear ended December 31, 2016 by 20 basis pointsand were morethan thoseratesfor the year ended December
31, 2015 by 35 basis points. The net increase was impacted by our acquisitions astheir deposit rates were higher, interest rate increases
and increased FHLB Cincinnati borrowings. Increased levels of on balance sheet liquidity also negatively impacted our net interest

margin in 2017.
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The expansion of our earning asset yields was driven in part by the impact of Federa funds rate increases throughout 2017, which
positively impacted our floating and variable rate |oan and investment portfolios. With our expected continued growth, we anticipate our
net interest income will likely increase over the next several quarters. Our loan yields grew only sightly between 2017 and 2016 as the
competition for quality loans continues to be intense and the market dictates the rate necessary in order to grow volumes. The application
of fair value accounting on the BNC accounts we acquired al so positively impacted our net interest margin in 2017, but this should lessen
in future periods.

We continue to deploy various asset liability management strategies to manage our risk to interest rate fluctuations. We believe our net
interest margin should remain relatively stable in 2018. Although the anticipated rise in interest rates should be beneficial to us, loan
pricing for creditworthy borrowersis very competitivein our markets and has limited our ability to increase pricing on new and renewed
loans over thelast couple of years and the tax impact of purchase accounting on our net interest income should decreasein future periods.
We anticipate that this challenging competitive environment will continuein 2018 and it isunclear what impact the reduction in corporate
tax rates under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act will have on the interest rates we charge for loans or pay on deposits though we believeit will
increase competition. However, we believe our net interest income should increasein 2018 compared to 2017 primarily dueto anincrease
in average earning asset volumes, primarily loans, as well asthe incremental amounts attributable for BNC. We anticipate funding these
increased earning assets by continuing to grow our core deposits, with wholesale and other forms of noncore funding limited to that
required to fund the shortfal, if any.

Rate and Volume Analysis. Net interest income increased by $218.3 million between the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017
and by $88.4 million between the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016. The following is an analysis of the changesin our net
interest income comparing the changes attributabl e to rates and those attributable to volumes (in thousands):

2017 Compared to 2016 2016 Compared to 2015
Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to
Rate Volume Net Rate Volume Net
Interest-earning assets:
Loans $ 26,745 $ 215,806 $ 242551 $ 6,794 $ 96,093 $ 102,887
Securities:
Taxable 2,901 16,980 19,881 (341) 4,459 4,118
Tax-exempt (1,837) 9,535 7,698 (1,154) 1,385 231
Federal funds sold 1,896 503 2,399 660 543 1,203
Total interest-earning assets 29,705 242,824 272,529 5,959 102,480 108,439
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits:
Interest checking 3,942 3,179 7,121 874 779 1,653
Savings and money market 8,326 10,229 18,555 2,381 4,207 6,588
Time deposits 2,225 7,765 9,990 993 1,475 2,468
Total deposits 14,493 21,173 35,666 4,248 6,461 10,709
Securities sold under agreementsto
repurchase 99 122 221 30 17 47
Federal Home L oan Bank advances 4,693 3,570 8,263 2,296 665 2,961
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 2,048 8,018 10,066 2,604 3,757 6,361
Total interest-bearing liabilities 21,333 32,883 54,216 9,176 10,900 20,078
Net interest income $ 8372 $ 209,941 $ 218,313 $ (3217) $ 91,580 $ 88,361

Changes in net interest income are attributed to either changes in average balances (volume change) or changes in average rates (rate
change) for earning assets and sources of funds on which interest is received or paid. Volume changeis calculated as change in volume
timesthe previousrate while rate changeis changein rate timesthe previous volume. The change attributed to rates and volumes (change
in rate times change in volume) is considered above as a change in volume.
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Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses represents a charge to earnings necessary to establish an allowance for loan
losses that, in management's evaluation, we believe to be adequate to provide coverage for the inherent losses on outstanding loans. The
provision for loan losses amounted to approximately $23.7 million, $18.3 million, and $9.2 million for the years ended December 31,
2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively.

Impacting the provision for loan losses in any accounting period are several factors including the change in outstanding loan balances,
the level of charge-offs and recoveries, the changes in the amount of impaired loans, results of regulatory examinations, credit quality
comparison to peer banks, the industry at large, economic conditions both in our market areas and more broadly, and, ultimately, the
results of our quarterly assessment of the inherent risks of our loan portfolio including past |oan |oss experience.

Provision expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 has increased as compared to 2016 and continued to be negatively impacted
due to charge-offs realized in our consumer portfolio, primarily related to non-prime automobile loans. Provision expense for the year
ended December 31, 2016 increased as compared to 2015, primarily due to increased charge-offs in our consumer portfolio, primarily
related to non-prime automobile |oans, although the overall amount of the allowance declined. The balance of this portfolio was $10.7
at December 31, 2017 compared to $30.0 at December 31, 2016. We expect the percentage of our loan portfolio represented by automobile
loans will continue to decrease in 2018.

Our alowancefor loan lossesis adjusted to an amount deemed appropriate to adequately cover probablelossesin theloan portfolio based
on our alowance for loan loss methodology. Our allowance for 1oan |osses as a percentage of |oans decreased from 0.70% at December
31, 2016 to 0.43% at December 31, 2017, primarily as a result of the acquired BNC loan portfolio being recorded at fair value at the
acquisition date, thus no allowance for loan losses is assigned to these loans as of the date of acquisition. An allowance for loan losses
isrecordedfor purchasedloansthat haveexperienced credit deterioration subsequent to acquisition or increasesin balancesoutstanding. As
of December 31, 2017, net loans included a net fair value discount of $163.5 million. For the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, the net fair value discount changed as follows:

Accretable Nonaccretable

Yield® Yield® Total
December 31, 2015 $ (23212) $ (4,143) $ (27,355)
Acquisitions (27,036) (812) (27,848)
Y ear-to-date accretion/settlement 19,884 1,322 21,206
December 31, 2016 $ (30,364) $ (3633) $ (33,997)
Acquisitions (149,116) (32,314) (181,430)
Year-to-date accretion/settlement 47,478 4,410 51,888
December 31, 2017 $ (132,002) $ (31,537) $ (163,539)

@ The accretable yield will be recorded as a component of interest income using the level-yield method based on the life of the underlying loans.
@ The nonaccretable yield will be reduced as purchase credit impaired loans are settled.

Based upon our eval uation of theloan portfolio, we believe the allowance for loan | osses to be adequate to absorb our estimate of inherent
losses existing in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2017. While our policies and procedures used to estimate the allowance for loan
losses, aswell astheresultant provision for loan |osses charged to operations, are considered adequate by management, they are necessarily
approximate and imprecise. There are factors beyond our control, such as conditionsin the local and national economy, local real estate
market or aparticular industry or borrower which may negatively impact, materially, our asset quality and the adequacy of our allowance
for loan losses and, thus, the resulting provision for loan losses.

Noninterest Income. Our noninterest income is composed of several components, some of which vary significantly between annual
periods. Service charges on deposit accounts and other noninterest income generally reflect our growth, whileinvestment services, fees
from the origination of mortgage loans, swap fees and gains or losses on the sale of securities will often reflect market conditions and
fluctuate from period to period.



The following is our noninterest income for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 (in thousands):

2017-2016 2016-2015
Years ended Percent Year ended Percent
December 31, Increase December 31, Increase
2017 2016 (Decrease) 2015 (Decrease)
Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts $ 20,033 $ 14,501 38.15% $ 12,746 13.77%
Investment services 14,315 10,757 33.08% 9,971 7.88%
Insurance sales commissions 7,405 5,309 39.48% 4,824 10.05%
Gains on mortgage loans sold, net 18,625 15,754 18.22% 7,669 105.42%
Investment gains (losses) on sales and impairments, net (8,265) 395 NM 552 (28.44%)
Trust fees 8,664 6,328 36.92% 5,461 15.88%
Income from equity method investment 37,958 31,403 20.87% 20,591 52.51%
Other noninterest income:
Interchange and other consumer fees 29,887 24,221 23.39% 18,214 32.98%
Bank-owned life insurance 7,945 3,547 123.99% 2,548 39.21%
Loan swap fees 1,795 3,865 (53.56%) 2,578 49.92%
Other noninterest income 6,541 4,923 32.87% 1,376 257.78%
Total other noninterest income 46,168 36,556 26.29% 24,716 47.90%
Tota noninterest income $ 144903 $ 121,003 19.75% $ 86,530 39.84%

The increase in service charges on deposit accounts in 2017 compared to 2016 and 2015 is primarily related to increased analysis fees
dueto an increase in the volume and number of commercial checking accounts when compared the prior periods, respectively.

Income from our wealth management groups (investments, insurance and trust) is also included in noninterest income. For theyear ended
December 31, 2017, commissionsand feesfrominvestment services at our financial advisory unit, Pinnacle Asset Management, adivision
of Pinnacle Bank were $14.3 million, compared to $10.8 million at December 31, 2016, reflecting increases in brokerage assets and the
increase in the value of the stock market. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Asset Management was receiving commissions and feesin
connection with approximately $3.3 billion in brokerage assets compared to $2.2 billion and $1.8 hillion, respectively, at December 31,
2016 and 2015. Insurance commissions were approximately $7.4 million during 2017 and $5.3 million during 2016 and $4.8 million
during 2015. Additionally, at December 31, 2017, our trust department was receiving fees on approximately $1.8 billion and $1.1 billion
of managed and custodied assets, respectively, compared to approximately $1.0 billion and $755 million at December 31, 2016 and $916
million and $675 million at December 31, 2015.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, investment gains (losses) on sales and impairments, net, represent an $8.3 million pre-tax loss
we recognized in order to reposition approximately $300 million of investment securities to provide our balance sheet more protection
from a potentialy flatter yield curve in the future. This loss also alowed us to capture an increased tax deduction in 2017 due to the
reduction in corporate tax rates beginning in 2018 as aresult of the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. We expect to fully recoup the
losses from these transactions during 2018.

Gains on mortgage loans sold, net, consists of fees from the origination and sale of residential mortgage loans. These mortgage fees are
for loans originated in our current markets that are subsequently sold to third-party investors. Substantially all of theseloan salestransfer
servicing rights to the buyer. Generally, mortgage origination feesincrease in lower interest rate environments and more robust housing
markets and decreasein rising interest rate environments and more challenging housing markets. M ortgage origination feeswill fluctuate
from quarter to quarter as the rate environment changes. Gains on mortgage loans sold, net, were $18.6 million, $15.8 million and $7.7
million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015. The increase between each of the periods is attributable
to our completed acquisitions and the strong economy in our markets, the continued low interest rate environment and additional
personnel in our production unit in 2017 when compared to 2016 and 2015. We hedge a portion of our mortgage pipeline as part of a
mandatory delivery program. Thereisastrong positive correlation between the size of the mortgage pipeline and the value of this hedge.
The hedgeisnot designated asahedge for GAAP purposes and, as such, changesinitsfair value arerecorded directly through theincome
statement. Therefore, the size of the outstanding mortgage pipeline at any reporting period will directly impact the amount of revenue
recorded for mortgage loans held for salein any one period and is cyclical in nature. During 2017, we realized an overall increase in the
volume of loans included in the mortgage pipeline as a result of our acquisitions, and therefore recognized a gain on the change in the
fair market value of the hedge. Decreases in the volume of loans included in the mortgage pipeline are likely to negatively impact the
gains we recognize as a result of this program.
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Income from equity-method investment is comprised solely of income from our 49% equity-method investment in BHG. We acquired
a30% investment during thefirst quarter of 2015 and subsequently increased our investment by 19% in the first quarter of 2016. Income
from thisequity-method investment was $38.0 million for theyear ended December 31, 2017 compared to $31.4 million and $20.6 million
for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Income from equity-method investment is recorded net of associated
expenses, including amortization expense associated with customer lists and other intangible assets of $3.3 million, $3.4 million and $1.3
million for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively. At December 31, 2017, there were $13.4 million of these
intangibleassetswhichwill beamortizedinlesser amountsover thenext 18years. Alsoincludedinincomefromequity-methodinvestment,
is accretion income associated with the fair valuation of certain of BHG's liabilities of $3.1 million and $2.5 million for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. No accretion income was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2015. At December
31, 2017, there were $10.3 million of these ligbilities which will be accreted into income in lesser amounts over the next 9 years.

During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank received $21.7 million,
$29.0 million and $7.2 million in dividends in the aggregate from BHG, which reduced the carrying amount of our investment in BHG
while earnings from BHG increase the carrying amount of our investment in BHG. Our proportionate share of earnings from BHG are
included in our consolidated tax return. Profits from intercompany transactions are eliminated. Earnings from BHG may fluctuate from
period-to-period.

As our ownership interest in BHG is 49%, we do not consolidate BHG's results of operations or financial position into our financia
statementsbut record thenet result of BHG'sactivitiesat our percentage ownershipinincomefromequity methodinvestment in noninterest
income. For theyear ended December 31, 2017, BHG reported $160.2 million in gross revenues compared to $136.7 million and $144.8
million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. The following discussion considers BHG's results of operations
for 2017, 2016 and 2015 prior to consideration of our ownership interest.

e Approximately $127.2 million, or 79.4%, of these revenues for the year ended December 31, 2017 related to gains on the sale
of commercial loans BHG had previously issued to doctor, dentist and other medical practices compared to $95.6 million, or
69.9%, for the year ended December 31, 2016 and $71.0 million, or 49.0%, for the year ended December 31, 2015. BHG refers
to thisactivity asitscore product. BHG typically fundsthese loansfrom cash reserves on its balance sheet. Subsequently, these
core product loans are sold with no recourse to BHG to a network of community banks and other financial institutions at a
premium to the par value of the loan. The purchaser may access a BHG cash reserve account of up to 3% of the loan balance
to support loan payments. BHG retains no servicing or other responsibilities related to the core product loan once sold. Asa
result, thisgain on sale premium represents BHG's compensati on for absorbing the coststo originatetheloan aswell asmarketing
expenses associated with maintaining its business model. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were $1.5 billion and $1.2
billion, respectively, in core product loans previously sold by BHG that were actively serviced by BHG's bank network of
purchasers.

e Traditionaly, BHG, at its sole option, may aso provide purchasers of these core product loans the ability to substitute the
acquired loan with another more recently-issued BHG medical practice |oan should the previously-acquired loan become at
least 90-days past due as to its monthly payments. This substitution is subject to the purchaser having adhered to the standards
of its purchase agreement with BHG. Additionally, all substitutions are subject to the approval by BHG's board of managers.
As aresult, the reacquired loans are deemed purchase credit impaired and recorded on BHG's balance sheet at the net present
value of the loan's anticipated cash flows. BHG will then initiate collection efforts and attempt to restore the reacquired loan
to performing status. During 2017 and 2016, BHG's substitution losses related to these activities totaled approximately $42.5
million and $23.4 million, respectively. As aresult, BHG maintained a liability as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 of $69.8
million and $45.9 million, respectively, that represents an estimate of the futureinherent losses for the outstanding core portfolio
that may be subject to future substitution.

e BHG will maintain loans on its balance sheet for a period of time prior to sale or transfer to a purchaser. BHG also has an
investment portfolio on which it earnsinterest and dividend income. Net interest income and fees associated with these activities
amounted to $19.6 million, $20.3 million and $18.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

» Additionaly, BHG will also refer loans to other financial institutions and, based an agreement with the institution, earn afee
for doing so. Typically, these are loans that BHG believes would either be classified as consumer-type loans rather than
commercia loans, fail to meet the credit underwriting standards of BHG but another institution will accept the loans or are to
borrowersin certain geographic locations where BHG has elected not to do business. For the years ended December 31, 2017,
2016 and 2015, BHG recognized fee income of $6.5 million, $10.0 million and $7.4 million, respectively, from these activities.
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Included in other noninterest income are interchange and other consumer fees, gains from bank-owned life insurance, swap fees earned
for the facilitation of derivative transactions for our clients and other items. Interchange revenues increased as a result of increased debit
and credit card transactions as compared to the comparable periodsin 2016 and 2015 resulting from both acquired and organic growth,
but was negatively impacted by the Durbin Amendment which were applicable to us beginning on July 1, 2017. We estimate that the
Durbin Amendment negatively impacted our noninterestincomeby approximately $4.0 millionin 2017. Other noninterest incomeincluded
changesin the cash surrender val ue of bank-owned lifeinsurance which was$7.9 million for theyear ended December 31, 2017 compared
to $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. The increase in earnings on these bank-owned life insurance policies resulted
primarily from the additional $202.3 million in bank-owned life insurance with terms similar to our existing policies which were added
upon acquisition of BNC. The assets that support these policies are administered by the lifeinsurance carriers and the income we receive
(i.e., increases or decreases in the cash surrender value of the policies) on these policies is dependent upon the returns the insurance
carriersare ableto earn on the underlying investments that support the policies. Earnings on these policies generally are not taxable. Loan
swap fees are also included in other noninterest income and decreased by $2.1 million when compared to the year ended December 31,
2016 and increased by $1.3 million between 2016 and 2015 as aresult of market demand for these productsin each of the respective the
rate environments. Other items included in other noninterest income include $3.0 million and $1.3 million of income from the sale of
Small Business Administration loans for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and $1.0 million and $925,000 of
income from the sale of other loans for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Noninterest Expense. The following isour noninterest expense for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 (in thousands):

2017-2016 2016-2015
Years ended Percent Year ended Percent
December 31, Increase December 31, Increase
2017 2016 (Decrease) 2015 (Decrease)
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits:
Sdaries $ 130,929 $ 83,164 57.43% $ 60,980 36.38%
Commissions 7,573 5,932 27.66% 5,594 6.04%
Cash and equity incentives 40,693 27,182 49.71% 22,222 22.32%
Employee benefits and other 30,467 24,541 24.15% 17,133 43.24%
Total salaries and employee benefits 209,662 140,819 48.89% 105,929 32.94%
Equipment and occupancy 54,092 35,073 54.23% 27,242 28.75%
Other real estate expense 1,079 395 173.16% (306) NM
Marketing and business development 8,321 6,536 27.31% 4,863 34.40%
Postage and supplies 5,736 3,929 45.99% 3,228 21.72%
Amortization of intangibles 8,816 4,281 105.93% 1,974 116.87%
Merger-related charges 31,843 11,747 171.07% 4,797 144.88%
Other noninterest expense:
Deposit related expenses 14,325 8,315 72.28% 5,173 60.74%
Lending related expenses 14,604 11,938 22.33% 7,635 56.36%
Investment sales expense 528 478 10.46% 403 18.61%
Trust expenses 743 838 (11.34%) 529 58.41%
FHLB restructuring — — NM 481 (100.00%)
Administrative and other expenses 16,811 11,936 40.84% 8,929 33.68%
Total other noninterest expense 47,011 33,505 40.31% 23,150 44.73%
Tota noninterest expense $ 366,560 $ 236,285 55.13% $ 170,877 38.28%

The increase in total salaries and employee benefits expense in 2017 over 2016 and 2015 is primarily the result of an increase in the
number of employeesin 2017 over 2016 and 2015. At December 31, 2017, our associate base had expanded to 2,132.0full-timeequivalent
associates as compared to 1,179.5 and 1,058.5 at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, primarily resulting from our acquisitions
in the respective periods. We expect salary and employee benefit expenseswill continue to rise as we continue to hire more experienced
bankers throughout our expanded footprint. We also expect salaries and benefits expense will increase in 2018 when compared to 2017
due to our increased associate base. We expect to realize the impact of the synergy case on our personnel expenses on the BNC merger
in the second quarter of 2018. In addition, as our total assets now exceed $20 hillion, we also expect our compliance costs and FDIC
insurance assessment expense will continue to increase.
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We believe that cash and equity incentives are a valuable tool in motivating an employee base that is focused on providing our clients
effective financial advice and increasing shareholder value. As a result, and unlike many other financial institutions, all of our non-
commissioned associates participate in our annual cash incentive plan with a minimum targeted bonus equal to 10% of each associate's
annual salary, and all of our associates participate in our equity compensation plans. Under the annual cash incentive plan, the targeted
level of incentive payments requires achievement of acertain soundness threshold and atargeted level of revenues and earnings (subject
to certain adjustments). To the extent that the soundness threshold is met and revenues and earnings are above or below the targeted
amount, the aggregate incentive payments are increased or decreased. Historically, we have paid between 0% and 125% of our targeted
incentives. In 2017, our cash incentives represented 105% of targeted incentive compensation compared to 90% in 2016 and 100% in
2015.

Also, included in employee benefits and other expense for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, were approximately
$16.6 million, $11.0 million and $7.3 million, respectively, of compensation expenses related to equity-based awards, for restricted
shares or restricted share units, including those with performance-based vesting criteria. We have not issued stock options since 2008.
Under our equity incentive plans, we provide abroad-based equity incentive program for all associates. We believe that equity incentives
provide avehicle for all associates to become meaningful shareholders of Pinnacle Financial over an extended period of time and create
a shareholder-centric culture throughout our organization. Our compensation expense associated with equity awards for 2017 increased
when compared to 2016 as a result of the additional associates we hired in 2017, primarily in connection with our acquisition of BNC.
We expect our compensati on expense associ ated with equity awardstoincreasein 2018 when compared to 2017 asaresult of our intention
to hire additional experienced financial advisorsin 2018. Employee benefits and other expenses include costs associated with our 401k
plan, health insurance, and payroll taxes.

Equipment and occupancy expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 was 54.2% greater than in 2016 which was 28.8% greater than
in 2015, primarily due to the locations acquired upon our mergers occurring in the respective periods. We intend to expand our footprint
by one location in each of the Knoxville, Chattanooga, and Memphis MSAs annually. In future periods, these expansions may lead to
higher equipment and occupancy expenses as well as related increases in salaries and benefits expense. There are no current plans to
expand our branch distribution in the Carolinas and Virginia.

Other real estate expensefor the year ended December 31, 2017 was $1.1 million compared to $395,000in 2016 and abenefit of $306,000
in 2015. Theincreasein 2017 is primarily related to the acquisition of $20.7 million in other real estate due to our merger with BNC.

Marketing and business development expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 was 27.3% greater than in 2016 which was 34.4%
greater than in 2015. The primary source of the increase in 2017 as compared to 2016 is related to our acquisition of BNC and the
associated marketing and business development expenses for the expanded footprint. Additionally, our relationship with a Memphis
professional sports franchise, which began in the latter half of 2016, wasin place for the full year in 2017, representing alarger expense
in 2017 when compared to 2016. This relationship is the primary source of the increase in 2016 as compared to 2015.

Noninterest expense related to the amortization of intangibles was $8.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $4.3
millionand $2.0 million for theyearsended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Theincreasein amortization expenseisattributable
to amortizing intangibles resulting from our acquisitions in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The following table outlines our amortizing
intangible assets and the related amortizable life of our acquired intangible assets:

Initial Amortizable  Remaining
Year Valuation Life Value
acquired (in millions) (in years) (in millions)
Core Deposit Intangible:
Mid-America 2007 $ 9.5 10 $ =
CapitalMark 2015 6.2 7 27
Magna Bank 2015 32 6 1.2
Avenue 2016 8.8 9 6.2
BNC 2017 48.1 10 439
Book of Business Intangible:
Miller Loughry Beach Insurance 2008 13 20 0.4
CapitalMark 2015 0.3 16 0.2
BNC Insurance 2017 0.4 20 0.4
BNC Trust 2017 19 10 18

52



These assets are being amortized on an accel erated basis which reflectsthe anticipated life of the underlying assets. Amortization expense
related to these assets is estimated to decrease from $10.5 million to $5.2 million per year over the next five years with lesser amounts
for the remaining amortization period.

During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, merger-related charges of $31.8 million, $11.7 million and $4.8
millionwereincurred associated with our acquisitionswhich occurredinthoserespective periods. M erger-rel ated chargesin 2017 primarily
include the cost of the technical and cultural integration, lease termination fees, costs associated with the BNC branch rationalization
plan we executed in 2017, the cost of certain assumed equity awards that vested upon the change in control, and retention bonuses paid
to former BNC associates for their services during the conversion. Merger-related charges during 2016 include legal costs incurred
associated with the Avenue merger to defend ourselves and Avenue's directorsin a shareholder suit as well asinvestigation and other
legal costs associated with aformer director's alleged improper trading in Avenue common stock. Merger-related charges for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, also include the costs of technical conversions which were completed during those periods.
Associate related expenses such as retention bonuses are also included in these expenses. We expect to continue to incur merger-related
chargesin relation to our acquisition of BNC through the first quarter of 2018 as we finalize the cultural and technical integration.

Total other noninterest expenses increased by $13.5 million to $47.0 million during 2017 when compared to 2016. Included in other
noninterest expenses are deposit and lending related expenses, investment and trust sales expenses, FHLB restructuring expense and
administrative expenses. Deposit and lending expenses increased by $6.0 million and $2.7 million, respectively, in 2017 primarily asa
result of our acquisition of BNC. Administrative and other expenses increased by $4.9 million to $16.8 million during 2017 when
compared to 2016. Included in those expenses were increased legal fees, director fees and issuance costs as aresult of our acquisition of
BNC. Franchisetax expenseincreased $952,000 i n connection with our expanded taxablebasis. Total other noninterest expensesincreased
by $10.4 million to $33.5 million during 2016 when compared to 2015. Included in other noninterest expenses are deposit and lending
related expenses, investment and trust sales expenses, FHLB restructuring expense and administrative expenses. Lending expenses
increased by $4.3 million primarily as aresult of our expanding credit card platform. Administrative and other expenses increased by
$3.0 million to $11.9 million during 2016 when compared to 2015. Included in those expenses was an increase of $893,000 in the loss
on foreclosed other repossessed assets. Franchise tax expense increased approximately $2.0 million as compared to 2015 as a result of
state income tax credits being applied to excise tax in 2016 as compared to franchise tax in 2015.

Our efficiency ratio (ratio of noninterest expense to the sum of net interest income and noninterest income) was 53.3% in fiscal year 2017
comparedto 53.0% infiscal year 2016 and 52.9% in fiscal year 2015. The efficiency ratio measuresthe amount of expensethat isincurred
to generate adollar of revenue.

Income Taxes. During the year ended December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial recorded income tax expense of $124.0 million compared
t0$64.2millionand $47.6 millionin 2016 and 2015, respectively. Our effectiveincometax ratewas41.6%, 33.5% and 33.3%, respectively,
for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, which is principally impacted by our investments in bank-qualified municipal
securities, our real estate investment trust, participation in the Tennessee CITC program, and bank-owned life insurance, offset in part
by the limitation on deductibility of meals and entertainment expense and certain merger-related expenses. |mpacting tax expense during
the year ended December 31, 2017, was our adoption on January 1, 2017 of FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-09 Stock
Compensation Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Activity, which represented a change in accounting for the tax effects
related to vesting of common shares and the exercise of stock options previously granted to our employees through our various equity
compensation plans. Thischangeresulted in areduction intax expenseof $5.4 millionfor theyear ended December 31, 2017. Additionally,
as aresult of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act signed into law on December 22, 2017, Pinnacle Financial recorded a non-cash charge of $31.5
million related to the revaluation of net deferred tax assets due to statutory federal income tax rate for corporate entities decreasing from
35 percent to 21 percent for 2018 and the future.

Financial Condition

Our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2017 reflects an increase of $7.2 billion in outstanding loans to $15.6 billion and an
increase of $7.7 billion in total depositsto $16.5 hillion from December 31, 2016. Total assets were $22.2 billion at December 31, 2017
ascomparedto $11.2 billion at December 31, 2016. We acquired |oans of $5.6 billion and depositstotaling $6.2 billion upon our acquisition
of BNC in 2017. We acquired loans of $952.5 million and deposits totaling $966.7 million upon our acquisition of Avenue in 2016.
Collectively, we acquired $1.3 billion in loans and $1.4 billion in deposits upon our acquisitions of CapitalMark and Magnain 2015.
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Loans. The composition of loans at December 31 for each of the past five years and the percentage (%) of each segment to total loansare
summarized as follows (dollars in thousands):

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Amount  Percent  Amount Percent =~ Amount Percent ~Amount Percent  Amount Percent

Commercial real estate -

Mortgage $ 6,669,610 42.7% $3,193,496 37.8% $2,275,483 34.8% $1,544,091 33.6% $1,383,435 33.4%
Consumer real estate -

Mortgage 2,561,214 16.4% 1,185,917 14.0% 1,046,517 16.0% 721,158 15.7% 695,616 16.8%
Construction and land

development 1,908,288 12.2% 912,673 10.8% 747,697 11.4% 322,466 7.0% 316,191 7.6%
Commercial and industrial 4,141,341 265% 2,891,710 342% 2,228542 34.1% 1,784,729 389% 1,605547 38.7%
Consumer and other 352,663 2.2% 266,129 3.2% 244,996 3.7% 217,583 4.8% 143,704 3.5%
Tota loans $15,633,116 100.0% $8,449,925 100.0% $6,543,235 100.0% $4,590,027 100.0% $4,144,493 100.0%

The composition of our loan portfolio has changed due to our acquisition of BNC, which had more of a commercial real estate focus,
including construction, than we did in our legacy Tennessee markets. As we intend to focus on growth of the commercial and industrial
segment in our expanded footprint during 2018, we believe our commercial andindustria portfolio will become amore substantial portion
of our total loan portfolio going forward. The commercial real estate—mortgage category includes owner-occupied commercial real estate
loans. At December 31, 2017, approximately 36.9% of the outstanding principal balance of our commercial real estate - mortgage loans
was secured by owner-occupied commercial real estate properties. Owner-occupied commercial real estateis similar in many waysto our
commercia and industrial lending in that these loans are generally made to businesses on the basis of the cash flows of the business rather
than on the valuation of the real estate. Growth in the construction and land devel opment loan segment reflects the development growth
of the local economiesin which we operate and is diversified between commercial, residential and land.

The following table classifies our fixed and variable rate |oans at December 31, 2017 according to contractual maturities of (1) one year
or less, (2) after one year through five years, and (3) after five years. The table also classifies our variable rate |oans pursuant to the
contractual repricing dates of the underlying loans (dollars in thousands):

Amounts at December 31, 2017

Fixed Variable At December 31, At December 31,
Rates Rates ¢ Totals 2017 2016
Based on contractual maturity:
Due within one year $ 881,566 $ 1,972,983 $ 2,854,549 18.2% 21.0%
Duein one year to five years 4,136,697 3,395,025 7,531,722 48.2% 46.8%
Due after five years 2,587,448 2,659,397 5,246,845 33.6% 32.2%
Totals $ 7,605711 $ 8,027,405 $ 15,633,116 100.0% 100.0%
Based on contractual repricing dates:
Daily floating rate $ — $ 2,566,343 2,566,343 16.4% 23.8%
Due within one year 881,566 5,018,820 5,900,386 37.8% 36.0%
Due in one year to five years 4,136,697 305,982 4,442,679 28.4% 27.8%
Due after five years 2,587,448 136,260 2,723,708 17.4% 12.4%
Totals $ 7,605,711 $ 8,027,405 $ 15,633,116 100.0% 100.0%

The above information does not consider the impact of scheduled principal payments.

(*)Daily floating rateloans aretied to Pinnacle Bank's prime lending rate or anational interest rateindex with the underlying loan rates changing
in relation to changesin these indexes. Included in variable rate |loans are $227 million of loans which are currently priced at their contractual
floors with a weighted average rate of 4.38%. The weighted average contractual rate on these loans is 5.12% As a result, interest income on
these loans will not change until the contractual rate on the underlying loan exceeds the interest rate floor.

Loan Origination Risk Management. We maintain lending policies and procedures designed to maximize lending opportunitieswithin an
acceptablelevel of risk. Management reviewsand approvesthese policiesand procedureson aregular basis. A reporting system supplements
the review process by providing management with frequent reports related to loan production, loan quality, concentrations of credit, loan
delinguencies and non-performing loans. Diversification in the loan portfolio is measured and monitored as a means of managing risk
associated with fluctuations in economic conditions.
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Underwriting standards are designed to promote relationship banking rather than transactional banking. Management examines current
and projected cash flows to determine the expected ability of a borrower to repay its obligations as agreed. Commercial and industrial
loans are primarily underwritten based on the identified cash flows of the borrower and generally are collateralized by business assets and
may have a personal guaranty of business principals. Collateral pledged may include the assets being financed or other assets such as
accounts receivable, inventory or equipment. Some short-term loans may be advanced on an unsecured basis.

Commercial real estate |oans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to commercia and industrial |oans. These loans
areviewed primarily ascash flow |oansand are underwritten based on the ahility of the property (in the case of income producing property),
or the borrower's business (if owner occupied) to generate sufficient cash flow to amortize the debt. Secondary emphasisis placed upon
collateral value and the financia strength of guarantors, if any. Commercial real estate |loans may be adversely affected by conditionsin
the real estate markets or in the general economy. As detailed in the discussion of real estate loans below, the properties securing our
commercia real estate portfolio generally are diversein terms of type and industry and we measure and monitor concentrationsregularly.
Webelievethisdiversity hel psreduce our exposureto adverse economic eventsthat affect any singleindustry or type of real estate product.
Management monitors and evaluates commercial rea estate |oans based on cash flow, collateral, geography and risk grade criteria. We
also utilize third-party expertsto provide insight and guidance about economic conditions and trends affecting market areas we serve.

Given the positive economic outlook for our current geographic markets, we continue to make loans for commercial construction and
development projects. Construction loans are underwritten utilizing independent appraisals, sensitivity analysis of absorption and lease
rates, financia analysis of the developers and property owners, and expectations of the permanent mortgage market, among other items.
Construction loans are generally based upon estimates of costs and appraised val ue associated with the completed project, which may be
inaccurate. Construction loans involve the disbursement of funds during construction with repayment substantially dependent on the
success of the ultimate project. Sources of repayment for these types of loans may be sales of developed property, refinancing in the
permanent mortgage market, or an interim loan commitment from us until permanent financing is obtained. These loans are closely
monitored by on-site inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other real estate loans because their ultimate repayment
depends on the satisfactory completion of construction and is sensitive to interest rate changes, governmental regulation of real property,
general economic conditions and the availability of long-term financing.

We also originate consumer loans, including consumer real -estate loans, where we typically use a computer-based credit scoring analysis
to supplement the underwriting process. To monitor and manage consumer loan risk, policies and procedures are developed and modified,
as needed, jointly by line and staff personnel. This activity, coupled with relatively small loan amounts that are spread across many
individual borrowers, seeks to minimize risk. Additionally, trend and outlook reports are reviewed by management on a regular basis.
Underwriting standards for home equity loans are heavily influenced by statutory requirements.

We also maintain an independent loan review department that reviews and validates the credit risk program on a periodic basis. Results
of these reviews are presented to management and the audit and risk committees of our board of directors. The loan review process
complements and reinforces the risk identification and assessment decisions made by lenders and credit personnel, aswell as our policies
and procedures.

Lending Concentrations. We periodically analyze our commercial loan portfolio to determine if a concentration of credit risk exists to
any one or more industries. We use broadly accepted industry classification systemsin order to classify borrowers into various industry
classifications. We have a credit exposure (loans outstanding plus unfunded commitments) exceeding 25% of Pinnacle Bank's total risk-
based capital to borrowers in the following industries at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

At December 31, 2017

Outstanding Unfunded Total Exposure at

Principal Balances Commitments Total exposure December 31, 2016
Lessors of nonresidential buildings $ 2778454 $ 32497 $ 2,810,951 $ 1,701,853
Lessors of residential buildings 870,777 13,467 884,244 874,234
Hotels and motels 627,126 1,865 628,991 291,865
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Additionally, the Company monitors two ratios regarding construction and commercial real estate lending as part of its concentration
management processes. Both ratios are calculated by dividing certain types of loan balances for each of the two categories by Pinnacle
Bank’stotal risk-based capital. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, Pinnacle Bank’sconstruction and land devel opment loans asapercentage
of total risk-based capital was89.4% and 80.3%, respectively. Non-owner occupied commercial real estateand multifamily loans(including
construction and loan development loans) was 297.1% and 256.0% for December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Banking regulations
have established guidelines for the construction ratio of less than 100% of total risk-based capital and for the non-owner occupied ratio
of less than 300%. Should a bank’s ratios be in excess of these guidelines, banking regulations generally require an increased level of
monitoring in these lending areas by bank management. At both December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Bank’s computed ratios were below
the applicable regulatory guidelines.

Performing Loans in Past Due Status. The following tableis asummary of our accruing loans that were past due between 30 and 90
days and greater than 90 days as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
Accruing loans past due 30 to 90 days: 2017 2016
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 23331 % 3,505
Consumer real estate — mortgage 14,835 3,838
Construction and land devel opment 4,136 2,210
Commercial and industrial 7,406 4,475
Consumer and other 6,311 7,168
Total accruing loans past due 30 to 90 days $ 56,019 $ 21,196
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 104 $ —
Consumer real estate — mortgage 1,265 53
Construction and land devel opment 146 —
Commercia and industrial 1,348 —
Consumer and other 1,276 1,081
Total accruing loans past due 90 days or more $ 4139 $ 1,134
Ratios:
Accruing loans past due 30 to 90 days as a percentage of total loans 0.36% 0.25%
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more as a percentage of total loans 0.02% 0.01%
Total accruing loansin past due status as a percentage of total loans 0.38% 0.26%

Potential Problem Loans. Potential problem loans amounted to approximately $164.0 million, or 1.1% of total loans outstanding at
December 31, 2017, compared to $114.6 million, or 1.4% of total loans outstanding at December 31, 2016. Potential problem loans, which
are not included in nonperforming loans, represent those |oans with awell-defined weakness and where information about possible credit
problems of borrowers has caused management to have doubts about the borrower's ability to comply with present repayment terms. This
definitionisbelieved to be substantially consistent with the standards establi shed by Pinnacle Bank's primary regul ators, for loansclassified
as substandard or worse, but not considered nonperforming loans. Approximately $14.6 million of potential problem loans were past due
at least 30 but less than 90 days as of December 31, 2017.

Non-Performing Assets and Troubled Debt Restructurings. At December 31,2017, wehad $85.5 millionin nonperforming assets compared
to $33.7 million at December 31, 2016. Included in nonperforming assets were $57.5 million in nonperforming loans and $28.0 million
in other real estate owned and other nonperforming assets at December 31, 2017 and $27.6 million in nonperforming loansand $6.1 million
in other real estate owned at December 31, 2016. The increase in nonperforming assetsin 2017 is primarily aresult of the acquisition of
such assetsrelated to our BNC merger. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, therewere $6.6 million and $15.0 million, respectively, of troubled
debt restructuringsthat were performing as of therestructured date and remain on accrual status but are considered impaired |oans pursuant
to U.S. GAAP.

All nonaccruing loans are reassigned to a special assets officer who was not responsible for originating the loan. The special assets officer
isresponsible for devel oping an action plan designed to minimize our future losses. Typically, these special assets officersreview our loan
files, interview prior officers assigned to the relationship, meet with borrowers, inspect collateral, reapprai se collateral and/or consult with
legal counsel. The special assets officer then recommends an action plan to acommittee of senior associatesincluding lendersand workout
specialists, which could include foreclosing on collateral, restructuring the loan, issuing demand letters or other actions.
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We discontinue the accrual of interest income when (1) there is a significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower and
full repayment of principal and interest is not expected or (2) the principal or interest is more than 90 days past due, unlesstheloan isboth
well-secured and in the process of collection. During 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, we recognized $95,000, $159,000 and $308,000
of interest income from nonperforming loans, reflecting cash payments received from the borrower and our belief, at the time of payment,
that the underlying collateral supported the carrying amount of the loans.

Due to the weakening credit status of a borrower, we may elect to formally restructure certain loans to facilitate a repayment plan that
seeksto minimizethe potential losses, if any, that wemightincur. Theseloansareconsidered troubled debt restructuringsand are considered
to be impaired loans pursuant to U.S. GAAP. If on nonaccruing status as of the date of restructuring, any restructured loan isincluded in
the nonperforming loan balances as discussed above and is classified as an impaired loan. Loans that have been restructured that are on
accrual status as of the restructure date are not included in nonperforming loans; however, such loans are still considered impaired.

At December 31, 2017, we owned $27.8 million in other real estate which we had acquired, usually through foreclosure, from borrowers
compared to $6.1 million at December 31, 2016; the majority of this real estate is located within our principal markets. Of the $27.8
million, $20.7 million was acquired in conjunction with our merger with BNC.

The following table is a summary of our nonperforming assets and troubled debt restructurings at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in
thousands):

At At

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Nonperforming assets:
Nonperforming loans @:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 16,064 $ 4,921
Consumer real estate — mortgage 18,117 8,073
Construction and land devel opment 5,968 6,613
Commercial and industrial 17,306 7,495
Consumer and other — 475
Total nonperforming loans @ 57,455 27,577
Other real estate owned 27,831 6,090
Other reposessed assets 197 —
Total nonperforming assets 85,483 33,667
Accruing troubled debt restructurings:
Commercial real estate — mortgage 194 213
Consumer real estate — mortgage 2,852 3,388
Construction and land devel opment — 7
Commercial and industrial 3,565 11,359
Consumer and other — 41
Total accruing troubled debt restructurings 6,611 15,008
Total nonperforming assets and accruing troubled debt restructurings $ 92,094 $ 48,675
Ratios:
Nonperforming loansto total loans 0.37% 0.33%
Nonperforming assets to total loans plus other real estate owned 0.55% 0.40%
Nonperforming assets plus troubled debt restructurings to total loans plus other real estate owned 0.59% 0.58%
Nonperforming assets, potential problem loans and troubled debt restructurings to Pinnacle Bank
Tier | capital and allowance for loan losses 12.80% 16.20%
Classified Asset Ratio (Pinnacle Bank) 12.90% 16.40%
Allowance for loan loss coverage ratio 117.0% 213.9%

(1) Approximately $45.8 million and $16.7 million as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, of nonperforming loans included
above are currently paying pursuant to their contractual terms.
(2) Classified assets as a percentage of Tier 1 capital plus alowance for loan losses.
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Allowance for Loan Losses (allowance). We maintaintheallowanceat alevel that our management deems appropriateto adequately cover
the probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2017, and 2016, our allowance for loan losses was $67.2 million
and $59.0 million, respectively, which our management deemed to be adequate at each of the respective dates. Our allowance for loan
loss as a percentage of total loans has decreased from 0.70% at December 31, 2016 to 0.43% at December 31, 2017, primarily as aresult
of recording the BNC portfolio at fair value upon acquisition. As aresult of our acquired loan portfolios being recorded at fair value upon
acquisition, no allowancefor loan losses is assigned to purchase | oans as of the date of acquisition. However, an allowance for loan losses
isrequired for purchased loans that have experienced credit deterioration subsequent to acquisition or increases in balances outstanding.
Pinnacle Financial's accounting policy isto compare the computed allowance on aloan-by-loan basisfor loan lossesfor purchased loans to
theremainingfair valueadjustment. However, if thecomputed all owanceat theloan level isgreater thantheremaining fair valueadjustment,
the excess is added to the allowance for loan losses by a charge to the provision for loan losses. The judgments and estimates associated
with our allowance determination are described under " Critical Accounting Estimates® above.

The following table sets forth, based on management's best estimate, the allocation of the allowance to types of loans as well as the
unallocated portion as of December 31 for each of the past five years and the percentage of loans in each category to total loans (in
thousands):

At December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Commercial real estate —

Mortgage $ 21,188 42.7% $ 13,655 37.8% $ 15,513 34.8% $ 22,202 33.6% $ 21,372 33.4%
Consumer real estate — Mortgage 5,031 16.4% 6,564 14.0% 7,220 16.0% 5,424 15.7% 8,355 16.8%
Construction and land

development 8,962 12.2% 3,624 10.8% 2,903 11.4% 5,724 7.0% 7,235 7.6%
Commercial and industrial 24,863 26.5% 24,743 34.2% 23,643 34.1% 29,167 389% 25134 38.7%
Consumer and other 5,874 2.2% 9,520 32% 15,616 3.7% 1,570 4.8% 1,632 3.5%
Unallocated 1,322 NA 874 NA 537 NA 3,272 NA 4,242 NA

Total allowance for loan |osses $ 67,240 100.0% $ 58,980 100.0% $ 65432 100.0% $ 67,359 100.0% 67,970  100.0%

The decrease in the allowance for |oan loss as a percentage of total loans at December 31, 2017 is primarily as aresult of recording the
BNC portfalio at fair value upon acquisition. Net charge-offs in the consumer portfolio have remained elevated in 2017, primarily dueto
the non-prime automobile portfolio. The balance of the non-prime automobile portfolio continues to decrease period over period. The
alocation by category isdetermined based on historical lossexperiencefor that category and qualitativefactors applicableto each category
of loans. For impaired loans, thoseloans are reviewed for aspecific allowance allocation. Specific valuation allowancesrelated to impaired
loans were approximately $2.8 million at December 31, 2017 compared to $1.1 million at December 31, 2016. The unallocated category
isintended to allow for losses that are inherent in our portfolio that we have not yet identified or attributable to a specific risk factor and
for modeling imprecision. Additional information on the allocation of the allowance between performing and impaired loansis provided
in Note 6 to the "Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.”

58



The following is a summary of changesin the allowance for loan losses for each of the yearsin the five year period ended December
31, 2017 and theratio of the allowance for loan losses to total loans as of the end of each period (in thousands):

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of period $ 58980 $ 65432 $ 67,359 $ 67,970 $ 69,417
Provision for loan losses 23,664 18,328 9,188 3,635 7,857
Charged-off loans:
Commercial real estate - Mortgage (633) (276) (384) (875) (4,123)
Consumer real estate - Mortgage (1,461) (788) (365) (1,621) (2,250)
Construction and land devel opment (137) (231) (190) (301) (1,351)
Commercial and industrial (4,297) (5,801) (2,207) (3,095) (8,159)
Consumer and other (15,518) (24,016) (18,002) (1,811) (1,369)
Total charged-off loans (22,046) (31,112) (21,148) (7,703) (17,252)
Recoveries of previously charged-off loans:
Commercial real estate - Mortgage 671 208 85 538 500
Consumer real estate - Mortgage 1,516 546 874 671 1,209
Construction and land devel opment 1,136 545 1,479 277 1,464
Commercial and industrial 1,317 2,138 1,730 1,484 4,531
Consumer and other loans 2,002 2,895 5,865 487 244
Total recoveries of previously charged-off loans 6,642 6,332 10,033 3,457 7,948
Net charge-offs (15,404) (24,780) (11,115) (4,246) (9,304)
Balance at end of period $ 67,240 $ 58980 $ 65432 $ 67,359 $ 67,970
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans
outstanding at end of period 0.43% 0.70% 1.00% 1.47% 1.64%
Ratio of net charge-offs to average |oans outstanding
for the period 0.13% 0.33% 0.21% 0.10% 0.24%

Asnoted in our critical accounting policies, management assesses the adequacy of the allowance at the end of each calendar quarter. This
assessment includes procedures to estimate the allowance and test the adequacy and appropriateness of the resulting balance. The level
of the allowance is based upon management's eval uation of the loan portfolios, past loan loss experience, known and inherent risksin the
portfolio, the views of Pinnacle Bank's regulators, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay (including the timing
of future payments), the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, historical
loss experience, industry and peer bank |oan quality indications and other pertinent factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it
requires material estimates including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be

susceptible to significant change.

Investments. Our investment portfolio, consisting primarily of Federal agency bonds, state and municipal securities and mortgage-backed
securities, amounted to $2.54 billion and $1.32 billion at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Our investment to asset ratio has
decreased dightly from 11.8% at December 31, 2016 to 11.4% at December 31, 2017. Our investment portfolio serves many purposes
including serving as a stable source of income, collateral for public funds and as a potential liquidity source. During the fourth quarter of
2017, approximately $300 million of investment securitieswere sold at apre-tax loss of $8.3 millionin order to reposition our investment
portfolio to provide our balance sheet more protection from a potentialy flatter yield curve in the future. The timing of these sales also
allowed us to capture an increased tax deduction in 2017 due to the reduction in corporate tax rates beginning in 2018 as a result of the
passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.

A summary of certain aspects of our investment portfolio at December 31, 2017 and 2016 follows:

December 31,

2017 2016
Weighted average life 6.29 years 5.26 years
Effective duration 3.49% 3.16%
Weighted average coupon 2.99% 2.85%
2.68% 2.42%

Tax equivaent yield
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The following table shows the carrying value of investment securities according to contractual maturity classifications of (1) one year or
less, (2) after one year through five years, (3) after five years through ten years, and (4) after ten years. Actual maturities may differ from
contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities because the mortgages underlying the securities may be called or prepaid with or
without penalty. Therefore, these securities are not included in the maturity categories but arelisted bel ow these categories as of December

31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

State and
U.S. Treasury U.S. government Municipal Corporate
securities agency securities securities securities Totals
Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield

At December 31, 2017:
Securities available-for-sale:
Due in one year or less $ 30196 1.20% $ 248  1.25% 2,752 253% $ — 000% $ 33196 2.18%
Duein one year to five years 249  1.7%% 2,082 2.23% 53,611 3.82% 9,833 2.15% 65,775  3.64%
Duein five yearsto ten years —  0.00% 9,658 2.28% 118,784 3.79% 58,756  4.50% 187,198 3.80%
Due after ten years — 0.00% 168,813 241% 609,465 3.99% 13,725 2.81% 792,003 3.77%

$ 30445 131% $180,801 2.37% $784,612 387% $ 82314 366%  1,078172 3.72%
Mortgage-backed securities 1,263,819 2.13%
Asset-backed securities 173,292  2.49%

$ 2515283  3.09%

Securities held-to-maturity:
Duein one year or less $ — 0.00% $ — 000% $ 1329 472% $ — 0.00% $ 1,329 4.72%
Duein one year to five years —  0.00% —  0.00% 6,210 2.72% — 0.00% $ 6,210 2.72%
Duein five yearsto ten years —  0.00% —  0.00% 10,425 3.17% — 0.00% $ 10425 3.17%
Due after ten years —  0.00% — 0.00% 2,798 4.25% — 0.00% $ 2,798 4.25%

$ — 0.00% $ — 0.00% $ 20,762 335% $ — 000% $ 20,762 3.35%
Mortgage-backed securities —  0.00%
Asset-backed securities —  0.00%
Total held-for-sale securities $ 20,762 3.35%
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State and
U.S. Treasury U.S. government Municipal Corporate
securities agency securities securities securities Totals

Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount Yield

At December 31, 2016:
Securities available-for-sale:

Duein one year or less $ —  000% $ 700 121% $ 1355 4.92% $ 501 169% $ 2556 3.27%
Duein one year to five years 250 1.75% 250 1.25% 60,052  4.56% 1,039 1.64% 61,591  4.49%
Duein five yearsto ten years —  0.00% 10,023 1.62% 106,685 4.41% 7,061 4.83% 123,769  4.21%
Due after ten years —  0.00% 10,796  1.39% 44,628 3.67% —  0.00% 55,424  3.22%

$ 250 1.75% $ 21,769 1.49% $212,720 430% $ 8,601 4.27% 243340 4.04%
Mortgage-backed securities 976,626  2.00%
Asset-backed securities 78,580 2.59%

$ 1,298546  2.42%

Securities held-to-maturity:

Duein one year or less $ — 0.00% $ — 0.00% $ 504 163% $ — 0.00% $ 594  1.63%
Duein one year to five years —  0.00% —  0.00% 10,186 2.79% —  0.00% 10,186 2.79%
Duein five yearsto ten years —  0.00% —  0.00% 10,586 3.01% —  0.00% 10,586 3.01%
Due after ten years —  0.00% —  0.00% 3,885 3.72% —  0.00% 3885 3.72%

$ — 0.00% $ — 0.00% $ 25251 3.00% $ — 000% $ 25251 3.00%
Mortgage-backed securities —  0.00%
Asset-backed securities —  0.00%
Total held-for-sale securities $ 25251 3.00%

We computed yields using coupon interest, adding discount accretion or subtracting premium amortization, as appropriate, on a ratable
basis over the life of each security. We computed the weighted average yield for each maturity range using the acquisition price of each
security in that range.

Deposits and Other Borrowings. We had approximately $16.5 billion of deposits at December 31, 2017 compared to $8.76 hillion at
December 31, 2016. Our deposits consist of noninterest and interest-bearing demand accounts, savings accounts, money market accounts
and time deposits. Additionally, we entered into agreements with certain customers to sell certain of our securities under agreements to
repurchase the security the following day. These agreements (which are typically associated with comprehensive treasury management
programs for our commercial clients and provide the client with short-term returns for their excess funds) amounted to $135.3 million at
December 31, 2017 and $85.7 million at December 31, 2016. Additionally, at December 31, 2017, we had borrowed $1.3 billionin advances
from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (FHLB Cincinnati) compared to $406.3 million at December 31, 2016. At December
31, 2017, we had an estimated $1.5 billion in additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB Cincinnati; however, incremental borrowings
are made viaaformal request by us and the subsequent approva by the FHLB Cincinnati.
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Generally, wehave classified our funding as core funding or non-corefunding. Corefunding consistsof all depositsother than timedeposits
issued in denominations of $250,000 or greater. All other funding is deemed to be non-core. Non-core is further segmented between
relationship based non-core funding and wholesale funding. The following table represents the balances of our deposits and other funding
and the percentage of each type to the total at December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2017 Percent 2016 Percent

Core funding:
Noninterest-bearing deposit accounts $ 4,381,386 23.85% $ 2,399,191 24.99%
I nterest-bearing demand accounts 2,756,506 15.00% 1,737,996 18.10%
Savings and money market accounts 5,847,650 31.83% 3,185,186 33.17%
Time deposit accounts less than $250,000 1,260,162 6.86% 512,599 5.34%
Total core funding 14,245,704 77.54% 7,834,972 81.60%
Non-core funding:
Relationship based non-core funding:
Reciprocating NOW deposits 77,472 0.42% 30,328 0.32%
Reciprocating money market accounts 408,806 2.23% 519,769 5.41%
Reciprocating time deposits (1) 106,227 0.58% 58,838 0.61%
Other time deposits 444,951 2.42% 198,689 2.07%
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 135,262 0.74% 85,707 0.89%
Total relationship based non-core funding 1,172,718 6.39% 893,331 9.29%
Wholesale funding:
Public funds — 0.00% — 0.00%
Brokered deposits 445,822 2.43% 49,983 0.53%
Brokered time deposits 722,721 3.93% 66,727 0.69%
Federal Home L oan Bank advances 1,319,909 7.18% 406,304 4.23%
Subordinated debt and other funding 465,505 2.53% 350,768 3.65%
Total wholesale funding 2,953,957 16.07% 873,782 9.10%
Total non-core funding 4,126,675 22.46% 1,767,113 18.40%
Totas $ 18,372,379 100.00% $ 9,602,085 100.00%

(1) Thereciprocating time deposit category consists of deposits we receive from abank network (the CDARS network) in connection with
deposits of our customersin excess of our FDIC coverage limit that we place with the CDARS network.

Our funding policies limit the amount of non-core funding we can utilize. Periodically, we may exceed our policy limitations, at which
time management will devel op plansto bring our corefunding rati os back within compliance. Asnotedinthetableabove, our corefunding
as a percentage of total funding decreased from 81.6% at December 31, 2016 to 77.5% at December 31, 2017. Growing our core deposit
base is a key strategic objective of our firm. Our current growth plans contemplate that we may increase our non-core funding amounts
from current levels, but we do not currently anticipate that such increases will exceed our internal policies.

When wholesale funding is necessary to complement the company's core deposit base, management determineswhich sourceisbest suited
to address both liquidity risk management and interest rate risk management objectives. We increased our exposure to brokered deposits
in 2017 as a measure to diversify wholesale funding sources and in conjunction with our acquisitions. Our Asset Liability Management
Policy instituteslimitations on overal| wholesale funding reliance and on brokered deposit exposure specifically. Both our overall reliance
on wholesale funding and exposure to brokered deposits were within those policy limitations as of December 31, 2017.
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The amount of time deposits as of December 31, 2017 amounted to $2.5 billion. The following table, which includes core, non-core and
reciprocal deposits, shows our time deposits in denominations of under $100,000 and those of denominations of $100,000 and greater by
category based on time remaining until maturity of (1) three months or less, (2) over three but less than six months, (3) over six but less
than twelve months and (4) over twelve months and the weighted average rate for each category (in thousands):

Weighted Avg.

Balances Rate

Denominations less than $100,000
Three months or less $ 294,872 0.91%
Over three but less than six months 273,872 1.05%
Over six but less than twelve months 347,652 1.19%
Over twelve months 318,943 1.51%

1,235,339 1.17%
Denomination $100,000 and greater
Three months or less 281,188 0.82%
Over three but less than six months 275,306 0.98%
Over six but |less than twelve months 377,633 1.03%
Over twelve months 364,595 1.48%

1,298,722 1.10%
Totals $ 2,534,061 1.14%

Subordinated debt and other borrowings. Pinnacle Bank receives advances from the FHLB Cincinnati, pursuant to the terms of various
borrowing agreements, which assist it in the funding of itshome mortgage and commercial real estateloan portfolios. Under the borrowing
agreementswith the FHLB Cincinnati, Pinnacle Bank has pledged certain qualifying residential mortgage |oans and, pursuant to ablanket
lien, all qualifying commercial mortgage loans as collateral. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, Pinnacle Financial had received advances
from the FHLB Cincinnati totaling $1.3 billion and $406.2 million, respectively. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial recognized a discount
of $167,000 on FHLB Cincinnati advances in conjunction with its acquisition of Avenuein July 2016. At December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, the remaining discount was $13,000 and $92,000. At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of FHLB Cincinnati
advances and interest rates are as follows (in thousands):

Weighted
Scheduled average
Maturities interest rates
2018 $ 557,501 1.46%
2019 356,000 1.64%
2020 272,627 1.74%
2021 133,750 1.87%
2022 — —
Thereafter 17 2.75%
$ 1,319,895
Weighted average interest rate - 1.61%

(1) Some FHLB Cincinnati advances include variable interest rates and could increase in the future. The table reflects rates in effect as of
December 31, 2017.
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We have entered into and acquired anumber of statutory business trusts which were established to issue 30-year trust preferred securities
and related junior subordinated debt instruments and certain other subordinated debt agreements. We also have a $75.0 million revolving
credit facility, which we have not drawn upon as of December 31, 2017 and which matures on March 27, 2018. These instruments are
outlined below (in thousands):

Total Debt Interest Rate at

Name Date Established Maturity Outstanding December 31, 2017 Coupon Structure
Trust preferred securities
Pinnacle Statutory Trust | December 29, 2003 December 30, 2033 $ 10,310 4.40% 30-day LIBOR + 2.80%
Pinnacle Statutory Trust I September 15, 2005 September 30, 2035 20,619 3.09% 30-day LIBOR + 1.40%
Pinnacle Statutory Trust 111 September 7, 2006  September 30, 2036 20,619 3.34% 30-day LIBOR + 1.65%
Pinnacle Statutory Trust IV October 31, 2007  September 30, 2037 30,928 4.44% 30-day LIBOR + 2.85%
BNC Capital Trust | April 3, 2003 April 15, 2033 5,155 4.61% 30-day LIBOR + 3.25%
BNC Capital Trust I March 11, 2004 April 7, 2034 6,186 4.21% 30-day LIBOR + 2.85%
BNC Capital Trust I11 September 23, 2004 September 23, 2034 5,155 3.76% 30-day LIBOR + 2.40%
BNC Capital Trust IV September 27, 2006 December 31, 2036 7,217 3.39% 30-day LIBOR + 1.70%
Valley Financial Trust | August5,2005  September 30, 2035 4,124 4.77% 30-day LIBOR + 3.10%
Valley Financial Trust Il June 6, 2003 June 26, 2033 7,217 3.08% 30-day LIBOR + 1.49%
Valley Financial Trust I11 September 26, 2005 December 15, 2035 5,155 3.11% 30-day LIBOR + 1.73%
Southcoast Capital Trust 111 December 15, 2006  January 30, 2037 10,310 3.19% 30-day LIBOR + 1.50%
Subordinated Debt
Pinnacle Bank Subordinated Notes July 30, 2015 July 30, 2025 60,000 4.88% Fixed®
Pinnacle Bank Subordinated Notes March 10, 2016 July 30, 2025 70,000 4.88% Fixed®
Avenue Subordinated Notes December 29, 2014 December 29, 2024 20,000 6.75% Fixed®
Pinnacle Financial Subordinated Notes November 16, 2016 November 16, 2026 120,000 5.25% Fixed®
BNC Subordinated Notes September 25, 2014  October 1, 2024 60,000 5.50% Fixed®
BNC Subordinated Note October 15,2013  October 15, 2023 10,500 6.35% 30-day LIBOR + 5.0%®
Other Borrowings
Revolving credit facility® March 29, 2016 March 27, 2018 —
Debt issuance costs and fair value adjustment (7,990)
Total subordinated debt and other borrowings m

(1) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 3.128% beginning July 30, 2020 through the end of the term.

(2) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 4.95% beginning January 1, 2020 through the end of the term.

(3) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 3.884% beginning November 16, 2021 through the end of the term.

(4) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 3.59% beginning October 1, 2019 through the end of the term if not redeemed on that date.

(5) Coupon structure includes a floor of 5.0% and a cap of 9.5%.

(6) Borrowing capacity on the revolving credit facility is $75.0 million. At December 31, 2017, there was no outstanding balance under this
facility. The rate under this facility is 2.25% plus the greater of zero percent and 30-day LIBOR with a maturity date of March 27, 2018 and
an unused fee of 0.35% of average daily unused amount of loan.

Following the Merger with BNC, Pinnacle Financial's total assets were in excess of $15.0 billion as a result of the acquisition of BNC,
which caused the subordinated debentures Pinnacle Financial and BNC issued to ceaseto qualify as Tier 1 capital under applicablebanking
regulations. Though these securitiesno longer qualify asTier 1 capital, Pinnacle Financial believesthese subordinated debentures continue
to qualify as Tier 2 capital.

InJanuary 2017, we completed the public offering of 3.22 million shares of our common stock in atransaction that resulted in net proceeds
to us, after deducing underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated other expenses payable by us, of $191.2 million. We have
contributed $185.0 million of these net proceeds to our bank subsidiary.



Capital Resources. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, our stockholders' equity amounted to $3.7 billion and $1.5 hillion, respectively.
Approximately $1.8 billion of thisincreaseis attributable to shares of Pinnacle Financial Common Stock issued upon our acquisition of
BNC. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank's common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was 10.3%, Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio
was 10.3%, total risk-based capital ratio was 11.3% and Tier 1 leverage ratio was 9.7%, compared to 9.3%, 9.3%, 11.2% and 9.2% at
December 31, 2016, respectively. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial's common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was 9.1%,
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio was 9.1%, total risk-based capital ratio was 12.0% and Tier 1 leverage ratio was 8.6%, compared to 7.9%,
8.6%, 11.9% and 8.6% at December 31, 2016, respectively.

We and our bank subsidiary are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on our financial condition or results of operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, we and our bank subsidiary must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
guantitative measures of the assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as cal cul ated under regul atory accounting practices. Our
and Pinnacle Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require us and our bank subsidiary to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios of common equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, Tier | capital to risk-weighted assets, total risk-based capital
to risk-weighted assets and of Tier 1 capital to average assets.

The final rules implementing the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's capital guidelines for U.S. banks (Basel 111 rules) became
effectivefor us on January 1, 2015 with full compliance with al of the requirements being phased in over amulti-year schedule, and fully
phased in by January 1, 2019. The minimum capital level requirements applicable to bank holding companies and banks subject to the
rules are: (i) acommon equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%; (ii) aTier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6%; (iii) atotal risk-based capital ratio
of 8%; and (iv) aTier 1leverageratio of 4% for all ingtitutions. The Basel 111 rules, also establish acapital conservation buffer of 2.5% (to
be phased in over three years) above the regulatory minimum risk-based capital ratios. The capital conservation buffer was phased in
beginning in January 2016 at 0.625% and is increasing each year by alike percentage until fully implemented in January 2019. The net
unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale securities is not included in computing regulatory capital. Management believes, as
of December 31, 2017, that we had met all capital adequacy requirements to which we are subject.

Dividends. Pursuant to Tennessee banking law, Pinnacle Bank may not, without the prior consent of the TDFI, pay any dividends to us
inacalendar year in excessof thetotal of itsretained net profitsfor that year plustheretained net profitsfor the precedingtwo years. During
theyear ended December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank paid dividends of $63.1 million to uswhich waswithin the limits allowed by the TDFI.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, we paid $35.9 million in dividends to common shareholders. On January 16, 2018 our board
of directors declared a $0.14 quarterly cash dividend to common shareholders of approximately $10.9 million in aggregate that was paid
on February 23, 2018 to common shareholders of record as of the close of business on February 2, 2018. The amount and timing of al
future dividend payments, if any, is subject to board discretion and will depend on our earnings, capital position, financial condition and
other factors, including new regulatory capital requirements, as they become known to us.

Market and Liquidity Risk Management

Our objectiveistomanageassetsand liabilitiesto provideasatisfactory, consistent level of profitability withintheframework of established
liquidity, loan, investment, borrowing, and capital policies. Our Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is charged with the
responsibility of monitoring these policies, which are designed to ensure acceptable composition of asset/liability mix. Two critical areas
of focusfor ALCO are interest rate sensitivity and liquidity risk management.

Interest Rate Sensitivity. Inthenormal course of business, we are exposed to market risk arising from fluctuationsininterest rates. ALCO
measures and evaluates the interest rate risk so that we can meet customer demands for various types of loans and deposits. ALCO
determinesthe most appropriate amounts of on-balance sheet and off-bal ance sheet items. M easurementswhich we useto help usmanage
interest rate sensitivity include an earnings simulation model and an economic va ue of equity (EVE) model.

Our interest rate sensitivity modeling incorporates a number of assumptions for both earnings simulation and EVE, including loan and
deposit re-pricing characteristics, the rate of loan prepayments, etc. ALCO periodically reviews these assumptions for accuracy based
on historical dataand future expectations. Our ALCO policy requiresthat the base scenario assumes rates remain flat and is the scenario
towhich al others are compared in order to measure the change in net interest income and EVE. Policy limits are applied to the results
of certain modeling scenarios. While the primary policy scenarios focus is on atwelve month time frame, longer time horizons are also
modeled. All policy scenarios assume a static balance sheet, although other scenarios are model ed.
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Earnings simulation model. We believeinterest raterisk isbest measured by our earnings simulation modeling. Earning assets, interest-
bearing liabilities and off-balance sheet financial instruments are combined with forecasts of interest rates for the next 12 months and
are combined with other factors in order to produce various earnings simulations. To limit interest rate risk, we have policy guidelines
for our earnings at risk which seek to limit the variance of net interest income in both gradual and instantaneous changesto interest rates.
For changes up or down in rates from management's flat interest rate forecast over the next twelve months, management establishes
policy limitsin the decline in net interest income for the following scenarios:

e -10.0% for gradual change of 400 paints; -20.0% instantaneous change of 400 basis points
e -7.5% for gradua change of 300 points; -15.0% instantaneous change of 300 basis points
e -5.0% for gradua change of 200 points; -10.0% instantaneous change of 200 basis points
e -2.5% for gradual change of 100 points; -5.0% instantaneous change of 100 basis points

At December 31, 2017, our earnings simulation model indicated we were in compliance with our policies for both the gradual and
instantaneous interest rate changes.

Economic value of equity . Our EVE model measuresthe extent that estimated economic values of our assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet items will change as a result of interest rate changes. Economic values are determined by discounting expected cash flows from
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items, which establishes a base case EVE. To help limit interest rate risk, we have stated policy
guidelines for an instantaneous basis point change in interest rates, in the following scenarios:

e +/- 400 basis point change in interest rates, EVE shall not decrease by more than 40 percent
»  +/- 300 basis point change in interest rates; EVE shall not decrease by more than 30 percent
e +/- 200 basis point change in interest rates; EVE shall not decrease by more than 20 percent
e +/- 100 basis point change in interest rates; EVE shall not decrease by more than 10 percent

At December 31, 2017, our EVE mode indicated we were in compliance with our policiesfor the scenarios noted above. However, our
policies provide that during certain interest rate cycles, the down basis point rate changes may not be particularly significant given the
current slopeof theyield curve. Accordingly, wehavecurrently suspended thecal cul ation of thedown rate scenariosfor EV E measurement
for the down 300 and down 400 scenarios.

We also analyze a most-likely earnings simulation scenario that projects the expected change in rates based on a forward yield curve
adopted by management using expected balance sheet volumes forecasted by management. Separate growth assumptions are devel oped
for loans, investments, deposits, etc. Other interest rate scenarios analyzed by management may include delayed rate shocks, yield curve
steepening or flattening, or other variations in rate movements to further analyze or stress our balance sheet under various interest rate
scenarios.

Each of the above analyses may not, on its own, be an accurate indicator of how our net interest income will be affected by changesin
interest rates. Income associated with interest-earning assets and costs associated with interest-bearing liabilities may not be affected
uniformly by changesin interest rates. In addition, the magnitude and duration of changesin interest rates may have a significant impact
on net interest income. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods of repricing, they may
react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities fluctuate in advance
of changesin general market rates, whileinterest rates on other types may lag behind changesin general market rates. In addition, certain
assets, such as adjustable rate mortgage loans, have features (generally referred to as interest rate caps and floors) which limit changes
ininterest rates. Prepayment and early withdrawal levelsaso could deviate significantly from those assumed in cal culating the maturity
of certain instruments. The ability of many borrowers to service their debts also may decrease during periods of rising interest rates.
ALCO reviews each of the above interest rate sensitivity analyses along with severa different interest rate scenarios as part of its
responsihility to provide a satisfactory, consistent level of profitability within the framework of established liquidity, loan, investment,
borrowing, and capital policies.

We may also use derivative financial instrumentsto improve the balance between interest-sensitive assets and interest-sensitiveliabilities
as one tool to manage our interest rate sensitivity while continuing to meet the credit and deposit needs of our customers. We may also
enter into interest rate swapsto facilitate customer transactions and meet their financing needs. These swaps qualify as derivatives, even
though they are not designated as hedging instruments.

Based on information gathered from these various modeling scenarios management believes that at December 31, 2017, our balance
sheet would likely be modestly asset sensitive.
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AL CO may determinethat Pinnacle Financial should over timebecomemoreor |essasset or liability sensitive depending on theunderlying
bal ance sheet circumstances and the firm's conclusions as to anticipated interest rate fluctuations in future periods. At present, ALCO
has determined that its "most likely" rate scenario considers three additional increases in short-term interest rates in 2018. Our "most
likely" rate forecast has been basically consistent for several quarters and is based primarily on information we acquire from a service
which includes a consensus forecast of humerous benchmarks. Over the last several quarters we have taken steps to make our balance
sheet more asset sensitive, which has favorably impacted us in the current rising rate environment and should continue to positively
impact our results with additional rate increases unless we are unable to hold our funding costs at levels that don't eliminate the positive
impact to interest income of these rising rates. However, BNC's balance sheet was less asset sensitive which neutralizes some, if not
most, of the impact of those steps. Nonetheless we have implemented and may implement additional actions designed to achieve our
desired sensitivity position.

Liquidity Risk Management. The purpose of liquidity risk management is to ensure that there are sufficient cash flows to satisfy loan
demand, deposit withdrawals, and our other needs. Traditional sources of liquidity for abank include asset maturities and growth in core
deposits. A bank may achieveitsdesired liquidity objectivesfrom the management of itsassetsand liabilities and by internally generated
funding through its operations. Fundsinvested in marketable instruments that can be readily sold and the continuous maturing of other
earning assets are sources of liquidity from an asset perspective. The liability base provides sources of liquidity through attraction of
increased deposits and borrowing funds from various other institutions.

To assist in determining the adequacy of our liquidity, we perform avariety of liquidity stresstestsincluding idiosyncratic, systemic and
combined scenarios for both moderate and severe events. Liquidity isdefined asthe ability to convert assetsinto cash or cash equivalents
without significant loss and to raise additional funds by increasing liabilities. Liquidity management involves maintaining our ability to
meet the daily cash flow requirements of our customers, both depositors and borrowers. We seek to maintain a sufficiently liquid asset
balance to ensure our ability to meet our obligations. The amount of the appropriate minimum liquid asset balance is determined through
severeliquidity stresstesting as measured by our liquidity coverageratio calculation. At December 31, 2017, wewerein compliance with
our liquidity coverage ratio.

Changesin interest rates also affect our liquidity position. We currently price depositsin response to market rates, and our management
intendsto continuethispolicy. If depositsare not priced in responseto market rates, aloss of deposits could occur which would negatively
affect our liquidity position.

Scheduled loan paymentsarearel atively stable source of funds, but loan payoffsand deposit flowsfluctuate significantly, being influenced
by interest rates, general economic conditions and competition. Additionally, debt security investments are subject to prepayment and
call provisions that could accelerate their payoff prior to stated maturity. We attempt to price our deposit products to meet our asset/
liability objectives consistent with local market conditions. Our ALCO is responsible for monitoring our ongoing liquidity needs. Our
regulators also monitor our liquidity and capital resources on a periodic basis.

Asnoted previously, PinnacleBank isamember of the FHL B Cincinnati and, pursuant to aborrowing agreement with the FHL B Cincinnati,
has pledged certain assets pursuant to a blanket lien. As such, Pinnacle Bank may use the FHLB Cincinnati as a source of liquidity
depending on the firm's ALCO strategies. Additionally, we may pledge additional qualifying assets or reduce the amount of pledged
assets with the FHLB Cincinnati to increase or decrease our borrowing capacity at the FHLB Cincinnati. At December 31, 2017, we
believe we had an estimated $1.5 billion in additional borrowing capacity with the FHLB Cincinnati. However, incremental borrowings
are made viaaformal request by Pinnacle Bank and the subsequent approval by the FHLB Cincinnati.

Pinnacle Bank a so has accommodations with upstream correspondent banks for unsecured short-term advances which aggregate $160.0
million. These accommodations have various covenants related to their term and availability, and in most cases must be repaid within
less than a month. There were no outstanding borrowings under these agreements at December 31, 2017, or during the year then ended
under such agreements, although we test the availability of these accommodations annually. Pinnacle Bank also has approximately $2.6
billion in available Federal Reserve discount window lines of credit.

At December 31, 2017, we had $1.2 billion in brokered deposit compared to $116.7 million in brokered deposits at December 31, 2016.
Historically, we have issued brokered certificates through severa different brokerage houses based on competitive bid. Through the
Avenue acquisition, we acquired non-reciprocal time depositsissued through the CDARS network. We also obtained $50 million in non-
reciprocal insured cash sweep depositsunder atwo-year $200 million agreement. Through the BNC acquisition, weacquired $288 million
innon-reciprocal insured cash sweep depositsunder variousmulti-year agreements. Typically, thesefundshavebeenfor varyingmaturities
of up to two years and were issued at rates which were competitive to rates that we would be required to pay to attract similar deposits
within our local markets as well asrates for FHLB advances of similar maturities.
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Industry regulators have defined additional liquidity guidelines, through the issuance of the Basel 111 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)
and the Modified LCR, for banking institutions greater than $250 billion in assets, and $50 billion in assets respectively, in the United
States. These regulatory guidelines became effective January 2015 with phase in over subsequent years and will require these large
ingtitutions to follow prescriptive guidance in determining an absolute level of a high quality liquid asset (HQLA) buffer that must be
maintained ontheir balance sheetsin order towithstand apotential liquidity crisisevent. Although Pinnacle Financial followstheprinciples
outlined inthe Interagency Policy Statement on Liquidity Risk Management, issued March 2010, to determineits HQLA buffer, Pinnacle
Financia is not currently subject to these regulations. However, these formulas could eventually be imposed on smaller banks, such as
Pinnacle Bank, and require an increase in the absolute level of liquidity on our balance sheet, which could result in lower net interest
margins for usin future periods.

At December 31, 2017, we had no significant commitments for capital expenditures. However, we expect to expand our footprint by
onelocation in each of the Knoxville, Chattanooga and M emphis markets annually. In future periods, these expansions may lead to higher
eguipment and occupancy expenses as well as related increases in salaries and benefits expense. There are no current plans to expand
our branch distribution in the Carolinas and Virginia

Our short-term borrowings (borrowings which mature within the next fiscal year) consist primarily of securities sold under agreements
to repurchase (these agreements are typically associated with comprehensive treasury management programs for our clients and provide
them with short-term returns on their excess funds) and FHLB Cincinnati advances. Information concerning our short-term borrowings
as of and for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):

At December 31,

2017 2016 2015
Amounts outstanding at year-end:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 135262 $ 85706 $ 79,084
Federal funds purchased — — —
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term advances 557,501 392,000 280,000
Weighted average interest rates at year-end:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.35% 0.22% 0.21%
Federal funds purchased — — —
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term advances 1.46% 0.79% 0.49%
M aximum amount of borrowings at any month-end:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 205,008 $ 92941 $ 81,246
Federal funds purchased 50,000 2,567 —
Federal Home L oan Bank short-term advances 1,011,500 763,000 620,000
Average balances for the year:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 115573 $ 75950 $ 68,037
Federal funds purchased 1,189 1,219 606
Federal Home Loan Bank short-term advances 528,042 489,333 224,583
Weighted average interest rates for the year:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.36% 0.24% 0.20%
Federal funds purchased 1.02% 0.98% 0.81%
Federal Home L oan Bank short-term advances 1.22% 0.62% 0.23%
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The following table presents additional information about our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2017, which by their terms
have contractual maturity and termination dates subsequent to December 31, 2017 (in thousands):

At December 31, 2017

Next 12 13-36 More than 60

months months 37-60 months months Totals
Contractual obligations:
Certificates of deposit (1) $ 1850523 $ 568,198 $ 112,998 $ 2,342 $ 2,534,061
Deposits without a stated maturity (2) 13,917,641 — — — 13,917,641
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (1) 135,262 — — — 135,262
Federal Home Loan Bank advances (1) 557,501 628,627 133,750 17 1,319,895
Junior subordinated debentures (3) 5,059 10,132 10,118 199,392 224,701
Subordinated notes (4) 18,075 36,184 36,104 389,770 480,133
Minimum operating lease commitments 12,226 22,484 19,081 48,106 101,897
Capital lease obligations 426 940 940 3,028 5,334
Totals $ 16496713 $ 1266565 $ 312,991 $ 642,655 $ 18,718,924

(1)  Includes unpaid interest through the contractual maturity on both fixed and variable rate obligations. The interest included on variable rate
obligations is based on interest rates in effect at December 31, 2017.

2 Including interest accrued and unpaid through December 31, 2017.

3 Due to the uncertainty of future interest rates on borrowings under Pinnacle Financial's junior subordinated debentures issued in connection
with trust preferred securities sold by affiliated trusts future interest payments on such obligations are not included in the above table. At
December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financia had junior subordinated debentures of approximately $133.0 million outstanding. See Note 11 " Other
Borrowings' to PinnacleFinancial'sconsolidated financia statementsfor further information ontheamountsof interest pai d on such debentures.

(4)  Representsinterest and principal payments at maturity on Pinnacle Financial's $340.5 million in aggregate principal amount of subordinated
notes outstanding. See Note 11 "Other Borrowings' to Pinnacl€e's consolidated financial statements for further information on the amounts of
interest paid on such notes.

Our management believes that we have adequate liquidity to meet al known contractual obligations and unfunded commitments,
including loan commitments and reasonable borrower, depositor, and creditor requirements over the next twelve months. Our
operating lease commitments are primarily related to our branch and headquarters facilities. The terms of these |eases expire at various
points ranging from 2018 through 2048. At December 31, 2017, our total minimum operating |ease commitment was $101.9 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. At December 31, 2017, we had outstanding standby letters of credit of $143.7 million and unfunded
loan commitments outstanding of $5.8 billion. Because these commitments generally have fixed expiration dates and many will expire
without being drawn upon, the total commitment level does not necessarily represent future cash requirements. If needed to fund these
outstanding commitments, Pinnacle Bank has the ability to liquidate Federal funds sold or securities available-for-sale, or on a short-
term basis to borrow and purchase Federal funds from other financial institutions. The following table presents additional information
about our unfunded commitments as of December 31, 2017, which by their terms, have contractual maturity dates subsequent to December
31, 2017 (in thousands):

At December 31, 2017

Next 12 More than 60

months 13-36 months ~ 37-60 months months Totals
Unfunded commitments:
Lines of credit $ 189,309 $ 1470397 $ 1,205907 $ 1215813 $ 5,788,426
Letters of credit 132,138 10,418 1,029 100 143,685
Totals $ 2028447 $ 1480815 $ 1206936 $ 1215913 $ 5932111

We follow the same credit policies and underwriting practices when making these commitments as we do for on-balance sheet
instruments. Each customer's creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis and the amount of collateral obtained, if any, is
based on management's credit evaluation of the customer. However, should the commitments be drawn upon and should our
customers default on their resulting obligation to us, our maximum exposure to credit loss, without consideration of collateral, is
represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. At December 31, 2017, we had accrued $3.1 million for the inherent risks
associated with off balance sheet commitments.
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Impact of Inflation

The consolidated financial statements and related consolidated financial data presented herein have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and practices within the banking industry which require the measurement of financial
position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the changes in the relative purchasing power of money
over time dueto inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all the assets and liahilities of afinancial institution are monetary
in nature. As a result, interest rates have a more significant impact on a financial institution's performance than the effects of general
levels of inflation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2016, the FASB issued updated guidance to Accounting Standards Update, 2016-09 Stock Compensation Improvements to
Employee Share-Based Payment Activity (ASU 2016-09) intended to simplify and improve several aspects of the accounting for share-
based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of such awards as either equity or liabilities and
classification of such awards on the statement of cash flows. This Accounting Standards Update (ASU) impacted Pinnacle Financid's
consolidated financial statementsby requiring that all incometax effectsrel ated to settlements of share-based payment awards be reported
asincreases (or decreases) to income tax expense. Previoudly, income tax benefits at settlement of an award were reported as an increase
(or decrease) to additional paid-in capital. The ASU also requires that all income tax related cash flows resulting from share-based
payments be reported as operating activities in the statement of cash flows whereas these cash flows were previously reported as a
reduction to operating cash flows and an increase to financing cash flows. The guidance became effective for Pinnacle Financial on
January 1, 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the newly adopted standard resulted in a reduction in tax expense of $5.4
million.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2018-02, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic
220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The amendmentsin thisASU addressed
the income tax accounting treatment of the stranded tax effects within other comprehensive income due to the newly enacted federal
corporate tax rate included in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act issued December 22, 2017. These amendments allow an entity to make a
reclassification from other comprehensiveincometo retained earnings for the difference between the historical corporateincometax rate
and the newly enacted corporate income tax rate. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018,
including interim periods within those years. Early adoption is permitted with retrospective application. Pinnacle Financial is currently
evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements, but does not expect it to have a material impact.

In August 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Improvements to
Accounting for Hedging Activities. The amendmentsin this ASU makes more financial and non-financia hedging strategies eligible for
hedge accounting. It also amends the presentation and disclosure requirements and changes how companies assess effectiveness. The
amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is
permitted. Pinnacle Financial is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

InMarch2017,the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-08, Receivables— Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic
310-20): Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. The amendment in this ASU shortens the amortization period
for certain callable debt securities held at a premium to the earliest call date. The amendment does not require an accounting change for
securities held at adiscount; the discount continues to be amortized to maturity. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those periods. Early adoption is permitted with modified retrospective
application. Pinnacle Financial is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements, but does
not expect it to have a material impact.

InJanuary 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-04, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying
the Test for Goodwill Impairment to simplify how entities other than private companies, such as public business entities and not-for-profit
entities, arerequired to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating the comparison of theimplied fair value of the reporting unit'sgoodwill
with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including
interim periods within those periods. If this standard had been effective for the year ended December 31, 2017, there would have been
no impact on Pinnacle Financial's consolidated financial statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition
of a Business. The amendment in this ASU clarifies the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities
with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) or assets or businesses. The amendments are
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those periods. If this standard had been
effectivefor theyear ended December 31, 2017, therewoul d havebeen noimpact on PinnacleFinancial's consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases guidance requiring the recognition in the statement
of financial position of |ease assets and lease liabilities by |essees for those |eases classified as operating leases under previous GAAP.
The guidance requires that alessee should recognize |ease assets and |ease liabilities as compared to previous GAAPthat did not require
lease assets and |ease liabilities to be recognized for most leases. The guidance becomes effective for us on January 1, 2019. If this
standard was effective as of the date of the financial statements included in this report, Pinnacle Financial would have recorded aright
of useasset and liability in an amount similar to its current future minimum lease obligations as shown in Note 8. Premises and Equipment
and Lease Commitments.

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses: Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments (the ASU), which introduces the current expected credit losses methodology. Among other things, the
ASU requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets, including loans and available-for-sale debt securities,
held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the
collectahility of the reported amount. The new model will require institutions to calculate all probable and estimable losses that are
expected to be incurred through the loan's entire life. ASU 2016-13 a so requires the allowance for credit losses for purchased financial
assetswith credit deterioration since origination to bedeterminedin amanner similar to that of other financial assetsmeasured at amortized
cost; however, the initial allowance will be added to the purchase price rather than recorded as credit loss expense. The disclosure of
credit quality indicators related to the amortized cost of financing receivables will be further disaggregated by year of origination (or
vintage). Ingtitutions are to apply the changes through a cumulative-effect adjustment to their retained earnings as of the beginning of
the first reporting period in which the standard is effective. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019. Early application will be permitted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. Pinnacle Financial is currently assessing
the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financia statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) intended to reduce the
diversity in practice around how certain transactions are classified within the statement of cash flows. The guidanceiseffectivefor public
companies for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoptionis
permitted with retrospective application. Pinnacle Financial does not expect this standard will have a material impact on the financials,
with the exception of dividends received from our equity method investments which will be reclassified as a cash flow from investments
to operating cash flows beginning in the first quarter of 2018.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606 ) developed
asajoint project with the International Accounting Standards Board to remove inconsistencies in revenue requirements and provide a
morerobust framework for addressing revenueissues. TheA SU's core principleisthat an entity should recognizerevenuewhenit transfers
promised goods or servicesto customersin an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expectsto be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-14, which deferred the effective date
by one year (i.e., interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017). Early adoption is permitted, but not before
the original effectivedate (i.e., interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016). The ASU may be adopted using
either a modified retrospective method or a full retrospective method. Pinnacle Financial adopted the ASU during the first quarter of
2018, asrequired, using amodified retrospective approach. Themajority of Pinnacle Financial'srevenue streamisgenerated fromfinancial
instrumentswhich are not within the scope of thisASU. However, Pinnacle Financial has eval uated theimpact for other fee-based income
and has concluded that this standard will not materially impact its financial statements.

Other than those pronouncements discussed above and those which have been recently adopted, we do not believe there were any other
recently issued accounting pronouncements that are expected to materially impact Pinnacle Financial.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Theresponseto thisItem isincluded in Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations", on pages 40 through 71 and is incorporated herein by reference.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. (the "Company") isresponsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting. The Company'sinternal control system was designed to provide reasonabl e assurance to the Company's
management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. All internal control
systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide
only reasonabl e assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

The Company's management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financia reporting as of December 31,
2017. Inmaking thisassessment, it used thecriteriaset forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizati ons of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013).

Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2017, the Company's internal control over financial reporting is effective
based on those criteria.

The Company'sindependent registered public accounting firm hasissued an audit report on the Company'sinternal control over financial
reporting. This report appears on page 76 of thisAnnual Report on Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and the Board of Directors of
Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc.
Nashville, Tennessee

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company")
asof December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial
statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two yearsin the period ended December
31, 2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”),
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework: (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our
report dated February 28, 2018 expressed an unqualified opinion.

Basis for Opinion

These financia statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our
audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or
fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding
theamountsand disclosuresin thefinancia statements. Our audits also included eval uating the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2016.

Franklin, Tennessee
February 28, 2018
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2015. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.'s
management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the results of Pinnacle
Financia Partners, Inc.’s operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

IS KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 29, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and the Board of Directors of
Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc.
Nashville, Tennessee

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.’s (the “ Company”) internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2017,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework: (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2017, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework: (2013) issued by
COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (* PCAOB”),
the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the yearsin the two-year period ended December 31, 2017, and
the related notes (collectively referred to asthe "financial statements') and our report dated February 28, 2018 expressed an unqualified
opinion.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying M anagement Report on Internal Control Over
Financia Reporting. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on the Company’sinternal control over financial reporting based on our
audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB")
and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federa securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether effectiveinternal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
therisk that amaterial weakness exists, and testing and eval uating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’sinternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’sinternal control over financial reporting includesthose policiesand proceduresthat (1) pertain to the maintenance
of recordsthat, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonabl eassurancethat transactionsare recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statementsin accordancewith generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changesin
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s Crowe Horwath LLP

Franklin, Tennessee
February 28, 2018
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

ASSETS 2017 2016
Cash and noninterest-bearing due from banks $ 176553466 $ 84,732,291
Interest-bearing due from banks 496,911,376 97,529,713
Federal funds sold and other 106,132,455 1,383,416
Cash and cash equivaents 779,597,297 183,645,420
Securities available-for-sale, at fair value 2,515,283,219 1,298,546,056
Securities held-to-maturity (fair value of $20,829,978 and $25,233,254 at December 31,
2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively) 20,762,303 25,251,316
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 103,728,658 47,710,120
Commercial |oans held-for-sale 25,456,141 22,587,971
Loans 15,633,116,029 8,449,924,736
Less alowance for loan losses (67,240,094) (58,980,475)
Loans, net 15,565,875,935 8,390,944,261
Premises and equipment, net 266,013,608 88,904,145
Equity method investment 221,667,490 205,359,844
Accrued interest receivable 57,439,656 28,234,826
Goodwill 1,808,001,781 551,593,796
Core deposits and other intangible assets 56,710,268 15,104,038
Other real estate owned 27,830,824 6,089,804
Other assets 757,332,667 330,651,002
Total assets $22,205,699,847 $11,194,622,599
Deposits:
Non-interest-bearing $ 4,381,386,246 $ 2,399,191,152
Interest-bearing 2,987,290,844 1,808,331,784
Savings and money market accounts 6,548,964,272 3,714,930,351
Time 2,534,060,910 836,853,761
Total deposits 16,451,702,272 8,759,307,048
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 135,262,140 85,706,558
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,319,908,629 406,304,187
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 465,504,589 350,768,050
Accrued interest payable 10,480,426 5,573,377
Other liahilities 114,889,760 90,267,267
Totd liabilities 18,497,747,816 9,697,926,487
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and
outstanding — —
Common stock, par value $1.00; 90,000,000 shares authorized; 77,739,636 and 46,359,377
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2017 and 2016 77,739,636 46,359,377
Additional paid-in capital 3,115,303,675 1,083,490,728
Retained earnings 519,144,543 381,072,505
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes (4,235,823) (14,226,498)
Total stockholders' equity 3,707,952,031 1,496,696,112

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$22,205,699,847 $11,194,622,599

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Interest income:
Loans, including fees
Securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Federal funds sold and other
Total interest income

Interest expense:
Deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts
Investment services
Insurance sales commissions
Gains on mortgage loans sold, net
Investment gains (losses) on sales, net
Trust fees
Income from equity method investment
Other noninterest income

Total noninterest income

Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits
Equipment and occupancy
Other real estate expense (benefit), net
Marketing and other business development
Postage and supplies
Amortization of intangibles
Merger related expenses
Other noninterest expense
Total noninterest expense
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income

Per share information:
Basic net income per common share
Diluted net income per common share
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

For the years ended December 31,

2017 2016 2015
$ 578,286,155 $ 335734531 $ 232,847,334
39,060,195 19,179,012 15,060,392
13,711,759 6,014,037 5,783,443
5,080,140 2,681,348 1,478,711
636,138,249 363,608,028 255,169,880
59,583,527 23,917,318 13,209,425
405,837 185,305 138,347
32,841,874 14,512,024 5,189,193
92,831,238 38,614,647 18,536,965
543,307,011 324,994,281 236,632,915
23,663,944 18,328,058 9,188,497
519,643,067/ 306,666,223 227,444,418
20,032,979 14,500,679 12,745,742
14,315,228 10,757,348 9,971,313
7,404,928 5,309,494 4,824,007
18,624,621 15,754,473 7,668,960
(8,264,639) 395,186 552,063
8,663,590 6,328,021 5,461,257
37,957,692 31,402,923 20,591,484
46,168,416 36,554,938 24,715,442
144902,815 121,003,062 86,530,268
209,661,812 140,818,772 105,928,914
54,091,964 35,071,654 27,241,477
1,079,193 395,561 (305,956)
8,321,073 6,536,484 4,863,307
5,735,716 3,929,323 3,228,300
8,815,609 4,281,459 1,973,953
31,843,413 11,746,584 4,797,018
47,011,079 33,505,586 23,149,743
366,559,850  236,285423 170,876,756
297,086,023 191,383,862 143,097,930
124,006,536 64,159,167 47,588,528

$ 173979487 $ 127,224695 $ 95,509,402
2.73 2.96 2.58

2.70 2.01 2.52
63,760,578 43,037,083 37,015,468
~_ 64328189 __ 43731992 ___ 37973,/88




PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015

$ 127,224,695 $ 95,509,402

(9,700,933) (5,582,965)
(800,188) (1,725,136)

(240,155) (335,489)

(10,741,276) (7,643,590)

2017

Net income: $ 173,979,487
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Changesin fair value on available-for-sale securities, net of tax 2,828,551

Changesin fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax 2,139,703

Net loss (gain) on sale of investment securities reclassified from other

comprehensive income into net income, net of tax 5,022,421
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 9,990,675
Total comprehensive income $ 183,970,162

$ 116483419 $ 87,865,812

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2017

December 31, 2014

Exercise of employee common stock options, stock
appreciation rights and related tax benefits

Common dividends paid

Issuance of restricted common shares, net of
forfeitures

Common stock issued in conjunction with
CapitalMark acquisition, net of issuance costs

Common stock issued in conjunction with Magna
acquisition, net of issuance costs

Restricted shares withheld for taxes
Compensation expense for restricted shares
Net income

Other comprehensive loss

December 31, 2015

Exercise of employee common stock options, stock
appreciation rights and related tax benefits

Common dividends paid

Issuance of restricted common shares, net of
forfeitures

Common stock issued in conjunction with BHG,
net of issuance costs

Common stock issued in conjunction with Avenue
acquisition, net of issuance costs

Restricted shares withheld for taxes
Compensation expense for restricted shares
Net income

Other comprehensive loss

December 31, 2016

Exercise of employee common stock options, stock
appreciation rights and related tax benefits

Common dividends paid

Issuance of restricted common shares, net of
forfeitures

I ssuance of common equity

Common stock issued in conjunction with BNC
acquisition, net of issuance costs

Restricted shares withheld for taxes
Compensation expense for restricted shares
Net income

Other comprehensive income

December 31, 2017

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Stockholders'

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
35,732,483 $ 35732483 $ 561,431,449 $ 201,371,081 $ 4,158,368 $ 802,693,381
304,313 304,313 7,187,629 — — 7,491,942
— — — (18,307,075) — (18,307,075)
257,218 257,218 (257,218) — — —
3,306,184 3,306,184 202,648,875 — — 205,955,059
1,371,717 1,371,717 62,166,214 — — 63,537,931
(65,851) (65,851) (901,502) — — (967,353)
— — 7,341,603 — — 7,341,603
— — — 95,509,402 — 95,509,402
— — (7,643,590) (7,643,590)

40,906,064 $ 40,906,064

$ 839,617,050

$ 278,573,408 $ (3,485,222) $1,155,611,300

699,810 699,810 16,736,365 — — 17,436,175
— — —  (24,725,598) —  (24,725598)
200,098 200,098 (200,098) — — —
860,470 860,470 38,833,566 — — 39,694,036
3760326 3,760,326 178,708,278 — — 182,468,604
(67,391) (67,391) (1,175,282) — — (1,242,673)
— — 10,970,849 — — 10,970,849

— — — 127,224,695 — 127,224,695

— — — — (10,741,276)  (10,741,276)

46,359,377 $ 46,359,377

$ 1,083,490,728

$ 381,072,505 $  (14,226,498) $1,496,696,112

275,431 275,431 5,200,191 — — 5,484,622
— — —  (35,907,449) —  (35907,449)
271,602 271,602 (271,602) — — —
3220000 3,220,000 188,973,750 — — 192,193,750
27,687,100 27,687,100  1,823,280,926 — —  1,850,968,026
(73,874) (73,874) (4,917,401) — — (4,991,275)

— — 19,538,083 — — 19,538,083

— — — 173,979,487 — 173,979,487

— — — — 9,990,675 9,990,675

77,739,636 $ 77,739,636 $ 3,115,303,675 $ 519,144,543 $

(4,235,823) $ 3,707,952,031

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net amortization/accretion of premium/discount on securities

Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Provision for |oan losses

Gains on mortgage loans sold, net

Investment |osses (gains) on sales, net
Stock-based compensation expense

Deferred tax expense

Revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities

Losses (gains) on disposition of other real estate and other investments

Income from equity method investment
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation
Gains on other loans sold, net
Other loans held for sale originated
Other loans held for sale sold
Mortgage loans held for sale originated
Mortgage loans held for sale sold
Increase in other assets
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Activities in securities available-for-sale:
Purchases
Sales
Maturities, prepayments and calls
Activities in securities held-to-maturity:
Purchases
Maturities, prepayments and calls
Increasein loans, net
Purchases of premises and equipment and software
Purchase of BOLI
Proceeds from sales of software, premises, and equipment
Proceeds from sale of mortgage servicing rights
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Increase in equity method investment
Dividends received from equity method investment
Increase in other investments
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Net increase in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in repurchase agreements
Advances from Federal Home L oan Bank:
Issuances
Payments

Proceeds from subordinated debt and other borrowings, net of issuance costs

Repayment of other borrowings
Principal payments of capital lease obligation
Proceeds from common stock issuance

Exercise of common stock options and stock appreciation rights, net of shares surrendered for

taxes
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation
Common dividends paid
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivaents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

For the years ended December 31,

2017 2016 2015
173979487 $ 127224695 $ 95,500,402
12,846,572 8,630,048 5,231,583
(23,618,474) 16,995,490 10,268,576
23,663,944 18,328,058 9,188,497
(18,624,621) (15,754,473) (7,668,960
8,264,639 (395,186) (552,063)
19,538,083 10,970,849 7,341,603
28,164,871 14,390,035 5,819,463
31,485,672 — —

(202,980) 140,992 (433,911)
(37,957,692) (31,402,923) (20,591,484)
(5,365,493) (4,604,007) (4,116,120)
(1,488,140) (885,320) —

(177,433,682) (112,669,589) —
176,062,619 90,966,938 —

(1,100,866,370) (784,213,817) (524,679,767)

1,090,489,558 803,498,453 519,134,000
(33,297,361) (17,411,223) (2,359,490)
(17,699,526) 2,829,656 (7,487,499)
147,941,106 126,633,676 84,603,830

(1,290,716,532) (583,330,035) (342,192,699)
363,808,141 72,829,440 189,029,458
323,235,144 280,805,769 146,441,236

— (560,000) (1,550,995)
4,115,000 6,200,000 8,185,000

(1,558,646,425) (966,207,993) (668,297,036)
(53,498,776) (17,058,292) (10,870,851)
(55,000,000) — _

23,038 2,187,381 782,482
— 6,747,626 —
155,141,674 17,608,471 5,876,592
— (74,100,000) (75,440,530)
21,650,046 28,982,009 7,152,000
7,804,237 27,508,882 (1,712,685

(2,097,602,927) (1,253,404,506) (742,598,028)

1,488,273,894 822,306,826 783,352,902
(12,754,500) 6,622,260 (32,784,245)

1,964,750,001 1,934,000,000 1,135,000,000

(1,051,066,604) (1,934,093,153) (1,092,781,984)

— 243,226,783 59,129,504
(220,100) (74,000,302) (50,290,006)
(148,641) (70,401) —

192,193,750 = =
493,347 11,589,495 3,602,805
— 4,604,007 4,116,120
(35,907,449) (24,725,508) (18,307,075)

2,545,613,698 089,450,917 791,038,021
595,051,877 (137,305,013) 133,043,323
183,645,420 320,951,333 187,907,510
779,507,297 $ 183645420 $ 320,951,333

See accompanying notes to consolidated financia statements.
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PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business — Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. (Pinnacle Financial) is a bank holding company whose primary businessis
conducted by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Pinnacle Bank (Pinnacle Bank). Pinnacle Bank is acommercia bank headquartered in
Nashville, Tennessee. Pinnacle Financial completed its acquisitions of CapitalMark Bank & Trust (CapitalMark), Magna Bank
(Magna), Avenue Financial Holdings, Inc. (Avenue) and BNC Bancorp (BNC) on July 31, 2015, September 1, 2015, July 1, 2016 and
June 16, 2017, respectively. Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank also collectively hold a49% interest in Bankers Healthcare Group,
LLC (BHG), afull-service commercial loan provider to healthcare and other professional practices. Pinnacle Bank provides a full
range of banking services, including investment, mortgage, and insurance services, and comprehensive wealth management services,
inits 11 primarily urban markets within Tennessee, the Carolinas and Virginia.

Basis of Presentation — These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pinnacle Financial and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Certain statutory trust affiliates of Pinnacle Financial, as noted in Note 11. Other Borrowings are included in these
consolidated financial statements pursuant to the equity method of accounting. Significant intercompany transactions and accounts are
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statementsin conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
reguires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Materia estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant changein
the near term include the determination of the allowance for loan losses, determination of any impairment of intangible assets and the
valuation of deferred tax assets.

Impairment — Long-lived assets, including purchased intangible assets subject to amortization, such as core deposit intangible
assets, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of assetsto be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceedsits
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. Pinnacle Financial had $56.7 million and $15.1 million
of long-lived amortizing intangibles at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment at least annually and more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset
might be impaired. The Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 350, Goodwill and Other, regarding testing goodwill for
impairment provides an entity the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of areporting unit islessthan its carrying amount. If an entity does a qualitative assessment and determines that thisis
the case, or if aqualitative assessment is not performed, it is required to perform additional goodwill impairment testing to identify
potential goodwill impairment and measure the amount of goodwill impairment loss to be recognized for that reporting unit (if any).
Based on a qualitative assessment, if an entity determines that the fair value of areporting unit is more than its carrying amount, the
two-step goodwill impairment test is not required. Pinnacle Financial performed its annual assessment as of September 30, 2017. The
results of the qualitative assessment indicated that the fair value of Pinnacle Financial's sole reporting unit was more than its carrying
value, and accordingly, the two-step goodwill impairment test was not performed.
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Should Pinnacle Financia's common stock price decline or other impairment indicators become known, additional impairment
testing of goodwill may be required. Should it be determined in a future period that the goodwill has become impaired, then a charge
to earnings will be recorded in the period such determination is made. The following table presents activity for goodwill and other
intangible assets (in thousands):

Core deposit and

Goodwill other intangible assets Total
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 551,594 $ 15104 $ 566,698
Acquisitions 1,256,455 50,422 1,306,877
Amortization — (8,816) (8,816)
Change in purchase price allocation of previous acquisitions — — —
Other changes ® (47) — (47)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 1,808,002 $ 56,710 $ 1,864,712

@ Represents options exercised related to acquisitions which occurred prior to the adoption of ASC 718-20 Compensation.

The following table presents the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for the core deposit and other intangible
assets, which are subject to amortization (in thousands):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Gross carrying amount $ 92,787 $ 42,365
Accumulated amortization (36,077) (27,261)
Net book value $ 56,710 $ 15,104

Cash Equivalents and Cash Flows — Cash on hand, cash itemsin process of collection, amounts due from banks, Federal funds

sold, short-term discount notes and securities purchased under agreements to resell, with original maturities within ninety days, are
included in cash and cash equivalents. The following supplemental cash flow information addresses certain cash payments and
noncash transactions for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2017 as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2017 2016 2015
Cash Payments:
Interest 91,628,041 $ 37,002,870 $ 17,435,292
Income taxes paid 81,538,510 49,503,637 45,715,968
Noncash Transactions:
L oans charged-off to the allowance for loan losses 22,046,511 31,112,118 21,148,034
L oans foreclosed upon with repossessions transferred to other real estate 6,227,509 4,453,060 341,342
Loans foreclosed upon with repossessions transferred to other repossessed assets 645,737 1,842,318 8,259,368
Other real estate sales financed 907,931 — —
Common stock issued in connection with acquisitions 1,850,968,026 222,162,640 269,492,990

Securities — Securities are classified based on management's intention on the date of purchase. All debt securities classified as
available-for-sale are recorded at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss), net of the deferred income tax effects. Securities that Pinnacle Financial has both the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are carried at historical cost and adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of

discounts.

Interest and dividends on securities, including amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts calculated under the effective

interest method, are included in interest income. For certain securities, amortization of premiums and accretion of discountsis
computed based on the anticipated life of the security which may be shorter than the stated life of the security. Realized gains and

losses from the sale of securities are determined using the specific identification method, and are recorded on the trade date of the sale.



Other-than-temporary Impairment — A decline in the fair value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below cost
that is deemed to be other-than-temporary resultsin areduction in the carrying amount of the security. To determine whether
impairment is other-than-temporary, management considers whether the entity expects to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the
security by reviewing the present value of the future cash flows associated with the security. The shortfall of the present value of the
cash flows expected to be collected in relation to the amortized cost basis is referred to as a credit loss and is deemed to be other-than-
temporary impairment. If acredit lossis identified, the credit 10ss is recognized as a charge to earnings and a new cost basis for the
security is established. If management concludes that adecline in fair value of a security is temporary and, afull recovery of principal
and interest is expected and it is not more-likely-than-not that it will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized
cost basis, then the security is not other-than-temporarily impaired and the shortfall is recorded as a component of equity.

Periodically, available-for-sale securities may be sold or the composition of the portfolio realigned to improve yields, quality or
marketability, or to implement changesin investment or asset/liability strategy, including maintaining collateral requirements and
raising funds for liquidity purposes. Additionally, if an available-for-sale security losesits investment grade, tax-exempt status, the
underlying credit support is terminated or collection otherwise becomes uncertain based on factors known to management, Pinnacle
Financial will consider selling the security, but will review each security on a case-by-case basis as these factors become known.
Resultantly, other-than-temporary charges may be incurred as management's intention related to a particular security changes.

The carrying values of Pinnacle Financial's investment securities could decline in the future if the financial condition of the
securities issuer deteriorates and management determinesit is probable that Pinnacle Financial will not recover the entire amortized
cost bases of the securities. Asaresult, thereisarisk that other-than-temporary impairment charges may occur in the future. Thereis
also arisk that other-than-temporary impairment charges may occur in the future if management's intention to hold these securitiesto
maturity and or recovery changes.

Loans held-for-sale — Loans originated and intended for sale are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value as determined
on aloan-by-loan basis. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by chargesto income. Realized
gains and losses are recognized when legal title to the |oans has been transferred to the purchaser and sales proceeds have been
received and are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statement of income in gains on mortgage |oans sold, net of related costs
such as compensation expenses, for mortgage |oans, and as a component of other noninterest income for commercial loans held-for-
sale.

Loans — Pinnacle Financia has five loan segments for financia reporting purposes. commercial and industrial, commercial real
estate mortgage, construction and land devel opment, consumer and other and consumer real estate mortgage. The appropriate
classification is determined based on the underlying collateral utilized to secure each loan. These classifications are consistent with
those utilized in the Quarterly Report of Condition and Income filed by Pinnacle Bank with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC).

Loans are reported at their outstanding principal balances, net of the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees or costs on
originated loans. Interest income on loans is accrued based on the principal balance outstanding. Loan origination fees, net of certain
loan origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment to the related loan yield using a method which approximates the
interest method. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, net deferred loan fees of $7.8 million and $7.6 million respectively, were included
in loans on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

As part of our routine credit monitoring process, commercial loans receive risk ratings by the assigned financial advisor and are
subject to validation by our independent loan review department. Risk ratings are categorized as pass, special mention, substandard,
substandard-nonaccrual or doubtful-nonaccrual. Pinnacle Financial believes that its categories follow those outlined by Pinnacle
Bank's primary federal regulator. At December 31, 2017, approximately 81.4% of Pinnacle Financial's |oan portfolio was assigned a
specifically assigned risk rating. Certain consumer loans and commercial relationships that possess certain qualifying characteristics,
including individually smaller balances, are generally not assigned an individual risk rating but are evaluated collectively for credit
risk as a homogeneous pool of loans and individually as either accrual or nonaccrual based on the performance of the loan.

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when thereis a significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower, which
generaly isthe case but is not limited to when the principal or interest is more than 90 days past due, unless the loan is both well-
secured and in the process of collection. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrua statusis
reversed against current interest income. Interest income is subsequently recognized only if certain cash payments are received while
theloan is classified as nonaccrual, but interest income recognition is reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine if the payment
should be applied to interest or principal pursuant to regulatory guidelines. A nonaccrual loan is returned to accruing status once the
loan has been brought current as to principal and interest and collection is reasonably assured or the loan has been well-secured
through other techniques.
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All loansthat are placed on nonaccrual status are further analyzed to determine if they should be classified asimpaired loans. A
loan is considered to be impaired when it is probable Pinnacle Financia will be unable to collect all principal and interest payments
due in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. This determination is made using a variety of techniques, which include a
review of the borrower's financial condition, debt-service coverage ratios, global cash flow analysis, guarantor support, other loan file
information, meetings with borrowers, inspection or reappraisal of collateral and/or consultation with legal counsel as well as results
of reviews of other similar industry credits (e.g. builder loans, development loans, church loans, etc.).

Loans are charged off when management believes that the full collectability of the loan is unlikely. Assuch, aloan may be
partially charged-off after a"confirming event" has occurred which servesto validate that full repayment pursuant to the terms of the
loan isunlikely.

Purchased Loans — Purchased loans, including loans acquired through a merger, areinitialy recorded at fair value on the date of
purchase. Purchased loans that contain evidence of post-origination credit deterioration as of the purchase date are carried at the net
present value of expected future cash flows. All other purchased loans are recorded at their initial fair value, and adjusted for
subsequent advances, pay downs, amortization or accretion of any fair value premium or discount on purchase, charge-offs and any
other adjustment to carrying value. Pursuant to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), management has up to 12
months following the date of the acquisition to finalize the fair values of acquired assets and assumed liabilities as of the acquisition
date. Once management has finalized the fair values of acquired assets and assumed liabilities within this 12-month period,
management considers such values to be the day 1 fair values (Day 1 Fair Values).

At the time of acquisition, management evaluates all purchased loans using a variety of factors such as current classification or
risk rating, past due status and history as a component of the fair value determination. For those purchased loans without evidence of
credit deterioration, management eval uates each reviewed loan using an internal grading system with a grade assigned to each loan at
the date of acquisition. To the extent that any purchased loan is not specifically reviewed, such loan is assumed to have characteristics
similar to the characteristics of the specifically reviewed acquired portfolio of purchased loans. The grade for each purchased loan
without evidence of credit deterioration is reviewed subsequent to the date of acquisition any time aloan is renewed or extended or at
any time information becomes available to Pinnacle Financial that provides material insight regarding the loan's performance, the
borrower's capacity to repay or the underlying collateral.

In determining the Day 1 Fair Values of purchased loans without evidence of post-origination credit deterioration at the date of
acquisition, management includes (i) no carry over of any previously recorded allowance for loan losses (ALL) and (ii) an adjustment
of the unpaid principal balance to reflect an appropriate market rate of interest and expected loss, given the risk profile and grade
assigned to each loan. This adjustment is accreted into earnings as ayield adjustment, using the effective yield method, over the
remaining life of each loan.

Purchased loans that contain evidence of credit deterioration on the date of purchase are individually evaluated by management
to determine the estimated fair value of each loan. This evaluation includes no carryover of any previously recorded ALL. In
determining the estimated fair value of purchased loans with evidence of credit deterioration, management considers a number of
factors including, among other things, the remaining life of the acquired loans, estimated prepayments, estimated loss ratios, estimated
value of the underlying collateral, estimated holding periods, and net present value of cash flows expected to be received.

In determining the Day 1 Fair Values of purchased |oans with evidence of credit deterioration, management cal cul ates a non-
accretable difference (the credit risk component of the purchased loans) and an accretable difference (the yield component of the
purchased loans). The non-accretable difference is the difference between the contractually required payments and the cash flows
expected to be collected in accordance with management's determination of the Day 1 Fair Values. Subsequent increases in expected
cash flows will result in an adjustment to accretable yield, which will have a positive impact on interest income. Subsequent decreases
in expected cash flows will generally result in increased provision for loan losses. Subsequent increases in expected cash flows
following any previous decrease will result in areversal of the provision for loan losses to the extent of prior charges and then an
adjustment to accretable yield. The accretable difference on purchased |oans with evidence of credit deterioration is the difference
between the expected cash flows and the net present value of expected cash flows. Such difference is accreted into earnings using the
effective yield method over the term of the loans. For purchased loans with evidence of credit deterioration for which the expected
cash flows cannot be forecasted, these loans are deemed to be collateral dependent, are recorded at their fair value and are placed on
nonaccrual, with interest payments recorded on a cash basis, as appropriate.
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Allowance for Loan Losses (allowance) - Pinnacle Financial's management assesses the adequacy of the allowance prior to the
end of each calendar quarter. This assessment includes procedures to estimate the allowance and test the adequacy and appropriateness
of the resulting balance. The level of the allowance is based upon management's evaluation of the loan portfolio, loan loss experience,
asset quality trends, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrowers' ability to repay the
loan (including the timing of future payment), the estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfalio,
economic conditions, industry and peer bank loan quality indications and other pertinent factors, including regulatory
recommendations. The level of allowance maintained by management is believed adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in the
loan portfolio at the balance sheet date. The allowanceisincreased by provisions charged to expense and decreased by charge-offs, net
of recoveries of amounts previously charged-off. Allocation of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance
isavailable for any loan that, in management's judgment, is deemed uncollectible.

Pinnacle Financial's allowance for loan loss assessment methodol ogy was modified during the year ended December 31, 2017 to
(i) extend the lookback period from 24 quarters to a period beginning January 1, 2006 to better capture the risk associated with this
extended economic cycle, (ii) eliminate the use of risk ratings in the calculation of the loss rate and instead focus on loss rate by loan
type and (iii) expand the economic variables used in the qualitative assessment to incorporate our expanded footprint. Pinnacle
Financia also eliminated the use of aloss emergence period in light of the minimal population of losses available to evaluate that were
previously being extrapolated to the full population of loans, and shifted the focus of its analysis to more of a quantitative model.
There was no material impact on the adoption of the changesin the allowance for loan loss assessment methodol ogy.

Pinnacle Financial's allowance for loan losses is composed of the result of two independent analyses pursuant to the provisions
of ASC 450-20, Loss Contingencies and ASC 310-10-35, Receivables. The ASC 450-20 analysisis intended to quantify the inherent
risksin its performing loan portfolio. The ASC 310-10-35 analysis includes aloan-by-loan analysis of impaired loans, including those
reported as nonaccrual, troubled-debt restructurings and purchase credit impaired.

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, Pinnacle Financial also considers the results of Pinnacle Financial's ongoing
independent loan review process. Pinnacle Financial undertakes this process both to ascertain those loans in the portfolio with elevated
credit risk and to assist in its overall evaluation of the risk characteristics of the entire loan portfolio. Itsloan review process includes
the judgment of management, independent internal 1oan reviewers, and reviews that may have been conducted by third-party
reviewers including regulatory examiners. Pinnacle Financial incorporates relevant loan review results in the allowance.

The ASC 450-20 component of the allowance for loan losses begins with a historical |oss rate cal culation for each loan pool
with similar risk characteristics. The losses realized over arolling four-quarter cycle are utilized to determine an annual loss rate for
each loan pool for each quarter-end in our look-back period. The look-back period in our loss rate calculation begins with January
2006, as we believe the period from January 1, 2006 to present is more representative of this economic cycle. The loss rates for each
category are then averaged and applied to the end of period loan portfolio balances to determine estimated losses. The loss rates
provide a quantitative estimate of credit losses inherent in our end of period loan portfolio based on our actual [oss experience.

The estimated loan loss alocation for al loan segmentsis then adjusted for management's estimate of probable losses for a
number of qualitative factors that have not been considered in the quantitative analysis. The qualitative categories and the
measurements used to quantify the risks within each of these categories are subjectively selected by management, but measured by
objective measurements period over period. The data for each measurement may be obtained from internal or external sources. The
current period measurements are evaluated and assigned a factor commensurate with the current level of risk relative to past
measurements over time. The resulting factor is applied to the non-impaired loan portfolio. This amount represents estimated probable
inherent credit losses which exist, but have not yet been identified either in itsrisk rating or impairment process, as of the balance
sheet date, and is based upon quarterly trend assessments in portfolio concentrations, policy exceptions, economic conditions,
associate retention, independent loan review results, collateral considerations, credit quality, competition, enterprise wide risk
assessments, and peer group credit quality. The qualitative alowance allocation, as determined by the processes noted above, is
increased or decreased for each loan segment based on the assessment of these various qualitative factors.

The alowance for loan losses for purchased loansis calculated similar to that utilized for legacy Pinnacle Bank loans. Pinnacle
Financial's accounting policy isto compare the computed allowance for loan losses for each purchased loan to the remaining fair value
adjustment at the individual loan level. If the computed allowance at the loan level is greater than the remaining fair value adjustment,
the excess is added to the allowance for |oan losses by a charge to the provision for loan losses.

The ASC 450-20 portion of the allowance includes a small unallocated component. Pinnacle Financial believes that the
unallocated amount is warranted for inherent factors that cannot be practically assigned to individual |oan categories, such asthe
imprecision in the overall loss allocation measurement process, the subjectivity risk of potentially not considering all relevant
environmental categories and related measurements and imprecision in its credit risk ratings process. The appropriateness of the
unallocated component of the allowance is assessed each quarter end based upon changesin the overall business environment not
otherwise captured.
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The impaired loan alowance is determined pursuant to ASC 310-10-35. Loans are impaired when, based on current information
and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Collection of all amounts due according to the contractual terms means collecting all interest and principal payments of aloan as
scheduled in the loan agreement. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates including the amounts and
timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans that may be susceptible to significant change. Loan losses are
charged off when management believes that the full collectability of the loan is unlikely. A loan may be partially charged-off after a
"confirming event" has occurred which servesto validate that full repayment pursuant to the terms of the loan is unlikely.

An impairment allowance is recognized if the fair value of the loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan (recorded
investment in the loan is the principal balance plus any accrued interest, net of deferred loan fees or costs and unamortized premium or
discount). The impairment is recognized through the provision for loan losses and is a component of the allowance for loan losses.
Loansthat areimpaired are recorded at the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the |oan's effective interest rate,
or if the loan is collateral dependent, at the fair value of the collateral, less estimated disposal costs. If the loan is cash flow dependent,
a specific reserve is established as a component of the allowance. If the loan is collateral dependent, the principal balance of the loan
is charged-off in an amount equal to the impairment measurement. The fair value of collateral dependent loansis derived primarily
from collateral appraisals performed by independent third-party appraisers. Management believes it follows appropriate accounting
and regulatory guidance in determining impairment and accrual status of impaired loans. This analysisis completed for al individual
loans greater than $500,000. The resulting allowance percentage by segment adjusted for specific trends identified, if applicable, is
then applied to the remaining population of impaired loans.

Pursuant to the guidance set forth in ASU No. 2011-02, A Creditor's Determination of Whether a Restructuring is a Troubled
Debt Restructuring, the above impairment methodology is also applied to those loans identified as troubled debt restructurings.

Sufficiency of the computed allowance is then tested by comparison to historical trends and industry and peer information.
Pinnacle Financial then evaluates the result of the procedures performed, including the results of its testing, and concludes on the
appropriateness of the balance of the allowance in its entirety. The audit committee of Pinnacle Financial's board of directors reviews
and approves the methodology and resultant allowance prior to the filing of quarterly and annual financial information.

Whileits policies and procedures used to estimate the allowance for loan losses, as well as the resultant provision for loan losses
charged to income, are considered adequate by management and are reviewed from time to time by regulators, they are necessarily
approximate and imprecise. There are factors beyond Pinnacle Financia's control, such as conditions in the local, national, and
international economy, alocal real estate market or particular industry conditions which may materially negatively impact asset
quality and the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and thus the resulting provision for loan losses.

Transfers of Financial Assets — Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been
surrendered or in the case of aloan participation, a portion of the asset has been surrendered and meets the definition of a
"participating interest”. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from
Pinnacle Financial, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to
pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) Pinnacle Financial does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets
through an agreement to repurchase them before maturity.

Premises and Equipment and Leaseholds — Premises and equipment are carried at cost |ess accumulated depreciation and
amortization computed principally by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the expected |ease terms
for leasehold improvements, whichever is shorter. Useful livesfor all premises and equipment range between three and thirty years.

Pinnacle Bank is the lessee with respect to several office locations. All such leases are being accounted for as operating leases
within the accompanying consolidated financial statements, with the exception of the one capital |ease agreement discussed bel ow.
Several of these leases include rent escalation clauses. Pinnacle Bank expenses the costs associated with these escalating payments
over the life of the expected lease term using the straight-line method. At December 31, 2017, the deferred liability associated with
these escalating rentals was approximately $3.5 million and isincluded in other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

Pinnacle Bank has one lease being accounted for as a capital |ease within the accompanying consolidated financia statements.

Amortization of property under the capital lease is expensed over the life of the expected lease term using the straight-line method and
isincluded in depreciation expense.
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Other Real Estate Owned — Other real estate owned (OREOQ) represents real estate foreclosed upon or acquired by deed in lieu of
foreclosure by Pinnacle Bank through loan defaults by customers. Substantially all of these amounts relate to lots, homes and
residential development projects that are either completed or are in various stages of construction for which Pinnacle Financial
believesit has adequately supported the value recorded. Upon its acquisition by Pinnacle Bank, the property is recorded at fair value,
based on appraised value, less selling costs estimated as of the date acquired. The difference from the loan balance is recognized as a
charge-off through the allowance for loan losses. Additional OREO losses for subsequent downward valuation adjustments and
expenses to maintain OREO are determined on a specific property basis and are included as a component of noninterest expense. Net
gains or losses realized at the time of disposal are reflected in noninterest expense.

Included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2017 is $29.1 million of OREO with related property-
specific valuation allowances of $1.2 million. At December 31, 2016, OREO totaled $6.5 million with related property-specific
valuation allowances of $381,000. During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, Pinnacle Financial had expense
of $1.1 million, expense of $396,000 and a benefit of $306,000, respectively, of net foreclosed real estate expense.

Other Assets — Included in other assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, is approximately $9.3 million and $5.7 million,
respectively, of computer software related assets, net of amortization. This software supports Pinnacle Financial's primary data
systems and relates to amounts paid to vendors for installation and devel opment of such systems. These amounts are amortized on a
straight-line basis over periods of three to seven years. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, Pinnacle Financia's
amortization expense was approximately $2.5 million, $2.3 million, and $1.3 million, respectively. Software maintenance fees are
capitalized in other assets and amortized over the term of the maintenance agreement.

Pinnacle Financia is required to maintain certain minimum levels of equity investments with certain regulatory and other entities
in which Pinnacle Bank has outstanding borrowings, including the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati. At December 31, 2017 and
2016, the cost of these investments was $46.4 million and $31.4 million, respectively. Pinnacle Financia determined that cost
approximates the fair value of these investments. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial has recorded certain investments in other non-public
entities and funds at fair value, of $24.4 million and $8.3 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. During 2017 and 2016,
Pinnacle Financial recorded net losses of $552,310 and $233,000, respectively, due to changes in the fair value of these investments.
Asmore fully described in Note 11, Pinnacle Financial has an investment in twelve Trusts valued at $3,995,000 as of December 31,
2017. The Trusts were established to issue preferred securities, the dividends for which are paid with interest payments Pinnacle
Financial makes on subordinated debenturesiit issued to the Trusts.

Pinnacle Bank is the owner and beneficiary of various life insurance policies on certain key executives and certain current and
former directors and associates, including policies that were acquired in its mergers. Collectively, these policies are reflected in other
assets in the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets at their respective cash surrender values. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the
aggregate cash surrender value of these policies was approximately $415.9 million and $150.6 million, respectively. Noninterest
income related to these policies was $7.9 million, $3.5 million, and $2.5 million, during the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

Also, as part of our compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act, we have investments in low income housing entities
totaling $44.0 million and $43.1 million, net, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Included in our CRA investments are
investments of $23.9 million and $18.9 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, net of amortization, that qualify for
federal low income housing tax credits. The investments are accounted for under the proportional amortization method. Under the
proportional amortization method, the initial cost of the investment is amortized in proportion to the tax credits and other tax benefits
received. The amortization and benefits are recognized as a component of income tax expense in the consolidated statements of
income. The investments are recorded using the cost method.

Derivative Instruments — In accordance with ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, all derivative instruments are recorded
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at their respective fair values. The accounting for changesin fair value (i.e., gains or
losses) of aderivative instrument depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship. If the
derivative instrument is not designated as a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative instrument are recognized in earningsin
the period of change.

Pinnacle Financial enters into interest rate swaps (swaps) to facilitate customer transactions and meet their financing needs. Upon
entering into these instruments to meet customer needs, Pinnacle Financial enters into offsetting positions with large U.S. financial
institutions in order to minimize the risk to Pinnacle Financial. These swaps are derivatives, but are not designated as hedging
instruments.
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Pinnacle Financial aso has forward cash flow hedge relationshipsin the form of interest rate swap agreements to manage its future
interest rate exposure. These derivative contracts have been designated as ahedge and, as such, changesin thefair value of the derivative
instrument are recorded in other comprehensive income. Pinnacle Financial prepares written hedge documentation for all derivatives
which are designated as hedges. The written hedge documentation includes identification of, among other items, the risk management
objective, hedging instrument, hedged item and methodologies for assessing and measuring hedge effectiveness and ineffectiveness,
aong with support for management's assertion that the hedge will be highly effective.

For designated hedging relationships, Pinnacle Financial performs retrospective and prospective effectiveness testing using
quantitative methods and does not assume perfect effectivenessthrough the matching of critical terms. Assessments of hedge effectiveness
and measurements of hedge ineffectiveness are performed at least quarterly. The effective portion of the changes in the fair value of a
derivative that is highly effective and that has been designated and qualifies as a cash flow hedge are initially recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income (AOCI) and will be reclassified to earnings in the same period that the hedged item impacts earnings; any
ineffective portion is recorded in current period earnings.

Hedge accounting ceases on transactions that are no longer deemed effective, or for which the derivative has been terminated or de-
designated.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase — Pinnacle Financia routinely sells securities to certain treasury management
customers and then repurchases these securities the next day. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected as a secured
borrowing in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at the amount of cash received in connection with each transaction.

Income Taxes — ASC 740, Income Taxes, defines the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return positionsin the financial
statements as "more-likely-than-not" to be sustained by the taxing authority. ASU 740 also provides guidance on the derecognition,
measurement and classification of income tax uncertainties, along with any related interest and penalties, and includes guidance
concerning accounting for income tax uncertaintiesin interim periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are the expected future tax amounts for the temporary differences between carrying amounts and
tax bases of assets and liabilities, computed using enacted tax rates. Accordingly, deferred tax assets that will be realized after
December 31, 2017 were revalued using the tax rates enacted as a result of the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act resulting in arevaluation
charge of $31.5 million. The net deferred tax asset is reflected as a component of other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. A
valuation allowanceis required for deferred tax assetsif, based on available evidence, it is more likely than not that all or some
portion of the asset may not be realized due to the inability to generate sufficient taxable income in the period and/or of the character
necessary to utilize the benefit of the deferred tax asset.

Income tax expense or benefit for the year is allocated among continuing operations and other comprehensive income (10ss), as
applicable. The amount allocated to continuing operations is the income tax effect of the pretax income or loss from continuing
operations that occurred during the year, plus or minusincome tax effects of (i) changesin certain circumstances that cause a change
in judgment about the realization of deferred tax assets in future years, including the valuation of deferred tax assets due to changesin
enacted income tax rates (ii) changes in income tax laws or rates, and (iii) changes in income tax status, subject to certain exceptions.
The amount allocated to other comprehensive income (loss) is related solely to changes in the valuation allowance on items that are
normally accounted for in other comprehensive income (loss) such as unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities.

In accordance with ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, uncertain tax positions are recognized if it is more
likely than not, based on technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more likely
than not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related
appeals or litigation processes, if any. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold isinitially and
subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon
settlement with ataxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a tax
position has met the more likely than not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date.

Pinnacle Financia and its subsidiaries file consolidated U.S. Federal and state income tax returns. Each entity provides for
income taxes based on its contribution to income or loss of the consolidated group. Pinnacle Financial has a Real Estate Investment
Trust subsidiary that files a separate federal tax return, but itsincome isincluded in the consolidated group's return as required by the
federal tax laws. Pinnacle Financial remains open to audit under the statute of limitations by the IRS and the states in which Pinnacle
operates for the years ended December 31, 2014 through 2017.
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Pinnacle Financia's policy is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax mattersin income tax expense. No
amounts were accrued for interest and/or penalties at December 31, 2017 or 2016. The amount accrued for interest and/or penalties
related to state uncertain tax positions at December 31, 2015 was $96,000. Pinnacle Financial's policy is to recognize interest and/or
penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

Income Per Common Share — Basic net income per common share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted
average common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue common stock were exercised or converted. The difference between basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding is
attributable to common stock options, common stock appreciation rights, restricted share awards, and restricted share unit awards. The
dilutive effect of outstanding options, common stock appreciation rights, restricted share awards, and restricted share unit awards is
reflected in diluted EPS by application of the treasury stock method.

As of December 31, 2017, there were 274,586 stock options outstanding to purchase common shares. For the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively, 567,611, 694,909 and 958,320 of dilutive stock options, dilutive restricted shares,
restricted share units and stock appreciation rights were included in the diluted earnings per share cal culation under the treasury stock
method. For the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, there were no stock options, restricted shares, restricted share units
and stock appreciation rights excluded from the cal cul ation because they were deemed to be antidilutive.

The following is a summary of the basic and diluted earnings per share calculation for each of the yearsin the three-year period
ended December 31, 2017:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Basic earnings per share calculation:

Numerator - Net income $ 173,979,487 $ 127,224,695 $ 95,509,402
Denominator — Weighted average common shares outstanding 63,760,578 43,037,083 37,015,468
Basic net income per common share $ 273 % 29% $ 2.58
Diluted earnings per share calculation:
Numerator - Net income $ 173,979,487 $ 127,224,695 $ 95,509,402
Denominator — Weighted average common shares outstanding 63,760,578 43,037,083 37,015,468
Dilutive shares contingently issuable 567,611 694,909 958,320
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 64,328,189 43,731,992 37,973,788
Diluted net income per common share $ 270 $ 291 % 2.52

Stock-Based Compensation — Stock-based compensation expense is recognized based on the fair value of the portion of stock-
based payment awards that are ultimately expected to vest, reduced for estimated forfeitures. ASC 718-20, Compensation — Stock
Compensation Awards Classified as Equity requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Service based awards with multiple vesting periods are expensed
over the entire requisite period asif the award were a single award. For awards with performance vesting criteria, anticipated
performance is projected to determine the number of awards expected to vest, and the corresponding aggregate expense is adjusted to
reflect the elapsed portion of the applicable performance period.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) — Comprehensive income (loss) consists of the total of all components of comprehensive income
(loss) including net income (loss). Other comprehensive income (10ss) refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S.
GAAP areincluded in comprehensive income (loss) but excluded from net income (loss). Currently, Pinnacle Financial's other
comprehensive income (loss) consists of unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale, net of deferred tax expense
(benefit) and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative hedging relationships.

Fair Value Measurement — ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair valuein U.S. GAAP and established required disclosures about fair value measurements. ASC 820
applies only to fair value measurements that are already required or permitted by other accounting standards and increases the
consistency of those measurements. The definition of fair value focuses on the exit price, i.e., the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, not the entry
price, (i.e., the price that would be paid to acquire the asset or received to assume the liability at the measurement date). The statement
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement; not an entity-specific measurement. Therefore, the fair value measurement
should be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.
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Pinnacle Financia has an established process for determining fair values. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where
available. If listed prices or quotes are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models or processes that use
primarily market-based or independently-sourced market data, including interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and third party
information such as prices of similar assets or liabilities. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are
recorded at fair value. Furthermore, while Pinnacle Financial believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other
market participants, the use of different methodol ogies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in adifferent estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

Mortgage Servicing Rights — In conjunction with the acquisition of Magna, Pinnacle Bank acquired a residential mortgage
servicing portfolio which was recorded at fair value upon acquisition. The residential mortgage servicing portfolio was recorded at
$6.4 million as of December 31, 2015, net of related amortization. During the first quarter of 2016, Pinnacle Bank sold the mortgage
servicing rights associated with the $830 million Fannie Mae portfolio for $6.6 million, net of associated costs to sell. The purchase
agreement related to the sale of these rights includes certain clawback provisions which require Pinnacle Bank to reimburse the
acquirer in the event certain conditions are met. Approximately $241,000 was recorded as income during the year ended December 31,
2016 related to the sale.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements — In March 2016, the FASB issued updated guidance to Accounting Standards
Update, 2016-09 Stock Compensation Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Activity (ASU 2016-09) intended to simplify
and improve several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences,
classification of such awards as either equity or liabilities and classification of such awards on the statement of cash flows. This
Accounting Standards Update (A SU) impacted Pinnacle Financial's consolidated financial statements by requiring that all income tax
effectsrelated to settlements of share-based payment awards be reported as increases (or decreases) to income tax expense. Previously,
income tax benefits at settlement of an award were reported as an increase (or decrease) to additional paid-in capital. The ASU also
requiresthat all income tax related cash flows resulting from share-based payments be reported as operating activities in the statement
of cash flows whereas these cash flows were previously reported as a reduction to operating cash flows and an increase to financing
cash flows. The guidance became effective for Pinnacle Financial on January 1, 2017. During the year ended December 31, 2017, the
newly adopted standard resulted in areduction in tax expense of $5.4 million.

Newly Issued not yet Effective Accounting Standards — In February 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update
2018-02, Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income. The amendments in this ASU addressed the income tax accounting treatment of the stranded tax effects
within other comprehensive income due to the newly enacted federal corporate tax rate included in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act issued
December 22, 2017. These amendments allow an entity to make a reclassification from other comprehensive income to retained
earnings for the difference between the historical corporate income tax rate and the newly enacted corporate income tax rate. The
amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those years. Early
adoption is permitted with retrospective application. Pinnacle Financia is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its
consolidated financial statements, but does not expect it to have a material impact.

In August 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-12, Derivatives and Hedging: Targeted Improvements to
Accounting for Hedging Activities. The amendments in this ASU makes more financial and non-financial hedging strategies eligible
for hedge accounting. It also amends the presentation and disclosure requirements and changes how companies assess effectiveness.
The amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption
is permitted. Pinnacle Financial is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements, but
does not expect it to have a material impact.

In March 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-08, Receivables — Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs
(Subtopic 310-20): Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. The amendment in thisASU shortens the
amortization period for certain callable debt securities held at a premium to the earliest call date. The amendment does not require an
accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount continues to be amortized to maturity. The amendments are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those periods. Early adoption is permitted with
modified retrospective application. Pinnacle Financia is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated
financial statements, but does not expect it to have a material impact.

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-04, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350):
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment to simplify how entities other than private companies, such as public business entities
and not-for-profit entities, are required to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating the comparison of the implied fair value of the
reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those periods. If this standard had been effective for the year ended December
31, 2017, there would have been no impact on Pinnacle Financia's consolidated financial statements.
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In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2017-01, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the
Definition of a Business. The amendment in thisASU clarifies the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to
assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) or assets or businesses. The
amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those periods. If this
standard had been effective for the year ended December 31, 2017, there would have been no impact on Pinnacle Financial's
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02 Leases guidance requiring the recognition in the
statement of financial position of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those |eases classified as operating leases under
previous GAAP. The guidance requires that a lessee should recognize lease assets and |ease liabilities as compared to previous GAAP
that did not require lease assets and |ease liabilities to be recognized for most |eases. The guidance becomes effective for us on
January 1, 2019. If this standard was effective as of the date of these financial statements, Pinnacle Financial would have recorded a
right of use asset and liability in an amount similar to its current future minimum lease obligations as shown in Note 8. Premises and
Equipment and L ease Commitments.

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses: Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which introduces the current expected credit losses methodol ogy. Among other things, this
ASU requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets, including loans and available-for-sale debt securities,
held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the
collectahility of the reported amount. The new model will require institutions to calculate all probable and estimable losses that are
expected to be incurred through the loan's entire life. ASU 2016-13 also requires the allowance for credit losses for purchased
financial assets with credit deterioration since origination to be determined in a manner similar to that of other financial assets
measured at amortized cost; however, theinitial allowance will be added to the purchase price rather than recorded as credit loss
expense. The disclosure of credit quality indicators related to the amortized cost of financing receivables will be further disaggregated
by year of origination (or vintage). Institutions are to apply the changes through a cumul ative-effect adjustment to their retained
earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which the standard is effective. The amendments are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application will be permitted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.
Pinnacle Financia is currently assessing the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-15 Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) intended to
reduce the diversity in practice around how certain transactions are classified within the statement of cash flows. The guidance is
effective for public companies for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal
years. Early adoption is permitted with retrospective application. Pinnacle Financial does not expect this standard will have amaterial
impact on Pinnacle Financial's consolidated financial statements, with the exception of dividends received from its equity method
investments which will be reclassified as a cash flow from investments to operating cash flows beginning in the first quarter of 2018.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606 )
developed as ajoint project with the International Accounting Standards Board to remove inconsistencies in revenue reguirements and
provide a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues. ThisASU's core principleisthat an entity should recognize revenue
when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expectsto be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In August 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-14, which
deferred the effective date by one year (i.e., interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017). Early adoption
is permitted, but not before the original effective date (i.e., interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016).
The ASU may be adopted using either amodified retrospective method or afull retrospective method. Pinnacle Financial adopted the
ASU during the first quarter of 2018, as required, using a modified retrospective approach. The majority of Pinnacle Financial's
revenue stream is generated from financial instruments which are not within the scope of thisASU. However, Pinnacle Financial has
evaluated the impact for other fee-based income, including our wealth management, mortgage and deposit services line of business,
and has concluded that this standard will not materially impact itsfinancia statements.

Other than those pronouncements discussed above and those which have been recently adopted, there were no other recently issued
accounting pronouncements that are expected to materially impact Pinnacle Financial.

Subsequent Events — ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of

events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued. Pinnacle Financial evaluated all events or
transactions that occurred after December 31, 2017 through the date of the issued financial statements.
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Note 2. Acquisitions

BNC Bancorp. On June 16, 2017, Pinnacle Financial consummated its merger with BNC. Pursuant to the terms of the

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 22, 2017, by and between Pinnacle Financial and BNC, BNC merged with and
into Pinnacle Financial, with Pinnacle Financial continuing as the surviving corporation (the BNC Merger). On that same day,
Pinnacle Bank and Bank of North Carolina, BNC's wholly-owned bank subsidiary, merged, with Pinnacle Bank continuing as the

surviving entity.

The following summarizes the consideration paid and presents a preliminary allocation of purchase price to net assets acquired

(dollarsin thousands):

Number of Amount
Shares
Equity consideration
Common stock issued 27,687,100 $ 1,858,133
Total equity consideration $ 1,858,133
Non-Equity Consideration:
Cash paid to redeem common stock 129
Total consideration paid $ 1,858,262
Allocation of total consideration paid:
Fair value of net assets assumed including estimated identifiable intangible assets $ 601,807
Goodwill 1,256,455
$ 1,858,262

Pinnacle Financial recorded costs incurred in connection with the issuance of Pinnacle Financial common stock resulting from
the BNC Merger of $7.2 million, net of related tax benefits, as a reduction to additional paid in capital. Certain merger-related
charges resulting from cultural and systems integrations, as well as stock-based compensation expense incurred as a result of
change-in-control provisions applicable to assumed equity-based awards were recorded as merger-related expense.

Goodwill originating from the BNC Merger resulted primarily from anticipated synergies arising from the combination of
certain operational areas of the businesses of BNC and Pinnacle Financial aswell as the purchase premium inherent in buying a
complete and successful banking operation. Goodwill associated with the BNC Merger is not amortizable for book or tax purposes.
Adjustments totaling $82.9 million were recorded to goodwill to appropriately reflect the valuation of the loan portfolio, OREO
acquired, and certain assets acquired and liabilities assumed and have been included in the table below.

Pinnacle Financia accounted for the BNC Merger under the acquisition method in accordance with ASC Topic 805.
Accordingly, the purchase price is allocated to the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of merger.

The following purchase price allocations on the BNC Merger are preliminary and will be finalized upon the receipt of final
valuations on certain assets and liabilities. Upon receipt of final fair value estimates, which must be received within one year of the
BNC Merger date, Pinnacle Financial will make any final adjustments to the purchase price allocation and prospectively adjust any
goodwill recorded. Information regarding Pinnacle Financial's loan discount and related deferred tax asset, core deposit intangible
asset and related deferred tax liability, as well as income taxes payable and the related deferred tax balances recorded in the BNC
Merger, may be adjusted as Pinnacle Financial refinesits estimates. Determining the fair value of assets and liabilities, particularly
illiquid assets and liabilities, is a complicated process involving significant judgment regarding estimates and assumptions used to
calculate estimated fair value. Fair value adjustments based on updated estimates could materially affect the goodwill recorded on
the BNC Merger. Pinnacle Financial may incur losses on the acquired loans that are materially different from losses Pinnacle
Financia originally projected.



The acquired assets and liabilities, as well as the adjustments to record the assets and liabilities at their estimated fair values,
are presented in the following tables (in thousands):

As of June 16, 2017

BNC As Recorded by
Historical Cost Basis Fair Value Adjustments ® Pinnacle Financial

Assets
Cash and cash equivaents $ 155,271 $ — 3 155,271
Investment securities 643,875 1,667 645,542
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses @ 5,782,720 (181,430) 5,601,290
Mortgage loans held for sale 27,026 — 27,026
Other real estate owned @ 20,143 600 20,743
Core deposit and other intangible © — 50,422 50,422
Property, plant and equipment © 156,805 (3,381) 153,424
Other assets © 320,988 53,997 374,985

Total Assets $ 7,106,828 $ (78,125) $ 7,028,703
Liabilities
Interest-bearing deposits $ 5,003,653 $ 4355 $ 5,008,008
Non-interest bearing deposits 1,199,342 — 1,199,342
Borrowings © 183,389 (6,412) 176,977
Other liabilities © 35,729 6,840 42,569

Total Liabilities $ 6,422,113 $ 4783 $ 6,426,896

Net Assets Acquired $ 684,715 $ (82,908) $ 601,807

Explanation of certain fair value adjustments:

@

@

©)
4

©)
(6)
@)

®

©)

The amount represents the adjustment of the book value of BNC's assets and liabilities to their estimated fair value on the date of
acquisition. Fair value adjustments are updated subsequent to the merger date based on the results of finalized valuation
assessments.

The amount represents the adjustment of the net book value of BNC's loans to their estimated fair value based on interest rates and
expected cash flows as of the date of acquisition, which includes estimates of expected credit losses inherent in the portfolio of
approximately 2.6% of the 3.1% mark on the acquired loan portfolio.

Although not complete, this adjustment reflects the Day 1 value of OREO properties subsequently sold.

The amount represents the fair value of the core deposit intangible asset representing the intangible value of the deposit base
acquired and the fair value of the customer relationship intangible assets representing the intangible value of customer
relationships acquired.

The amount represents the adjustment of the net book value of BNC's property, plant and egquipment to estimated fair value based
on market values of similar assets.

The amount represents the deferred tax asset recognized on the fair value adjustment of BNC's acquired assets and assumed
liahilities.

The amount represents the adjustment necessary because the weighted average interest rate of BNC's deposits exceeded the cost of
similar funding at the time of acquisition. The fair value adjustment will be amortized to reduce future interest expense over the
life of the portfolio.

The amount represents the combined adjustment necessary because the weighted average interest rate of BNC's subordinated debt
issuance exceeded the cost of similar funding at the time of acquisition and because the weighted average interest rate of BNC's
trust preferred securities issuances was lower than the cost of similar funding at the time of acquisition. The combined fair value
adjustments will be amortized to increase future interest expense over the lives of the portfolios.

The amount represents the adjustment to accrue obligations that existed but had not been recorded as of the acquisition date and
the fair value of BNC lease obligations.
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Supplemental Pro Forma Combined Results of Operations

The supplementa proforma information below for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 gives effect to the BNC
acquisition asif it had occurred on January 1, 2016. These results combine the historical results of BNC into Pinnacle Financial's
consolidated statement of income and, while certain adjustments were made for the estimated impact of certain fair value
adjustments, they are not indicative of what would have occurred had the BNC Merger taken place on the indicated date nor are
they intended to represent or be indicative of future results of operations. In particular, no adjustments have been made to eliminate
the amount of BNC's provision for credit losses for 2016 that may not have been necessary had the acquired loans been recorded at
fair value as of the beginning of 2016. Additionally, these financials were not adjusted for non-recurring expenses, such as merger-
related charges incurred by either Pinnacle Financia or BNC. Pinnacle Financial expects to achieve operating cost savings and
other business synergies as aresult of the acquisition which are also not reflected in the proforma amounts.

(dollars in thousands) Year ended December 31,

2017 2016
Revenue™ $ 844,896 $ 707,126
Income before income taxes 347,983 275,635

@ Net interest income plus noninterest income

Note 3. Equity Method Investment

On February 1, 2015, Pinnacle Bank acquired a 30% interest in Bankers Healthcare Group, LLC (BHG) for $75 million in cash.
On March 1, 2016, Pinnacle Bank and Pinnacle Financial increased their investment in BHG by a combined 19%, for atotal
investment in BHG of 49%. The additional 19% interest was acquired pursuant to a purchase agreement whereby both Pinnacle
Financia and Pinnacle Bank acquired 8.55% and an additional 10.45%, respectively, of the outstanding membership interestsin BHG
in exchange for $74.1 million in cash and 860,470 shares of Pinnacle Financial common stock valued at $39.9 million.

On March 1, 2016, Pinnacle Financial, Pinnacle Bank and the other members of BHG entered into an Amended and Restated
Limited Liability Company Agreement of BHG that provides for, among other things, the following terms:

» theinability of any member of BHG to transfer its ownership interest in BHG without the consent of the other members of
BHG for five years, other than transfers to family members, trusts or affiliates of the transferring member, in connection with
the acquisition of Pinnacle Financial or Pinnacle Bank or as aresult of achange in applicable law that forces Pinnacle
Financial and/or Pinnacle Bank to divest their ownership interestsin BHG;

» theinability of the board of managers of BHG (of which Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank have the right to designate
two of the five members (the Pinnacle Managers) to approve a sale of BHG without the consent of one of the Pinnacle
Managers for four years;

» co-sderightsfor Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank in the event the other members of BHG decide to sell al or aportion
of their ownership interests after the above-described five-year limitation; and

e aright of first refusal for BHG and the other members of BHG in the event that Pinnacle Financial and/or Pinnacle Bank
decideto sell all or aportion of their ownership interests after the above-described five-year limitation, except in connection
with atransfer of their ownership interests to an affiliate or in connection with the acquisition of Pinnacle Financial or
Pinnacle Bank.

Pinnacle Financia accounts for this investment pursuant to the equity method for unconsolidated subsidiaries and will recognize
itsinterest in BHG's profits and losses in noninterest income with corresponding adjustments to the BHG investment account. Because
BHG has been determined to be a voting interest entity of which Pinnacle Financia and Pinnacle Bank together control lessthan a
majority of the board seats following the closing of the additional investment in March 2016, thisinvestment does not require
consolidation and is accounted for pursuant to the equity method of accounting. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial did not recognize any
goodwill or other intangible asset associated with these transactions as of the respective purchase dates, however, it will recognize
accretion income and amortization expense associated with the fair value adjustments to the net assets acquired including the fair
value of certain of BHG's liabilities which are recorded as a component of income from equity method investment, pursuant to the
equity method of accounting.

Pinnacle Financia and Pinnacle Bank account for their consolidated interest in BHG's profits and losses in noninterest income
with corresponding adjustments to the BHG investment account.
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At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial has recorded technology, trade name and customer relationship intangibles, net of
related amortization, of $13.4 million compared to $16.8 million as of December 31, 2016. Amortization expense of $3.3 million was
included in Pinnacle Financial's results for the year ended December 31, 2017 compared to $3.4 million for 2016. Accretion income of
$3.1 million was included in Pinnacle Financial's results for the year ended December 31, 2017, while $2.5 million accretion income
was recorded in 2016. Additionally, at December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial had recorded accretabl e discounts associated with
certain liabilities of BHG of $10.3 million compared to $13.4 million as of December 31, 2016.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank received dividends from BHG of $21.7 million
in the aggregate, respectively, compared to $29.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2016. Earnings from BHG are included in
Pinnacle Financia's consolidated tax return. Profits from intercompany transactions are eliminated.

A summary of BHG's financia position and results of operations as of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, were as follows (unaudited, in thousands):

Banker's Healthcare Group
($ in thousands)

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Assets $ 330,030 $ 223,246
Liabilities $ 224837 $ 139,531
Equity interests 105,193 83,715
Total liabilities and equity $ 330,030 $ 223,246

For the year ended December 31,
2017 2016
Revenues $ 160,209 $ 136,693
Net income, pre-tax $ 77941 % 67,135

Note 4. Restricted Cash Balances

Regulation D of the Federal Reserve Act requires that banks maintain reserve balances with the Federal Reserve Bank based
principally on the type and amount of their deposits. At our option, Pinnacle Financial maintains additional balances to compensate for
clearing and other services. For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the average daily balance maintained at the Federal
Reserve was approximately $229.9 million and $183.1 million, respectively.

Note 5. Securities

The amortized cost and fair value of securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2017
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S Treasury securities $ 30505 $ — $ 60 $ 30,445
U.S. Government agency securities 182,500 67 1,766 180,801
Mortgage-backed securities 1,270,625 5,318 12,124 1,263,819
State and municipal securities 774,949 12,251 2,588 784,612
Asset-backed securities 173,346 262 316 173,292
Corporate notes 81,615 1,346 647 82,314
$ 2513540 $ 19,244 3 17,501 $ 2,515,283
Securities held-to-maturity:
State and municipal securities 20,762 114 46 20,830
$ 20,762 $ 114 $ 46 $ 20,830
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Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2016
Securities available-for-sale:
U.S Treasury securities $ 250 $ — $ — $ 250
U.S. Government agency securities 22,306 — 537 21,769
Mortgage-backed securities 988,008 4,304 15,686 976,626
State and municipal securities 211,581 4,103 2,964 212,720
Asset-backed securities 79,318 111 849 78,580
Corporate notes 8,608 39 46 8,601
$ 1,310,071 $ 8557 $ 20,082 $ 1,298,546
Securities held-to-maturity:
State and municipal securities 25,251 87 105 25,233
$ 25251 % 87 $ 105 $ 25,233

At December 31, 2017, approximately $1.1 billion of Pinnacle Financial's investment portfolio was pledged to secure public
funds and other deposits and securities sold under agreements to repurchase. At December 31, 2017, repurchase agreements comprised
of secured borrowings totaled $135.3 million and were secured by $135.3 million of pledged U.S. government agency securities,
municipal securities, asset backed securities, and corporate debentures. Asthe fair value of securities pledged to secure repurchase
agreements may decline, Pinnacle Financial regularly evaluates its need to pledge additional securities for the counterparty to remain
adequately secured.

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities as of December 31, 2017 by contractual maturity are shown below. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities of mortgage-backed securities since the mortgages underlying the securities may be
called or prepaid with or without penalty. Therefore, these securities are not included in the maturity categoriesin the following
summary (in thousands):

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Cost Value Cost Value
Duein one year or less $ 33251 $ 33196 $ 1329 $ 1,330
Duein one year to five years 65,214 65,775 6,210 6,200
Duein five yearsto ten years 185,337 187,198 10,425 10,469
Due after ten years 785,767 792,003 2,798 2,831
Mortgage-backed securities 1,270,625 1,263,819 — —
Asset-backed securities 173,346 173,292 — —
$ 2513540 $ 2515283 $ 20,762 $ 20,830

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, included in securities were the following investments with unrealized losses. The information
below classifies these investments according to the term of the unrealized loss of less than twelve months or twelve months or longer
(in thousands):

Investments with an Investments with an Total Investments

Unrealized Loss of Unrealized Loss of with an

less than 12 months 12 months or longer Unrealized Loss

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

December 31, 2017
U.S. Treasury securities $ 20948 $ 60 $ — $ — 3 29,948 $ 60
U.S. government agency securities 173,677 1,766 — — 173,677 1,766
Mortgage-backed securities 607,408 5,042 285,561 7,082 892,969 12,124
State and municipal securities 115,403 1,408 50,083 1,226 165,486 2,634
Asset-backed securities 68,742 198 14,136 118 82,878 316
Corporate notes 22,168 547 11,944 100 34,112 647
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Investments with an Investments with an Total Investments

Unrealized Loss of Unrealized Loss of with an
less than 12 months 12 months or longer Unrealized Loss
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Total temporarily-impaired securities $ 1,017,346 $ 9021 $ 361,724 $ 8526 $ 1,379,070 $ 17,547
December 31, 2016
U.S. Treasury securities $ — % — % — — $ — $ —
U.S. government agency securities — — 20,820 537 20,820 537
Mortgage-backed securities 801,213 15,073 43,148 613 844,361 15,686
State and municipal securities 87,277 3,068 312 1 87,589 3,069
Asset-backed securities 14,510 32 34,097 817 48,607 849
Corporate notes 4,810 46 — — 4,810 46
Total temporarily-impaired securities $ 907810 $ 18219 $ 98,377 $ 1,968 $ 1,006,187 $ 20,187

The applicable date for determining when securities are in an unrealized |oss position is December 31, 2017 and 2016. Assuch, it
is possible that a security had a market value less than its amortized cost on other days during the twelve-month periods ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, but is not in the "I nvestments with an Unrealized Loss of less than 12 months" category above.

As shown in the table above, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, Pinnacle Financial had unrealized losses of $17.5 million and $20.2
million on $1.4 billion and $1.0 billion, respectively, of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities. The unrealized losses
associated with these investment securities are primarily driven by changes in interest rates and typically are not due to the credit
quality of the securities. These securities will continue to be monitored as a part of our ongoing impairment analysis, but are expected
to perform even if the rating agencies reduce the credit rating of the bond issuers. Management evaluates the financial performance of
the issuers on a quarterly basis to determineif it is probable that the issuers can make all contractual principal and interest payments.
Because Pinnacle Financia currently does not intend to sell these securities and it is not more-likely-than-not that Pinnacle Financial
will be required to sell the securities before recovery of their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity, Pinnacle Financial does not
consider these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2017.

Periodically, available-for-sale securities may be sold or the composition of the portfolio realigned to improve yields, quality or
marketability, or to implement changesin investment or asset/liability strategy, including maintaining collateral requirements and
raising fundsfor liquidity purposes. Additionaly, if an available-for-sale security loses its investment grade or tax-exempt status, the
underlying credit support is terminated or collection otherwise becomes uncertain based on factors known to management, Pinnacle
Financial will consider selling the security, but will review each security on a case-by-case basis as these factors become
known. Consistent with the investment policy, in 2017 available-for-sale securities of approximately $300.0 million were sold and net
unrealized losses of $8.3 million were reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income into net income.

The carrying values of Pinnacle Financial's investment securities could decline in the future if the financial condition of the
securities issuers deteriorates and management determinesit is probable that Pinnacle Financial will not recover the entire amortized
cost bases of the securities. Asaresult, thereisarisk that other-than-temporary impairment charges may occur in the future.
Additionally, thereis arisk that other-than-temporary impairment charges may occur in the future if management's intention to hold
these securities to maturity and or recovery changes.

Note 6. Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

For financial reporting purposes, Pinnacle Financial classifies itsloan portfolio based on the underlying collateral utilized to
secure each loan. This classification is consistent with those utilized in the Quarterly Report of Condition and Income filed with the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

Pinnacle Financial uses five loan categories. commercial real estate mortgage, consumer real estate mortgage, construction and
land development, commercial and industrial, consumer and other.

. Commercial real-estate mortgage loans. Commercial real-estate mortgage loans are categorized as such based on
investor exposures where repayment is largely dependent upon the operation, refinance, or sale of the underlying real
estate. Commercial real-estate mortgage also includes owner occupied commercial real estate which sharesasimilar risk
profile to our commercial and industrial products.

. Consumer real-estate mortgage loans. Consumer real -estate mortgage consists primarily of loans secured by 1-4
residential properties including home equity lines of credit.
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. Construction and land development loans. Construction and land development loans include |oans where the repayment
is dependent on the successful operation of the related real estate project. Construction and land devel opment loans
include 1-4 family construction projects and commercia construction endeavors such as warehouses, apartments, office
and retail space and land acquisition and development.

. Commercial and industrial loans. Commercial and industrial loans include |oans to business enterprises issued for
commercial, industrial and/or other professional purposes.
. Consumer and other loans. Consumer and other loans include all loansissued to individuals not included in the

consumer real-estate mortgage classification. Examples of consumer and other loans are automobile loans, credit cards
and loans to finance education, among others.

Commercial loans receive risk ratings by the assigned financial advisor subject to validation by Pinnacle Financial's independent
loan review department. Risk ratings are categorized as pass, special mention, substandard, substandard-nonaccrual or doubtful-
nonaccrual. Pass-rated loans include five distinct ratings categories for loans that represent specific attributes. Pinnacle Financial
believes that its categories follow those outlined by Pinnacle Bank's primary regulators. At December 31, 2017, approximately 81.4%
of our loan portfolio was analyzed as a commercial loan type with a specifically assigned risk rating in the allowance for loan loss
assessment. Consumer loans and small business loans are generally not assigned an individual risk rating but are evaluated as either
accrual or nonaccrual based on the performance of the individual loans. However, certain consumer real estate-mortgage loans and
certain consumer and other loans receive a specific risk rating due to the loan proceeds being used for commercia purposes even
though the collateral may be of a consumer loan nature.

Risk ratings are subject to continual review by afinancial advisor and a senior credit officer. At least annually, our credit policy
requires that every risk rated loan of $1.0 million or more be subject to aformal credit risk review process. Each loan'srisk rating is
also subject to review by our independent |oan review department, which reviews a substantial portion of our risk rated portfolio
annualy. Included in the coverage are independent loan reviews of loans in targeted higher-risk portfolio segments such as certain
commercia and industrial loans, land loans and/or loan typesin certain geographies.

The following table presents our loan balances by primary loan classification and the amount within each risk rating category.
Pass-rated loans include al credits other than those included in special mention, substandard, substandard-nonaccrual and doubtful-
nonaccrua which are defined as follows:

»  Specia mention loans have potential weaknesses that deserve management's close attention. If |eft uncorrected, these
potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset or in Pinnacle Financial's credit
position at some future date.

»  Substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the
collateral pledged, if any. Assets so classified must have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize
collection of the debt. Substandard loans are characterized by the distinct possibility that Pinnacle Financial will sustain
some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.

»  Substandard-nonaccrual |oans are substandard loans that have been placed on nonaccrual status.

»  Doubtful-nonaccrual |oans have all the characteristics of substandard-nonaccrual loans with the added characteristic that
the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values,
highly guestionable and improbable.

The following table outlines the amount of each loan classification categorized into each risk rating category as of December 31,
2017 and 2016 (in thousands):

Commercial Consumer real Construction

real estate - estate - and land Commercial Consumer
December 31, 2017 mortgage mortgage development and industrial and other Total
Pass $ 6,487,368 $ 2,503,688 $ 1,880,704 $ 4,014,656 $ 351,359 $ 15,237,775
Special Mention 94,134 18,356 8,148 46,898 1,177 168,713
Substandard @ 72,044 21,053 13,468 62,529 79 169,173
Substandard-nonaccrual 16,064 18,117 5,968 17,258 48 57,455
Doubtful-nonaccrual — — — — — —
Total loans $ 6,669,610 $ 2,561,214 $ 1,908,288 $ 4141341 $ 352,663 $ 15,633,116
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Commercial Consumer real Construction

real estate - estate - and land Commercial Consumer
December 31, 2016 mortgage mortgage development and industrial and other Total
Pass $ 3,137,452 $ 1,160,361 $ 897,556 $ 2,782,713 $ 264,723 $ 8,242,805
Special Mention 21,449 1,856 2,716 25,641 802 52,464
Substandard @ 29,674 15,627 5,788 75,861 129 127,079
Substandard-nonaccrual 4,921 8,073 6,613 7,492 475 27,574
Doubtful-nonaccrual — — — 3 — 3
Total loans $ 3,19349% $ 1,185917 $ 912,673 $ 2,891,710 $ 266,129 $ 8,449,925

(1) Potential problem loans represent those |oans with a well-defined weakness and where information about possible credit problems of
borrowers has caused management to have doubts about the borrower's ability to comply with present repayment terms. This definitionis
believed to be substantially consistent with the standards established by Pinnacle Bank's primary regulators for loans classified as
substandard, excluding the impact of substandard nonperforming loans and substandard troubled debt restructurings. Potential problem
loans, which are not included in nonperforming assets, amounted to approximately $164.0 million at December 31, 2017, compared to
$114.6 million at December 31, 2016.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, all loans classified as nonaccrual were deemed to be impaired. The principal balances of these
nonaccrual loans amounted to $57.5 million and $27.6 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and are included in the
table above. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2017, the average balance of nonaccrual loans was $66.0 million as
compared to $35.1 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2016. Pinnacle Financial's policy is that the discontinuation of
the accrual of interest income will occur when (1) there isa significant deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower and full
repayment of principal and interest is not expected or (2) the principal or interest is more than 90 days past due, unless the loan is both
well secured and in the process of collection. As such, at the date the above mentioned loans were placed on honaccrual status,
Pinnacle Financial reversed all previously accrued interest income against current year earnings. Had these nonaccruing loans been on
accruing status, interest income would have been higher by $2.7 million, $2.1 million and $2.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The following table provides arollforward of purchase credit impaired |oans from December 31, 2016 through December 31,
2017 (in thousands):

Gross
Carrying Accretable Nonaccretable Carrying
Value Yield Yield Value
December 31, 2015 $ 16,274 $ — 3 (4,143) $ 12,131
Acquisitions 1,359 — (812) 547
Settlements, net (5,165) — 1,322 (3,843)
December 31, 2016 12,468 — (3,633) 8,835
Acquisitions 80,812 (196) (32,314) 48,302
Settlements, net (18,956) 64 4,410 (14,482)
December 31, 2017 $ 74324 % (132) $ (31,537) $ 42,655

These loans were deemed to be collateral dependent at the time of acquisition. Settlements include both loans that were charged-
off aswell asloans that were paid off, typically as aresult of refinancings at other institutions.

Purchase credit impaired loans purchased during the year ended December 31, 2017 for which it was probable at acquisition that
all contractualy required payments would not be collected are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2017 2016 2015
Contractually required payments receivable $ 94,312 $ 1359 $ 19,960
Cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition 48,498 547 14,257
Fair value of acquired loans at acquisition 48,302 547 14,257

101



The following tables detail the recorded investment, unpaid principal balance and related allowance and average recorded
investment of our nonaccrua loans at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 by loan classification and the amount of interest income
recognized on a cash basis throughout the year-to-date period then ended, respectively, on these loans that remain on the balance
sheets (in thousands):

For the year ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2017
Cash basis
Unpaid Average interest
Recorded principal Related recorded income
investment balance allowance investment recognized
Collateral dependent nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 13570 $ 16,631 $ 38 $ 13,839 $ —
Consumer real estate — mortgage 10,093 14,309 115 11,216 —
Construction and land devel opment 5,735 10,273 6 5,935 95
Commercial and industrial 2,135 3,533 362 2,980 —
Consumer and other — — — — —
Total $ 31533 $ 44,746 $ 521 $ 33970 $ 95
Cash flow dependent nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 249 $ 2505 $ 95 $ 3463 $ ==
Consumer real estate — mortgage 8,024 8,079 411 10,076 —
Construction and land development 233 233 12 438 —
Commercial and industrial 15,171 15,224 1,278 18,027 —
Consumer and other — — — — —
Total $ 25922 $ 26,041 $ 1,79 $ 32,004 $ —
Total Nonaccrual Loans $ 57,455 $ 70,787 $ 2317 $ 65974 $ 95
For the year ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2016
Cash basis
Unpaid Average interest
Recorded principal Related recorded income
investment balance allowance investment recognized
Collateral dependent nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 2308 $ 2312 $ = $ 2540 $ =
Consumer real estate — mortgage 2,880 2,915 — 2,907 —
Construction and land development 3,128 3,135 — 3,132 159
Commercia and industrial 6,373 6,407 — 8,841 —
Consumer and other — — — — —
Total $ 14,689 $ 14,769 $ — $ 17,420 $ 159
Cash flow dependent nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 2613 $ 3349 $ 59 $ 2,688 $ =
Consumer real estate — mortgage 5,193 5,775 688 5,966 —
Construction and land development 3,485 4,154 20 3,476 —
Commercia and industrial 1,122 2,714 77 2,884 —
Consumer and other 475 851 227 2,624 —
Total $ 12,888 $ 16,843 $ 1071 $ 17,638 $ —
Total Nonaccrual Loans $ 27577 $ 31612 $ 1071 $ 35,058 $ 159
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For the year ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2015
Unpaid Average Cash basis
Recorded principal Related recorded interest income
investment balance allowance investment recognized
Collateral dependent nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 441 $ 5659 $ = $ 2253 $ =
Consumer real estate — mortgage 5,596 6,242 — 3,067 —
Construction and land development 7,531 7,883 — 4,317 308
Commercial and industrial 1,420 3,151 — 1,527 —
Consumer and other — — — — —
Total $ 18,958 $ 22935 $ — $ 11,164 $ 308
Cash flow dependent nonaccrual loans:
Commercial real estate — mortgage $ 1,410 $ 1661 $ 20 $ 1,466 $ =
Consumer real estate — mortgage 3,750 4,098 616 3,815 —
Construction and land development 76 125 12 87 —
Commercial and industrial 263 281 19 168 —
Consumer and other 4,902 5,341 3,002 4,913 —
Total $ 10401 $ 11,506 $ 3,669 $ 10,449 $ —
Total Nonaccrual Loans $ 29,359 $ 34441 $ 3,669 $ 21,613 $ 308

Pinnacle Financial's policy is that once aloan is placed on nonaccrua status each subsequent payment is reviewed on a case-by-
case basis to determine if the payment should be applied to interest or principal pursuant to regulatory guidelines. Pinnacle Financial
recogni zed approximately $95,000, $159,000 and $308,000 in interest income from cash payments received on nonaccrual 1oans
during the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were $6.6 million and $15.0 million, respectively, of troubled debt restructurings that were
performing as of their restructure date and which are accruing interest. These troubled debt restructurings are considered impaired
loans pursuant to U.S. GAAP. Troubled commercial loans are restructured by specialists within Pinnacle Bank's Special Assets Group,
and all restructurings are approved by committees and credit officers separate and apart from the normal 1oan approval process. These
specialists are charged with reducing Pinnacle Financial's overall risk and exposure to loss in the event of arestructuring by obtaining
some or al of the following: improved documentation, additional guaranties, increase in curtailments, reduction in collateral release
terms, additional collateral or other similar strategies.

The following table outlines the amount of each troubled debt restructuring by loan classification made during the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Pre Modification Post Modification Outstanding
Number Outstanding Recorded Recorded Investment, net of
of contracts Investment related allowance

December 31, 2017
Commercial real estate — mortgage — $ — 3 —
Consumer real estate — mortgage 1 6 5
Construction and land development — — —
Commercial and industrial 2 3,776 3,751
Consumer and other — — —

3 % 3782 % 3,756

December 31, 2016

Commercial real estate — mortgage — 3 — 5 =

Consumer real estate — mortgage — — —

Construction and land devel opment — — _

Commercia and industrial 6 11,084 11,083

Consumer and other — — _
6 $ 11,084 $ 11,083
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Pre Modification Post Modification Outstanding
Number Outstanding Recorded Recorded Investment, net of
of contracts Investment related allowance

December 31, 2015

Commercial real estate — mortgage 1 $ 223 $ 185

Consumer real estate — mortgage — — —

Construction and land development — — —

Commercia and industrial 1 434 337

Consumer and other — = —
2 $ 657 $ 522

During the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, Pinnacle Financia had no troubled debt restructurings that
subsequently defaulted within twelve months of the restructuring. A default is defined as an occurrence which violates the terms of the
receivable's contract.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the allowance for 1oan losses included no allowance and $21,000, respectively, specifically related
to accruing troubled debt restructurings, which are classified as impaired loans pursuant to U.S. GAAP; however, these loans continue
to accrueinterest at contractual rates.

In addition to the loan metrics above, Pinnacle Financia analyzesits commercia loan portfolio to determine if a concentration of
credit risk exists to any industries. Pinnacle Financial utilizes broadly accepted industry classification systemsin order to classify
borrowersinto various industry classifications. Pinnacle Financial has a credit exposure (loans outstanding plus unfunded lines of
credit) exceeding 25% of Pinnacle Bank's total risk-based capital to borrowersin the following industries at December 31, 2017 with
the comparative exposures for December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

At December 31, 2017

Outstanding Total Exposure at
Principal Unfunded Total December 31,
Balances Commitments exposure 2016
Lessors of nonresidential buildings $ 2,778454 $ 32,497 $ 2810951 $ 1,701,853
Lessors of residential buildings 870,777 13,467 884,244 874,234
Hotels and motels 627,126 1,865 628,991 291,865

Additionally, Pinnacle Financial monitors two ratios regarding construction and commercial real estate lending as part
of its concentration management processes. Both ratios are calculated by dividing certain types of loan balances for each
of the two categories by Pinnacle Bank’stotal risk-based capital. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, Pinnacle Bank’s
construction and land development |oans as a percentage of total risk-based capital was 89.4% and 80.3%, respectively.
Non-owner occupied commercial real estate and multifamily loans (including construction and loan development loans)
was 297.1% and 256.0% for December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Banking regulations have established guidelines
for the construction ratio of less than 100% of total risk-based capital and for the non-owner occupied ratio of less than
300% of total risk-based capital. Should a bank’s ratios be in excess of these guidelines, banking regulations generally
require an increased level of monitoring in these lending areas by bank management. At both December 31, 2017 and
2016, Pinnacle Bank’s computed ratios were below the applicable regulatory guidelines. Pinnacle Bank believesthat it
has the appropriate monitoring controlsin place should it exceed the regulatory guidelinesin a future period.
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The table below presents past due balances at December 31, 2017 and 2016, by loan classification and segment allocated between

performing and nonperforming status (in thousands):

30-89days 90 days or Nonaccruing
past due more past Total past Current Purchase purchase
and due and due and and credit Non%crual credit Total
performing performing performing accruing impaired impaired Loans
December 31, 2017
Commercial rea estate:
Owner-occupied $ 6,772 $ 104 $ 6,876 $ 2,435819 $ 4820 $ 11,395 $ 1,105 $ 2,460,015
All other 16,559 — 16,559 4,177,454 12,018 704 2,860 4,209,595
Consumer real estate —
mortgage 14,835 1,265 16,100 2,521,748 5,249 9,320 8,797 2,561,214
Construction and land
development 4,136 146 4,282 1,894,560 3,478 2,878 3,090 1,908,288
Commercial and industrial 7,406 1,348 8,754 4,114,127 1,154 17,222 84 4,141,341
Consumer and other 6,311 1,276 7,587 345,076 — — — 352,663
$ 56,019 $ 4139 $ 60,158 $ 15,488,784 $ 26,719 $ 41519 $ 15,936 $ 15,633,116
December 31, 2016
Commercial real estate:
Owner-occupied $ 3505 $ — 3 3505 $ 1,347,134 $ — $ 2297 $ 1957 $ 1,354,893
All other — — — 1,837,936 — 239 428 1,838,603
Consumer real estate —
mortgage 3,838 53 3,891 1,173,953 — 5,553 2,520 1,185,917
Construction and land
development 2,210 — 2,210 903,850 — 3,205 3,408 912,673
Commercial and industrial 4,475 — 4,475 2,879,740 — 6,971 524 2,891,710
Consumer and other 7,168 1,081 8,249 257,405 — 475 — 266,129
$ 21,196 $ 1,134 $ 22,330 $ 8,400,018 $ — $ 18,740 $ 8,837 $ 8,449,925

(1) Approximately $45.8 million and $16.7 million of nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, are currently
performing pursuant to their contractual terms.

The following table details the changes in the allowance for loan losses from December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2016 to
December 31, 2017 by loan classification and the allocation of allowance for loan losses (in thousands):

Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance at December 31, 2014
Charged-off loans

Recovery of previously charged-off
loans

Provision for loan losses

Balance at December 31, 2015

Collectively evaluated for impairment
Individually evaluated for impairment

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit
quality

Balance at December 31, 2015

Loans:
Collectively evaluated for impairment
Individually evaluated for impairment

L oans acquired with deteriorated credit
quality
Balance at December 31, 2015

Commercial Consumer  Construction Commercial
real estate -  real estate - and land and Consumer
mortgage mortgage development industrial and other Unallocated Total

$ 22202 $ 5424 $ 5724 $ 29,167 $ 1570 $ 3272 $ 67,359
(384) (365) (190) (2,207) (18,002) — (21,248)
85 874 1,479 1,730 5,865 — 10,033
(6,390) 1,287 (4,110) (5,047) 26,183 (2,735) 9,188
$ 15513 $ 7,220 $ 2,903 $ 23,643 $ 15,616 $ 537 $ 65,432
$ 15452 $ 6,109 $ 2,891 $ 22,669 $ 12,609 $ 59,730
61 1,111 12 974 3,007 5,165
$ 15513 $ 7220 $ 2,903 $ 23643 $ 15,616 $ 537 $ 65,432
$ 2269439 $ 1,033479 $ 740,090 $ 2,222,714 $ 240,066 $ 6,505,788
2,420 8,986 3,689 5,288 4,930 25,313
3,624 4,052 3,918 540 — 12,134
$ 2275483 $ 1,046,517 $ 747,697 $ 2,228542 $ 244,996 $ 6,543,235
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Commercial  Consumer  Construction Commercial
real estate -  real estate - and land and Consumer
mortgage mortgage development industrial and other Unallocated Total

Allowance for Loan Losses:

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 15513 $ 7220 $ 2,903 $ 23643 $ 15,616 $ 537 $ 65,432
Charged-off loans (276) (788) (231) (5,801) (24,016) — (31,112)
Recovery of previously charged-off
loans 208 546 545 2,138 2,895 — 6,332
Provision for loan losses (1,790) (414) 407 4,763 15,025 337 18,328

Balance at December 31, 2016 13,655 $ 6,564 $ 3624 $ 24,743 $ 9,520 $ 874 $ 58,980

Collectively evaluated for impairment 13,595 $ 5874 $ 3604 $ 24,648 $ 9,293 $ 57,014

Individually evaluated for impairment 60 690 20 95 227 1,092

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit

quality — — — — — —

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 13,655 $ 6,564 $ 3624 $ 24,743 $ 9,520 $ 874 $ 58,980

Loans:

Collectively evaluated for impairment $ 3188361 $ 1,174,456 $ 906,053 $ 2,872,855 $ 265,613 $ 8,407,338

Individually evaluated for impairment 2,750 8,941 3,212 18,331 516 33,750

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit

quality 2,385 2,520 3,408 524 — 8,837

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 3193496 $ 1,185917 $ 912,673 $ 2,891,710 $ 266,129 m

Commercial Consumer  Construction Commercial
real estate -  real estate - and land and Consumer
mortgage mortgage development industrial and other Unallocated Total

Allowance for Loan Losses:

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 13,655 $ 6,564 $ 3624 $ 24,743 $ 9,520 $ 874 $ 58,980
Charged-off loans (633) (1,461) (237) (4,297) (15,518) — (22,047)
Recovery of previously charged-off
loans 671 1,516 1,136 1,317 2,002 — 6,642
Provision for loan losses 7,495 (1,588) 4,339 3,100 9,870 448 23,664

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 21,188 $ 5031 $ 8,962 $ 24,863 $ 5874 $ 1322 $ 67,240

Collectively evaluated for impai rment $ 20,753 $ 4,460 $ 8879 $ 23,181 $ 5,874 63,147

Individually evaluated for impairment 95 410 66 1,627 — 2,198

L oans acquired with deteriorated credit

quality 340 161 17 55 — 573

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 21,188 $ 5031 $ 8,962 $ 24,863 $ 5874 $ 1322 $ 67,240

Loans:

Collectively evaluated for impairment $ 6630593 $ 253499% $ 1,896,553 $ 4,116,677 $ 352,663 $ 15,531,482

Individually evaluated for impairment 18,214 12,172 5,167 23,426 — 58,979

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit

quality 20,803 14,046 6,568 1,238 — 42,655

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 6660610 $ 2561214 $ 1008288 $ 4,141,341 $ 352,663 $ 15633116

The adequacy of the allowance for loan lossesis assessed at the end of each calendar quarter. Thelevel of the allowance is based
upon evaluation of the loan portfolio, historical loss experience, current asset quality trends, known and inherent risks in the portfolio,
adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay (including the timing of future payment), the estimated vaue of any
underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio, economic conditions, historical loss experience, industry and peer bank loan
quality indications and other pertinent factors, including regulatory recommendations.

At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial had granted loans and other extensions of credit amounting to approximately $26.4
million to current directors, executive officers, and their related entities, of which $16.1 million had been drawn upon. At
December 31, 2016, Pinnacle Financial had granted loans and other extensions of credit amounting to approximately $22.6 million to
directors, executive officers, and their related entities, of which approximately $14.8 million had been drawn upon. These loans and

extensions of credit were made in the ordinary course of business. None of these loans to directors, executive officers, and their related
entities were impaired at December 31, 2017 or 2016.
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Residential Lending

At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial had approximately $103.7 million of mortgage loans held-for-sale compared to
approximately $47.7 million at December 31, 2016. Total loan volumes sold during the year ended December 31, 2017 were
approximately $1.1 billion compared to approximately $803.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. During the year ended
December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial recognized $18.6 million in gains on the sale of these loans, net of commissions paid,
compared to $15.8 million and $7.7 million, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

These mortgage loans held-for-sale are originated internally and are primarily to borrowers in Pinnacle Bank's geographic
markets. These sales are typically on a mandatory basis to investors that follow conventional government sponsored entities (GSE)
and the Department of Housing and Urban Development/U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (HUD/VA) guidelines.

Each purchaser has specific guidelines and criteriafor sellers of loans, and the risk of credit loss with regard to the principal
amount of the loans sold is generally transferred to the purchasers upon sale. While the loans are sold without recourse, the purchase
agreements require Pinnacle Bank to make certain representations and warranties regarding the existence and sufficiency of file
documentation and the absence of fraud by borrowers or other third parties such as appraisers in connection with obtaining the loan. If
it is determined that the loans sold were in breach of these representations or warranties, Pinnacle Bank has obligations to either
repurchase the loan for the unpaid principal balance and related investor fees or make the purchaser whole for the economic benefits

of the loan. To date, repurchase activity pursuant to the terms of these representations and warranties has been insignificant to Pinnacle
Bank.

Note 7. Mortgage Servicing Rights
Mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) are recorded at the lower of cost or market in "Other assets’ on Pinnacle Financia's

consolidated balance sheets and are amortized over the remaining life of the loans and written off when a mortgage loan prepays prior
to maturity. Mortgage servicing rights had the following carrying values as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

2015
Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount
Mortgage servicing rights $ 6,802 $ (390) $ 6,412

The following table provides a detail of changes in the mortgage servicing right from September 1, 2015, the closing date of the
Magna Merger, to December 31, 2015:

Residential
Beginning balance acquired in Magna Merger $ 6,641
Add: Capitalized MSRs 161
Less: Amortization 390
Ending balance m

Income and expense associated with these M SRs, which includes servicing fees, late charges, guarantee fees and |oan payoff
interest, is recorded on a cash basis which approximates income as would be recorded on aU.S. GAAP basis. The following table
summarizes the net servicing fee revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

Residential

Gross servicing fees m
L ate charges and other ancillary revenue 160

Gross servicing revenue $_1250
Servicing asset amortization $ 386
Guaranty fees and loan pay-off interest 9
Other servicing expenses 51
Gross servicing expenses $ 446
Net servicing fee income $ 804
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During the first quarter of 2016, in conjunction with a decision to exit the residential servicing line of business, Pinnacle Bank
sold the mortgage servicing rights associated with the $830 million Fannie Mae portion of the residential servicing portfolio for $6.6
million, net of associated costs to sell. Approximately $241,000 was recorded as income during the year ended December 31, 2016 as

aresult of the sale.

Note 8. Premises and Equipment and Lease Commitments

Premises and equipment at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Range of Useful Lives 2017 2016

Land Not applicable $ 65,649 $ 19,467
Buildings 15to0 30 years 164,748 64,088
L easehold improvements 15 to 20 years 38,913 28,789
Furniture and equipment 31020 years 93,841 62,982
363,151 175,326

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (97,137) (86,422)
$ 266,014 $ 88,904

Depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $13.7 million, $9.9 million, and $8.5 million for the years ended

December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Pinnacle Financia has entered into various operating leases, primarily for office space and branch facilities. Rent expense related
to these leases for 2017, 2016 and 2015 totaled $11.7 million, $8.4 million and $5.9 million, respectively. At December 31, 2017, the
approximate future minimum lease payments due under the af orementioned operating leases for their base term are as follows (in

thousands):

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

12,226
11,535
10,949
10,652

8,429
42,857
96,648

During 2016 and as aresult of the acquisition of Avenue, Pinnacle Financial has entered into a single capital lease, primarily for
office space at an interest rate of 7.22% per year. Rent expense related to this lease for 2017 was approximately $225,000 and is

included in total rent expense above. At December 31, 2017, the approximate future minimum lease payments due under the

aforementioned capital lease for its base term are as follows (in thousands):

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Less: amount representing interest

Present value of net minimum |ease payments
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426
470
470
470
470

3,028
5,334
(1,695)
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Note 9. Deposits

At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows (in thousands):

2018 $ 1,850,523
2019 445,198
2020 123,000
2021 95,754
2022 17,244
Thereafter 2,342

$__2ma0e

Additionally, at December 31, 2017 and 2016, approximately $1.3 billion and $602.9 million, respectively, of time deposits had
been issued in denominations of $100,000 or gresater.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, Pinnacle Financial had $3.5 million and $1.9 million, respectively, of deposit accountsin
overdraft status and thus have been reclassified to loans on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Note 10. Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Pinnacle Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (FHLB) and as aresult, is eligible for advances from
the FHLB pursuant to the terms of various borrowing agreements, which assist Pinnacle Bank in the funding of its home mortgage and
commercial real estate loan portfolios. Pinnacle Bank has pledged certain qualifying residential mortgage loans and, pursuant to a
blanket lien, certain qualifying commercial mortgage loans with an aggregate carrying value of approximately $5.5 billion as
collateral under the borrowing agreements with the FHLB.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, Pinnacle Financial had received advances from the FHLB totaling $1.3 billion and $406.2
million, respectively. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial recognized a discount of $167,000 on FHLB advances in conjunction with its
acquisition of Avenuein July 2016. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, the remaining discount was $13,000 and $92,000.
At December 31, 2017, the scheduled maturities of FHLB advances and interest rates are as follows (in thousands):

Weighted
Scheduled average
Maturities interest rates
2018 $ 557,501 1.46%
2019 356,000 1.64%
2020 272,627 1.74%
2021 133,750 1.87%
2022 — —
Thereafter 17 2.75%
$_ 13198%
Weighted average interest rate - 1.61%

At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank had accommodations which allow it to borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta's
discount window and purchase Federal funds from several of its correspondent banks on an overnight basis at prevailing overnight
market rates. These accommodations are subject to various restrictions as to their term and availability, and in most cases, must be
repaid within less than a month. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank had approximately $4.3 billion in borrowing availability with
the FHLB, the Federal Reserve Bank discount window, and other correspondent banks with whom Pinnacle Bank has arranged lines
of credit. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank was not carrying any balances with the Federal Reserve Bank discount window or
correspondent banks under these arrangements.

Note 11. Other Borrowings
Pinnacle Financia has twelve wholly-owned subsidiaries that are statutory business trusts created for the exclusive purpose of
issuing 30-year capital trust preferred securities. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank have entered into, or assumed in

connection with acquisitions, certain other subordinated debt agreements and a revolving credit facility as outlined below (in
thousands):

109



Total Debt Interest Rate at

Name Date Established Maturity Outstanding  December 31, 2017 Coupon Structure
Trust preferred securities
Pinnacle Statutory Trust | December 29, 2003 December 30, 2033 $ 10,310 4.40% 30-day LIBOR + 2.80%
Pinnacle Statutory Trust |1 September 15, 2005 September 30, 2035 20,619 3.09% 30-day LIBOR + 1.40%
Pinnacle Statutory Trust 111 September 7, 2006 September 30, 2036 20,619 3.34% 30-day LIBOR + 1.65%
Pinnacle Statutory Trust IV October 31, 2007  September 30, 2037 30,928 4.44% 30-day LIBOR + 2.85%
BNC Capital Trust | April 3, 2003 April 15, 2033 5,155 4.61% 30-day LIBOR + 3.25%
BNC Capital Trust I March 11, 2004 April 7, 2034 6,186 4.21% 30-day LIBOR + 2.85%
BNC Capital Trust 11 September 23, 2004 September 23, 2034 5,155 3.76% 30-day LIBOR + 2.40%
BNC Capital Trust IV September 27, 2006 December 31, 2036 7,217 3.39% 30-day LIBOR + 1.70%
Valley Financial Trust | August 5, 2005  September 30, 2035 4,124 4.77% 30-day LIBOR + 3.10%
Valley Financial Trust I1 June 6, 2003 June 26, 2033 7,217 3.08% 30-day LIBOR + 1.49%
Valley Financial Trust 111 September 26, 2005 December 15, 2035 5,155 3.11% 30-day LIBOR + 1.73%
Southcoast Capital Trust I11 December 15, 2006  January 30, 2037 10,310 3.19% 30-day LIBOR + 1.50%
Subordinated Debt
Pinnacle Bank Subordinated Notes July 30, 2015 July 30, 2025 60,000 4.88% Fixed®
Pinnacle Bank Subordinated Notes March 10, 2016 July 30, 2025 70,000 4.88% Fixed®
Avenue Subordinated Notes December 29, 2014 December 29, 2024 20,000 6.75% Fixed®
Pinnacle Financial Subordinated Notes November 16, 2016 November 16, 2026 120,000 5.25% Fixed®
BNC Subordinated Notes September 25, 2014  October 1, 2024 60,000 5.50% Fixed®
BNC Subordinated Note October 15,2013  October 15, 2023 10,500 6.35% 30-day LIBOR + 5.0%®

Other Borrowings
Revolving credit facility®

March 29, 2016

Debt issuance costs and fair value adjustment
Total subordinated debt and other borrowings

March 27, 2018 —
(7,990)
$ 465505

(1) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 3.128% beginning July 30, 2020 through the end of the term.
(2) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 4.95% beginning January 1, 2020 through the end of the term.

(3) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 3.884% beginning November 16, 2021 through the end of the term.

(4) Migrates to three month LIBOR + 3.59% beginning October 1, 2019 through the end of the term if not redeemed on that date.
(5) Coupon structure includes a floor of 5.0% and a cap of 9.5%.
(6) Borrowing capacity on the revolving credit facility is $75.0 million. At December 31, 2017, there was no outstanding balance under this
facility. The rate under thisfacility is 2.25% plus the greater of zero percent and 30-day LIBOR with a maturity date of March 27, 2018 and
an unused fee of 0.35% of average daily unused amount of loan.

Note 12. Income Taxes

Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations for each of the years ended December 31 is as follows (in thousands):

Current tax expense :
Federal
State
Total current tax expense
Deferred tax expense:
Federal
State
Deferred tax revaluation expense
Total deferred tax expense
Total income tax expense

2017 2016 2015
$ 63,496 49,769 $ 41,721
860 — 48
64,356 49,769 41,769
26,339 12,776 4,963
1,826 1,614 857
31,486 — —
59,651 14,390 5,819
$ 124,007 64,159 $ 47,589
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Pinnacle Financia's income tax expense differs from the amounts computed by applying the Federal income tax statutory rates of
35% to income (loss) before income taxes. A reconciliation of the differences for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended
December 31, 2017 is as follows (in thousands):

2017 2016 2015
Income tax expense at statutory rate $ 104,295 $ 66,984 $ 50,084
State excise tax expense, net of federal tax effect 1,746 1,049 588
Tax-exempt securities (5,666) (2,510) (2,543)
Federal tax credits (434) (282) —
Bank owned life insurance (2,778) (1,242) (892)
Insurance premiums (283) (159) (306)
Revaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities due to Tax Cuts and Jobs Act 31,486 — —
Excess tax benefits associated with equity compensation (5,365) — —
Change in uncertain tax positions — — —
Other items 1,006 319 658
Income tax expense $ 124,007 $ 64,159 $ 47,589

Pinnacle Financial's effective tax rate for 2017 and 2016 differs from the statutory income tax rates primarily due to a state excise
tax expense, investmentsin bank qualified municipal securities, our real estate investment trust, participation in the Community
Investment Tax Credit (CITC) program, and bank owned life insurance, offset in part by the limitation on deductibility of meals and
entertainment expense, certain merger-related expenses and the deferred tax asset revaluation in 2017 pursuant to the enactment of the
Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act was signed into law. Among other items, the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act reduced the corporate statutory tax rate from 35% to 21%. As aresult of such decrease, Pinnacle Financia recognized a
charge of $31.5 million in 2017 resulting from the revaluation of its deferred tax assets.

The components of deferred income taxes included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows (in thousands):

Deferred tax assets:
Loan loss allowance
Loans
Insurance
Accrued liability for supplemental retirement agreements
Restricted stock and stock options
Securities
Cash flow hedge
Equity method investment
Leases
Other real estate owned
Net federal operating loss carryforward and credits
Other deferred tax assets
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization
Core deposit intangible asset
Securities
REIT dividends
FHLB related liabilities
Subordinated debt
Other deferred tax liabilities

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets

1m

2017 2016
16,240 $ 22,308
46,567 15,534

614 869
7,413 5,587
8,232 8,643

— 4,275

499 1,520

635 858
1,738 1,627
2,809 149

18,085 =
5,373 6,413
108,205 67,783
11,504 5,823
14,073 5,621

616 —
3,073 4,602

922 285
1,077 1,001
1171 679

32,436 18,011
75,769 $ 49,772




ASC 740, Income Taxes, defines the threshold for recognizing the benefits of tax return positionsin the financial statements as
"more-likely-than-not" to be sustained by the taxing authority. This section also provides guidance on the derecognition, measurement
and classification of income tax uncertainties, along with any related interest and penalties, and includes guidance concerning
accounting for income tax uncertainties in interim periods. At December 31, 2017, the Company had federal and state |oss and tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $18.5 million that expire at various dates from 2027 to 2036.

On December 22, 2017, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118"), which provides guidance on
accounting for the tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. SAB 118 provides a measurement period that should not extend beyond
one year from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act's enactment date for companies to compl ete the accounting under ASC 740, Income Taxes.
The Company’s financial results reflect the income tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for which the accounting under ASC Topic
740 is complete and provisional amounts for those specific income tax effects of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act for which the accounting
under ASC Topic 740 is incomplete but a reasonabl e estimate could be determined.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending unrecognized tax benefit related to state uncertain tax positionsis as follows (in
thousands):

2017 2016 2015
Baance at January 1, $ 1274 $ 134 % 391
Increases (decreases) due to tax positions taken during the current year 1,564 1,140 (257)
Increases due to tax positions taken during a prior year — — —
Decreases due to the lapse of the statute of limitations during the current year — — —
Decreases due to settlements with the taxing authorities during the current year — — —
Balance at December 31, $ 2838 $ 1274 $ 134

Pinnacle Financial's policy isto recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. No interest
and penalties were recorded for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Note 13. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of business, Pinnacle Financial has entered into off-balance sheet financia instruments which include
commitments to extend credit (i.e., including unfunded lines of credit) and standby letters of credit. Commitments to extend credit are
usually the result of lines of credit granted to existing borrowers under agreements that the total outstanding indebtedness will not
exceed a specific amount during the term of the indebtedness. Typical borrowers are commercia concerns that use lines of credit to
supplement their treasury management functions, thus their total outstanding indebtedness may fluctuate during any time period based
on the seasonality of their business and the resultant timing of their cash flows. Other typical lines of credit are related to home equity
loans granted to consumers. Commitments to extend credit generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may
require payment of afee. At December 31, 2017, these commitments amounted to $5.8 billion, of which approximately $887.6 million
related to home equity lines of credit.

Standby letters of credit are generally issued on behalf of an applicant (customer) to a specifically named beneficiary and are the
result of a particular business arrangement that exists between the applicant and the beneficiary. Standby letters of credit have fixed
expiration dates and are usually for terms of two years or less unless terminated beforehand due to criteria specified in the standby
letter of credit. A typical arrangement involves the applicant routinely being indebted to the beneficiary for such items as inventory
purchases, insurance, utilities, lease guarantees or other third party commercial transactions. The standby letter of credit would permit
the beneficiary to obtain payment from Pinnacle Financial under certain prescribed circumstances. Subsequently, Pinnacle Financial
would then seek reimbursement from the applicant pursuant to the terms of the standby letter of credit. At December 31, 2017, these
commitments amounted to $143.7 million.

Pinnacle Financia follows the same credit policies and underwriting practices when making these commitments as it does for on-
balance sheet instruments. Each customer's creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis and the amount of collateral
obtained, if any, is based on management's credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies but may include cash, real estate
and improvements, marketable securities, accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, and personal property.

The contractual amounts of these commitments are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements and would only be
reflected if drawn upon. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the contractual amounts do
not necessarily represent future cash requirements. However, should the commitments be drawn upon and should our customers
default on their resulting obligation to us, Pinnacle Financial's maximum exposure to credit loss, without consideration of collateral, is
represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial had accrued $3.1 million for
the inherent risks associated with off balance sheet commitments.
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Various legal claims also arise from time to time in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of
these routine claims outstanding at December 31, 2017 will not have a material impact on Pinnacle Financial's consolidated financial
condition, operating results or cash flows.

Note 14. Salary Deferral Plans

Pinnacle Financia has a 401(k) retirement plan (the 401k Plan) covering al employees who elect to participate, subject to certain
digibility requirements. The Plan allows employees to defer up to 50% of their salary subject to regulatory limitations with Pinnacle
Financial matching 100% of the first 4% of employee self-directed contributions during 2017, 2016, and 2015. Pinnacle Financial's
expense associated with the matching component of the plan for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2017
was approximately $5.9 million, $4.0 million and $2.7 million, respectively, and isincluded in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations in salaries and employee benefits expense.

Pinnacle Financial assumed nonqualified noncontributory supplemental retirement agreements (the Cavalry SRAS) for certain
directors and executive officers of Cavalry Bancorp, Inc. (Cavalry), which Pinnacle Financial acquired in 2006. During 2007, Pinnacle
Financial offered a settlement to all participantsin the Cavalry SRAs with eleven participants accepting the settlement. One
individual remains as a participant in the Cavalry SRAs. At December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, included in other ligbilitiesis $1.0
million, $1.2 million, and $1.3 million, respectively, which represents the net present value of the future obligation owed the
remaining participant in the Cavalry SRAs using a discount rate of 5% at December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

In conjunction with other completed acquisitions, Pinnacle has assumed $33.0 million in liabilities associated with existing
supplemental executive retirement plans, of which $20.0 million have been fully funded with rabbi trusts. The remaining amounts that
are not funded are included in other liabilitiesin the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Note 15. Stock Options, Stock Appreciation Rights and Restricted Shares

As of December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial has two equity incentive plans under which it is able to grant awards, the 2014
Equity Incentive Plan (2014 Plan) and the BNC Bancorp 2013 Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (BNC Plan)
it assumed in connection with the BNC Merger. Pinnacle Financial also assumed the stock option plan of CapitalMark (the
CapitalMark Option Plan) it assumed in connection with the CapitalMark Merger but Pinnacle Financial is not able to grant awards
thereunder. In addition, awards previously granted remain outstanding under equity plans previously adopted by Pinnacle
Financia's board of directors and shareholders. No new awards may be granted under plans other than the 2014 Plan, or in the case
of associates that were former associates of BNC or its subsidiaries, the BNC Plan.

Total shares available for issuance under the 2014 Plan were approximately 672,000 shares as of December 31, 2017,
inclusive of shares returned to plan reserves during the year ended December 31, 2017. The 2014 Plan also permits Pinnacle
Financia to issue additional awards to the extent that currently outstanding awards are subsequently forfeited, settled in cash,
transferred to Pinnacle Financia in satisfaction of withholding tax obligations on vested awards or expired unexercised and
returned to the 2014 Plan. Upon the acquisition of CapitalMark, Pinnacle Financial assumed approximately 858,000 of stock
options under the CapitalMark Plan. No further shares remain available for issuance under the CapitalMark Option Plan. There
were approximately 29,000 shares available for issuance under the BNC Plan as of December 31, 2017. No options were assumed
upon the acquisition of Magna, Avenue or BNC as all preexisting Magna, Avenue and BNC stock options were converted to cash
upon acquisition.

Common Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights

As of December 31, 2017, of the 274,586 stock options outstanding, approximately 113,061 options were granted with the
intention to be incentive stock options qualifying under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code for favorable tax treatment to the
option holder while approximately 161,525 options would be deemed non-qualified stock options and thus not subject to favorable
tax treatment to the option holder. Favorable treatment generally refersto the recipient of the award not having to report ordinary
income at the date of exercise. All stock options granted under the Pinnacle Financia equity incentive plans vested in equal
increments over five years from the date of grant, are fully vested as of December 31, 2017 and are exercisable over a period of ten
years from the date of grant. All stock options granted under the CapitalMark Plan were fully vested at the date of the CapitalMark
merger.
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A summary of stock option and stock appreciation right activity within the equity incentive plans during each of theyearsin
the three-year period ended December 31, 2017 and information regarding expected vesting, contractual terms remaining, intrinsic
values and other matters was as follows:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Exercise Remaining Term Value @
Number Price (in years) (000's)

Outstanding at December 31, 2014 698,488 $ 26.89

Options acquired upon acquisition of CapitalMark 858,148 17.62

Granted — —

Stock options exercised (303,754) 24.09

Stock appreciation rights exercised @ (1,276) 15.60

Forfeited (5) 23.88
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 1,251,601 $ 21.23

Granted — —

Stock options exercised (698,673) 21.63

Stock appreciation rights exercised @ (2,435) 15.60

Forfeited (3) 29.50
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 550,490 $ 20.75

Granted — —

Stock options exercised (275,904) 20.09

Forfeited — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2017 274,586 $ 21.40 3.06 $ 12,329
Options exercisable at December 31, 2017 274586 $ 21.40 3.06 $ 12,329

(1) Theaggregateintrinsic valueis calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted price of
Pinnacle Financial Common Stock of $66.30 per common share at December 31, 2017 for the 274,586 options that were in-the-money
at December 31, 2017.

(2) The 1,276 stock appreciation rights exercised during 2015 settled in 559 shares of Pinnacle Financial Common Stock. The 2,435 stock
appreciation rights exercised during 2016 settled in 1,137 shares of Pinnacle Financial Common Stock.

(3) Includes 750 stock options which were exercised in a stock swap transaction which settled in 277 shares of Pinnacle Financial common
stock.

During each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, the aggregate intrinsic value of stock options and
stock appreciation rights exercised under Pinnacle Financial's equity incentive plans was $12.3 million, $21.7 million and $7.6
million, respectively, determined as of the date of option exercise.

There have been no options granted by Pinnacle Financial since 2008. All stock option awards granted by Pinnacle Financial
were fully vested during 2013. Stock options granted under the CapitalMark Plan were fully vested at the time of acquisition. As
such, there was no impact on the results of operations for stock-based compensation related to stock options for the three-year
period ended December 31, 2017.

Restricted Shares
Additionally, the 2014 Plan and the BNC Plan provide for the granting of restricted share awards and other performance or
market-based awards. There were no market-based awards or stock appreciation rights outstanding as of December 31, 2017 under

the 2014 Plan or the BNC Plan. During the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial awarded 261,942,
177,664 and 231,504 shares of restricted stock to certain Pinnacle Financial associates and outside directors.
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A summary of activity for unvested restricted share awards for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 follows:

Unvested at December 31, 2014
Shares awarded

Conversion of previously granted restricted share units to restricted share awards
Restrictions lapsed and shares released to associates/directors
Shares forfeited
Unvested at December 31, 2015
Shares awarded

Conversion of previously granted restricted share units to restricted share awards
Restrictions lapsed and shares released to associates/directors
Sharesforfeited
Unvested at December 31, 2016
Shares awarded
Conversion of previously granted restricted share units to restricted share awards

Shares assumed in connection with acquisition of BNC

Restrictions lapsed and shares rel eased to associates/directors
Shares forfeited
Unvested at December 31, 2017

Grant Date
Weighted-
Number Average Cost

849,198 $ 24.26
231,504 45.71
43,711 34.50
(240,102) 23.00
(17,997) 30.01
866,314 $ 31.39
177,664 48.61
43,694 46.37
(245,873) 28.39
(21,260) 39.88
820,539 $ 36.47
261,942 67.14
43,680 69.40
136,890 67.25
(292,896) 37.59
(34,020) 54.71
936,135 $ 50.08

Pinnacle Financia grants restricted share awards to associates (including members of executive management) and outside
directors with a combination of time and, in the case of executive management, performance vesting criteria. The following tables
outline restricted stock grants that were made by grant year, grouped by similar vesting criteria, during the three year period ended
December 31, 2017. Thetable below reflects the life-to-date activity for these awards:

Restrictions Shares
Vesting Lapsed and Withheld Shares

Grant Period in Shares shares released for taxes by Forfeited by Shares

Year Group @ years awarded  to participants participants  participants ® Unvested
Time Based Awards

2015 Associates @ 5 190,528 53,574 19,405 19,136 98,413

2015 L eadership team © 5 16,605 2,530 788 — 13,287

2016 Associates @ 5 143,273 19,490 7,316 15,126 101,341

2017  Associates @ 3-5 248,265 388 198 14,085 233,594

2017 Associates @ @ 3-5 136,890 40,317 — — 96,573
Performance Based Awards

2015 L eadership team © 5 43,711 — — — 43,711

2015 L eadership team © 3 11,302 2,679 1,086 — 7,537

2016 L eadership team © 3 43,694 — — — 43,694

2016 L eadership team ¢ 3 15,468 — — — 15,468

2017 L eadership team © 3 43,680 — — — 43,680
Outside Director Awards ©

2015 Outside directors 1 13,069 11,298 1,771 — —

2016 Outside directors 1 18,923 15471 2,266 1,186 —

2017 Outside directors 13,677 2,376 796 — 10,505

(1) Groupsinclude employees (referred to as associates above), the leadership team which includes our named executive officers and other
key senior leadership members, and outside directors. When the restricted shares are awarded, a participant receives voting rights and
forfeitable dividend rights with respect to the shares, but is not able to transfer the shares until the restrictions have lapsed. Once the
restrictions lapse, the participant is taxed on the value of the award and may elect to sell some shares (or have Pinnacle Financial
withhold some shares) to pay the applicable income taxes associated with the vested portion of the award. For time-based vesting
restricted share awards, dividends paid on shares for which the forfeiture restrictions do not lapse will be recouped by Pinnacle
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Financial at the time of termination. For performance-based vesting awards, dividends are placed into escrow until the forfeiture
restrictions on such shares lapse.

The forfeiture restrictions on these restricted share awards lapse in equal annual installments on the anniversary date of the grant.
These shares were awarded to individual s joining the leadership team upon acquisition of Magna. The forfeiture restrictions on these
restricted share awards lapse in equal installments on the anniversary date of the grant.

Restricted share awards issued to associates that were former associates of BNC in connection with the acquisition of BNC.

Reflects settlement of restricted share unitsissued in prior yearsin restricted share awards. The forfeiture restrictions on these restricted
share awards lapse in separate equal installments should Pinnacle Financia achieve certain soundness targets over each year of the
subsequent vesting period. Half of the awards include a four-year vesting period while the remainder include a three-year vesting
period.

These shares were awarded to individuals joining the leadership team upon acquisition of CapitalMark. The forfeiture restrictions on
these restricted share awards lapse in separate equal installments should Pinnacle Financial achieve certain earnings targets over each
year of the vesting period and should the recipient thereafter remain employed by Pinnacle Financial for a subseguent vesting period.
These shares were awarded to individual s joining the leadership team upon acquisition of Avenue. The forfeiture restrictions on these
restricted share awards lapse in separate equal installments should Pinnacle Financial achieve certain earnings targets over each year of
the vesting period and should the recipient thereafter remain employed by Pinnacle Financial for a subsequent vesting period.
Restricted share awards are issued to the outside members of the board of directors in accordance with their board compensation plan.
Restrictions lapse on the one year anniversary date of the award based on each individual board member meeting attendance goals for
the various board and board committee meetings to which each member was scheduled to attend.

These shares represent forfeitures resulting from recipients whose employment or board membership terminated during the year ended
December 31, 2017. Any dividends paid on shares for which the forfeiture restrictions do not lapse will be recouped by Pinnacle
Financial at the time of termination or will not be distributed from escrow, as applicable.

Compensation expense associated with the performance-based vesting restricted share awards is recognized over the time
period that the restrictions associated with the awards are anticipated to |apse based on a graded vesting schedule such that each
traunche is amortized separately. Compensation expense associated with the time-based vesting restricted share awardsis
recognized over the time period that the restrictions associated with the awards lapse on a straight-line basis based on the total cost
of the award.

Restricted Share Units

The following table details the restricted share unit awards outstanding at December 31, 2017:

Units Awarded

Applicable
Performance Subsequent
Named Executive Periods associated  Service period per holding period Shares settled into
Grant Officer(sl) Leadership Team  with each tranche tranche per tranche RSAs as ofzperiod
year (NEOs) other than NEOs (fiscal year) (in years) (in years) end

2017 72,537-109,339 24,916 2017 2 3 N/A
2018 2 2 N/A
2019 2 1 N/A
2016 73,474-110,223 26,683 2016 2 3 N/A
2017 2 2 N/A
2018 2 1 N/A
2015 58,200-101,850 28,378 2015 2 3 N/A
2016 2 2 N/A
2017 2 1 N/A

2014 ® 58,404-102,209 29,087 2014 5 N/A 21,856

2014 4 N/A 21,856

2015 4 N/A 21,847

2015 3 N/A 21,847

2016 3 N/A 21,840

2016 2 N/A 21,840

@
@)

The named executive officersareawarded arange of awardsthat may be earned based on attainment of goalsat atarget level of performance
to the maximum level of performance.

Performance-based vesting restricted stock unit awards granted in 2017, 2016 and 2015 if earned will be settled in shares of Pinnacle
Financial Common Stock.
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(3) Restrictions on half of the shares issued as restricted share awards in settlement of units will 1apse commensurate with the filing of the
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively, and are reflected as restricted stock awards in the year in which
the shares are issued in settlement of the units.

A summary of stock compensation expense, net of the impact of income taxes, related to restricted share awards and restricted
share units for the three-year period ended December 31, 2017, follows (in thousands except per share data):

2017 2016 2015
Restricted stock expense $ 19538 $ 10971 $ 6,033
Income tax benefit 7,665 4,306 2,368
Restricted stock expense, net of income tax benefit $ 11,873 $ 6,665 $ 3,665

As of the December 31, 2017, the total compensation cost related to unvested restricted share awards and restricted share units
not yet recognized was $30.9 million. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.98 years.

Note 16. Derivative Instruments

Financial derivatives are reported at fair value in other assets or other liabilities. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a
derivative depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging relationship. For derivatives not designated as
hedges, the gain or lossis recognized in current earnings.

Non-hedge derivatives

Pinnacle Financial entersinto interest rate swaps (swaps) to facilitate customer transactions and meet their financing needs. Upon
entering into these instruments to meet customer needs, Pinnacle Financial enters into offsetting positions in order to minimize the risk
to Pinnacle Financial. These swaps qualify as derivatives, but are not designated as hedging instruments.

Interest rate swap contracts involve the risk of dealing with counterparties and their ability to meet contractual terms. When the
fair value of aderivative instrument contract is positive, this generally indicates that the counter party or customer owes Pinnacle
Financia, and resultsin credit risk to Pinnacle Financial. When the fair value of a derivative instrument contract is negative, Pinnacle
Financial owes the customer or counterparty and therefore, Pinnacle Financial has no credit risk.

A summary of Pinnacle Financial's interest rate swaps to facilitate customer transactions as of December 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 isincluded in the following table (in thousands):

Interest rate swap agreements:

Pay fixed / receive variable swaps
Pay variable/ receive fixed swaps
Total

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

Notional Estimated
Amount Fair Value

Notional Estimated
Amount Fair Value

$ 748625 $ 13771 $
748,625 (13,866)

666,572 $ 16,004
666,572 (16,138)

$ 1497250 $ (95) $

1,333,144 $ (134)
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Hedge derivatives

Pinnacle Financia has forward cash flow hedge relationships to manage future interest rate exposure. The hedging strategy
converts the LIBOR-based variable interest rate on forecasted borrowings to a fixed interest rate and protects Pinnacle Financial from
floating interest rate variability. A summary of Pinnacle Financial's cash flow hedge relationships as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
are asfollows (in thousands):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Unrealized Loss Unrealized Loss
in Accumulated in Accumulated
Forecasted Other Other
Notional Pay Asset/ Comprehensive Asset/ Comprehensive
Amount Receive Rate Rate Term(1) (Liabilities) Income (Liabilities) Income
April 2016 -
Interest RateSwap $ 33,000 3monthLIBOR  2.265% April 2020 (146) (89) (727) (442)
April 2016 -
Interest Rate Swap 33,000 3 month LIBOR 2.646% April 2022 (647) (393) (1,304) (792)
Oct. 2016 -
Interest Rate Swap 33,000 3 month LIBOR 2.523% Oct. 2020 (382) (232) (1,081) (657)
Oct. 2017 -
Interest Rate Swap 33,000 3 month LIBOR 2.992% Oct. 2021 (998) (606) (1,200) (729)
April 2018 -
Interest Rate Swap 34,000 3 month LIBOR 3.118% July 2022 (1,205) (732) (1,222) (743)
July 2018 -
Interest Rate Swap 34,000 3monthLIBOR  3.158% Oct. 2022 (1,205) (733) (1,198) (728)
$ 200,000 (4,583) (2,785) (6,732) (4,091)

(1) No cash will be exchanged prior to the beginning of the term.

Pinnacle Financia has interest rate swap agreements designated as cash flow hedges intended to protect against the variability of
cash flows on selected LIBOR-based loans. The swaps hedge the interest rate risk, wherein Pinnacle Financial receives a fixed rate of
interest from a counterparty and pays a variable rate, based on one month LIBOR. The swaps were entered into with a counterparty
that met Pinnacle Financial's credit standards and the agreements contain collateral provisions protecting the at-risk party. The
following outlines the interest rate swap agreements in place at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 (in thousands):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Unrealized Unrealized
Gain (Loss) in Gain (Loss) in
Accumulated Accumulated
Forecasted Other Other
Notional  Receive Pay Asset/ Comprehensive Asset/ Comprehensive
Amount Rate Rate Term (Liabilities) Income (Liabilities) Income
July 2014 -
Interest Rate Swap ®  $ —  2.090% 1monthLIBOR  July 2021 — — 305 240
July 2014 -
Interest Rate Swap @ —  2270% 1monthLIBOR  July 2022 — — 610 371
July 2014 -
Interest Rate Swap @ —  2420% 1month LIBOR  July 2023 — — 874 531
July 2014 -
Interest Rate Swap ¥ —  2500% 1month LIBOR  July 2024 — — 900 547
August 2015 -
Interest Rate Swap ® —  1.470% 1 month LIBOR August 2020 — — (75) (46)

$ — — — 2,704 1,643

(1) Each of these swaps were terminated via cash settlement in the second quarter of 2017. As aresult of terminating these contractsin the
second quarter of 2017, Pinnacle Financial began recognizing again of $3.1 million over the original terms of these agreements.
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The cash flow hedges were determined to be fully effective during the periods presented. Therefore, no amount of ineffectiveness
has been included in net income. The aggregate fair value of the swapsis recorded in other assets or other liabilities with changesin
fair value recorded in accumulated other comprehensive (1oss) income, net of tax. If a hedge was deemed to be ineffective, the amount
included in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income would be reclassified into a line item within the statement of income that
impacts operating results. The hedge would no longer be considered effective if a portion of the hedge becomes ineffective, theitem
hedged is no longer in existence or Pinnacle Financia discontinues hedge accounting. Other than the interest rate swaps agreements
terminated in the second quarter of 2017, Pinnacle Financial expects the hedges to remain fully effective during the remaining terms of
the swaps. Pinnacle Financial does not expect any amounts to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income
related to these swaps over the next twelve months.

Note 17. Employment Contracts

Pinnacle Financial has entered into, and subsegquently amended employment agreements with four of its senior executives: the
President and Chief Executive Officer, the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Administrative Officer and the Chief Financia Officer.
These agreements, as amended, automatically renew each year on January 1 for an additional year unless any of the partiesto the
agreements gives notice of intent not to renew the agreement prior to November 30th of the preceding year, in which case the
agreement terminates 30 days later. The agreements specify that in certain defined "Terminating Events," Pinnacle Financial will be
obligated to pay each of the four senior executives certain amounts, which vary according to the Terminating Event, which is based on
their annual salaries and bonuses. These Terminating Events include termination for disability, cause, without cause and other events.

During 2012, Pinnacle Financial entered into, and subsegquently amended, a change of control agreement with its Senior Credit
Officer providing the employee with certain benefits if his employment is terminated under certain scenarios within twelve months of
achange in control. This agreement automatically renews each year on January 1 unless a party to the agreement notifies the other
parties of intent not to renew the agreement prior to November 30th of the preceding year, in which case the agreement terminates 30
days later.

In connection with the Avenue Merger, Pinnacle Financia entered into an employment agreement with its Vice Chairman. This
agreement is on similar terms as the employment agreements with the four senior executives described above, except that it provides
for afixed three-year term and does not automatically renew.

In connection with the BNC Merger, Pinnacle Financia entered into an employment agreement with its Chairman of the
Carolinas and Virginia. This agreement is on similar terms as the other employment agreements, except that it provides for aninitial
fixed three-year term and automatic renewal occurs following theinitial term in the same manner as the employment agreements of
the four senior executives described above. This agreement also provides for the payment of certain deferred benefits under his prior
employment agreement with BNC upon termination of his employment with Pinnacle Financial.

Note 18. Related Party Transactions

A local public relations company, of which one of Pinnacle Financial's former directorsis a principal, has provided various
services for Pinnacle Financial. This director's term ended during the year ended December 31, 2016 and therefore the relationship
was no longer considered to be arelated party transaction. During the year ended December 31, 2015 Pinnacle Financial incurred no
expenses relating to services rendered by this public relations company. During the year ended December 31, 2016, $20,000 in
expenses were incurred relating to services rendered by this public relations company. During the year ended December 31, 2017, no
expenses were incurred relating to services rendered by this public relations company.

Also see Note 6 - "Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses', concerning loans and other extensions of credit to certain directors,
officers, and their related entities and individuals and Note 14 — "Salary Deferral Plans' regarding supplemental retirement agreement
obligations to certain directors who were formerly directors of acquired banks.

Note 19. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value in U.S. GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The definition of fair value focuses on the exit
price, i.e., the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, not the entry price, i.e., the price that would be paid to acquire the asset or received to assume
the liability at the measurement date. The statement emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement; not an entity-
specific measurement. Therefore, the fair value measurement should be determined based on the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liahility.
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Valuation Hierarchy

FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation
hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three
levels are defined as follows:

e Level 1-inputsto the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilitiesin active
markets.

e Level 2 —inputsto the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilitiesin active markets, and
inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
financial instrument.

e Level 3-inputsto the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. Following is adescription of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value, as well asthe general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Assets

Securities available-for-sale — Where quoted prices are available for identical securitiesin an active market, securities are
classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securitiesinclude highly liquid government securities and certain other
financial products. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models that use
observable inputs or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics and are classified within Level 2 of the valuation
hierarchy. In certain cases where there islimited activity or less transparency around inputs to the valuation and more complex
pricing models or discounted cash flows are used, securities are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy.

Other investments — Included in other assets are other investments recorded at fair value primarily in certain nonpublic entities
and funds. The valuation of these nonpublic investments requires management judgment due to the absence of observable quoted
market prices, inherent lack of liquidity and the long-term nature of such assets. These investments are valued initially based upon
transaction price. The carrying values of other investments are adjusted either upwards or downwards from the transaction price to
reflect expected exit values as evidenced by financing and sal e transactions with third parties, or when determination of avaluation
adjustment is confirmed through ongoing reviews by senior investment managers. A variety of factors are reviewed and monitored
to assess positive and negative changes in valuation including, but not limited to, current operating performance and future
expectations of the particular investment, industry valuations of comparable public companies and changes in market outlook and
the third-party financing environment over time. In determining valuation adjustments resulting from the investment review
process, emphasisis placed on current company performance and market conditions. These investments are included in Level 3 of
the valuation hierarchy as these entities and funds are not widely traded and the underlying investments are often privately-held
and/or start-up companies for which market values are not readily available.

Other assets — Included in other assets are certain assets carried at fair value, including interest rate swap agreements, the cash
flow hedge and interest rate locks associated with the mortgage loan pipeline. The carrying amount of interest rate swap
agreements is based on Pinnacle Financial's pricing models that utilize observable market inputs. The fair value of the cash flow
hedge is determined by calculating the difference between the discounted fixed rate cash flows and the discounted variable rate
cash flows. Thefair value of the mortgage loan pipeline is based upon the projected sales price of the underlying loans, taking into
account market interest rates and other market factors at the measurement date, net of the projected fallout rate. Pinnacle Financia
reflects these assets within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy as these assets are valued using similar transactions that occur in the
market.

Nonaccrual loans —A loan is classified as nonaccrual when it is probable Pinnacle Financial will be unable to collect all
principal and interest payments due in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Nonaccrual loans are
measured based on the present value of expected payments using the loan's original effective rate as the discount rate, the loan's
observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral less selling costsif theloan is collateral dependent. If the recorded
investment in the nonaccrual 1oan exceeds the measure of fair value, a valuation allowance may be established as a component of
the allowance for loan losses or the difference may be recognized as a charge-off. Nonaccrual loans are classified within Level 3 of
the hierarchy due to the unobservable inputs used in determining their fair value such as collateral values and the borrower's
underlying financial condition.
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Other real estate owned — Other real estate owned (OREO) represents real estate foreclosed upon by Pinnacle Bank through
loan defaults by customers or acquired by deed in lieu of foreclosure. Substantially all of these amounts relate to lots, homes and
development projects that are either completed or are in various stages of construction for which Pinnacle Financial believesit has
adequate collateral. Upon foreclosure, the property is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value, based on appraised value, less
selling costs estimated as of the date acquired with any loss recognized as a charge-off through the allowance for loan losses.
Additional OREO losses for subsequent valuation downward adjustments are determined on a specific property basis and are
included as a component of noninterest expense along with holding costs. Any gains or losses realized at the time of disposal are
aso reflected in noninterest expense, as applicable. OREQ isincluded in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy dueto the lack of
observable market inputsinto the determination of fair value. Appraisal values are property-specific and sensitive to the changes in
the overall economic environment.

Liabilities

Other liabilities — Pinnacle Financial has certain liabilities carried at fair value including certain interest rate swap agreements.
Thefair value of these liabilities is based on Pinnacle Financial's pricing models that utilize observable market inputs and is
reflected within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.

The following tables present the financial instruments carried at fair value on arecurring basis as of December 31, 2017 and
2016, by caption on the consolidated balance sheets and by FASB ASC 820 valuation hierarchy (as described above) (in
thousands):

Models with Models with
significant significant
Total carrying Quoted market observable unobservable
value in the prices in an market market
consolidated active market parameters parameters
December 31, 2017 balance sheet (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investment securities available-for-sale;
U.S. treasury securities $ 30,445 $ — $ 30,445 $ —
U.S. government agency securities 180,801 — 180,801 —
Mortgage-backed securities 1,263,819 — 1,263,819 —
State and municipal securities 784,612 — 767,583 17,029
Asset- backed securities 173,292 — 173,292 —
Corporate notes and other 82,314 — 82,314 —
Total investment securities available-for-sale 2,515,283 — 2,498,254 17,029
Other investments 28,874 — — 28,874
Other assets 11,812 — 11,812 —
Total assets at fair value $ 2,555,969 $ — % 2,510,066 $ 45,903
Other liahilities $ 13,886 $ — % 13886 $ —
Total liabilities at fair value $ 13886 $ — 3 13886 $ —
December 31, 2016
Investment securities available-for-sale;
U.S. treasury securities $ 250 $ — 3 250 $ =
U.S. government agency securities $ 21,769 $ — % 21,769 $ —
Mortgage-backed securities 976,626 — 976,626 —
State and municipal securities 212,720 — 212,720 —
Asset- backed securities 78,580 — 78,580 —
Corporate notes and other 8,601 — 8,601 —
Total investment securities available-for-sale 1,298,546 — 1,298,546 —
Other investments 10,478 — — 10,478
Other assets 13,340 — 13,340 —
Total assets at fair value $ 1,322,364 $ — $ 1,311,886 $ 10,478
Other liabilities $ 15758 $ — $ 15758 $ —
Total liabilities at fair value $ 15758 $ — $ 15758 $ =
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The following table presents assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in
thousands):

Models with Models with
significant significant
Total carrying Quoted market observable unobservable
value in the pricesin an market market Total gains
consolidated active market parameters parameters (losses) for the
December 31, 2017 balance sheet (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) period ended
Other real estate owned $ 27831 $ — 3 — $ 27,831 $ 203
Nonaccrua loans, net 55,138 — — 55,138 (722)
Total $ 82,969 $ — % — $ 82,969 $ (519)
December 31, 2016
Other real estate owned $ 6,00 $ — 3 — 3 6,00 $ (135)
Nonaccrual loans, net @ 26,506 — — 26,506 (7,173)
Total $ 3259 $ — $ — $ 325% $ (7,308)

@ Amount is net of avaluation allowance of $2.3 million and $1.1 million at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, as required by
ASC 310-10, "Receivables."

In the case of investment securities, Pinnacle Financial monitors the valuation technique utilized by various pricing agencies
to ascertain when transfers between levels have been affected. The nature of the remaining assets and liabilities is such that
transfersin and out of any level are expected to be rare. For the year ended December 31, 2017, there were no transfers between
Levels1, 2or 3.

The table below includes arollforward of the balance sheet amounts for the year ended December 31, 2017 for financial
instruments classified by Pinnacle Financial within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy measured at fair value on arecurring basis
including changesin fair value due in part to observabl e factors that are part of the valuation methodology (in thousands):

For the year ended December 31,

2017 2016
Available- Available-
for-sale Other Other for-sale Other Other

Securities assets liabilities  Securities assets liabilities
Fair value, Jan. 1 $ — $10478 $ — % — $ 9764 $ —
Total net realized losses included in income 66 605 — — 131 —
Change in unrealized gaing/losses included in other
comprehensive income for assets and liabilities still held at
Dec. 31 709 — — — — —
Acquired 16,254 17,062 — — — —
Purchases — 2,330 — — 1,639 —
I ssuances — — — — — —
Settlements — (1601 — —  (1,056) —
Transfers out of Level 3 — — — — — —
Fair value, Dec. 31 $ 17,029 $28874 $ — 3 — $10478 $ —
Total realized losses included in income related to financial
assets and liabilities still on the consolidated balance sheet
at Dec. 31 $ 66 $ 605 $ — 3 — $ 131 % —

The following methods and assumptions were used by Pinnacle Financial in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial
instruments that are not measured at fair value. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on
estimates using discounted cash flow models. Those models are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and borrower creditworthiness. The fair value estimates presented herein are based on
pertinent information available to management as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Such amounts have not been
revalued for purposes of these consolidated financial statements since those dates and, therefore, current estimates of fair value
may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.
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Held-to-maturity securities - Estimated fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices where
available. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models that use
observable inputs or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics.

Loans - Thefair value of Pinnacle Financial's loan portfolio includes a credit risk factor in the determination of the fair value
of itsloans. This credit risk assumption isintended to approximate the fair value that a market participant would realize
in ahypothetical orderly transaction. Pinnacle Financial's loan portfolioisinitially fair valued using a segmented
approach. Pinnacle Financia dividesitsloan portfolio into the following categories: variable rate |oans, impaired loans
and all other loans. The results are then adjusted to account for credit risk.

Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow models or based on the fair value of the
underlying collateral. For other loans, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow models, using current market
interest rates offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. The values derived from the
discounted cash flow approach for each of the above portfolios are then further discounted to incorporate credit risk to
determine the exit price.

Mortgage loans held-for-sale - Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. The estimate of fair
value is based on pricing models and other information.

Deposits, Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances, Subordinated
debt and other borrowings - The carrying amounts of demand deposits, savings deposits, securities sold under
agreements to repurchase, floating rate advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank, and floating rate subordinated debt
and other borrowings approximate their fair values. Fair values for certificates of deposit, fixed rate advances from the
FHLB and fixed rate subordinated debt are estimated using discounted cash flow models, using current market interest
rates offered on certificates, advances and other borrowings with similar remaining maturities. For fixed rate
subordinated debt, the maturity is assumed to be as of the earliest date that the indebtedness will be repriced.

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments - The fair values of Pinnacle Financial's off-balance-sheet financial instruments are based on
fees charged to enter into similar agreements. However, commitments to extend credit do not represent a significant value
to Pinnacle Financial until such commitments are funded.

The following table presents the carrying amounts, estimated fair value and placement in the fair value hierarchy of Pinnacle
Financia's financial instruments at December 31, 2017 and 2016. This table excludes financial instruments for which the carrying
amount approximates fair value. For short-term financia assets such as cash and cash equivalents, the carrying amount isa
reasonabl e estimate of fair value due to the relatively short time between the origination of the instrument and its expected
realization. For financial liabilities such as non-interest bearing demand, interest-bearing demand, and savings deposits, the
carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value due to these products having no stated maturity.

Quoted Models with Models with

market significant significant
prices in an observable unobservable
Carrying/ active market market
Notional Estimated market parameters parameters
December 31, 2017 Amount Fair Value®  (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets:
Securities held-to-maturity $ 20,762 $ 20,830 $ — 20,830 $ =
Loans, net 15,565,876 15,252,953 — — 15,252,953
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 103,729 104,986 — 104,986 —
Commercial loans held-for-sale 25,456 25,761 — 25,761 —
Financial liabilities:
Deposits and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 16,586,964 16,516,342 — — 16,516,342
Federal Home L oan Bank advances 1,319,909 1,313,311 — — 1,313,311
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 465,505 445,098 — — 445,098
Off-balance sheet instruments:
Commitments to extend credit @ 5,788,425 2,264 — — 2,264
Standby letters of credit © 143,684 800 — — 800
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Quoted Models with Models with

market significant significant
prices in an observable unobservable
Carrying/ active market market
Notional Estimated market parameters parameters
December 31, 2017 Amount  FairValue®  (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 2016
Financial assets:
Securities held-to-maturity $ 25251 $ 25233 $ — $ 25233 $ =
Loans, net 8,390,944 8,178,982 — — 8,178,982
Mortgage loans held-for-sale 47,710 47,892 — 47,892 —
Commercial loans held-for-sale 22,588 22,674 — 22,674 —
Financial liabilities:
Deposits and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase 8,845,014 8,579,664 — — 8,579,664
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 406,304 406,491 — — 406,491
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 350,768 328,049 — — 328,049
Off-balance sheet instruments:
Commitments to extend credit @ 3,374,269 383 — — 383
Standby letters of credit © 131,418 740 — — 740

(1) Estimated fair values are consistent with an exit-price concept. The assumptions used to estimate the fair values are intended to
approximate those that a market-participant would realize in a hypothetical orderly transaction.

(2) Attheend of each period, Pinnacle Financial evaluates the inherent risks of the outstanding off-balance sheet commitments. In making
this evaluation, Pinnacle Financial evaluates the credit worthiness of the borrower, the collateral supporting the commitments and any
other factors similar to those used to evaluate the inherent risks of our loan portfolio. Additionally, Pinnacle Financial evaluates the
probability that the outstanding commitment will eventually become afunded loan. As aresult, at both December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, Pinnacle Financial included in other liabilities $2.3 million and $383,000 representing the inherent risks associated with
these off-balance sheet commitments.

(3) At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the fair value of Pinnacle Financia's standby letters of credit totaled $800,000 and $740,000,
respectively. This amount represents the unamortized fee associated with these standby letters of credit, which were priced at market
when issued, and isincluded in the consolidated balance sheet of Pinnacle Financial and is believed to approximate fair value. Thisfair
value will decrease over time as the existing standby |etters of credit approach their expiration dates.

Note 20. Variable Interest Entities

Under ASC 810, Pinnacle Financial is deemed to be the primary beneficiary and required to consolidate a variable interest entity
(VIE) if it has avariableinterest in the VIE that providesit with a controlling financial interest. For such purposes, the determination
of whether a controlling financial interest existsis based on whether a single party has both the power to direct the activities of the
VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of the VIE or theright to
receive benefits from the VIE that could potentialy be significant to the VIE. ASC 810 requires continua reconsideration of
conclusions reached regarding which interest holder isaVIE's primary beneficiary and disclosures surrounding those VIE's which
have not been consolidated. The consolidation methodology provided in this footnote as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 has been
prepared in accordance with ASC 810.

Non-consolidated Variable Interest Entities

At December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Financial did not have any consolidated VIEs to disclose but did have the following non-
consolidated VIEs: low income housing partnerships, trust preferred i ssuances, troubled debt restructuring commercial loans, and
managed discretionary trusts.

Since 2003, Pinnacle Financia has made equity investments as a limited partner in various partnerships that sponsor affordable
housing projects. The purpose of these investmentsis to achieve a satisfactory return on capital and to support Pinnacle Financial's
community reinvestment initiatives. The activities of the limited partnerships include the identification, development, and operation of
multi-family housing that is leased to qualifying residential tenants generally within Pinnacle Financial's primary geographic region.
These partnerships are considered VI Es because Pinnacle Financial, as the holder of the equity investment at risk, does not have the
ability to direct the activities that most significantly affect the success of the entity through voting rights or similar rights. While
Pinnacle Financia could absorb losses that are significant to these partnerships asit has arisk of lossfor itsinitial capital
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contributions and funding commitments to each partnership, it is not considered the primary beneficiary of the partnerships asthe
genera partners whose manageria functions give them the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the
partnerships economic performance and who are exposed to all losses beyond Pinnacle Financial'sinitial capital contributions and
funding commitments are considered the primary beneficiaries.

Pinnacle Financial (or companies it has acquired) has previously issued subordinated debt totaling $133.0 million to certain
statutory trusts which are considered VI1Es because Pinnacle Financia's capital contributions to these trusts are not considered "at risk"
in evaluating whether the holders of the equity investments at risk in the trusts have the power through voting rights or similar rights
to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entities' economic performance. These trusts were not consolidated by
Pinnacle Financia because the holders of the securities issued by the trusts absorb a majority of expected losses and residual returns.

For certain troubled commercia loans, Pinnacle Financia restructures the terms of the borrower's debt in an effort to increase the
probability of receipt of amounts contractually due. However, Pinnacle Financial does not assume decision-making power or
responsibility over the borrower's operations. Following a debt restructuring, the borrowing entity typically meets the definition of a
VIE astheinitial determination of whether the entity isaVIE must be reconsidered and economic events have proven that the entity's
equity is not sufficient to permit it to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support or arestructuring of the
terms of its financing. As Pinnacle Financial does not have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact such
troubled commercial borrowers' operations, it is not considered the primary beneficiary even in situations where, based on the size of
the financing provided, Pinnacle Financial is exposed to potentially significant benefits and losses of the borrowing entity. Pinnacle
Financia has no contractual regquirementsto provide financial support to the borrowing entities beyond certain funding commitments
established upon restructuring of the terms of the debt to allow for completion of activities which prepare the collateral related to the
debt for sale.

Pinnacle Financia serves as manager over certain discretionary trusts, for which it makes investment decisions on behalf of the
trusts beneficiariesin return for a management fee. The trusts meet the definition of aVIE since the holders of the equity investments
at risk do not have the power through voting rights or similar rights to direct the activities that most significantly impact the entities
economic performance. However, since the management fees Pinnacle Financial receives are not considered variable interestsin the
trusts as all of the requirements related to permitted levels of decision maker fees are met, such VIES are not consolidated by Pinnacle
Financia because it cannot be the trusts' primary beneficiary. Pinnacle Financial has no contractual requirements to provide financial
support to the trusts.

The following table summarizes VIE's that are not consolidated by Pinnacle Financial as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 (in
thousands):

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Maximum Liability Maximum Liability

Type LossExposure  Recognized  LossExposure  Recognized Classification

Low Income Housing Partnerships $ 23912 $ — $ 24150 $ — Other Assets
Trust Preferred | ssuances N/A 132,995 N/A 82,476 Subordinated Debt
Commercial Troubled Debt

Restructurings 3,760 — 11,572 — Loans
Managed Discretionary Trusts N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Note 21. Regulatory Matters

Pursuant to Tennessee banking law, Pinnacle Bank may not, without the prior consent of the Commissioner of the TDFI, pay any
dividends to Pinnacle Financial in a calendar year in excess of the total of Pinnacle Bank's retained net income for that year plusthe
retained net income for the preceding two years. During the year ended December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank paid $63.1 millionin
dividends to Pinnacle Financial. As of December 31, 2017, Pinnacle Bank could pay approximately $305.1 million of additional
dividends to Pinnacle Financia without prior approval of the Commissioner of the TDFI. Pinnacle Financial initiated payment of a
quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share of common stock in the fourth quarter of 2013 and has since increased the dividend to $0.12
beginning in the first quarter of 2015 and to $0.14 beginning in the first quarter of 2016. The amount and timing of all future dividend
payments, if any, is subject to the discretion of Pinnacle Financial's board of directors and will depend on Pinnacle Financial's
earnings, capital position, financial condition and other factors, including new regulatory capital requirements, as they become known
tous.

Pinnacle Financia and Pinnacle Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary actions,
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
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the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank must meet specific capital guidelines
that involve quantitative measures of the assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calcul ated under regulatory
accounting practices. Pinnacle Financial's and Pinnacle Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require Pinnacle Financial and its banking subsidiary
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of common equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, Tier | capital to risk-weighted
assets, total risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets and of Tier 1 capital to average assets.

Thefinal rulesimplementing the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision's capital guidelines for U.S. banks (Basel 111 rules)
became effective for Pinnacle Financial on January 1, 2015 with full compliance with all of the requirements being phased in over a
multi-year schedule, and fully phased in by January 1, 2019. The minimum capital level requirements applicable to bank holding
companies and banks subject to the rules are: (i) acommon equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%; (ii) aTier 1 risk-based capital ratio of
6%; (iii) atotal risk-based capital ratio of 8%; and (iv) aTier 1 leverage ratio of 4% for al institutions. The Basel 111 rules, also
establish a capital conservation buffer of 2.5% (to be phased in over three years) above the regulatory minimum risk-based capital
ratios. The phase-in of the capital conservation buffer requirement commenced in January 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and
increases each year by alike percentage until fully implemented in January 2019. The net unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale
securitiesis not included in computing regulatory capital. Management believes, as of December 31, 2017, that Pinnacle Financial and
Pinnacle Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject. To be categorized as well-capitalized under applicable
banking regulations, Pinnacle Financial and Pinnacle Bank must maintain certain total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, common equity
Tier 1 and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following table and not be subject to a written agreement, order or directive to
maintain a higher capital level. The capital conservation buffer is not included in the required ratios of the table presented below.
Pinnacle Financia's and Pinnacle Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table (in thousands):

Minimum Capital Minimum
Actual Requirement To Be Well-Capitalized
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31, 2017
Total capital to risk weighted assets:

Pinnacle Financia $ 2,266,161 120% $ 1,509,496 8.0% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 2134344 113% $ 1,504,765 80% $ 1,880,956 10.0%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets:

Pinnacle Financial $ 1725323 9.1% $ 1,132,122 6.0% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 1,936,313 103% $ 1,128,574 6.0% $ 1,504,765 8.0%
Common equity Tier 1 capital:

Pinnacle Financial $ 1,725219 9.1% $ 849,092 4.5% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 1,936,209 10.3% $ 846,430 45% $ 1,222,621 6.5%
Tier 1 capital to average assets (*):

Pinnacle Financial $ 1,725,323 8.6% $ 797,861 4.0% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 1,936,313 9.7% $ 796,235 40% $ 995,294 5.0%
December 31, 2016
Total capital to risk weighted assets:

Pinnacle Financial $ 1,211,105 11.9% $ 816,857 8.0% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 1,136,782 11.2% $ 814,254 80% $ 1,017,817 10.0%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets:

Pinnacle Financial $ 882,654 8.6% $ 612,643 6.0% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 949,193 93% $ 610,690 6.0% $ 814,254 8.0%
Common equity Tier 1 capital:

Pinnacle Financial $ 802,532 79% $ 459,482 4.5% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 949,070 93% $ 458,018 45% $ 661,581 6.5%
Tier 1 capital to average assets (*):

Pinnacle Financial $ 882,654 8.6% $ 412,902 4.0% N/A N/A

Pinnacle Bank $ 949,193 9.2% $ 412,124 40% $ 515,155 5.0%

(*) Average assets for the above cal cul ations were based on the most recent quarter.
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Following the Merger with BNC, Pinnacle Financial's total assets exceeded $15.0 billion as aresult of the acquisition of BNC,
which caused the subordinated debentures Pinnacle Financial and BNC previously issued in connection with the trust preferred
securities of their affiliates to cease to qualify as Tier 1 capital under applicable banking regulations. Though these securities no longer
qualify as Tier 1 capital, Pinnacle Financial believes these subordinated debentures continue to qualify as Tier 2 capital.

Note 22. Parent Company Only Financial Information
The following information presents the condensed balance sheets, statements of operations, and cash flows of Pinnacle Financial

as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31, 2017 (in thousands):
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

2017 2016
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 64,851 $ 36,984
Investments in bank 3,855,483 1,579,728
Investmentsin consolidated subsidiaries 6,025 5,484
Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries:

Statutory Trusts 3,995 2,476

Other investments 69,256 61,374
Current income tax receivable 20,017 6,831
Other assets 29,524 29,182

$ 4,049,151 $ 1,722,059

Liabilities and stockholders' equity:

Income taxes payabl e to subsidiaries 24 —
Subordinated debt and other borrowings 337,818 223,337
Other liabilities 3,357 2,026
Stockholders' equity 3,707,952 1,496,696

$ 4,049,151 $ 1,722,059

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

2017 2016 2015

Revenues:

Income from bank subsidiaries $ 63,100 27,663 19,038

Income from nonbank subsidiaries 297 5,198 210

Income from equity method investment 10,126 7,663 —

Other income (l0ss) 380 21 (132)
Expenses:

Interest expense 9,856 1,997 220

Personnel expense, including stock compensation 16,629 10,971 7,342

Other expense 8,076 3,653 2,889
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 39,342 23,924 8,665
Income tax benefit (12,748) (3,428) (4,119)
Income before equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 52,090 27,352 12,784
Equity in undistributed income of bank subsidiaries 121,341 104,318 81,536
Equity in undistributed income (loss) of nonbank subsidiaries 548 (4,445) 1,189
Net income $ 173979 $ 127,225 $ 95,509
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2017 2016 2015
Operating activities:
Net income $ 173979 $ 127,225 $ 95,509
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Amortization and accretion 290 543 —
Stock-based compensation expense 19,538 10,971 7,342
Increase in income tax payable, net 24 (22 (10,870)
Deferred tax expense 5,919 1,025 (394)
Income from equity method investments, net (10,368) (8,350) —
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation (5,365) (4,604) (4,116)
Loss (gain) on other investments (350) 497 132
Decrease in other assets (3,989) 2,636 1,194
Increase in other liabilities (9,194) 3,157 3,771
Equity in undistributed income of bank subsidiaries (121,341) (104,318) (81,530)
Equity in undistributed income of nonbank subsidiaries (548) 4,445 (1,189)
Net cash provided by operating activities 48,595 33,215 9,849
Investing activities:
Investment in consolidated banking subsidiaries (182,288) (118,878) —
Increase in equity method investment — (11,400) —
Dividends received from equity method investment 5,655 3,255 —
Increase in other investments (815) (710) (335
Net cash used in investing activities (177,448) (127,733) (335
Financing activities:
Net (decrease) increase in subordinated debt and other borrowings (60) 118,294 (13,682)
Proceeds from common stock issuance 192,194 — —
Exercise of common stock options and stock appreciation rights, net of repurchase of
restricted shares 493 11,589 3,603
Excess tax benefit from stock compensation — 4,604 4,116
Common dividends paid (35,907) (24,725) (18,307)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 156,720 109,762 (24,270)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 27,867 15,244 (14,756)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 36,984 21,740 36,496
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 64,851 $ 36,984 $ 21,740

Pinnacle Bank is subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends to Pinnacle Financial under Tennessee banking laws. Pinnacle
Bank paid dividends of $63.1 million, $27.7 million and $19.0 million, respectively to Pinnacle Financial in each of the years ended
December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015.

128



Note 23. Quarterly Financial Results (unaudited)

A summary of selected consolidated quarterly financial datafor each of the yearsin the three-year period ended December 31,
2017 follows:

First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2017
Interest income $ 102,143 $ 123,743 $ 202,167 $ 208,085
Net interest income 88,767 106,627 173,182 174,731
Provision for loan losses 3,651 6,812 6,920 6,281
Net income before taxes 53,444 63,074 99,503 81,965
Net income 39,653 43,086 64,442 26,798
Basic net income per share $ 083 $ 081 $ 084 $ 0.35
Diluted net income per share $ 082 $ 080 $ 083 $ 0.35
2016
Interest income $ 80,974 $ 83,762 $ 97,380 $ 101,493
Net interest income 73,902 75,044 86,635 89,413
Provision for loan losses 3,894 5,280 6,108 3,046
Net income before taxes 41,800 46,546 48,693 54,345
Net income 27,964 30,787 32,377 36,097
Basic net income per share $ 070 $ 075 $ 071 $ 0.79
Diluted net income per share $ 068 $ 073 $ 071 $ 0.78
2015
Interest income $ 54679 $ 55503 $ 67,192 $ 77,797
Net interest income 51,269 51,831 62,059 71,475
Provision for loan losses 315 1,186 2,228 5,459
Net income before taxes 32,617 33,917 36,134 40,432
Net income 21,843 22,665 24,149 26,854
Basic net income per share $ 062 $ 065 $ 064 $ 0.67
Diluted net income per share $ 062 $ 064 $ 062 $ 0.65
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ITEM 9. CHANGES INAND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Information required by thisitem will be included under the heading "Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" in
Pinnacle Financial's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held April 17, 2018.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pinnacle Financial maintains disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
by it in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to Pinnacle
Financial's management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Pinnacle Financial carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of its management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on the
evaluation of these disclosure controls and procedures, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that Pinnacle Financial's disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
The report of Pinnacle Financial's management on Pinnacle Financia's internal control over financial reporting is set forth on
page 74 of thisAnnua Report on Form 10-K. The report of Pinnacle Financia's independent registered public accounting
firm on Pinnacle Financial's internal control over financial reporting is set forth on page 77 of thisAnnual Report on Form
10-K.

Changes in Internal Controls
There were no changes in Pinnacle Financial's internal control over financial reporting during Pinnacle Financial's fiscal
quarter ended December 31, 2017 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, Pinnacle
Financial'sinternal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART I
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The responses to this Item will be included in Pinnacle Financial's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held
April 17, 2018 under the headings " Corporate Governance-Code of Conduct,” "Proposal #1 Election of Directors-Audit Committee,"
"Proposal #1 Election of Directors,” "Executive Management,” and " Section 16A Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and
are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The responses to this Item will be included in Pinnacle Financial's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdersto be held
April 17, 2018 under the headings "Proposal #1 Election of the Directors-Director Compensation” and "Executive Compensation” and
are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The response to this Item regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management will be included in Pinnacle
Financial's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held April 17, 2018 under the heading, " Security Ownership
of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and the response to this item regarding Pinnacle Financia's equity compensation plans
at December 31, 2017 will be included in Pinnacle Financia's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the
heading "Proposal #5 Approval of the Company's 2018 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan," and, in each case, are incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The responses to this Item will be included in Pinnacle Financial's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held
April 17, 2018 under the headings, " Certain Relationships and Related Transactions," and " Corporate Governance-Director
Independence” and are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The responses to this Item will beincluded in Pinnacle Financial's Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdersto be held
April 17, 2018 under the heading, "Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" and are incorporated herein by reference.

131



ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Exhibits
Exhibit No.

Description

2.1t

2.2t

2.3t

2.4%

31

3.2
411
412

4.2

4.3

4.4

45

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

10.1#

10.2#

10.3#

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., Pinnacle Bank and
CapitalMark Bank & Trust, dated as of April 7, 2015, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 8, 2015.

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., Pinnacle Bank and
Magna Bank, dated as of April 28, 2015, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 29, 2015.

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and Avenue Financial
Holdings, Inc., dated as of January 28, 2016, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 29, 2016.

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., BNC Bancorp and Blue
Merger Sub, Inc., dated as of January 22, 2017, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2017.

Amended and Restated Charter, as amended (restated for SEC filing purposes only), incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27, 2015.

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., effective as of October 17,
2017, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on October 20, 2017.

Specimen Common Stock Certificate, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment
No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed on July 12, 2000.

See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions of the Charter and Bylaws defining rights of holders of the
Common Stock.

Form of 4.875% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Subordinated Note due July 30, 2025, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 5, 2015.

Form of Certificate for Avenue Financial Holdings, Inc. Fixed/Floating Rate Subordinated Note due
December 29, 2024, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2016.

Form of 5.25% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Subordinated Note due November 16, 2026, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 18, 2016.

Form of Subordinated Indenture, dated as of September 30, 2014, between BNC Bancorp and
Wilmington Trust, National Association, as Trustee, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to BNC Bancorp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 26, 2014.

Form of First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 30, 2014, between BNC Bancorp
and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as Trustee, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to BNC Bancorp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 26, 2014.

BNC Bancorp Second Supplemental |ndenture, dated as of June 16, 2017, between Pinnacle Financial
Partners, Inc. and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as Trustee, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Form of Global Note to represent 5.5% Subordinated Notes, due October 1, 2024, of BNC Bancorp,
ncorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to BNC Bancorp’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

Pinnacle Financial is a party to certain agreements entered into in connection with the offering or
assumption of its subordinated debentures and certain of its subordinated indebtedness, in each case as
more fully described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of
Regulation S-K and because no issuance of any such indebtednessisin excess of 10% of Pinnacle
Financial’stotal assets, Pinnacle Financial has not filed the various documents and agreements
associated with such indebtedness herewith. Pinnacle Financial has, however, agreed to furnish copies
of the various documents and agreements associated with such indebtedness to the Securities and
Exchange Commission upon request.

Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and
M. Terry Turner, dated as of January 1, 2008, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the
Company’sAnnua Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, filed on March
7, 2008.

Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and
Robert A. McCabe, Jr., dated as of January 1, 2008, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, filed on
March 7, 2008.

Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and
Hugh M. Queener, dated as of January 1, 2008, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the
Company’sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, filed on March
7, 2008.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.4#

10.5#

10.6#

10.7#

10.8#

10.9#

10.10#

10.11#

10.12#

10.13#

10.14#

10.15#

10.16#

10.17#

10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

10.21#

Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and

Harold R. Carpenter, dated as of January 1, 2008, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to

the Company’sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, filed on

March 7, 2008.
Form of Named Executive Officers 2012 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 20, 2012.

Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc. Amended and Restated 2004 Equity | ncentive Plan, effective as of

April 20, 2004, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2012.

Change of Control Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and
Joseph Harvey White, dated as of September 4, 2012, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 6, 2012.

Form of Named Executive Officers 2013 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 17, 2013.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and M. Terry Turner, dated November 20, 2012, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, filed on February 22, 2013.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and Robert A. McCabe, Jr., dated November 20, 2012, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, filed on February 22, 2013.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and Hugh M. Queener, dated November 20, 2012, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, filed on February 22, 2013.

Amendment No. 1 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and Harold R. Carpenter, dated November 20, 2012, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, filed on February 22, 2013.

Amendment No. 1 to Change of Control Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle Financial
Partners, Inc. and Joseph Harvey White, dated November 20, 2012, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.42 to the Company’sAnnua Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2012, filed on February 22, 2013.

Form of Named Executive Officers 2014 Performance Unit Award Agreement, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 24, 2014.

Amendment No. 2 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and M. Terry Turner, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the
Company’sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, filed on
February 25, 2014.

Amendment No. 2 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and Robert A. McCabe, Jr., incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, filed on
February 25, 2014.

Amendment No. 2 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and Hugh M. Queener, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the
Company’sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, filed on
February 25, 2014.

Amendment No. 2 to Amended Employment Agreement by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and Harold R. Carpenter, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to
the Company’sAnnual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, filed on
February 25, 2014.

Amendment No. 1 to Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc. 2004 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive
Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Company’s Annua Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, filed on February 25, 2014.

Second Amended and Restated Mid-America Bancshares, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, filed on February 25, 2014.

Form of Directors 2014 Restricted Stock Agreement, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.47
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, filed on
February 25, 2014.
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.22#

10.23#

10.24#

10.25

10.26#

10.27#

10.28#

10.29#

10.30

10.31

10.32#

10.34#

10.34#

10.35#

10.36#

16.1

21.1*
23.1*
23.2*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1**
32.2%*
101.INS*
101.SCH*
101.CAL*
101.LAB*
101.PRE*
101.DEF*

Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, effective as of April 15, 2014,
ncorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

April 17, 2014.

Form of Named Executive Officers 2015 Performance Unit Award Agreement, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 27, 2015.

CapitalMark Bank & Trust Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan, effective as of July 31,
2015, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed August 10, 2015.

L oan Agreement by and between Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., as Borrower, and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Lender, dated as of March 29, 2016, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2016.

Employment Agreement, effective as of July 1, 2016, by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle Financia
Partners, Inc. and Ronald L. Samuels, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2016.

Form of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. 2016 Restricted Stock Award Agreement, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2016.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement between Avenue Bank and Ronald Samuels, dated
October 26, 2007, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on July 7, 2016.

Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc. 2017 Annual Cash Incentive Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 20, 2017.

First Amendment to Loan Agreement by and between Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., as Borrower,
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Lender, dated as of March 27, 2017, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March
31, 2017, filed on May 5, 2017.

Second Amendment to L oan Agreement by and between Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc., as Borrower,
and U.S. Bank National Association, as lender, dated as of April 26, 2017, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March
31, 2017, filed on May 5, 2017.

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 16, 2017, by and among Pinnacle Bank, Pinnacle
Financial Partners, Inc. and Richard D. Cdllicutt I, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 16, 2017.

Salary Continuation Agreement dated as of December 12, 2016, between Richard D. Callicutt |1 and
Bank of North Carolina, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to BNC Bancorp’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 16, 2017.

BNC Bancorp 2013 Amended and Restated Omnibus Stock | ncentive Plan, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 16, 2017.

Form of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. Named Executive Officer Performance Award Agreement,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed
February 26, 2018.

Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. 2018 Annual Cash Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 26, 2018.

L etter to the Securities and Exchange Commission from KPMG LL P, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 3, 2016.

Subsidiaries of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.

Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP

Consent of KPMG LLP

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

Certification pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350 - Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification pursuant to 18 USC Section 1350 - Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Schema Documents

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document

XBRL Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
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T Asdirected by Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, certain schedules and exhibitsto thisexhibit are omitted from thisfiling.
The Company agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit to the SEC upon request.

# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
* Filed herewith.
*k Furnished herewith.

(c) Schedulesto the consolidated financial statements are omitted, as the required information is not applicable.
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ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC

By: /9 M. Terry Turner

M. Terry Turner
Date: February 28, 2018 President and Chief Executive Officer

137



Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURES TITLE DATE

/s/ Robert A. McCabe, Jr. Chairman of the Board February 28, 2018
Robert A. McCabe, Jr.

/s/ M. Terry Turner Director, President and Chief Executive Officer February 28, 2018
M. Terry Turner (Principa Executive Officer)

/s/ Harold R. Carpenter Chief Financial Officer February 28, 2018
Harold R. Carpenter (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s Ronald L. Samuels Vice Chairman of the Board February 28, 2018
Ronald L. Samuels

/s/ Richard D. Callicutt Director, Chairman of the Carolinas and Virginia February 28, 2018
Richard D. Callicutt

/s Abney S. Boxley Director February 28, 2018
Abney S. Boxley

/s/ Charles E. Brock Director February 28, 2018
Charles E. Brock

/s Renda J. Burkhart Director February 28, 2018
Renda J. Burkhart

/s/ Gregory L. Burns Director February 28, 2018
Gregory L. Burns

/s Marty G. Dickens Director February 28, 2018
Marty G. Dickens

/s/ Thomas C. Farnsworth, |11 Director February 28, 2018
Thomas C. Farnsworth, I11

/s/ Joseph Galante Director February 28, 2018
Joseph Galante

/s/ Glenda Baskin Glover Director February 28, 2018
Glenda Baskin Glover

/s/ David B. Ingram Director February 28, 2018
David B. Ingram

/s/ Ed C. Loughry, Jr. Director February 28, 2018
Ed C. Loughry, Jr.

/s/ Gary Scott Director February 28, 2018
Gary Scott

/s Thomas R. Sloan Director February 28, 2018
Thomas R. Sloan

/s/ Reese L. Smith, |11 Director February 28, 2018
Reese L. Smith, I11

/9 G. Kennedy Thompson Director February 28, 2018

G. Kennedy Thompson
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List of Subsidiaries

Jurisdiction or State of

Exhibit 21.1

Names Under Which

Subsidiaries Incorporation Subsidiary Does Business (1)
Pinnacle Bank (2) Tennessee
PFP Title Company (3) Tennessee
Pinnacle Community Development Corporation (3) Tennessee
PNFP Statutory Trust | (4) Connecticut
PNFP Statutory Trust 11 (4) Delaware
PNFP Statutory Trust 111 (4) Connecticut
PNFP Statutory Trust 1V (4) Delaware
PNFP Holdings, Inc. (5) Nevada
PNFP Properties, Inc. (6) Maryland
Pinnacle Advisory Services, Inc. (7) Tennessee
Pinnacle Credit Enhancement Holdings, Inc. (7) Tennessee
Pinnacle Rutherford Real Estate, Inc. (3) Tennessee
Pinnacle Nashville Real Estate, Inc. (3) Tennessee
Pinnacle Rutherford Towers, Inc.(3) Tennessee
Pinnacle Service Company, Inc.(3) Tennessee
PNFP Insurance, Inc.(7) Nevada
Miller & Loughry, Inc. (2) Tennessee Miller Loughry Beach
PNB Holding Co. 1, Inc. (3) Tennessee
PNB Holding Co. 2, Inc. (3) Tennessee
PNFP Capital Markets, Inc. (3) Tennessee
PNFPAviation, LLC (3) Tennessee
Bank of North Carolina Capital Trust | (4) Delaware
Bank of North Carolina Capital Trust 11 (4) Delaware
Bank of North Carolina Capital Trust 111 (4) Delaware
Bank of North Carolina Capital Trust 1V (4) Delaware
Valley Financia (VA) Statutory Trust | (4) Connecticut
Valey Financia (VA) Statutory Trust 11 (4) Connecticut
Valley Financial Statutory Trust 111 (4) Delaware
Southcoast Capital Trust 111 (4) Delaware
BFNM Building, LLC South Carolina

HPB Insurance Group, Inc. (3)

North Carolina

(1) Unless otherwise noted, each Subsidiary only does business under its legal name as set forth under the heading " Subsidiaries.”

(2) Pinnacle Bank is organized under the laws of the State of Tennessee.

(3) PFPTitle Company, Pinnacle Community Devel opment Corporation, Pinnacle Rutherford Real Estate, Inc., Pinnacle Nashville Real Estate, Inc.,
Pinnacle Rutherford Towers, Inc., Pinnacle Service Company, Inc., Miller & Loughry, Inc., PNB Holding Co. 1, Inc., PNB Holding Co. 2, Inc.,
PNFP Capital Markets, Inc., PNFPAviation, LLC, and HPB Insurance Group, Inc. are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Pinnacle Bank.

(4) These entities are statutory business trusts which were established to issue capital trust preferred securities.

(5) PNFPHoldings, Inc. isawholly-owned subsidiary of PFP Title Company.

(6) PNFP Properties, Inc. isawholly-owned subsidiary of PNFP Holdings, Inc.

(7) Pinnacle Advisory Services, Inc., Pinnacle Credit Enhancement Holdings, Inc. and PNFP Insurance, Inc. are wholly owned subsidiaries of Pinnacle

Financial Partners, Inc.



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements Nos. 333-49564, 333-68756, 333-114799, 333-124199,
333-132816, 333-135411, 333-147804, 333-148251, 333-158825, 333-180865, 333-195712, 333-206092 and 333-218797 on
Form S-8 and Registration Statement No. 333-215654 on Form S-3 of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. of our report dated February
28, 2018 relating to the consolidated bal ance sheets of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017
and 2016, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for
each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2017, and effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2017, which appear in the December 31, 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.

/s/ Crowe Horwath LLP

Franklin, Tennessee
February 28, 2018



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in registration statement No. 333-215654 of Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Company) on Form S-3 and Registration Statement Nos. 333-49564, 333-68756, 333-114799, 333-124199,
333-132816, 333-135411, 333-147804, 333-148251, 333-158825, 333-180865, 333-195712, 333-206092 and 333-218797 of
the Company on Form S-8 of our report dated February 29, 2016, with respect to the consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015, which report appearsin the
December 31, 2017 annual report on Form 10-K of the Company.

I KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 28, 2018



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, M. Terry Turner, certify that:

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(€) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(8) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which thisreport is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evauated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in thisreport any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materialy affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financia reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant'sinternal control over financia reporting.

Date: February 28, 2018 Signature; /s/ M. Terry Turner

M. Terry Turner
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Harold R. Carpenter, certify that:

1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(€) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(8) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which thisreport is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evauated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in thisreport any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materialy affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financia reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@ All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant'sinternal control over financia reporting.

Date: February 28, 2018 Signature; /s/ Harold R. Carpenter

Harold R. Carpenter
Chief Financia Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350,
ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Pinnacle Financial Partners (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2017, asfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, M. Terry
Turner, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. TheReport fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
and

2. Theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: February 28, 2018 By: /s/ M. Terry Turner
M. Terry Turner
President and Chief Executive Officer
Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350,
ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Pinnacle Financial Partners (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ended
December 31, 2017, asfiled with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), |, Harold R.
Carpenter, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adopted pursuant to section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. TheReport fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
and

2. Theinformation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: February 28, 2018 By: /¢/ Harold R. Carpenter
Harold R. Carpenter
Chief Financial Officer
Pinnacle Financia Partners, Inc.




STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GROWTH

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s
Common Stock against the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index, our peer group, the SNL $5 Billion to $10
Billion Bank Asset Size Index, and the S&P 500 Bank Index for the period commencing on December 31, 2012 and ending
December 31, 2017 (the “Measuring Period”). The graph assumes that the value of the investment in the Company’s Common Stock
and each index was $100 on December 31, 2012. The change in cumulative total return is measured by dividing the sum of the
cumulative amount of dividends for the measurement period, assuming dividend reinvestment, and the change in share price between
the beginning and end of each Measuring Period by the share price at the beginning of the Measuring Period. Cash dividends may
impact the cumulative returns of the indices.

Cumulative Total Returns®
Comparison of
PINNACLE FINANCIAL PARTNERS, INC.
NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX, PEER GROUP(Z), SNL $5B-$10B BANK
ASSET SIZE INDEX(3),
S&P 500 BANK INDEX

Total Return Performance
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(1) Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2012 in Pinnacle Financial Partners, Inc. Common Stock (PNFP) and the five
indices noted above.

(2) The peer group consists of Southeast Banks between $3 billion and $10 billion as of September 30, 2017. The peer group
was developed by SNL and is a composite of 17 banking institutions headquartered in the United States. SNL Financial is
a research firm focused on banking and other industries and is located in Charlottesville, Virginia.

(3) SNL $5 Billion to $10 Billion Bank Asset Size Index includes all major exchange banks in SNL’s coverage universe with
assets between $1 billion and $5 billion as of September 30, 2017.
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